
DOCUMENT RESUME

ED 129 764 SP 010 479

TITLE Getting Ready for National Health Insurance:
Shortchanging Children; Hearings Before the
Subcommittee on Oversight and Investigations of the
Committee on Interstate and Foreign Commerce, House
of Representatives, Ninety-Fourth Congress, First
Session on the Role of Government in Preventive
Health Programs That Primarily Affect Children.

INSTITUTION Congress of the U. S., Washington, D. C. House
Committee on Interstate and Foreign Commerce.

PUB DATE Oct 75
NOTE 159p.; Not available in hard copy due to print

quality of original
AVAILABLE FROM United States Government Printing Office, Washington,

D.C.

EDRS PRICE MF-$0-.83- Plus Postage. HC Not Available from EDRS.
DESCRIPTORS *Clinical Diagnosis; Federal Programs; Health

Insurance; *Health Services; *Medical Care
Evaluation; *Preschool Children; Primary Health Care;
*Public Health Legislation

IDENTIFIERS Department of Health Education and Welfare; DHEW

ABSTRACT
This hearing inquired into questions on the quality

of care and the utilization of services in the child health area.
Questions covered included: How does the government assist in
preventive medicine programs? What are the gaps in current health
care and delivery systems? How can current legislation in this field
be better implemented? The early periodic screening, diagnosis, and
treatment program (EDSDT) is essential to good health care for
children. Low-income children need this service, and good community
health centers are needed to implement this preventive health
program..The Department of Health, Education and Welfare (HEW) is
responsible for overseeing state operations and enforcement of this
program. Testimony indicates the job is not being done well. There is
inadequate funding through medicaid; there is a lack of rapport and
communication between HEW and state officials; and eligibility of
children for the program is hard to determine. There are wide gaps in
execution of the program as intended by congress, and there is a lack
of proper administration by HEW. The Committee requests a report from
HEW on steps they will take to bring the program into conformity with
the statutes of the U.S. Government. (JD)

***********************************************************************
Documents acquired by ERIC include many informal unpublished

* materials not available from other sources. ERIC makes every effort *
* to obtain the best copy available. Nevertheless, items of marginal *
* reproducibility are often encountered and this affects the quality *
* of the microfiche and hardcopy reproductions ERIC makes available *
* via the ERIC Document Reproduction Service (EDRS). EDRS is not
* responsible for the quality of the original document. Reproductions *
* supplied by EDRS are the best that can be made from the original.
***********************************************************************



GETTING READY FOR NATIONAL HEALTH INSURANCE:N-
c.N SHORTCHANGING CHILDREN ;

,
HEARINGS

BEFORE TIIE

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH.
EDUCATION I WELFARE
NATIONAL INSTITUTE OF

EDUCATION

THIS DOCUMENT HAS BEEN REPRO
DUCED EXACTLY AS RECEIVED FROM
THE PERSON OR ORGANIZATION ORIGIN.-
ATING IT POINTS OF VIEW OR OPINIONS
STATED DO NOT NECESSARILY REPRE
SENT OFFICIAL NATIONAL INSTITUTE OF
EDUCATION POSITION OR POLICY

SUBCOMMITTEE ,ON

OVERSIGHT AND INVESTIGATIONS
OF TFIE

COMMITTEE 4N

INTERSTATE AND FOREIGN COMMERCE,

HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES,
NINETY-FOURTH CONGRESS

FIRST SESSION
ON

THE ROLE OF GOVERNMENVIN PREVENTIVE HEALTH
PROGRAMS THAT PRIMARILY AFFECT CHILDREN

OCTOBER 1 AND S. 1975

Serial No. 9443

Printed for the nse of the
Committee on Interstate mid Foreign Commerce

180-203 0

U.S. GOVERNMENT PRINTING OFFICE

WASHINGTON IOVI

<3
2



COMMITTEE ON INTERSTATE AND FOREIGN COMMERCE
HARLEY 0. STAGGERS,

TORBERT H. MACDONALD, Massachusetts
JOHN E. MOSS, California
JOHN D. DINGELL, Michigan
PAUL GI. ROGERS, Florida
LIONEL VAN DEERLIN. California
FRED B. ROONEY, Pennsylvania
JOHN M. MURPHY, New York
DAVID E. SATTERFIELD III, Virginia
BROCK ADAMS, Washington
W. S. (BILL) STUCKEY, Ja.. Georgia
BOB ECKHARDT. Texas
RICHARDSON PREYER, North Carolina
JAMES W, SYMINGTON, Missouri
CHARLES J. CARNEY, Ohio
RALPH H. METCALFE, Illinois
GOODLOE E. BYRON, Maryland
JAMES H. SCHEUER, New York
RICHARD L. OTTINGER, New York
HENRY A. WAXMAN, California
ROBERT (BOB) KRUEGER, Texas
TIMOTHY E. WIRTH, Colorado
PHILIP R. SHARP. Indiana
WILLIAM M. BRODHEAD, Michigan
W. G. (BILL) HEFNER. North Carolina
JAMES J. FLORIO, New Jersey
ANTHONY TOBY MOFFETT. Connecticut
JIM SANTINI, Nevada
ANDREW MAGUIRE. New Jersey

W. E. WILLIAMSON, OUTS
KENNETH J. PAINTER, Assistant Clerk

West Virginia, Chairman
SAMUEL L. DEVINE. Ohio
JAMES T. BROYHILL, North Carolina
TIM LEE CARTER, Kentucky
CLARENCE J. BROWN, Ohio
JOE SKUBITZ, Kansas
JAMES F. HASTINGS, New York
JAMES M. COLLINS, Texas
LOUIS FREY, Ja., Florida
JOHN Y. McCOLLISTER, Nebraska
NORMAN F. LENT, New York
H. JOHN HEINZ III, Pennsylvania
EDWARD R. MADIGAN, Illinois
CARLOS J. MOORHEAD, California
MATTHEW J. RINALDO, New Jersey

SUBCOMMITTEE ON OVERSIGHT AND INVESTIGATIoNS

JOHN E. MOSS, California, Chairman
RICHARD L. OTTINGER, New York JAMES M. COLLINS, Texas
ROBERT (BOB) KRUEGER, Texas NORMAN F. LENT. New York
ANTHONY TOBY MOFFETT, Connecticut EDWARD R. MADIGAN, Illinois
JIM SANTINI. Nevada MATTHEW J. RINALDO, New Jersey
W. S. (BILL) STUCKEY, JR., Georgia SAMUEL L. DEVINE, Ohio (Ex Officio)
JAMES H. SCHEUER, New York
HENRY A. WAXMAN, California
PHILIP R. SHARP, Indiana
ANDREW MAGUIRE, New Jersey
HARLEY 0. STAGGERS, West Virginia

(Ex Melo)
MICHAEL R. Lwow, Chief Conned
ELLIOT A. SEGAL, Special Assistant

LESTER 0. BROWN, Research Assistant
PATRICK M. MCLAIN, CORSeel

Sunttgr A. FULP, Staff Assistant



CONTENTS

Hearings held on Page
October 7, 1975 1
October 5, 1975 89

Statement of
Cohen, Wilbur J.. dean, School of Education, and professor of public

welfare administration, School of Social Work, University of Mich-
igan 49

Driver, Mrs. Irene 2
Fontanez, Mrs. Jovita and daughter, Melina, Boston, Mass 40
Green, Frederick C., M.D., associate director, Children's Hospital Na-

tional Medical Center; director, Office of Child Health Advocacy ;
and professor of child health and development, George Washing-
ton University School of Medicine

Hagerty, Dennis. counsel for Mr. and Mrs. John Maguire, Yeadon. Pa_ 3
Hass, Gerald, M.D., physician in chief, South End Community Health

Center, Boston, Mass 40
Lamb, George A., M.D., associate professor, Department of Preven-

tive and Social Medicine, Harvard Medical School, and isAlatri-
chin at Children's Hospital Medical Center, Boston, Mass

95, 98McDonnell, Michael T., Jr., counsel for Mr. and Mrs. ,Tohn Maguire.
Yeadon, Pa 13

Maguire. Mr. and Mrs. John, Yeadon, Pa 13
Metcalfe, Hon. Ralph E., a Representative in Congress from the State

of Illinois
North, A. Frederick. M.D.. issliatrician, Pittslmrgh, Pa 95
Snow, Carolyn Kalk, research coordinator, Institute of Medicine, Na-

tional Academy of Sciences 89
Spea ks, M rs. Pa mel a 2
Yankaner, Alfred. M.D.. professor of community and family medicine.

University of Massachusetts Medical School. Worcester, Niass____ 95, 100
'Young, Mrs. Patricia 2

Testimony of
Dickson, James F., M.D., Acting Deputy Assistant Secretary for

Health, Department of Health, Education, and Welfare 106
Kretschmer, Norman. M.D., Director, National Institute of Child

Health and Human Development, National Institutes of Health.
Department of Health. Education, and Welfare 106

Lowe. Charles U., M.D., Social Assistant for Child Health Affairs,
Office of the Assistant Secretary for Health, Department of Health,
Education, and Welfare 106

Lurie, Ira, M.D., National Institute of Mental Health, Department
of Health. Education, and Welfare 106

Sopper, Dale W., Acting Deputy Assistant Secretary for Legislation
(Health), Department of Health, Education, and Welfare 106

Van Hoek, Robert, M.D.. Acting Administrator, Health Services Ad-
ministration, Department of Health, Education, and Welfare 106

Weikel, M. Keith, Ph.D.. Commissioner, Medical Services Administra-
tion, Department of Health. Education, and Welfare 106

4



Iv

Additional material submitted for the record by Page
Cohen, Wilbur J., dean. School of Education, and professor of public

welfare administration. School of 'Social Work. University of Mich-
igan. attachments to prepared statement :

A comprehensive program for children, youth, nail the family__ 55
Table 1.Selected poverty level thresholds in 1974 by size

of fondly and sex of head, by farm- nonfarm residence__ 57
Table 2.Poverty rates for children, 1974 57
Table 3.Children aged 5 through 17 ii . poverty families by

State, 1970 census 57
Child health excerptsForsyard plan for.health 58

Health, Education, and Welfare Department, letter dated Novem-
ber 5. 1975. from Stephen Kurzman, Assistant Secretary for Legis-
lation, to Chairman Moss re answers to questions presented by Con-
gressman James H. Scheuer of New York 143

Interstate and Foreign Commerce Committee, Subcommittee on Over-
sight and Investigations:

"Health Report/HEW, States' Child Care Record May Affect
Agency's Insurance Role," by John K. Iglehart, article from
the June 29, 1974, issue of Journal Reports 07

"Health Report/HEW Plans to Fine States for Not Implement-
ing Program," by John K. Iglehart, article from the January 11,
1r75, issue of National Journal Reports 74

HEY: news release (13

"Immunoassay Used To Screen Newborns for Hypothyroidism,"
article from March 1975 issue of Pediatric News 34

-Mass Screening for Cretinism," article from the August 23, 1975,
issue of Lancet 37

"Mass Screening for Genetic Disease," article by Robert Guthrie,
State University of New York, from June 1972 issue of Hospital
Practice 22

"Neonatal Screening for Phenylketonuria," by Neil A. Holtzman,
M.D.: Allen G. Meek: and E. David Mellits, ScD 30

Preliminary report of the results of a questionnaire sent to State
medicaid agencies concerning early and periodic screening, diag-
nosis, and treatment (EPSDT) 126

statement by Caspar W. Weinberger. Seeretary of Health, Edu-
cation. and Welfare. June 2, 1975 62

"Would Screen Infants for Hypothydroidism," article from the
March 1975 issue of Pediatric News 36

"Zeroing In on Hypothyroidism Much Earlier," article from the
October 11, 1975, issue of Medical World Newq 35



GETTING READY FOR NATIONAL HEALTH INSURANCE:
SHORTCHANGING CHILDREN

TUESDAY, OCTOBER 7, 1975

HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES,
SUBCOMMITTEE ON OVERSIGHT AND INVESTIGATIONS,

COMMITTEE ON INTERSTATE AND FOREIGN COMMERCE,
Washington, D.C.

The subcommittee met at 10 a.m., pursuant to notice, in room 2123,
Rayburn House Office Building, Hon. Richard L. Ottinger, presiding
[Hon. John E. Moss, chairman].

Mr. OTTINGER. The Subcommittee on Oversight and Investigations
of the Committee on Interstate and Foreign Commerce is resuming
hearings today on the subject of "Getting Ready for National Health
Insurance: Shortchanging Children" by indicating that it is a most
auspicious thne to hold a hearing concerning child health, since
October- is "IMmunization Action Month" and yesterday was "Child
Health DaY for 1975."

I note in the Proclamation of Declaration for Child Health Day
the President indicates that, thanks to vaccines, poliomyelitis is no
longer the widespread crippler that it once was. Children can now
be protected against measles and the risk of death or brain damage
resulting from this disease.

Immunization against rubella 'not only protects young children, but
also protects pregnant women from contracting the disease and risk-
ing the mental health of their unborn children. There is no better
example of effective cost control and human benefits than to uncover
and treat a preventable disease early.

For example, the National Communicable Disease Center, for a 5-
year period, estimated that immunization efforts averted 10 million
cases of measles and 3,200 cases of mental retardation. It also estimated
that immunization saved 973 lives, 555,000 hospital days, 291,000 years
of life, 1.6 million work days, 32 million school days. and $423 million.

I, therefore, find it very appropriate for us to convene this hearing
today to look at how the Government assists in preventive medicine
programs. Now tkat we do have certain new technologies, such as
vaecines. nre they being utilized to the extent necesStiry to protect our
Twonle and reduce long-run health costs ?

During these hearings, we wil look at aspects of preventive health
and communieable diseases. We hope to find out why approximately
5 million of the Nation's 1- to 4-year-old children are insufficiently
immunized. Why is that of 14 minion preschool children in this
country, one out of every three is insufficiently immunized?

I find it inexcusable that in 1073 50 children died and more than
(1)
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40,009 youngsters developed complications, inelmling brain damage,
due to measles.

As the President's prochunation points out, one of the greatest
success stories in American naxlicine has been the determination of tiho
causes and the developnumt of immunization by vaccine for polio.

.

Surveys now indicate, however, that in 1964, 88 percent of Ameri-
can preschoolers were protected against polio. In 1973, that figure
dropped to 63 percent. The figure is even lowerapproximately .51
percentfor nonwhite preschool children living in the central cities
of major metropol itan areas.

This set of hearings on "Shortchanging Children" is geared ,to
acquire information and to explore the gaps in our current health care
delivery system. The purpose is to assist. In developing the bases for
new legislation and better implementation of current legislation.

We intend, as part of an over-all study of "Getting Ready for
National Health Insurance," to be able to gather information that
may help this subcommittee, and particularly the Health and the
Environment Subconunittee chaired by my able colleague, Paul
Rogers, as they begin to consider the need for new national health
insurance legislation.

These hearings will focus upon the quality of care and the utilization
of services in the child health area.

We will hear from citizens who have had firsthand experiences as
well as experts from Government and the field of medicine.

It is in the spirit of gathering information and developing recom-
mendations to help insure consumers of health care better quality in a
cost-effective manner that I open these hearings.

We have scheduled for this morning five witnesses: Dr. Frederick
Green of Washington. D.C.; NTr. and Mrs. John Maguire. Yeailon. Pa.:
Dr. Gerald Haas of Boston ; and Congressimm Ralph Metcalfe of this
eommittee, a Member of Congress; and Dr. Wilbur Cohen. former Sec-

ary of Health. Ed neat ion. and Welfare.
Tn order to be able to have the committee hear from all of these wit-

nesses. T am goimi g. to try to set pretty firm limits for each witness. about
20 minutes total per witness to make sure we get everybody in. T hope
the witnesses will do what they can to accommodate us in that regard.

Our first witness is Dr. Frederick Green. T understand that he is ac-
companied by three parents. Tf they would like to. they nuty accom-
pany You to the witness table.

T would appreciate it if you would identify them.

STATEMENT Of FREDERICK C. GREEN, M.D., ASSOCIATE DIRECTOR.
CHILDREN'S HOSPITAL NATIONAL MEDICAL CENTER; DIREC-
TOR, OFFICE OF CHILD HEALTH ADVOCACY; AND PROFESSOR OF
CHILD HEALTH AND DEVELOPMENT, GEORGE WASHINGTON
UNIVERSITY SCHOOL OF MEDICINE. ACCOMPANIED BY MRS.
PAMELA SPEAKS. MRS. PATRICIA YOUNG, AND MRS. IRENE
DRIVER, AND THEIR CHILDREN

Dr. GREEN. Thank you very much. Mr. Chairman, and members of
the sulwomm Wm. I am pleased to have the opportunity to appear here
this morningtlw day after Child Health Day. whidi was declared
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by Presidential proclamationto discuss a situation which is, in my
opinion, a national disgrace. I am referring to the failure of Federal,
State, and local governments to implement a program which would
assure better health care for all children in this count rypail icularly
those at gravest risk. Perhaps the content of this testimony will make
some of you uncomfortable, but it is our hope and intention to speak
in the best interest of our children and to give voice to the cult ical con-
cerns of those we serve. Accompanying me today to aid me in this
presentation are three familiesfamilies that are currently forced to
cope with the devastating consequences of our societal neglect. Later
in this testinumy, you will have an opportunity to meet and talk with
them.

My name is Frederick C. Green. I am a pediatrician, currently serv-
ing as associate director, Children's Hospital National Medical Center ;
director of the hospital's office of child health advocacy; and professor
of child health and development, George Washington University
School of Medicine, Washington, D.C.

I have had the unique opportunity of serving not only the individual
needs of children as a pediatrician in private and institutional practice
in New York City, but also of serving the collective needs of our Na-
tion's children as the Associate Chief, Children's Bureau, OCD, HEW
from August 1911 until my resigpation in June 1973.

Throughout my careereI have become intimately familiar and in-
creasingly distressed with the physical, social. intellectual, and emo-
tional wastage resulting from the unconscionable high incidence of
uncorrected correctable deficits among children in this country.

The early periodic screening, diagnosis, and treatment. program
(EPSDT) is potentially the most comprehensive program of preven-
tive. health care for children ever undertaken by the Federal Govern-
ment. The program was mandated by Congress in response to the need
for eliminating health-related causes of disabilit.y and dependence
among the Nation's poorest children. EPSDT provides for the identi-
fication and prevention of correctable physical deficits through the
provision of early detection, diagnosis, and treatment services.

In.the EPSDT guidelines issued by the Department of Health, Edu-
cation, and Welfare, the following screening services were recom-
mended : Taking a medical history and performing a physical exami-
nation ; assessing immunization status; screening for dental, hearing,
and vision problems; screening for anemia, lead poisoning, sickle cell
disease, and trait, bacteriuria, and tuberculosis.

These general services provide a superficial niethod for detecting
the presence or absence of pathology which then must be further ex-
plored through the diagnostic and treatment phases of the program.
The guidelines also recommend a developmental assessment; however,
the nature of this component is currently the subject of fervent na-
tional debate. I will expand on this issue later in my testimony.

In spite of the clear intent of Congress to insure basic health protec-
tion for the Nation's needy children, the EPSDT program has en-
countered formidable obstacles. Although the program was enacted
into law January 2, 1968, HEW did not release regulations and re-
quirements until late in 1971; these became effective in February 1972.
Shortly thereafter, Congress levied a financial penalty-1 percent of
State AFDC fundsin an effort to speed implementation and make

8
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children in low-inconie families reach the age of 17 without. any profes-
sional dental care.4

In spite of this evidence of need, only about hal f of the Nation's 25
million low-incomethat is, poor nal working poorchihlren are
eligible for medicaid and EPSDT services. The remainder are ineligi-
ble; yet many are too poor to pay for preventive care. Indeed, in this
time of rampant inflation and high unemployment, the working poor
often cannot even afford occasional episodic care.

On this point I find it. necessary to express a personal bias. It is my
belief that. certain basic child health services are a right and should be
universally available. Yet. our history of legislative protection for
families in need has been charaeterized by exclusivity rather than
inclusivity. We have excluded children by income, by race, by geogra-
phy, by ageby just about every characteristic that would enable us
to distinguish one child from another.

It is sadly ironic that. we penalize those. who are actively trying to
progress from welfare dependence to gainful employment by etree-
tively denying them a means of assuring, good health. I recognize that
national health insurance in some form is likety to become a reality in
the not too distant future. However, while the bureancnitic wrangling
over costs, methods, and feasibility continues, the 12 million children
from low-income families who are noi eligible. for medicaid wait in a
vacuum. They wait. at risk of permanent disability due to conditions
which the medical profession has long been able to prevent or amelior-
ate.

One out of every ten children in the. United States suffers from some
form of communication disorder. Of these, over half have some type
of speech pathology; a third have severe hearing impairment ; and the
remainder are totally deaf.' Untreated communication disorders liter-
ally isolate a child from his environment and render him unable to
carry out the myriad learning tasks of childhood.

The prevalence of vision deficits is relatively low among preschool-
age children, affecting approximately 5 percent. of this population.
However, 1 out of every 4 school-age children has some kind of visual
handicapping condition.'

The incidence of anemia also varies with the age of the child with
the highest prevalence rates occurring during the first. 4 years of life.
As reported to the 1970 White House Conference on Children, the
incidence of anemia is highest among children from low-income
families. For example, ahnost half of all 2-year-olds in the lowest
income quartile and over a third of those in the lower middle quartile
were found to be anemic. For children between the ages of 2 and 6, the
reported prevalance rates were somewhat lower; however, it remains
that nearly 1 out of every 5 of these children was diagnosed as
anemic.'

Medicaid's Early and Periodic Screening. Diagnosis, and Treatment Program. DREW.Mimeographed. Washington. RC.. Aug. 1, 1974.
Learning to talk : Speech, hearing, and language problems in the preschool child.DEM National Institutes of Health Public Health Service. Washington. D.C. 1970.4 A Guide to Screening: EPSDT Medicaid, Frankenburg. W. K. and North, A., DREW.Social and Rehabilitation Service. Washington. p.c.. 1974.

?Profiles of Children The 1070 White House Conference on Children and Youth. r.S.Government Printing Office. Washington. D.C., 1970.

1 0



6

Though the Kevalence rates for a symptonmtic urinary tract in feet ion
due to bacterial is substantinlly lower than that for anemia, siidi in-
fections place children at risk for developing permanent kidney
damage. At least 5 perecnt of all girls will acquire bactermria dnrnig
their elementary and secondary school years. Moreover, this condition
is frequently recurrent. Two of the parents here today have agreed
to share with us sonie insights into the lives of children who have
experienced kidney failure.

The alarming increase in the numbers of children who are inade-
quately immunized against childhood in feetions discuses has prompted
a nationwide campaign to reverse the trend. October has been
designated "Immunization Month" by the National Center for Disease
Control. It is known that 9 out of every 5 children 1 to 4 years of age
have no protection or inadequate protection against poliomyelitis and
measles. In central city areas containing poverty pockets, the situa-
tion is even more alarming---sca reely half of the children are com-
pletely immunized.°

The high incidence and drastic consequences of lead poisoning have
prompted many urban areas to initiate locally funded lead scmening
programs. Snah an effort has been spearheaded in the District. of
Columbia by the Committee for L.E.A.D.. which operates under the
auspices of the Office of Child Health Advocacy, Children's Hospital
National Medical Center. Since the Iwginning of the conunittee's ef-
forts, the incidence of elevated blood lead levels has decreased slightly
each year. Nevertheless, in fiscal year 1974, 18 percent of the more than
14,000 children screened had elevated lead levels. Nationally, 600,000
children still carry undue body loads of lead absorbed from a polluted
environment. Each year 300 to 400 children die of lead poisoning, and
an additional 6,000 suffer irreversible mental retardation and damage
to the central nervous system.") The mother of one of these children
is with us today.

While child abuse and neglect is not directly addressed in the
EPDST guidelines, the early and continued health assessments offered
by this program provide a critical opportunity for reaching and help-
ing children who are victims of this tragedy. The provisions of the
Child Abuse Prevention and Treatment Act, signed into law on Jan-
uary 31, 1074, reflect tlw growing national concern over the frighten.
mg increase in the numbers of brutalized and abused children.

Although there is substantial evidence of underreporting of child
abuse, estimates range from 60,000 " to between 250.000 and 400,000 "
cases each year. Of these between 200 and 400 children are killed."

While it is obvious that the EPSDT program offers an unprece-
dented opportunity for impacting on the physical health status of
children, the program guidelines also address the need for screening

8 "A 10-Year Study of Bacteriuria in Schoolgirls Final Report of Bacteriologic.
Brologic. and Bpidendologic Findings." Nunin. C. M., the Journal of Infectious Diseases.
122 :382-393.1970.

Immunization Against Disease : 1972. 1)14F1W. Center for Disease Control, Atlanta.Ga.. 1972.
,o5tatist1es and Epidemiology of Lead Poisoning. MEW, OBIce of Child Development,Washington. Fehruary 1972.
1, Helping the Battered Child and His Family. Nempe. C. H. and Helfer. R. B., .1. B.

Lippincott Co.. Philadelphia. Pa., 1972.
"The Myth of the Battered-Child Syndrome." Newherger. E.. Current Medicnl Dialog.

40 :327.1973.
u "Child Abuse and Neglect : A Priority Frohiem for the Privnte Physician." Green.

F. C.. Pediatric Clinics of North America. 22:329-339.1975.
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to identify possible development dillicult ies. In developing a nitionale
for this component, Him liiis stated that 14 pereent of all 14chool-
children Huger some form of eniotiomil dysfunction, ranging from
severely psyc1iotie-0.6 percentto mildly disturbed-10 percent.
An adaitional 3 percent are said to be suffering from mental disabili-
ties such as mental retardation. SP d iS01410114, neuromotor disa-
bilities, and sehool-learning problems. Though these data reflect seri-
ous need for various types of therapeutic and special education sir-
ices, the WOWS surrounding the inelusion of a developmental screening
component in EPSDT are extraonlinarily complex and currently the
subject of intense debate.

Wo recognize the need for a replicahle screening instrinnent for
measpring developmental differences that is sensitive to the widely
varying eldld-rearing practiees and cultural backgrounds of children
in this country. Sonic developmental landmarkslargeli.. physical aid],
ities, such as the attainment of gross and fine motor skinscan be con-
sidered culture-free. However, at present we do not. have a reliable
screening instrument for assessing sueli qualities as "intelligence and
learning ability" or "emotional stability and social coping" among
all children in our multifaceted society.

Further, there is an inherent danger in any screening process which
is particularly relevant, to developmental screening: People tend to
think of screening as a form of diagnosis. It is not. Screening is simply
a convenient way of sorting out individuals who have some likelihood
of pathology in a given area. Commonly, screening is done by non-
professionals. and there is it danger that children who fail a given
procedure will be labeled as suffering from the suspected condition.
!At me emphasige that screening is not a labeling process. Diagnosis
is required before a condition is identified and labeled. Moreover, diag-
nosis should always be preseriptivethat is, diagnosis for treatment
of the condition identified, rather than for attaching a label to the
condition.

It is necessary, then, to proceed with extreme caution. It. is hnpera-
tire that we do not attempt. to mandate program efforts that are. in
advance of our knowledge. We must avoid the truly tragic conse-
quences of inappropriately labeling large numbers of children being
developmentally retarded or having learning disabilities.

Should developmental screening be undertaken, it is critical that the
labeling phenomenon be avoided, that diagnosis be in the hands of
professionals, and that treatment be made readily available. Further,
such an effort should only be undertaken in the context of identifying
the strengths as well as the weaknesses of a child, with prescribed
treatment that capitalizes on the first while offering remediation for
the second. Having said that, I do not mean to imply that we should
discontinue those efforts at diagnosing and treating children with psy-
chosocial or learning deficits that are within our present capabilities to
correct.

The foregoing has outlined the extent of the problems to be con-
frontedboth in terms of the health status of children and in terms
of the administrative difficulties encountered in _program development.
If the'EPSDT program is to realize is potential, the first step is to as-
sure that the program becomes a viable and effective resource for medic-
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aid-eligible children. When this is accomplished, there will be a cor-
responding improvenwnt in the quality of care accorded all children
through a ripple effect. We must. then. examine some of the specific
major difficulties which have iinpeded implementation of EPSDT.

In the wake of Federal efforts to decentralize control of spending
programs in favor of State management and accountability, we find
woeful chaos in many human service programs. Formula grants re-
quiring proof of hnplementation of specified services are often ap-
portioned without adequate assistance or guidelines to enable States to
follow through with acceptable delivery nwehanisms. The. EPSDT
program is a particular case in point. It requires the delivery of serv-
Icestypically limier sponsorship of the State public health agency.
The services are to be directed toward a speeified population usually
identified through the State welfare ageney. Filially. the services are
to be reimbursed with Federal moneys and matching funds which are
generally funneled through the State fiscal offices. That slid an ar-
rangement. should prove dysfunctional is not. surprising. That the
regional HEW offices shirttail be forced to engage in costly house to
house surveys to determine whether or not services are being delivered
rather than eonducting administrative audits is also not surprising.

In January 1975 the Comptroller General issued a report to the
Congress concerning improvements needed to speed implementation
of EPSDT." Among the general problems identified in the report
were:

Inadequate outreach techniques:
Lack of utilization of allied health professionals:
Inadequate. procedums for periodir updating of screens: and
Inadequate follow-up mechanisms.
The Federal policy of giving the States a free hand in administering

EPSDT has prodnced not one program but SO different programs. VII-
fortunately, most of these programs share at least two regrettable
characteristics. First. many States. in an effort to reduce costs, have
subscribed to the philosophy that requiring frequent recertification for
eligibility will rednce utilization of services. Thus, costs are controlled
by reducing servicesa philosophy of questionable propriety. The
negative consequences in terms of availability. aceessibility. and eon-
tmnIty of care within the EPSDT program for each participating
child are obvions. I submit that. at a minimum. Midi child should be
guaranteed continuity of care through a single screening, diagnosis.
and treatment sequence. Fitilurettodiagnose a condition after screening
and failure to treat after diagnosis because of shifting eligibility status
is medically and etHically intolerable.

The second area of similarity among the programs is the general
failure on the part of State agencies to utiliw eompetent area resources
to implement the program. Instead. there is a trend toward the develop-
ment of separate freestanding clinics to carry out EPSDT functions
which could easily be incorporated by existing facilities. III pursuit
of the pork barrel. some State agencies have gone to truly ineredible
lengths to avoid contracting for services from existing resources. Ex-
amples include requiring that all screening be conducted at designated

I4Improrementa Needed To Speed Implementation of Medicald'N Early and Periodic
Screening. Dlagnmde. and Treatment Program. Comptroller General of the United States.
DREW. Sorted and Rehabilitation Service, WaehIngton. D.C.. Janoary 9. 1975.
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State-operated clinics, failure to utilize other federally sponsored serv-
ices such as children and youth projects, and failure to establish for-
mal fee.-for-service protocols that would enable die private sector to

--render needed diagnostic and treatment services.
The net effect of these policies has been longer waiting lists for diag-

nostic and treatment services from "approved" providers. With
luckthe reasoning goeseligibilty will run out before the child
reaches the top of the list. It is essential that these problems be ad-
dressed and remedial action taken. It. is essential that States be made
accountable for children in need of care.

I therefore snbmit to the subcommittee the following observations:
It is imperative that States be required to assign responsibility for

conducting the EPSDT program to a single State agency or depart-
ment, and stringent penalties which do not impinge on human services
shonld be enforced for those States whiela fail to comply.

The State agency or department should be in direct receipt of Fed-
funding for the program. subject to regional aulministrative re-

view, and have access to adequate teehnical assistance from the Federal
Government. throughout implementation of the program.

Accountability for service delivery is not incompatible with the con-
cept of stage-managed programs. In addition. States should be re-
cpiired to provide adequate assurances that those indeed are actually
being served and that continuity is maintained throughout the screen-
ing, diagnosis. and treatment process.

Federal guidelines should requim that States make adequate use of
existing health care resources.

Adequate Federail regional staff shoull be assigned to provide
proper monitoring of State programs.

We. at Children s Hospital National Medical Center. in reeognition
of both the potential and shortcomings of the EPSDT program, are
currently in active pursuit of private funding to establish a eollabora-
tive service integration project. (CSIP). This project will seek to
develop ways of coping with the identified problems associated with
tlw delivery of EPSDT serviees and to linaximize the utilization of
existing comnumity resources.

Planning for tlw CSIP has been a cooperative effort between the
hospital. the District of Columbia Department of Human Resources.
and other publicand private purveyors of eare. This effort is evidence
of the i.oncern we at the. Ineal level and in the private sector feel for
children such as these before you today.

In summary. we have briefly reviewed sonie of the pressing social,
economk, and administrative aspects of child health care. iii general.
and the EPSDT program. in partieular. It is essential, however, that
we do not. allow the individnal (..hild to become obscured in a maze of
percentages, conditions. categories and criteria.

In order that we might. for the moment, consider tlw individual and
personal consequences of inadequate health protection. I have brought
with me today three children whose lives have been drastically altered
and whose potential for contribliting to the growth of society has been
incalculably impaired. Each of these children could have been spared
his or her handicapping condition through early detection and rapid
and full treatment. As we consider each chihl in turn, let us remember
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that we possess the technology to hay(' avoided these devastating

like to introduce Irene Driver. On my right. Mrs. Driver
and IN- daughter, Judy, who has a very serious chronic renal disability
that requires renal dialysis and a kidney transplant.

Unfortunately, the child's condition lias deteriorated to the point
that she wns unable to aecompany us today. I ler comlition is the direct
result of an undetected prolonged urinary tract. infection.

. Mrs. Patricia Young on Inv left, and *her son. Eddie. who has a
SP rions hearing iminiirment dun was suspected by the mother at 6
nionths of age but was not professionally corroborated and treated
until unwh later thns leading to serious developmental impairments.

Third, Mrs. Pamela Speaks and her two children. Yvette mid Ella.
were found to be so ffering from lead poisoning. /Ind it was only de-
tected thrmigh at routine health assessillent.

Mr. Mairman, tiles? are the parents.
Thank von very much for your attention.
Mr. 0-rilsorit. Thank you very much, Dr. Green.
That is a very poignant and-informational statenient pm have given

to the committee.
Because of the tiine shortage, we only have about 10 minutes for

questioning.
Schener. do you have any questions?

Mr. Scirm.r.a. No, Mr. Chairman.
I appreciate the witness' statement very much. It was very

thoughtful.
Mr. Orrisnr.n. Congressman Sharp?
Mr. SHAM'. Mr. Chairman. I will withhold questions.

Orrixmai. Congressman Santini.
NEI.. SANTINI. Dr. Green. do ymi have an specific meonumendations

within the broad scope of your excellently considered and e vii Ii iii t i ye
testimony?

Dr. thips.s. Sir. the major recommendation t hat I make is, first of all.
that there be adequate funds ant horized and allocated to the various
States and stiffer penalties apply to States that fail to comply with
the EPSDT component of the medicaid program.

I do feel that there is a critical need from ainit I understand of
further monitoring staff in yr EW reghmai offices to Illake sure flint
this orogriim is functioning effectively.

Mr. SANTINI. In your judgment. right now we have the legal nm-
chinery and authorization to do the job if we provide the funding
and overFight to huplement it ?

Dr. GasrN. I believe so. sir. As long as there is a real eonimit meld
to do the job.

Mr. SAN-rtNr. Thank you very nmeh, Dr. Green.
You hay(' done a superb jok
Mr. OrriNGER. Mr. Segal has a question.
Mr. SEGAL Dr. Green, in your statement von say that. 1 out of every

10 children is suffering from communication disorders, particularly
hearing. Could you describe the kind of consequences that sometimes
come from undetected hearing disorders and the difference it !mikes
from an early screening to one later on ?
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Dr. GREEN. Yes, sir ; I will be glad to.
An undetected hearing problem may delay normal language de-

velopment as well as eventually lead to a perceptual disorder that
will reflect jtself in the child's caPacity to work in sehool. Once they
are, labeled "dull" or "EMR" (educablv mentally retarded) on the
basis of a perceptual deficit, which is all too common, 90 percent of
children so labeled and put in so-called slow learning classes are
doomed to stay in such classes.

I think that when perceptual deficits are not recognized early on,
not only the hearing but the visually impaired as well as those suffer-
ing moderate or mild brain damage, it impacts negatively on their
capacity to take full advantage of the educational system to prepare
them for a productive role as an adult.

11:e. SEGAL. In following through ou that point. .ou noted that there
were about 11 million children last year out of an eligible population of
13 million eligibles mukr EPSDT who had not been screened.

Would it be a fair statement to say approximately 1 out of every 10
'of those would suffer some kind of auditory hearing deficiency when
screened?

Dr. GREEN. They will perhaps suffer some form of perceptual
deficit, whether it is mulitory. visual, or central nervous system.

To say exactly mulitory would not be. I am sure. quite accurate.
Mr. SEGAL. It would be a fair (!onclusion to draw that it may very

well be 1 million children who would have one of these deficits that
could be treated earlier if screened appropriately under this program?

Dr. GREEN. Absohaely.
Finally. in response to Mr. Santini's question regarding further

legislative initiatives. there must be strengthening also of the out-
reach programs of F,PSDT to make sure all the chihlren who are
eligible to partkipate are really brought. into the system.

MI; OTTINGER. Nfr. Wunder. 10 yon have any questions?
MI% WUNDER. T have one question.
Dr. Green. what. in your opinion. would con.qtitate an effective out-

reach program?
You indkated the need for one in your statement.
Dr. GREEN I feel an effeetive outreach program is one in which

individuals from the neighborhood in which the health facility is
located are trained to go into the (.ommunitv to identify children at
risk and bring them into the health system. Such community visiting
may also be earried out by community health workers. physicians
assistants. nurse practitionei.s. visiting nurses. sorial workers. and
other allied health professionals.

In essence, a structured method of going out. identifying and bring-
ing children into the health system. .

Mr. WUNDER. Thank you. Mr. Chairman.
Mr. SANTINI. Mr. Chairman. I would like to have these children

presented.
Mr. Orrmor.e. I was going to do that. myself.
Were the problems of the families before von picked up in the

screening proress under this program or were they picked up or iden-
tified in some other way?

Dr. GREEN. CoDld I ask my parents to respond to that ?
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Thad .nk you very nuich for being with us.
Mr. SANTIN I. Could I ask one quick question ?
How simple a screening process would it. have been to have detected

the particular ailment of these children beforehand and what. are the
--cost-factors involved?

Dr. GREEN. The cost factor for checking urine would be roughly
35 to 40 cents a visit. The problem is continuity.

I think what we have here is the need for continuity, ongoing eval-
uation, rather than this haphazard episodic kind of care, and this
is What EPSDT is to do.

The screening for hearing test. can be clone by audiometry for a very
small amount of money once there is an audiometer available.

Screening for lead poisoning costs roughly in a private laboratory
about $8 per screen. It can be clone now in the Departinent of Human
Resources here in the District. free of charge. to any parent., regard
less of socioeconomic status.

So, the cost of screening is minimal. It is the after effects.
Mr. OTTINGER. Thank you.
Next. we will hear from Mr. and Mrs. John Maguire of Yeadon,

STATEMENT OF MR. AND MRS. JORN MAGUIRE, YEADON, PA., AC-
COMPANIED BY MICHAEL T. McDONNELL, JR., AND DENNIS
HAGERTY, COUNSEL

Mr. MCDONxr.m. My name is Michael McDonnell. I am attorney for
the Maguires in a civil matter out. of which this arose.

I would like to introduce to yon my clients.
This is Ann Maguire, sitting to my immediate. t.: John Maguire,

her Eusband. and the father of Christine and Christine is sitting to
the riFht with the blond hair.

This is Dennis Hagerty, who is also an attorney, who will introduce
himself.

Mr. HAnEnTy. Mr. Clutirman aml members of the subcommittee, I
am Dennis Hagerty. also for the Maguires. a hi wyer in Philaddphia,
member of tlw National Advisory Council and ronsultant to the Pres-
ident's Council on Mental Retardation.

Mr. ()WINGER. We are very pleased to have you here.
We also would appreciate it. if you could submit your statement. for

the record rsee p. 161 and just describe to us in formally the. informa-
tion that you have for us if you would like.

Go ahead.
Mrs. MAGUIRE. Right Honorable Representatives of the Congress

of the United States, members and staff of the Subcommitte( on Over-
sight and Investigations of the Committee on Interstate and Foreign
Commerce, distinguished guests :

My name is Ann Maguire (nee DiDonato). I was born February
24,1938. T am 37 years old. T graduated from high si.hool in 1955 from
the West Catholic Girls High Sehool in Philadelphia, Pa.

Throughout my school years. T was an above-average student. I have
a superior IQ. I have passed civil service tests for secretarial positions
and worked in that position with the Inspector of Naval Material in
the city of Philadelphia.

60-1400 --2
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My parents are both living, and-my father's name is William Di-
Donato and my mother's is Amm Di Donato (nee Pollitt). Both
my parents were born in the United States and are citizens of the
United States, attended school and were raised in the city of

My father retired from Gulf Oil in Philadelphia in 1973. My mother
had been and continues to be a housewife. They are both in good health
and fully funaional.

I am one of two children, with a sister named Joan Ference, 41, born
February 3, 1934. She is similarly in good health.

My husband, John Maguire, is employed as a steamfitter with
Philadelphia Electric .Co. and has been so employed for 16 years. He
is in excellent health, is present with me this morning, and has no
physical disabilities known to me. He is the son'of Mary and John
A. Maguire, now deceased, both citizens of the United States and of the
city of Philadelphia, Pa.

He knows of no living; relative of his father, other than his aunt
who is in good health and alive. His mother's family, of whom there
are one sister and five brothers, are all well.

On December 20, 1056, 1 married nw lmsband in St. Lawrence's
Church, Upper Darby, Pa. We took up residence together with my
parents at my home in Upper Darby, Pa.

My first son was due 10 months after my marriage and was delivered
at the community hospital for the Upper Darby area, that is, Delaware
County Memorial Hospital. I was a fee-paymg patient of a doctor
whose specialty was limited to obstetrics, one Dr. E. Earl Trout, with
offices in Syringfield, Delaware Con minty, Pa.

I had al the approved prenatal care and prescriptions which were
then used. I followed my doctor's, recommendation in regard to diet.

do not know of any failure on my part to follow a good prenatal
regime rind believe that I did all that was suggested by the physician
for my own well-being and that of my baby.

John was full term and in obvious good health at the tittle of dehvery.
He was attractive and 8, pounds, 8 ounces. John is a victim of PVT.
John is now 18 years old and a full and complete life is totally denied
to him because of the retardation as a direct result of the PKIT disease.

John's care was undertaken by Dr. Charles McCutchen. a general
practitioner. mind I followed all recommendations made by him to the
letter with regard to every aspect of infant care.

At the time of John's birth. we lived at my parents' home. my hus-
band then being in the service. I thus had present my mother, who had
cared for both myself and my sister and was familiar with the care
of a .healthy ehild. having eared for both myself and my sister.

Thwas apparent to her and to myself that John was not making prog-
ress physically bunt was, in fact, having what appeared to be con-
siderable physical difficulty for a newborn.

Just to recite a few observable problems and not so as to exclude
others, T was. at all times. aware and made aware by my mother that
there was a peculiar odor on John's diaper at changing.

This observation was. to my knowledge, a common one bv anyone
who, during that period, came to change this child. which included my
husband, any father. and my sister, who lived in the neighborhood
and was frequently there.
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I also observed a rash which I. had little success in controlling, no
matter what was used.

John, being the.first born, was watched by the niany adults in our
and strongly..encouraged.to do such things as walking, stand--

mg, and any other behavior that would indicate his reaching devel-
opmental milestones.

However, he would pass the time period for reaching such mile-
stones and invariably be much, much later in reaching them than was
expected of hun because of his size and general appearance, which
continued to be and is to this date, physically attractive.

Mr. S'ax-rxxi. What is PKU?
Mrs. MAGUIRE. Phenylketonuria.
Mr. SANTINI. For the ordinary lawyer, what does that mean?
What happens physically ?
Mr. MAuuncE. Phenylketonuria is an inherited digestive disorder

in which the body lacks a chemical necessary to convert one animo
acidchemicalplwnylalanine; to another amino acid ; tyrosine. Due
to the inability to eltunge the. plwnylalanine into the next chemical,
tyrosine, the bodx accumulates an excessive amount of phenyhdanine.
This acid builds up in the blood and leads to destruction of certain
brain tissue.

HUT is the abbreviation for phenylketonuria. This is the disease,
itself.

Mr. SnAuP. Could that be discovered by a simple test after the
bi rth ?

Mr. McDox NELL. Yes; a Heal test.
Mrs. MMWIRE. ohn's developmental milestones were all very, very

late. He walked, sat, talked. and ate long after what should have been
the time for him to do these things.

I was, of course, conscious of these because I had girl friends of
my age having babies of their own who would bring their babies around
aml they could do more than my John could do even though they
were younger.

I contimied regular visitations to Dr. McCutcheon and explained
to him throughout this time my observations which are not limited
to those mentioned above.

I, of course, could recite numerous other observations which were
equally and timely reported to the physician.

ohn, in addition to being "eared for" by Dr. McCutclwon, was
only I month old when he was returned to Delaware County Memo,
rial Hospital because of difficulty with his bowel movements. At that
time, all the manfestations of PKIT disease were plainly visible,
tngether witb the bowel complication. which is also a symptom of
the disease.

Despite all these careful efforts throughout his childhood into his
pubertal period and through and into adolescence. the disease went
undetected by his treating physicians, who. at age 2. became a gen-
eral practitioner by the name of Dr. ames Dunn.

At age 4. be was hospitalized for a herma at Delaware County
Memorial Hospital. At age 5, he. was hospitalized for tonsils at. the
same hospital. At all times. both by history and by appearance, being
blond, fair and blue eyed. he was a victim of the disease known
as PKIT.
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His care continued in the professional responsibility of Dr. Dunn
through and into 1967 when, at the birth of his sister, the care was
transferred to a gentleman who held himself out as a pediatrician.
This gentleman's name is John Bomberger. .

was a member of the staff of Delaware County Memorial
Hospital.

John was never diagnosed at all on the basis of his own symptoms.
In fact, he would have gone undiagnosed perhaps forever, were it
not for the diagnosis made by a Dr. Eleanor Gordon at Kencrest
of his brother, William.

From in faney through childhood through adolescence and into
young manhood, this disease was undiagnosed.

Mr. Orriixovn. Mrs, Maguire. because of our time limitations, I
think we would use the time better if we could lmve your Statement
in the reeord.

If you could summariw the pn)blems you had and use the little
time for exchange. I think it would be better than going through the
statement. Otherwise, all the time will be used in reading the state-
ment. We do have that and it will be made a part of the record.

I wondered if you could tell us in just tt few words about the prob-
lems that your other children did experience. Then we would have an
opportunity to have Solite questions from the committee.

Mrs. Mmitimi.:. William is now 16 years old. He is severely retarded.
He is in Spring Citv, in the Pennhurst State School and Hospital for
tlie Mentally Retarded.

Mr. Orrixol.:n. He has the same problem with ['KU?
Mrs. MAorim.:. Christine has the.saine problem. She was born in 1667.

She was tested for PK I at the Dela ware County Ilospital but it as
not picked up. She is now in the special education classes and does
have brain damage.

I Testimony resumes on p.
[Mrs. Maguire's prepared statement follows:1

STATEMEST OF Mits. Joitx MAM.711tr. YEADOS. PA.

My mime is Ann Magnin. (nee Dilainato I. I Was horn I:Mora:try 24. 1935. I am
37 years old. I graduated High School in 1955 from the West Catholic Girls II igh
School in Philtidelphia. Pa. Throughout. iny setuml years I was an aluive-average
student. 1 haVe a silperhor IQ. I have Passed civil service tests ftor secretarial
positions and worked in that position with the Inspector of Naval Material
In the City of Philadelphia.

My parents are both living and uty father's nano. WIllhun DiDonato
and my mother's is Anna Di Dona to (nee Pollitt I. Both my parents wer born in
the United States and are Htizens of the flitted States. attended sehool and were
raised lit the rity My father retired from Golf nil in Philadel-
phia in 1973. My mother had been and continues to be a housewife. They arc both
in good health and fully functional.

I am one of two children. with it sister named .11tail Ferenc... 41. total' Febru-
ary 3. 1934. She is similarly in good health.

My husband John Magaire is etilloboyed as 0 steam litter with Piffled:01Mb.
Electric Company and has Isetm sit entiolflyed fttr 16 years. Ile is in excellent
health. is present with me this nit trning has no physical disabilities kattwn
to me. He is the son of Mary and John A. Maguire. now deceased. both citizens
Of flue Pnitell States and of the City of Philndelphin. Pa.

Ile knows of aft living relative of his father. other than his Aunt who is in good
health and alive. His !wither's family. of whom there are one sister and four
brldhers. are all well.
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On December 29, 1956, I married my husband in St. Lawrence's Church, Upper
Darby, Pa. We took up residence together with my parents at my home in Upper
Darby, Pa. My first son was due ten months -after my marriage and was de-
livered at the communitY hospital for the Upper Darby area. i.e. Delaware
County Memorial Hospital. I was a fee paying patient of a doctor's whose
specialty was limited to obstetrics, one Dr. E. Earl Trent. with 'offices in.SPrittg=
field, Delaware County, Pa. I had all the approved prenatal care and prescriptions
which were then used. I followed my doctor's recommendatiou in regard to diet.
I do not know of any failure on my part to follim a golsi prenatal regime and
believe that I did all that was suggested by the physician for my own wellbeing
and that of my baby.

John was full term and in obvious good health at the time of delivery. Ile was
attractive and S lbs., 8 oz. John is a victim of PKU. John is now. 18 years old
and a full and contplete life is totally denied to him because of the retar(lation
as a direct result of the PKU disease. John's care was undertaken by 1)r.
Charles MeCutchen, a general practitioner nnd I followed all recommendations
made by him to the letter with regard to every aspect of infant care.

At the time of John's birth, we lived at my parents' home. my husband then
being in the service. I thus had present my mother. who cared for both myself
and my sister and was familiar with the care of a healthy child, having cared
for both myself and my sister. It was apparent to her and to myself that John
was not making progress physically. but was, in fact, having what appeared to
be considerable physical difficulty for a newborn. Just to recite a few observable
problems and not so as to exchnle others, I was, nt ail times. aware and made
aware by my mother that there was a peculiar odor on John's diaper at changing.

This observation was, to my knowledge, a common one by anyone who, during
that period, came to change this child, which included my husband, my father,
and my sister, who lived in the neighborhood and was frequently there.

I also observed a rash which I had little success in controlling. no matter
what was used.

John, being the firstborn. was watched by the many adults in our home and
strongly encouraged to do such things as walking, standing and any other be-
havior that would indicate his reaching developmental milestones. However, he
would pass the time period for reaching such milestones and invariably by
much, much later in reaching them than was expected of him because of his size
and general appearance, which continued to be and is to this date, physically
attractive. John's developmental milestone were all very, very late. He walked.
sat. talked, and ate long after what should have been the time for him to do
these things. I was, of course, conscious of these because I had girlfriends of
my age having babies of their own who would bring their babies around and they
could do more than my John could do even though they were younger.

I continued regular visitation to Dr. McCutheon and explained to hint through-
out this time my observations which are not limited to those mentioned above.
I. of course, could recite numerous other observations which were equally and
timely reported to the physician.

John, in addition to being "cared for" by Dr. McCutheon, was only one month
old when he was returned to Delaware County Memorial Hospital because of
difficulty with his bowel movements. At that time, all the manifestations of PKU
disease were plainly visible, together with the bowel complication, which is also
a sympton of the disease.

Despite all these careful efforts throughout his childhood Into his pubertal
Period and through and into adolescence, the disease went undetected by his
treating physicians who, at age 2. became a general practitioner by the name of
Dr. james Dunn. At age 4. he was hospitalized for a hernia at Delaware County
Memorial Hospital. At age 5. he was hospitalized for tonsils at the same hospital.
At all times. both by history and by appearance, being hlond. fair and hlne-eyed.
he was a victim of the disease known as PKU. .

His care continued In the professional responsibility of Dr. Dunn through and
into 1967 when, at the birth of his sister, the care was transferred to a gentleman
who held himself out as a pediatrician. This gentleman's name is John Bom-
berger.

He. too. was a membei of the staff of Delaware County Memorial Hospital.
John was never diagnosed at all on the hinds of his own symptoms. In fact.

he would have gone undignosed perhaps forever if it were not for the result
of a diagnosis made by a Dr. Eleanor Gordon at Kencrest of his brother. William.

From infancy through childhood through adolescence and into young manhood.
this disease was undiagnosed.
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This disease, which is the most common inherited disease causing retardation,
was missed by the hospital, the authorities in the schools, who were allegedly
in charge of running special classes, the county who was aware of his siblings'
profound retardation requiring connnitment and the entire family haekground,
Including John's slowness and ititteemeut in retarded programs.

The 'effect, of the degree. Of retardotioit in John has destroyed not juSt his
prospect for it normal life, but also for the opportunity to engage in life, liberty
and the pursuit of happiness.

Perlmps the greatest burden John has had to carry throughout the years is
his normal appearance. This appears to be contradictory. However, it must be
recalled that there is no notice to anyone dealing with Joini as of his slowness.
In fact, he is inordinantly attractive. Thus, the expectation level of the persons
dealing with him Is set at the level of his appearance to them which signifies
to theta normal, at least average, behavior. Thus, Joint, throughout ilk $(111 /01
years, has had the crushing burden of dealing with his peers who expect him
to be able to do the things tlmt they do. adults and teachers with the sante
expectations. and a future of similar expectations from employers.

There is no doubt that the almost contimmus failure of John to reach the ex-
pectation that people imt into his appearance has been, perhaps. the most invidi-
ous Injury of all. He is slow academically, athletically, socially and economically.
His horizons fin. social completion, i.e. dating and family. 11 re not only diminished.
but virtually eihninated in an upper-middle income, prninminantly alswe-average
intelligence people in which he has continually had to eompete.

His economic 'horizons are equally dhumed since he is not only mentally re-
tarded. but, together with that, suffers from diminished reflexes and frequent
hutpprmriate emotional behavior.

It is not unfair to suggest, that. the responsible persons have destroyed not jast
John's social and economic horizons, but.also perhaps the most important horizon.
I.e. his entotionol adjustment ami ithice in society. He will be eonstantly. as he
has In the past, presumed normal and an expectation level developed that in no
way John can meet and the failure of which will be met with, as I t hits ill the
lmst, desperate injury to him aml his family and obviously to society as well.

The second born child of our marriage was Winton!. born June 26, 1959. William
was, at birth. 7 ihs. 5 oz. and was born at Delaware Cinnity Memorial nominal
William Is now Di years old. William is profoundly retarded and a resident of
Pennlnirst State School, Spring City, Pennsylvania. William ims been institution.
alized front age 5 and has spent time at the figlinving It wntions: Pry Home..in
West. Sunbury, Pa.: Kencrest, Phoenixville. Pa. and Pennhurst School. Spring
City. Pa. 1Villiam was also seen for lairposes of treatment and/or evaluation and/
or Isith at the following Pennsylvania and New Jersey Hospitals: Delaware
County Memorial Hospital ; Children's Hospital of Philodelphia Butler Memo-
rial Hospital. Butler, Pa.: Children's Seashore Hospital. Atlantic City, New
Jersey.

The doctors, as in John's ease. Included my obstetrielan. Dr. Trout thereafter.
the Islim named doctors. inter alio, at different times: Drs. Dunn, Scott, Baker,
Turnblacer, Bookbinder, Embrle, Ashbaugh, and other staff physicians of the
various before-refermi to hospitals.

Billy Was, is and always has been ii classie PKI* victim in both clinical and
laboratory terms. Shortly after birth, he manifested on extremely. distinet
of all his physical and mental capacities. manifesting Itself Particularly in an
inability to turn over or sit up until months beyond Ilw milestones. Ills body
was covered with a rash whkh was totally uncontrollable. His hair was Minute.
his diaper Stut Piled. It was apparent, especially to me, as well as to my wife and
my mother in law that the baby was Dot 11111 king progress and. In fact. was
maturing very little in the way of good responses.

We went to the doctor to complain. We took tile baby to the hospital for indi-
cated surgery. We did everything told to us by the medleal people to ottempt to
contain the obvious decline of this child without avail. We were eriticized for our
spoiling the child and thereby causing some of the symptoms whieh we noted
and described ahove and which mist have InPII noticeable to the attending phys-
ician because they would oecur in his presence as well.

I wits so concerned with the progress that I demanded timt a referral
he made to a physician associated with Children's Hospital of Philadelphia so
that I could get wane confirmation of what was happening to my boy. This was
done and still no one ntentioned either the word retardation or the cause of it.

I was at all times encouraged to vontinue doing what I had done lreviously.
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I did not hear the word retarded from any of the physicians until Dr. Dunn
finally told me, by inadvertence, that. one of the reasons why I was having diffi-
culty controlling Billy was that he was, in fact, retarded. Again, no effort. had
been, theretofore, made to my knowledge to ascertain the reason for such
retardation.

Billy's retardation was of such level that it was itapeissible for me to Continue
to care for Billy at home in any way. Thus, the County of Delaware, in Penn-
sylvania, was Contacted for assistance in finding a suitable residence for Billy
at a private care center where his condition could be looked after.

In fact. what occurred was that he was warehoused in custodial care in
Western Pennsylvania at a home which had no physicians on its staff, whose
proprietor had no training whatsoever in mental retardation on a professitmal
and. indeed. ou any level. Despite this, the wareinmsing continned for a period
of 7 years when it was terminated only because Hilly got a critical illness which
necessitated his immediate hospitalization.

Billy's situation is different tIma John in every aspect in that he has never,
at any time. been able to do even the nuire basic things. such as cli ithe. feed
or see to his own elitahmtion. Indeed, the entire time he was at the Pry Home
he was not trained in any wny aml was and has continued to wear a diaper.

The single effect of the governmental agency, who bigether with the health
care facility's removing Billy from both the Home and the neighborhood was
to assure that diagnosis would not be made of his condithm and thereby
immedately advising us as to the presence of the disease in our family. This,
of course. prevented any possibility of detection of the (iisease and the institu-
tion of treatment and care of my after-biirn children. of whidi there were four
in number.

Billy was the genesis. however, of the discovery of the disease upon immediate
observation by 1)r. Gordon at Kencrest in Mlmtgomery County. Pa. What was
not done theretofore, was dime by Dr. Gordon, viz, the deteetbm of PM'. The
instant I was informed by Dr. Gordon of the possibility of a disease which, had
it been treated. could have been cured. its the source of the problem in my three
children. I was, of course, determined that if it was within my capadty. this
would never happen to any parent again tutywhere in the world.

I had three unaffected children between Billy and fliristine who sits with
me here today. Christine. at the time of her birth. as had John and Billy. was
a perfectly normal child. They were not only normal. but they were physically
attractive and obviously in good health being of full term and weight.

The same symptomology which had been observed by me in the hvo earlierchildren, i.e. John and Billy, was immediately observed by me in Christin.
Christine was horn May 7. 1907. at Delaware County Memorial Hospital. She

was delivered by Dr. Trout who had delivered my prior children. She was. frombirth, placed in the care of a pediatric specialist by the mime of Dr. John
Bomberger. Dr, Bomberger and the hospital were charged with compliance withthe then-existant testing system for the disease known as PKU in Pennsylvania
which provided alternate testing methods. Christine's original test was not done
as required by the statute prior to her discharge from the hospital at birth.
but was done as a result of a callback made by the hospital to my wife and a
request that she be returned to the hospital for this specific purpose. As requested,
we delivered Christine to the hospital for the test. It was done and I was of
the impression that the test had exonerated Christine from the disease.

However, with the continuing decline of Christine. Us had her brother John
particularly. together with all the symptomology. I was continuously concerned
and continuously reminding the physician that I had other children who had
retardation problems and that the appearance of this child indicated to me that

_she was much.ilke her brothers who were retarded.
However. I was not ever, at any time. made aware of the nature of PIM

or the symptomology and/or the hereditary nature of the disease.
Indeed, np until the time of the discovery by Dr. Gordon. there was a total\ lack of communication with me at all as to the possible causes, if any, of

retardation in two siblings.
I assure this panel that had any information been given to me as to even

a scintilla of possibility of heredity in the disease pattern. I would have in-vestigated it fully and would certainly have discovered within the family that
a maternal cousin's children were victims of MU lint had been detected andtimely treated for the disense.

This gap in investigatory procedures was at every level, physician. hospital.public service agency, and social service agency. No one, at any time, broached
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with me the possibility that there couhl be a familiar connection with the
problem my children were having and. huleNI. ever even suggested that there
was a cure for the afiliction which we. my ehildren and I. have now suffered.
If any pattern is more apparent. it is that Christine will suffer at least as
faun as John has on the social and eciantude ladder.

I have tried to avoid this continuing failure to meet challenges by vont' lug

to confine her to schools for retarded children, but liecause I If her normal
brothers andy.sisters, she is constantly confrimted with and has to deal with
problems which are beyond her enpaeity to solve.

It is my opinion that all of my children were and are aml always have
been normal in every aspect of their lives. with the exeeption of this disease.

There is not any reason for me to believe that the appropriate treatment
at the appropriate time would not have left my children normal children in
every respect.

The children's parents were and are totally commited to their personal well-
being and wonld have followed a diet to absolute letter. Indeed. the first oppor-
tunity that I was ever given to observe the dietary program was not given to
me locally, but in Dr. Guthrie's clinic in Buffalo. N.Y., where I was tremendous-
ly impressed with the total effort to both discover and cure this most pernicious
disease,

in conclusion, if my testimony before this l'o llll littee has any purpose at
all, it is my honest hope that its purpose will be Pi set up a ~tinning sereen-
ing and follow-up effort of all retarded children everywhere to discover the
basis for their retardation aml to exclude as a possible bask PKV.

Indeed, there should be a national commitment to the similar iirevention of
this horrifying IT a nmada tory detection and forogram of follow through
on diet which could and should be modeled after the prtarram I had pleasure
to witness in Buffalo.

I ani prepared now to answer any questions relating to the statement I
have just read.

However, I am certain this Committee understands the purpose of my pref-
ace and the /imitations eontained therein. I will muslin with my attorney in
regard to answering questions plaved by the Conunit tee.

APPliN nix A

Gentlemen: I regret that both my statement and my answers to questions
will be limited, to some extent. in my testimony before you this morffing due
to the existence of litigation.

I cannot and will not speak to any of the issues involved in the litigation.
will be required to consult with counsel on any finestion prior to answering

it and will reserve my right to do so.
This is done not simply hi my own interest, but primarily in the interest

of the three affected children in my household who have a significant part of
their economic future dependent upon the outcome of the civil litigntion and
whose rights I ealinot and will liot waive.

With those limitations, I will attempt to fully and comph-btely answer your
questions and trust that I will answer fully completely any questions asked
by yon.

Mr. Orli SGER. We thank you very much for this testimony.
Mr. Seheue r, do put ii tu ve an v quest ions ?
Mr. ScuErER. No qliest ions.
Mr Oyu Nomt, r. Sitti rp ?
Mr. SliAlte. Did you say ( 'hrist ine was tested for PKI"?
Mrs. MAortnr.. Yes, she was.
Mr. Si i, In% Was it discovered in tile first test ?
Mrs. Mmwing. No, it wasn't.
Mr. SIIAltr. Wollid this suggest if you had done this test again

within a reasonable period of time you might have diseovered it then?
Mrs. MAGUIRE. The test eame }mei: negatiYe. Thwy said there was

no reason to test her aga in.
Mr. SIIARP. Is the test for PM' now standard in that hospital ?

Was it not for the first child ?
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Mrs. MAtlulitE. It was not for the first child. It was for Christine.
Mr. MAGinitE. Mr. Sharp. when Christine was born, she was

released from the hospital. The hospital had found out that the test
had not been done. So, they had her come back.

Now, this test is usually done around the third or fourth day. If it is
done on the first day. results can be negative. She was out 2'days. So.
the sixth or seventh day it would be more natural for it to show up
and the test was negative.

Mr. S I (AIM Thank you very much.
Mr. OrriNaalt. Mr. Santini.
Mr. SANTINI. I appreciate your sharing your experience with us.

It helps us to form a better educated judgment on the practical prob-
lems we are facing here as well as the legislative problem.

Mr. OTTI NaER. M r. Segal.
Mr. SmAL. I would like to ask, with your permission, that there be

inserted in the record articles, one describing mass screening for ge-
netic disease and another article describing neonatal screening for
phenylketonuria, indicating that more than 10 percent of the infants
with PM: today are not screened and not being detected properly by
screening; .and related articles on inborn genetic screening.

Mr. OrriNGER. Without objection, it is so ordered.
[Testimony resumes on p. 38.]
[The articles referred to follow :]
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Mass Screening for Genetic Disease
Sunlit GUTIIIII/ State thwerattto of Nese T °eh, Su do

Automation has already brought nur screening capability to the point where the same

specimen can be used to detect a nundor of hereditary aminuacidurial in addition to

/*AI% Yet applkation falls far behind: only sin laboratories in the U. 14. non do

such automated multiple testing. Regionalizing the effort could close this gap -

and involve practically no increase in cost oser that of screening for el. t alone

It Is Ms Mtve five years since mass I...ening od neonates
for phertylketonueia became routine throughout dor United
Staters The test, hare been made legally mandatory in 43

wain and are carried out voiuntarily in the other seven,

thereby cooring an estintated 94ri of the 3.5 million in-
fants born annually in this owntri similar measures are
um, n-. in m leant 13 other nation.. All told. these
Vreening programs add up to perhaps the most estenshe
esercise in presentive Inediaine since the development of

polio vaccine.
Giant a puhlic health effort of this magnitode. a review

,,r the result, 000ld be appreprinle in any case. Dot such
a resim menu mixt ialls detinble now, m the light of
some current efforts to discontinue erteerting programs
under the guise of a misconceived .trtamotn..- In fact, as
I shall demon. rrrrr , re. I oreewing has proved itself not

mewls a media,/ but alto an economic success, figured
m the most hardnowd budgetan terms; the ounce of
preve.liOn that saves an et:pensive pound of anoliontinn.
It is also.., we ate learning, a pron4ype of other ma.,
screening programs that can pas node modest, hut no
leo real, medical and noniron, dividend, in the prevention

of genetic disease.
Tbe fint test for Fit ials. of own., the aril-knouts

'Nue-diaper" lest, ohich depends on the reaction Nature..
(mark chlotide and the phenyliwnok acid in the urine of
an affected infant. With the aid of this pnordore, a num-
her of t ales of r 1St were deterred. 'flow were treated by
noon, of a low.phenylalaniar diet. with results that were
somewhat equivocal hut encouraging Dowser, this test
oas unsuitable in man)- um.. lint, it usually gave pea-
the result, at best no earlier than about a month after
h irsh, owing tar the delay in rise of serum level, of phe-
n ytalanine to the point where its atetabalk protiuct would

show up in the urine; thus there was reason to suspect that
by the time treatment could be initiated the infant might
already have suffered some degree of irreversible brain
damage. Then, it. 'tureen as a ntavr screening device dr
pooled fond, on thr vemper....n untrined m,e hut,

perienced Individual, - Parents, pOblic health nuro, etc.
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- oho would have only the most general notion of what

tn kok for, since their dunces of having wen another

caw of this rare condition wen remote.
In the late 950%, tin associates and I Ivrte asked to

tun tests on sell= phettylalanine level, tu monitor the
dietary treatment of too r t patients. Dissatisfied with

e r i tt ing procedures, which were cumbersome and madly,

we devised the bacterial inhibition tnt, which Is neither.

Tds procedure employ. culture, of &willies subtitle in

an agar medium. Normally. this organism is capable of

t

Ankmated ortientne far fal .uul other whom metedwelie

node« Inf.ugh the worse by mail of Mead samples hke thme

dna. dome, on a fovea Threoctse feral of tr wetted et the
Vim Yovi huge health deperowest Iaborwory Magda

Itnorrat how I.79 93
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NEONATAL SCREENING FOR l'IIENYLKEToNVRIA

I. EFFErrIvENKSS

(Neil A. lloltznum. MD; Allen 0. Meek ; E. David Me lilts, Sett)

Programs for the detection Of phenylketomirla (PKU) were evahmted by sur-
veys of health departments and PK U ci hues. Effeetiveness was measured by
determining (I) the proportion of live births screened. (2) the (tecurrence of
PKU infants missed by screening (false-negatives). (31 the proportion of pre-
sumptive positives in whom a diagnosis of PIM was confirmed by follow-up
studies, and (4) the interval between screening test and follow-up.

More than 10% of infants with PKIT are either not being screened or are not
being detected by screening. Infants with PKU who are screened on the first 3
days of life are more likely to be missed than those screened later. The infants
in whom a diagnosis of PK U was confirmed constituted only 5.1% of all Infants
with presumptive positive screening tests. Programs differ greatly in the inci-
dence of presumptive positive tests and in the time necessary to follow up posi-
tive tests.(JAMA 229 :607-070. 1974)

The prevention of retardation due to phenylketonuriu (PKU) requires initia-
tion of a low-phenylalanine diet early in infancy before symptoms are manifest.1
To accomplish this. most states in this country have laws that require screening
of all newborns for elevations of blood phenylalunine values.

This study was undertaken to evaluate the effectiveness of newborn screening
programs. An ideal program would detect all infants with PKU and a minimal
number of false-positives. III addition, it would permit the initiation of treatment
in time to prevent.retardation. The attainment of perfection is beyond the scope
of auy program dealing with biological processes and their Inherent variation.
The findings, however. indicate imperfections in the programs that are untenable
to change.

SOURCE OF DATA AND ME'THODS

Questionnaires were sent to each state health department in the United States
during 1970. as well as to departments in the provinces of Ontario and Quebec.

Information requested included :
1. Total number of infants screened.
2. Number of infants screened on each day of life during a one-year period.
3. Number of infants in wImm results of routine screening were normal but

in whom a diagnosis of PKU was subsequently made (false-negatives). This in-
formation was also requested in a separate questionnaire sent to PKU clinic
directors.

4. Method of screening and upper limit of normal.
5. Number of infants with elevated levels of phenylalanine screening-test re-

sults. For each infant In which the test result showed an elevated phenylalanlne
level, the following was requested : sex. age at thne of screening test and result,
follow-up blood phenylalanine test result, and age at which result tills obtained.

0. Number of infants being treated for PKU and having diagnosis as a result
of screening.

Only four states were able to provide the information remwsted in items 2 and
5. One additional state provided an estimate of the number of infants screened
on each day that was based on a sample of 1,000 infants from ten hospitals.
Seven other states and two subdivisions of New York indicated that the indi-
vidual results were availaNe but could not be analyzed by twat personnel. III
order to obtain information in items 2 and 5. one of us (A.O.M.) visited these
health departments and their screening laboratories. The GOMM' of infants
screened on each day was determined from a random sample of 3,000 to 4.000
test results from among all newborn tests perftormed during a tme-year period.
The sample size was selected such that on any clay of life the relative error of
calculation would be no greater than 10%. (The formula was

RESW!)
SIV=Nn p(Ip)

X
N-1 11

t Holtzman NA : Dietary treatment of Inborn errors of metatmllam. Ann Kee Med
21 :235-2511 1970.
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where RE indicates relative error; SD, standard deviation; n, sample size; N,
universe size; p, proportion of infants screened on a given day. When p is small,
the equation eau he simplified. SD=p/n. In order to limit Ilw standard deviation
to 0.0025, for a relative error of 10%. a sample size of 4,000 is needed when the
smallest proportipm of infants serpents! On any day of life. Is 0.025 of infants
screened on alt days [0.0025=0.025/4.(001). Iiirthweight tind tyrosine level.
it available, were also eolleeted fin. all infants whose test results lutd elevated
PKIT levels during the same year.

Live births per year were obtained from the Satiotml Center for Health
Statistics.'

'omplefen('to of Screening,In a one-year period between 190S and 1979, .

1,107,0IN) infants were screened in the JO states providing information
fonds. Delaware, fleorgia, Hawaii. Kentucky. Louisiana.
setts. Miehigan, Niontana. Nevin dn. Sew Hampshire. Ohio, Oregon. South Carolina,
and Virginia Each of these states has legislation requiring PK1' screening.
The lufants screened eomprise SS.S';', of the live births. For individual states.
the !Percentage sereened ranges frPan to 103'4. The estimates are 1)1.411111111y
high because of the inclusion of some repeat tests. The southern states had the
least etanprehensive coverage.

Sensitivity of Screcniny.---The survey showed 23 infants from eight states
whose initial test results were negative hut who were subsequently proved to
have l'Kl* with maximum blood phenylalanine levels in exeess of 20 mg/100 ml.
Eighteen were screened hy the I:While hneterial inhibition assay. three by
thmrometric assay, and 1111e by 1.117.y11111tie 11 ss'n . lii one infant. the nwthod was
unkmlwn. The states or (111904 replirting these false-negatives reported. over the
511 1111. ti1110, 23 patients in Mourn the diagnosis of PKI* was made as a result
of screening. Therefore, in these states aproximately 92% of infants, with
PKI* were disowered by screening. This is a maximum estimate, os reppoling
cut false.negatives is almost certainly ineomplete.

Fifteen of the 23 false-negatives. or 05.2% were sereerled 011 or before the
third day of age 111 on the third day and 4 on the seeotall although only 445.
of 11ll linfnrsts were screened by that age. This is dirrerellee (chi
square. P<.05). (Data Pot the distributbm of infants sereened on each day of
life was supplied by four of the states nporting false-negatives and eight others.)
Thus the priphability of missing a elISP of PK IT is greater if sereening is !Per-
formed early in the neonatal period. Further evidence is presented in Table 1.
The ineldetwe of l'KF luntIng infants sereened after the nairth tiny of life is
1.0 tbnes higher than among infants sereened earlier.

Female infants predominate among the false-negatives (14:9). In viow of
the excess of male infants with PKC discovered by sereening." the
supports the hypoithesis that the discowery of PKF in female infants is more
likely to be missed than in male infants.

Of 15 infants with false-negative tests in whom the type of feeding at the
time of the first test was known, six were hreast.fed (40',.: ). Of 11:5 infants
with PKF whlate first test showed elevated levels of plienylalanine and in
wionn the early feeding history was available. 41 (22%1 were breast-fed, Phi!,
ditTerenee is not statistierilly significant.

TABLE 1.DEPENDENCE OF PKU INCIDENCE ON AGE AT TIME OF SCREENING I

Group tested

Age at time ol screening

0 to 4 Mors than
days 4 days

Infants with PKU 32 23All infants screened 611, 889 275,384
Incidence per 100,000 screened 5.2 & 4

Data provided by health departments of Delaware. Georgia, Kentucky, Louisiana. Maryland. Massachusetts, Michigan.
Nevada. New Hampshire, New 'fork (Buffalo, New York City regions only), Oregon, South Carolina, and Virginia. The data
is for 1 year between 1968 to 1970 except for Virginia which provided data for 1968 and 1970.

a Vital Statiatira n/ the United Staten: Kumtnarien for 1969, 1970. I'S National Center
for Health Ktatistles. Us Government Printing Office, 1979, 1971.

a Holtzman NA, et al : Neonatal sereening for phenylketonorla III. Aborts! six ratio ;extent and possible enases.J Pcdiatr, la be published.
Dobson 3. Williamson M Provocative observations in the eollaborative study.N Engl J Med 282 :1 10.1. 1970.
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Presumptive Positive Sereening Tests.The vast majority of infants with
elevated levels of phenylalanine on screening tests have normal blood phonyiala-
nine contvntrations by the time of follow-up. Among the 0,6412"Infants whose
IMenylnlanine levels were elevated on the first test. 5,1102 (tiro%) had n PhellY1-
alanine level of less than 6 mg/100 nil on the follow-up: 662 (0.9% ). greater
than 6 but less than 20 mg/100 nil: and 338 (5,1%). greater Man Or equal to 2(1
mg/100 ml. (This data was prowided by the health departments In Alabama,
Californin, Cidoradii, Cconiectient, liii wail, Marylund, Missouri, Nevada, New
Jersey, New York [Buffalo and New Yi)rk City only], Ontario. Quebec.,
Rliode IsIn iiil, South Carolina, Tennessee, Texas, Virginia, and Washington.)

The infants with phonylainnine eoneentrations between 6 and 20 mg/100 ml
on the first follow-up fall into two categories !tamed on additional determinations.
The first category consists of dome in whom noslerale Increases of phenylala-
nine will persist while on a normal diet but without risk of retardation."-' (From
other surveys,' one third of the infants fall into this category.) The second in-
cludes those in whom the phenylalanine concentration will fall within a few
months. This group can be further subdivided into Infants with and without
associated tyroninemia. Tyrosine voneentrations were reported in 85 of the
infants whose plienylaInnine level was between 4 and 20 mg/100 lul 1111 the first
follow-up examination. 111 43.5%, elevated tyrosine levels (greater than 4 mg/
100 1111) were reported. No tyrosine level elevations were found in blunts whose
follow-up pheaylabmilm value Was greater than lir equal to 20 mg/100ml.

Only 5.1% of infants with phenylnlanine inereases on screening had blood
phenylalanine levels of greater than or equal to 20 mg/100 nil on follow-up and
can be considered to have classical l'Kr. As 27.5% of these had lthenylnhuilne
levels on screening of 10 mg/100 ml i ir less.' any effort to improve specifleity by
raising the cutoff level above 4 or 6 mg/100 1111 would result 111 greater failure
to detect PIM. If all other factors were kept constant.

Time Before Follome-17p.The length of time between screening test and fol-
low-up may Imve some bearing on the prognosis. Kong et al " report that infants
treated within the first 3 weeks of life have a better outcome than those treated
between 3 and 6 weeks of age.

The mean interval between screening test and follow-up for 1.283 infants
whose initial phenylalanine concentration was elevated was 24.0 days. In 22.6%,
the interval wns more thnn 30 days. The interval differed signifleantly 111 the
11 different programs providing datn (Chl-square equals 196.431: degrees of
freedom. 20 : P<.001).

Variation in. Incidener.In the 31 states (and Ontario and Quebec) pro-
vidthg data, the meno ± standard deviation of all incidences of was 6.7

3.9/100.000 (n=495 phenylketonurics: range. 0 to 19.8/100,000). The Mean
incidence is close to that predicted from the frequency of the eondition among
institutionnlized mental defectives." but the range is surprising. A number
of factors contribute to this variation:

1. Chance.For a disorder as rare ns PM!. more infants will have to be
screened in some states before the incidence is considered statistically reliable.

2. Differences in Diagnostir rriterio.The ineidenee of MIT in infants known
to linve a Mood phenylalunine level of 20 mg/100 nil or more prior to treatment
was 5.3/100,000. The incidence of infants being treated for PKU at the time
of the survey wav somewhat higher. 6.4/100.000. 8ome treated infants might
not have had blood phenylalanine levels of 20 mg/100 ml or more prior to
treatment.

3. Ethnie Voriation.Stotes with a large proportion of births in families of
Irish " or Mediterranean descent' might be expected to have a higher incidence

B erm n n et iii : causes for high Phenyinlinnine with norm! tyrosine. .4m ./ fliq
Child, 117 :54-69.19119.

" Berman .11.. Ford It : Intelligence quotients nnd intelligence lieu, In patients with
phenylketonuria and some variant states. J Pediair 77 :784-770.1970.

Levy ilL. et n1 : Persistent mild hyocrphenyinianincmin in I hP untreated state. N Eng!
Med 285 :424-429.1971.
" Cunningham GC : Phenylketomirin testing--its role in pedintries and !while health.

CRC Rer Clin Loh Sci 2 :45-101.1971.
9 Holtzman NA. Mellits BD. KnIlninn : Neonatal screening for phenyiketonorin : 11.

Age dependence of Initial phenylaianine In infants with PKV. Pcdintrirs, 53 :353-357.
1974.

19 Kong ES. Sollee ND. Gerald PS : nesnits ot treatment find terminntion of the diet in
phenylketonurtn. Pediatrics 49 :851-890.1970.

II Jervis 0: Phenylpyruvic oligophrenln. Res Pohl Assoc Res Nen. Ment nis 33 :259-282,
1953.

Cnhnlane SF Phenylketonnrin : Mass screening of newborns In Ireland. .4rrh Din
Child 43 :141-144.19118.
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of PKU, Three states with relatively high incidences of l'KI' (Connecticut.
Massachusetts, and Rhode Is Innti) also had relatively high proportions of first
and second geuerntion Irish and IhillanS in their populations in 1970," but for
the other agates, there was no twrelation between the Weide:tee and the propor-
tion of first and second generation Irish or Indians in their immulations.

4. Variation in Laboratory Performance.--Table 2 indicates the incidence of
presmaptive positive Guthrie tests 11111011g !Ill infants screened at $ days of age
In those regions in which 3 days of age was the modal day of sereening (with
the exception of Mnssachusetts in witieh day 4 was modal and day 3 next). The
high Incidence in Massaehusetts is partly explained lw Its Ilse of a lower cut-off
nine (2 mg/100 tul) than the other sillies, whleh employ 4 tug/100 mi with
the exception of Maryland, whkit uses 0 mg/100 nil. Despite this high cut-off.
Maryland has the seeond highest incidence.

TABLE 2.INCIDENCE OF ELEVATED PHENYLALANINE LEVEL ON GUTHRIE TESTS PERFORMED ON THE 3d DAY
OF LIFE

Stele and year

Number of
Infants with Incidence

elevated Total per
levels screened 100,000

Kentucky, 1970 24 21.120 114
Maryland, 1968 38 25.180 151
Massachusetts, 1970 81 29.470 275
Michigan, 1968 9 80.140 11
Nw York-Buffalo. 1970 1 19.465 5
New York City, 1970 18 52,467 34
Oregon, 1968 4 15.893 25
South Carolina, 1970 4 12.615 32

'lints survey indimtes four problems in screening effeetiveness:
1. Infants Not Sereened.WhIle virthally all newborns tare sereened In some

states, fewer than 70% are screened in others. In the states providing (Mtn, there
were 147,534 newborns who were not screened in the year covered by the survey.
As the incidence of PKU. discovered as a result of screening. In these same states,
In the saute year, was 5.4/11X1,000. upproxitnately eight haunts with PKU were
not screened. (Sixty-three were discovered by screening.)

2. Early Age at Screening.There is a greater probabifity ef detecting PKU
if screening is performed after four days of age (Table 1 and Holtzman et
al"). Unless it is acceptable ti) miss approximately 5% to 10% of PKI; infants!

the time.dependence of the I ils is si phenylalanine concentrittion of newborn
phenyiketonurks requires either that infants not be discharged front nurseries
before 4 days of age or that those discharged early be screened after nursery dis-
charge. Infants with PKI' screened on the first four days of life whose screening
test Was positive had lower values on the screening test than those screened
later.'

3. Delay in Follow-1'1).in some states, more than 00% of infants with elevated
levels of phenyialanine int screening-test results were followed up within two
weeks, whereas in others, fewer than 20% were followed up in that time. Irre-
versible brain damage might occur before (Iiagnitsis could be confirmed in the
phenyiketonurics and low-phenyhtlanint diets instituted. 'rhis problem is (Well
more severe for disorders such as galactosemia and maple syrup urimi disease in
which death In the neonatal period Is not unusual. Screening for these disorders
will not prove beneficial unless rapid follow-up is assured.

4. Laboratory Performance.The variation in the incidence of elevated levels
of phenyialanine on screening tests I Table 2) suggests t1mt its stietut hie di frerences
in the performantv and Interpretation of the Guthrie bacterial inhibition assay
test exists.

The problem of laboratory error is eompounded by the fact that in some states
more than one laboratory performs the test. In California in 1967, at least 1114
laboratories perforated screening tests." Vurialdlity due to differences in inborn-

Efron MI, : Classical anti Mediterranean phenyiketonuria. In Nyhan W led) : Amino
Acid ,Ifetaboliem and Genetic Variation. New York. McGraw-11M Book Co. Inc. 1967.
1 15-1 17.

I, 1870 Census of Population: General Social and Economic CharacteriNtica (PC(.11--C).
US Bureau of the Census+. VS Government Printing Office. 1972. Table 49.

CunnIngbarn GC: PEU screening. Calif lled10 :1 1-10, 1969.
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ttiry Inetho(ls could be reduced If fewer labiwn tortes performed I lw test and strict
quality Oinitrol was imposed. SeVern1 of the states repiwthig false-negatives did
not have centralised screening lir Ipoillty

III order to fiwilitate evallintion in future un 1gm mM, states ((humid agree on the
information required and standardise the forms used.

[From Pediatric 'NMI. March 19751

INottiKoAssmc I'14KII TO ScitnES M.:1%11014NX Volt 111TOTII THOMISM

(World Medical Ilrporlx)

ST. !Actg.I.:very newborn In the Province of Quebec is now being screened
for hypothyroidism by means of a recently developed immunoassay that can meas-
ure thyroxine rapidly and accurately on the fifth day of life. Dr. Jean 11. Das-
sault reported at the American 'Thyroid Association meeting.

Prom the 49,000 measurements made SI/ far, the frequeney Of neonatal hypo-
thydroldIsm appears to be about I : 7.000. warranting such a mass screening pro-
gram. said Dr. Dussanit, of Le Cmitre Hospitaller de PUniversit6 Laval. Quebec
City.

Thyroid hormones are essential for normal brain devehmment and growth. It
would therefore be expected that clIrly treatment i if hypothyroidism conid pre-
vent the neurologic and mental deficits seeondary to thyridd delielency early in
life, he pointed out.

However, because of the clinical difficulties involved in making the diagnosis
of neonatal hypidhyriddbon, the disease is seldom detected before the third month
of life, after irreversihie central nervous system damage has oceurred, he said.

USKS TIITROXINII ANTIBODY

The test Dr. Dussault deseribed uses a speelfic thyroxine ('I%) antibody that
eon detect the hormone in ehinte of dried blood spotted on filter paper.

In Quebec. almost every newborn Is screened for multiple inborn errors of
metabolism. and the blood is taken at the time of diselmme from the neonatal
unit. The spotte(I filter paper is sent to the Central Laboratory of the Quebec
Network for Genetic Medicine, Dr. Dussau it said.

The mean T4 concentration obtained from the 49.0(K) measurements has been
1.00 ng/40 i driest blood.

Whenever the T, value has been found below 0.4 ng, the subjeet lins been Im-
mediately recalled for a new blood sample. If the concentrathm is between 0.4
and 0.5 lig, the measurement Is repeated frimi the original filter paper and only
tlien. If the value is still below 0.8 ng. Is a new sample required. Dr. Dussault
explained.

A total of 0.9% of tile subjects screened have been recalled. he noted.

OBTAIN HliltUM

Serum had to be obtained from 10% of this, new population because of confirmed
low T4 valnes. and then the free thyroxine. triodothyrimine, and thy roxine-
binding globulin (TIM ) were measured in the serum.

In tills way, seven hypothyrold infants and three with abnormally low TI10
have been detected. Dr. I Mssmilt reported.

In all instances. the P. concentration In the Monte was below 0.3 ng, he said.
Ionise positives ha VP occurred in 0.9% of the measurements. and this is con-

sidered on acceptable number. equivalent to about 15 snmples per week out of
1.1400. It Is almost impossible to obtain valid data on false negatives. but none is
known to have occurred. Dr. Dussanit said.

In sum. the immononssay seems to be a method of choke for mass sereening of
neonatal hypothyroidism, at a eost i f about 30 cents a sample. he said.

Dr. Dussanit's assoelates In the study were Dr. Claude Laberge and Pierre
Conlombe.
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Motu Medical World Nowa, October II, 1074 I

&nom IN os lIveoviiVItointsfd Meen KAnuna
For most hypothyrold infnnts Irreversible brain damage begins al birth,

And life is downhill from then on, But n nmv livolintni screening test, now being
liaNi ill Quebec, pinpoints the disorder montliseven yearsistfore Alnico! symp-
toms normally appear, allowing for prilmpt treatment,

Endemic goiter is nonexistent in developed nations, lint. neonatal hypothy-
roldismeretinismst rikes about one in 12,0(XI Quebec babies, Or, Jean Dussault,
the test's developer, told the American Thyroid Assoelation meeting in St, Louis
last month, Its primary muses are congenital anderdeveloliment of the thyrolti
gland anti dyshormollogeneslsthough many other confirmed PIMPS remain un-
expinIned. Its ineldence is about the same as that of phenyiketotturla, sereening
for which is numdatory III Quebec find In most of the MS.

"On the basis of our present knowledge, hypothyroidism Wimid be an excel-
lent disease to test for in newborn babies," cmumented Or, Harvey Levy, prim
cipal investigator at the Massachusetts Metabolic Disorders Detection Program,
"It nppearsand we don't know for surethat the babies are born normal and
then develop bruin damage and other organic problems. Unfortunately, by the
time a child is exhibiting enough clinical symptoms to be diagnosed by a phy-
sician, It's often too late for treatment. (In the other hand. hormone therapy is
simple and remilly available. To minimize brain damage one would %vont to begin
treatment as $oon as possil de after birt II."

The new test, done a few dnys after birth, invoirPs radlohnmunoassay for the
thyroid hormone, thyroxine, In a pinprick blissi spot obtained frinn a newhorn's
heel. It costs only about '25e i)er test, sine(' II1P spOt be made on the same
filter paper umed to test for phenylketonaria, gainettetemln, and tyrosinemia at
clinics like Laval University's central laboratory of the WAN- Network for
Genetic Medicine, where De. Dussuult works.

A normal infant's thy roxha, commtration is alomt 1.6 ng/40 AI of dried blood.
When the Quebec laboratory detects a reading less than half that, the original
sample is retested. If the first reading Is less than 0.4 lig, the infant is immedi-
ately recalled for a new blood sample. III either ease. If the second reading is
again below 0.5 Itg. the infunI returns to the Laul University clinic for four
further thyroid function tests. At the present level of efficiency. Dr. Dassault
says, a hypothyrold infant can be discovere(l and hem on hormone treatments
within the first month of life.

'Since last April the Laval University clinic (one of three using the test in
Quebec) has screened about 55,000 neonatal blood samples, discovering seven in-
fants with neonatal hypothyroidism, The assay has the desirable fault cf over-
sensitivity. Of the first ten positive results only six turned out to be true ab-
normalities on further testing, and to Dr. Dussault's knowledge there have been
no false-negatives.

The procedure has also been used on an experimental basis by physicians in
Toronto. After screening about 1,300 infants at the University of Toronto's Mt.
Sinai Hospital, the Toronto team has confirmed the test's accuracy. In their
study, four of the 38 infants who had positive results were abnormal on retest-
ing, and one of these was truly hypothyrold, reports Dr. John O'Donnell, one of
the Toronto investigators.

"As soon as we can get the financial support. we hope to set up a testing pro-
gram in Toronto and eventually on a provincewide basis," adds Dr. Paul 'Wal-
fish, director of Mt. Sinai's endocrine division.

American neonatologists are also eager to try the IIPW testbut there are
complications. Not used before In the U.S.. the screening program is still con-
sidered experimental by most hospitals, even though the same pinprick provides
blood for Inundated PKIT tests In some states. Dr. I'. R. Larsen and a team at. the
University of Pittsburgh began using Ole test last month on about noo newborn
babies. "One problem we have is getting a consent form signed for every sample
we obtain," he told NIWN. "It's quite time-consuming."

Developing and implementing neonatal screening tests will be easier in Canada
than in the U.S., Dr. Levy feels, until this country develops a more centralized
screening system. "We need fewer state labs and more regional labs," he com-
ments. "The system we have now is wasteful and inefficient."

"Lots of times it's difficult to convince the government on a purely humani-
tarian basis." adds Dr. Larsen. "What we have to do now is show on an economic
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basis that the cost of screening, say, 10,000 infants to find one with hypothyroid-ism is so low that it's much better than the alternativehospitalization in astate mental institution."

[From Pediatric News, March 10751

Wol.71.1) SCRIZN INFANTS FOR IIvetrimmothism

World Medical Reports
Wtxxtezo, MAN.All neonates should be screened for hypothyroidism becauseearly diagnosis can lead to prevention of mental retardation in affected children.

Dr. Paul G. Walfish said at the annual scientific meeting of the Canadian Societyof Endocrinology and Metabolism.
Neonatal hypothyroidism appears to be the most Mantuan endocrine-metaholic

cause of mental retardation : its incidence is about twice that of phenyiketanuria
(PKV), said Dr. Walfish. of the 17niversity of Toronto. Mount Sinai Ho.srani.

A mandatory screening program in the province of Quelwe employs the deter-
mination of thyroxine activity in dried capillary blood Obtained from a heel prick,
Dr. Walfish reported at the meeting.

"In my view, newborn thyroid screening in this country is inevitable, and it isonly a question of how it will be organized." Dr. Delbert FiSher said in an in-terview with this newspaper.
Dr. Fisher is chairman of an i1 line committee of the American Thyroid As-

sociation on newborn thyroid screening, and profcssor of pediatrics and medicine
at the University of California School of Medicine. Los Angeles.

The committee has currently adopted a polky of observation and study of the
Pilot programs that are now in existence, he said.

There are pilot studies in Pittsburgh and Bostim io evaluate the dried capil-lary blood method that was originally described by Drs. Jean Dussault and
Claude Laberge. of the University of Laval. Quebec.

This technique. currently in use in the mandatory program in Quebec. can
detect neonatal hypothyroidism and other causes of low serum thyroxine, hut
there are methodologic limitations that contribute to n high rate of false posi-
tive results. Dr. Walfish reported at the scientific session.

Another method, which appears to lw more accurate, measures the level of
thyroid stimulating hormone (TS11 in cord blood obtained at the time of placen-
tal separation. This approach was first reported in 1974 by Drs. Klein. Agustin.
and Foley, of the University of Pittsburgh. Dr. Walfish said at a press confer-
ence after his presentation.

The dried capillary blood method was used to screen 3.000 infants in Mount
Sinai Hospital. Of the children screened. 93 were selected for follow-up on the
basis of low thyroxine levels, a follow-up rate of 3%.

Of these 93 children. RS were found on further testing to he normal, having
had false positive results. Only five children had confirmed low serum thyroxine

Causes of low thyroxine levels included three patients with congenital thy-
roxine binding globulin deficiency, one with neonatal hypothyroidism, and one
with drug-induced hypothyroidism in an infant whose mother was taking
propylthiouracil.

The false positives are the result of sampling and collection errors, errors
induced by high hematocrit. and other methodologic factors. Maternal drug
ingestion and thyroiditis also contribute to false positives.

Fetal prematurity and twinning can contribute to initial low thyroxine levels,
hut there is usually spontaneous recovery.

"For adequate sensitivity and prevention of false negatives, we feel that the
dried capillary blood method requires a 2-3% high follow-up program." Dr.
Walfish said.

Preliminary results show that the determination of TSB iii cord blood is a
more definitive screening test for neonatal hypothyroidism. Dr. Walfish said.

There is a clear elevation in cord blood TSH levels that is unequivocal in in-
fants with hypothyroidism.

Of 600 babies screened. only 1 had to he recalled for a possible underactive
thyroid gland, and that hahy (lid have the disorder. There were no false positives,
he noted.
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The problem that remains with the TSII test is one of logistics. The serumsamples must be obtained under proper conditions and transported to the cert.tral laboratory for testing. Lowering the rate of recall of infants may be a factorin matching the additimmi cost of transporting the serum samples.

LIFELONG THERAPY

Special learning programs or institutionalization of these children should alsobe taken into account in a cost/benefit ratio of the screening test. Dr. Walfishcommented.
The disease usually is not inherited and occurs sporadically, so it is notpossible to 'identify a high-risk population and screen only those children.If treatment is begun before the infant is 3 months old, there is a 70-0%chance that the baby will reach a normal IQ. If treatment Is delayed beyond 0months, the baby will have a 00% chance of being mentally retarded, he said.The children will require lifelong therapy with thyroid hormone but this isfdmpler than the special diets required after Identification of children with PKU.There is currently no major PKU screening program on a national basis in theUnited States. Dr. Walfish said.

CENTRAL QUALITY CONTROL

The screening programs for PKI7 In the United States are mostly state.based andrequire each individual physician to ensure that testing is done. Tbere is there-fore no central quality control of the laboratories doing the testing, and noguarantee of follow-up and treatment. Dr. Fisher said in an interview with thisnewspaper.
This is the wrong way to approach the problem, he said.The province of Quebec has set up a central laboratory In which there isquality control and feedback to physicians. A screening program in the UnitedStates should be efficiently and appropriately managed so that maximum use ofsamples for multiple testing, quality control, and follow-up are built into thesystem.
Regional, governmentally supported screening laboratories (state or federal)would meet these requirements and provide a structure for incorporating futurescreening methods. Dr. Fisher said.
Dr. Wa lfish's associates in this study were Dr. .T. O'Donnell. and A. FrInkland G. Shachter.

[From the Lancet, Aug. 23. 1975. p. 356]

MASS SCREEN/NO FOR CRETINISM

Neonatal feeding difficulties confront the paediatrician daily. Common causesinclude birth shock, infection, and Jaundice: but, along with constipation andrespiratory troubles, feeding difficulties may be the presenting clinical featureof hypothyroidism. The classic cretinous fades is seen in only a quarter ofeases diagnosed before three months, the proportion increasing with increasingdelay in replacement therapy.'
Cretinism Is a rare cause of mental retardation but a treatable one. It can beeasily missed until later in the first year of life, and early replacement therapy

is unfortunately essential. In a Great Ormond Street series.1 14 out of 19 dill.dren diagnosed and treated before three months of age had over 90. whereasonly about a third of those treated later reached this level. These findings areborne out by Klein and his co-workers.2 &yrs' has shown that thyroxine isessential for brain maturation in prenatal and early postnatal life and onlysmall amounts of thyroxine crom the human placental barrier.
In the neonate there Is acute release of thyroid-stimulating hormone (TAIL)during the first hours of llfe, causing an increase in pll Indices of thyroid tune.Hon.' Serum protein-bound iodine. butamol-extractable thyroxine. mI-triiodo-thyronine uptake in erythrocytes or resin (T3 tests), dialystable thyroxine, andmI uptake in the thyroid gland should all be raisedI.e.. the normal infant ishyperthyroid. Rogowski and co-workers ° report that the rise in dialysable
I Rattt. 8.. Newna. G. H. Arche DU. Childh. 1971. 46. 692.1 Klein. A. R., Meltzer R.. Kenny. F. M. F. Pediat. 1972. 81. 912.Eayra. J. T. Br. med. Bull. 1960. 16. 122.
4 T./tiger. R. h.. Wilber. J. F.. Carnbathr, 51.. Harm. J. P.. Mack R. E. F. din. Invest.1968. 47. 97.
I Rogowski. P.. Rtereboek-Ntelsen. K.. Hansen, J. H. Arta paedint. second. 1974. 83 201.
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thyroxine paralkls the ris in total thyroxine: threfore the inerease in plasma-
thyroxine is not eaused by an inerease in thyroximbinding proteins. as has been
suggested.'

Until latly only small series of infants have been studied. lweause of the
quantity of blood needed for maeromethod testing of thyroid function. But now
micromethods permit testing of large nu, .brs. The series of Dussault et aL.7 In
Canada. is the largest so for. 47.000 newborns hove been studied by a (lump.
reliable mlerompthod ming the T4 test, whieh has revealed an ineldenee of
hypothyroidism of 1 in 7000. In a smiler series from the Klein and
others USed II T.S.H. serpeaing proeedure mul found an incldenee of 1 in MI.
which they eompare with the incidence of phenylketonuria in the United Mutes
t in 14.300. These figures present a serious case for routine screening.

Mr. SEGAL. I have one question for Mr. and Mrs. Maguire.
Could you describe very briefly the kinds of trail= mid difficulties

in lutving children with problems of this sort in terms of normal
everyday activities that you encounter?

Mrs. MAuuntr.. The biggest problem is they all couhl have been well
because of the diet. It is really not easy to have to visit your child at
a State institution. either. I really don.'t know whut else you can say.

Mr. MAGUIRE. What I think my wife would like to say is that if this
is found out at birth they have a diet. Lofenalac, which is low in
protein but haa just enough protein to supply the daily requirement.

In our son William's case. he was on a high-protein diet and he was
on a regular normal diet which was high in protein. So. this accelerated
the disease. If this diet had been followed and adhered to. as we would
have done for the first 5 years of life. after that yon could drop it
and they would be normal.

Mr. Orrixozn. Mr. Wunder.
Mr. Wrxnzu. No questions. Mr. Chairman.
Mr. Orryvout. Thank you very much, Mr. and rs. Nfaguire, for

being with us.
Mr. HAoritrir. Mr. Chairman, you will hear some success stories

during your hearings about early screening and the effect of it in
prevention. Here we don't have that because of lack of early screening.

One more important thing here was the lack of uniform testing;
the quality of testing is at issue here, of course.

We have the parents of three retarded diildren who economically
will be disastrous over the lives of these people.. The institutionalized
child represents an annual (ost of $201)00 and going up annually for
institutional care for that one child.

The cost of tlas diild in special education is four times what it would
be for a child in normal education.

Those kinds of costs can be projected for these three diildren for
this family, either tax dollars of the individual family, itself.

Mr. OTTINGER. Willa kind of fncilities were available. for the
Man-Hires in their connnunity ?

The children were horn in the liospital.
Mr. Mowry. Mr. Chairman. von would think tlw facilities were_

adequate to meet the problem and diagnose it tarly enough and treat
it. In fact, one child was horn after the passage of the mandatory
MI' statute in Pennsylvania. That is why it is so difficult to under-

ehadd. M. A.. Gray. 0. P.. Darteil. D. F. Arch* Dia. rhtldh. 1979. 45. 374.
T Duseault J. IL. Coulomhe. P.. Idtherge. C.. Letatle..L. Guyiln. M.. Khoury. K. Pretty:trim

1975. /49. 970.
" Klein, A. 1.. Agustin. A. V.. Foley. T. P. Lancet. 1974.11. 77.
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stand why these failures occurred. But it occurred because of a lackof uniformity in testing and a hick of. as the doctor testified to
earlier, the outreach programs being monitored properly at thenational level.

That. brings us to grips with what our national priorities are and
how ean we effeetively see the dollars put forward so that these agents
in Washington can be used to the best advantage. I don't propose weshould go the route of taking moneys from another department and
penalizing the State at all.

I do propose fast coming to grips with the States versus a Federal
system problem of priorities and how to deal with them.

Mr. Sit ART. Illd I ask counsel further: It disturbs me, althoughI understand prior to having the testing there was no way to discover
about the first chihl. Ina the same problem with the second and third
child bothers nue more lweause obviously actions had Iven taken in
the interim. Is there any system in that hospital or in the State of
Pennsylvania whereby records are kept so that one wouhl he moreattentive to this problem if it ran in the family or something of that
sort ?

Maybe I don't miderstand the disease.
Mr. HMIERTY. I assure you. Mr. Sharp. that after this ease went to

suit that they are keeping records now that they (lid not keep before
and they are much more attentive to the problem.

But. because of the lack of monitoring. the delivery of the testing,and because of the ongoing review of the eases as the prior witness,
testified. the doctor from Washington here; this is a child who fell
between thabgaps even after we had mandatmy legislation for PICT'
screening.

When a small county like Delaware County decides it wants to doits own lab testing and does not. have the facilities or the number of
testings per week or per day that Children's Ilospita I in Philadelphia
would have. it. tends to let the testing device lie until they have enough
to send to the lab. That kind of slipshod method lets this thing occur.Mr. Sit.ute. Is your impression that the testing apparatus did notwork properly orjust that even if it worked properly the child would
have to be reexamined at some other date ?

Mr. IT,tosirrr. Mr. Sharp. I defer to trial counsel.
Mr. McDosmi.. I am going to have to object to that. That may

well be one of the issues in the civil litigation in which we are involved.
I would prefer that it not be answered by myself or opposing counsel
with your indulgence.

The economic well-being and entire future of these people areinvolved and significant ongoing civil litigation obviously is the
reason for ()lir appearance today.

Mr. Orrtrrom. We certainly would not want to interfeihe with thatlitigation.
Mr. SANTINI. Thank yon. Mr. Chairman.
The disturbing implication of this kind of testimony is. to my mind.

as a father of a child who was born with a birth defect. how many chil-dren do we have in State institutions throughout this land who, with
proper screening, as Dr. Green suggested, would not be there at all?

Have there been any investigations by the Department of Health.
Education, and Welfare to answer that kind of question ?
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Mr. IImitarry. Mr. Santini. the population of State institutions. the
facilities for retarded, epileptic or cerebral, is approximately 210.000
throughout. this (mintry. The doctor testified approxiniately 10 percent
of those could have been caught. in early screenings, as you are aware.

The majority come from socioecoimmic. deprived areas si wh as the
lead poisoning that you heard about. when the child eats lead paint.
aml that ean result. in brain damage. aml poor diet control in socio-
economic areas.

You have 210,000. Ten percent of those would probably not linve
occurred ii ml wouhl not be pernianent if early screening use(I.

Mr. SANTIN r. What is the cost factor for maintaining, if there is a
national average, one child in a State institution for 1 year?

Mr. Ruitarry. Mr. Santini. I can't talk of the national average. Penn-
sylvania is S20,000 per chi ld.

.When the mandatory regulations go into effect. which are presently
before HEW. it is my opinion the costs will increase by five to $101).000
per child per year.

Mr. Orrimian. We will have representri i ves from the Department
of Health, Education, and Welfare befoie us tomorrow.

Of course. we have with us today. who is inure knowledgeable
in this area than anybody else I know. Dr. ('ohen, whom we will hear
from later today.

Mr. McDoxxE1,1.. Mr. Chairman. to give you a key to the serimsness
of the incidence of this particular disease. this is the most single
inherited retardation disease which is curable in the Vnted States.

In other words, this is a totally curable disease. There is no reason
why any of these three children should have had mental retardation.

Mr. OrrixoEu. I want to thank you very much. I know it must have
been difficult for you to eome here. Mr. Hagerty and Mrs. Maguire.
But I think you will be of help to us in trying to prevent this kind of
problem for other families in the future.

We do appreciate vour being here.
Mr. MciDoxsELL. Thank you.
Mr. OTTINGER. Our next witness is Dr. Gerald Hass, Boston, Mass.
He also had with him a family that has experience in this case

vision problems attributable to lack of screening.
Dr. Hass. wc appreciate your being with us. If you could also submit

a statement for us we would be glad to receive it. Yon proceed as you
feel best.

Introduce the family that is with you. Thank you for being with us.

STATEMENT OF GERALD HASS, M.D., PHYSICIAN IN CHIEF, SOUTH
END COMMUNITY HEALTH CENTER, BOSTON, MASS., ACCOMPA-
NIED BY MRS. JUVITA FONTANEZ AND MELINA FONTANEZ

Dr. HAss. Thank you. Mr. Chairman.
I should like to introduce Melina Fontanez on my left and her

mother. Jovita Fontanez.
Mr. Chairman. members of the Sulwommittee on Oversight and

Investigation, thank you for the opportunity for appearing before
you.

My name is Gerald Hass and I am a practicing pediatrician and
physician-in-chief of the South End Community Health Center in
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I3oston, Mass. With my colleagues. I take care of 9.000 children in the
inner city of Boston. Most of these children are reeipients of medicaid.

I have been practicing medicine for 17 years. am (al the teaching
faculty of Boston University 1111(1 Harvard Medical School and 1 am
a fellow of the American Academy of Pediatrics.

In 1969. together with a group of people in search of better health
care for their children my colleague Mel Seovell and I designed and
founded a neighborhood health center. The South End Community
Health Center has for the past 6 years delivered care to a mixed ethnie
inner-city community including 70 percent Spanish-Americans. In
1975 it was voted the most outstanding health center in Massachusetts.

Our source of funds are principally medicaid earned by seeing
pat ients.

We are proud of the fact that we are fiscally solvent and this we owe
.to the skill and management. expertise of our co founiler Mel Scovell,
who is now the head of the Massiwhiisetts medicaid program and is a
recognized national authority on the management aspects of the deliv-
ery of health care.

Your invitation to me specifically requested that I would bring with
me today a patient who would illustrate a medical prohlem that would
show yon a real life situation and how it was handled in our health
center.

Melina, who is with ine now, is 12 years old next week, and she was
one of our first patients. She had a condition called lazy eye blindness.
the medical name for whieh is amblyopia and I am happy to tell yon
that she now has excellent corrected vision in both eyes.

Melina's problem was first noted by a school vision screening pro-
gram and she was referred into a hospital eye department. She unfor-
tunately did not follow through at the hospital but the condition was
again picked up because by this time she was in regular pediatric care
in one health center and vision testing Mils a part of our eare. We made
sure that she. followed through by having her seen by an eye specialist
and we emphasized the importance of wearing her glas$es which would
correct her condition.

Because we found many similar gaps between diagnosis and treat-
ment of eye .conditions we developed our own eye care service within
our health center. We brought, together optometrists and ophthahnolo-
gists working closely with other health professionals so that children
and adults could receive the whole range of vision services. 'We per-
formed screening, diagnosis, and treatment.

Melina was in a system of care that, was able to trent her condition
as well as making sure that she followed through. because she attended
for all her health needs. This is called comprehensive care.

Melina's mother became very much involved with the health center
eventually becoming the president of our governing board. Through
her concerns for her child's health care she developed a real under-
standing of the meaning of comprehensive eare and the importance of
a continuous relationship between a family and their source of health
care.

Dr. James Hughes. a pediatrician in Norwich, Vt.. inhis recent let-
ter to the chairman of the Oversight and Investigations Subcommittee,
referred to the concept of every child's having a medical home.
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This concept is vividly exemplified by Melina, who untreated would
have lost vision in one eye. Fortunately, Melilla had a medical home in
our health center which took responsibility for her total health care.

We have :Veil many examples of this concept. A boy of 10 with a cleft
palate untreated because of his parents fear of hospitals, several girls
untreated with known urinary tract infections, dozens of infants with
anemia and children with mental retardation.

These examples are not unique to our health center. They are com-
mon problems in children everywhere, and they need to be treated.

The responses of many Federal planners to these problems have
been to develop programs that fragment rather than consolidate care.
Federal legislation for early and periodic screening, diagnosis and
treatment (EPSDT) was intended to address the health problems of
medicaid children.

EPSDT forces States to separate screening from diagnosis and
treatment by its reporting and traeking requirements.

The establishment of screening programs with referral for detected
diseases may be the easiest way to develop statistics but is not the
kind of health care we would want for our own children.

In those States where EPSDT represents a new and higher standard
of care, one would support the imposition of EPSDT. In Massa-
chusetts, however, a literal interpretation of EPSDT would result
in fragmented and lower standard of care.

believe that a State that has the resources to provide a medical
home for every child should not be. forced to set up a separate and less
than equal health care system for its medicaid children.

Melilla was fortunate because her condition was diagnosed and
treated. On a nationwide scale there are very many children who have
not been treated for their known health problems.

The American Academy of Pediatrics is currently focusing on
the status of maternal and child health programs in the rnited States.
Their findings bear out what I have expressed to yon. I' would recom-
ment their report to your subcommittee with other material which
documents my opinions in more detail.

Thank you' for your interest and consideration.
Mr. Orrixnna. Thank you very much, Dr. Hass.

am very interested in what you say.
The administration of this EPSDT program is not done in con-

junction with neighborhood health renters in which diagnosis is
available immediately to the people whose problems are detected
through screening; there is a separate screening nrocess that is
initiated; is that correct ?

Dr. HAss. In many States this has been the way that EPSDT has
been delivered with its accept on screening and then referral elsewhere.

This sets up a fragmented health care. program. Iii Massachusetts,
we have been very fortunate to try to include the screening diagnosis
treatment all at one stop where the patient is under routine regular
care and where all the components are together. This we call health
care.

Now. the problem has been that the Federal regulations for EPSDT
demand screening statistics. Tf you don't screen ; that is, if you look
after children properly by giving them proper health care, yon can't
deliver screening statist ics.
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Your own committee sent out a questionnaire asking for screening
statistics. That was a very tough questionnaire to answer if you look
after children instead of screening them.

You see2 this is a paradox. As a consequence, we in Massachusetts
are potentially in danger of being penalized because instead of screen-
ing we provide comprehensive health care.

But we recognize that EPSDT is an attempt to involve States in
providing care and we think that in concept it is a good idea; it is the
way that it is carried out that gives us great concern.

Mr. OrrixoEn. Mr. Schauer.
Mr. &HEUER. No questions, nr. Chairman.
Mr. OTTINOEIL Mr. Sharp.
Mr. SHARP. No questions, Mr. Chairman.
Mr. OrrIxoEn. Mr. Santini.
Mr. SANTINI. No questions.
Mr. 0mm:zit. Counsel?
Mr. SEGAL. I would like to ask, Dr. Hass, what would have been the

consequences if the lazy-eve problem of Melina was not treated?
Dr. Hass. Melina woula have suppressed the vision in one eye.
After a period of time, probably 10 to 15 years, she would have been

essentially blind in one eye.
You may think that is not necessarily a problem because you always

have one good eye. The problem arises if something should happen
to that good eye in which case she would have been completdy blind.
Yet this is a completely reversible and curable condition if detected
early. That would be under the age of 10 and preferably under the acre
of six. It is like PliC. It is SO' othing that is a sure-fire disease to pit%
up early with a superb

Mr. SEGAL. How preva. , his ? Out of approximately 111/4 mil-
lion children who were not .,. reened last year, how many might you
expect to be children with lazy eye ?

Dr. HAM. The figures thai are given are at least 6 percent of child-
hood population.

Our figure in our health center is somewhat higher than that. It
is probably around 8 to 10 percent.

It is a familiar condition. bv the way, and can be detected in families.
Mr. SEuaL. So you are talking about approximately, if extrapolated,

600,000 or 700,000 children out of the nnscreened population who might
be expected under normal epidemiological factors to have this disease ?

Dr. HA ss. The figure would be of that order.
Mr. SEGAL Thank yon.
Mr. OrrixoEn. Mr. Wunder.
Mr. WUNDER. Dr. Hass, you mentioned in your statement a boy

with a cleft palate whose parents were afraid of doctors. Is that a
big part of the problem in light of the fact that. we have volunteer
programs now that there is reluctance on the part. of parents to bring
in their children and how do you get at a problem like that ?

Dr. Hass. I am happy to tell you that. we worked very hard with
this family and were able after something over 6 Inonths of intensive
friendly persuasion, to be able to get. this child operated on.

I saw him recently at 16. His palate is superbly closed. his speech
is good. I think it is a relatively minor problem compared with non-
accessibility of health care.
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The reason I raised this example was that education, understandinae',
and trust are essential parts of comprehensive health care. You get
to know your patient.

If a child is being screened in ESPDT, being screened by perhaps
a paraprofessional and different person every time, they may never
build up the rapport. and t rust t hat is necessary.

My answer to yoirr 9uestion is that I don't think they had the op-
portunity of ever having good health care so they never learned to
trust anybody.

We found this particularly in a migrant population Who have nevrr
had the opportunity of good care.

I think you have to deliver the good care to make sure that, the
things that are screened are taken care of. I agree, yon have to screen,
but that should be part of the care: otherwise, yon are doomed to
failure.

Nit% SEGAL. Thank you, Dr. Hass.
Thank yon, Mr. Chairman.
Mr. OrrixoEn. I wonder if Mrs. Fontanez or Melina have anything

they would like to add, having taken t he trouble to come.
Mrs. Fontanez, could yon give us a statement in terms of how the

health care system is available to you and what you feel as a parent
ought, to be done to improve the situation ?

Mrs. FONT.% N EZ. I think a migrant family, a poor family, and limb-
ably working poor because we are not just speaking in terms of medic-
aid patients, we are speaking of working poor who might not be
able to afford health insure nee7This screening and health care that olies
on at a health center level in a community setting is very importi-ant.
There are many folks who. because of lanmnage problems, do not trust
the university 'hospitals or city hospitals rieca use of the care they have
gotten during the past : they are very distrustful.

The health community setting has community people working there
and in our particular health center we have bilingual people.

You form a friendly atmosphere so that you do not. feel harassed
if you come there or if you come late or if yon may not come on your
appointment date.

We try to make sure that the people come on their appointment
date. Many times people have other priorities conic up, working,
going to school, whatever. I believe -that health centers are the only
way.to provide good health care.

Mr. Orrisoni. Is Dr. Hass' health centei available in your com-
munity?

Mrs. FONTA NF.Z. Yes; just. down the street from me.
Dr. ITAss. I think Melina wants to saY something.

-Ms. FONT.% xEz. I want. to thank the health center because if it was
not for them, I would be blind right now in one eye.

Dr. HASS. Thank you:Melina.
Mr. OrriNGER. We are very glad too, Melina.
Thank yon all for being with us today.
Dr. HAss. Thank you.
Mr. arrtxoun. Our next witness will be a member of the full com-

mittee. our distinguished colleague. Congressman Ralph Metcalfe.
We welcome you before the subcommittee. We will be pleased

to have your testimony.
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STATEMENT OF HON. RALPH E. METCALFE, A REPRESENTATIVE
IN CONGRESS FROM THE STATE OF ILLINOIS

Mr. METCALFE. Mr. Chairman, I would first like to congratulate you
and the members of the subconnnittee for holding these hearings today.
Preventive child health care, and particularly the EPSDT program,
is among the most necessary, and sadly, most ignored, of all health
programs.

The importance of preventive health care for children, aml especial-
lyfor poor children, cannot be overestimated. We have today literally
millions of young people who are suffering from a desperate lack of
medical attention.

A recent study in New York State, for example, reports that as
many as 40 percent of the children in school there have not received
necessary polio and rulwlla vaccinations.

Hundreds of thousands of children suffer hearing and eyesight
problems which affect their achievements in sehool, yet. are untreated
because they have been umliagnosed.

Many children suffer serious dental problems which will cause them
great suffering in later life but which are untreated because they too
are undiagnosed.

The apparatus for dealing with these and other child health care
problems exists, Mr. Chairman. We are not con fronted with the
laborious and time consuming process of writing new legislation.

The Congress, in 1967, saw the need for preventive health care and,
as amendments to the Social Security Act, enaeted the early and pe-
riodic screening diagnosis and treatment program. The program called
for the Federal Department of Health. Echication, and Welfare to
establish this program of health screening and treatment for between
10 and 13 million eligible children.

The legislation, Mr. Chairman, required that this program be im-
plemented by July 1, 1969. It was not implemented by uly 1, 1969 or
July 1, 1970 or 1971 or 1972. In fact, the program has still not been
fully implemented.

HEW did not only not implement the program by uly 1. 1969 as
required by law, they never even issued regulations for the program
until February, 1972more than 21/4 years after the deadline re-
quired by Congress for full implementation.

This needless and irresponsible delay on the part of HEW dealt
a blow to this program from which it has not yet fully recovered.

The States, in their concern for the cost of the program, made liffia
or no effort to implement EPSDT as long as HEW in Washington
practiced its policy of benign neglect toward the program and toward
the health needs of more than 10 million children.

In 1972, I requested that the. U.S. General Accounting Office in-
vestigate the EPSDT program to determine the extent of its imple-
mentation in my home state of Illinois and throughout the Nation.

In January 1975, the GAO issued their report. Their findings and
conclusions made clear that, despite. the law and despite the obvious
human need that the program could serve, HEW all but ignored the
existence of EPSDT for more than 5 years.

The GAO reported that. by the end of fiscal year 1973, of the more
than 1.8 million eligible, children living in eight sample States, less
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than 58.000 had received even the mininnim screening as required by
the law. This was a screening rate of about 3 percent or. to put it.
another way, ino:- than 97 percent. of the eligible children in these
eight States did not receive, the preventive care mandated by act of
Congress more than 6 years before.

I should note hen. that the GAO statistics referred to 58,000 dif-
ferent. hildren who had 'been sereened, for the most part, only one
time in the 4 year period since the program was to have been
implemented.

A screening manual developed by the American Academy of Pedi-
atrics under a grant by HEW specifirally for EPSDT recommends
that., for preventive health care to be truly effective., seven complete
physical examination are necessary in the first 25 months alone of
a child's life. This same manual recommends additional complete ex-
tuninations be provided approximately once every 2 years thereafter.

In other words, where the GAO indicates that. 3 percent of the
eligible. children had been screened once in the first. 4 years of the
program. IIEW's own manual recommends to the States t hat. as many
as eight separate examinations be provided children in that sameperiod.

To my knowledge. no one, not one single child, has been screened
that many times in the EPSDT program.

It slumhl be noted that the GAO reported on screenings. or pre-
liminary physical examinations. only. The States and HEW were
unable to provide the GAO with any figures on how many of those
children had actually been treated for illnesses diagnosed during those
screenings.

In sum, then, the GAO reported that. 3.percent of the eligible chil-
dren in this country had received the nnnimum. limited care underthis program.

Statistics which HEW has recently made available show,that, in
fiscal year 1975, EPSDT has shown some improvement. If these fig-
ures are accurate, and I must. seriously question whether or not they
are, the EPSDT screening rate has improved to around 12 percent
this year. In other words. of the 13 million eligible children around
the conntry, there were about 111/2 million who still received no care
at. all under the El'SDT program in fiscal 1975.

The question we must ask is how?
How could a program this important fall victim to insensitivity,

disinterest, and bureaucratic ineptness?
HEW. for the first years of the program's existence. acted as if

the program wasn't. even there. Whether this was a deliberate flaunt-
ing of the law or simple incompetence, I do not know.

I do know that. during the previous administration the deliberate
sabotage of social welfare programs was a common and often stated
policy. I would not be at all surprised if some of those at HEW at-
tempied to do to this program what was done to OEO during those
same years.

Deliberate sabotage or not. HEW clearly did not provide the States
the necessary guidance for implementing EPSDT. It was not until
1975 that HEW provided the States with screening !animals to assist
them with the technical aspects of the program.
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Many States have had serious problems in providing effective out-
reach to inform parents of the need and availability of preventive
health care. HEW has not provided incentives to the States for im-
proving this all important service.

States have also made poor use of available health care personnel.
Many States have insisted on using physicians for all uspectg-of the
EPSDT program although it has been shown that public health
nurses and other allied health professionals can perform many screen-
ing functions at less cost. and to many more children. Here, too, HEW
has not provided the all important technical assistance necessary to
train and properly use allied health professionals.

HEW has, in fact, been unable to even effectively monitor the
progress of the program.

HEW is obliged by Federal law to penalize those States which
have not provided etective outreach and screening programs. The
law states that this penalty is to be 1 percent of the Federal share
of Aid to Families With Dependent Children (AFDC) funds.

This summer, in fact, HEW did penalize eight States a total of
more than $3 million. These penalties were assessed in the same inept
manner as the rest of the program had been administered, however.
No recipients were even interviewed by the HEW regional office staffs
charged with monitoring the program. No accurate statistics were
ever compiled. In fact, there seems to be no rhyme or reason for the
assessment of many of these penalties.

My home State of Illinois is a case in point.
Although the HEW region V office in Chicago recomnwnded Illinois

be penalized for noncompliance, its investigation was so shoddy and
poorly documented that HEW General Counsel's office in 'Washing-
ton had to recommend that the penalty not be aSsessed until the re-
gional office could get its information straight.

These are but a few examples of the kind of incompetence that has
marked HEW's administration ':',11SDT program.

It has shown by its own exami,:- t ;.vventive child health care
is low on the list of priorities and the States, sadly, have followed that
example.

In the past year. former Secretary Weinbemer began to call the
program one of his top priorities. Unfortunittely, this change in
rhetoric was not accompanied by a change in actions.

We must make clear exactly who at HEW has been responsible for
the failure of EPSDT. It has not been those persons directly respon-
sible for the program who have wrecked it over these past 6 years,
rather it seems to have been higher level officials of the Social and
Rehabilitation Service and the Medical Services Administration and
those officials of the HEW regional office around the country who have
so badly damaged this program.

I do not know if this attitude will carry over to the administration
of Secretary Matthews. I hope net. If it does. I hope that the Congress
will make it abundantly clear to the administration that we will not
stand for such flaunting of law and the will of Congress.

It is time that the executive branch understand that they, too, have
an obligation to obey the law.

I would like to conclude by briefly talking about the cost of this
programboth in human terms and in purely financial ones.
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I hope that these hearings will provide the answer to that 'question
and also provide some insight into how we can move ahead to, make it
work in the future.

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Mr. OrrnmER. Thank you very much, Congressman Metcalfe.
The subcommittee is very grateful indeed to you.
The report that you requested from GAO to a large extent raised

the questions that are the foundation of this program.
We are grateful to you for the information you have provided to

the committee.
Mr. MErcAurx. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Mr. OrrproF.R. Are there any questions ?
If not, we appreciate 3rour taking the time to be with us.
Mr. Mrrcm.rm. Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman.
Thank you, gentlemen.
Mr. OITINGER. Our next, witness is Dr. Wilbur J. Cohen, former

Secretary of Health, Education, and Welfare.
Dr. Cohen, it is a pleasure indeed to have you here. We look for

ward to any light you can shed on. this important problem.
Without objection we will be glad to include your statement in the

record at this point.
Mr. COHEN. Mr. Chairman, I would prefer if you would put my

entire statement in the record [see p. 51] and within the time limit I
prefer to just touch on two or three points and have you ask me any
questions on the general tenor of my testimony.

Mr. OTEINGER.-NVe will do that and you may proceed.

STATEMENT OF WILBUR I. COHEN, DEAN, SCHOOL OF EDUCATION,
AND PROFESSOR OF PUBLIC WELFARE ADMINISTRATION,
SCHOOL OF SOCIAL WORK, UNIVERSITY OF MICHIGAN

Mr. COHEN. I presume, Mr. Chairman, that one of the reasons you
asked me to come here is because it. is alleged that. I am the Godfather
of this program that you have been discussing today and I accept the
paternity.

Mr. SCHEUER. I trust the witness' use of the word Godfather was a
slip of the tongue.

I originally designed this particular screening program as an idea
to try to take a step in the direction of my ultimate hope and that was a
national health insurance program covering all children in the United
States.

I believe the experience that we have had in this program does indi-
cate, first, the social and economic value of the general approach and,
secondly, it has identified some of the problems which I think now
would lead us into the direction of strengthening that- program and
ultimately absorbing it into a national health insurance program for
children.

In my testimony I suggest that one way, although I don't think the
only -way, would be to take the screening program now, apply it to all
families throughout the Nation whose incomes are below the poverty
threshold, providing that the Federal Government pay 100 percent of
the cost of the proffram above whatever amounts the States now put
in, that is, to hold the States to the amount of financial aid that they are
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now giving, and then over the course of time hopefully institute a na-
tional health insurance program for all children under the age of 6 to
begin with, ultimately stepping up to age 12 and then to age 16 or 21
in which ultimately then the screening program would be absorbed
into the national insurance, piogram.

Of course, if we were starting from a clear slate. I would not sug-
gest. that. is the. only way to arrive at this conclusion. But I believe
when you recognize all the problems we have in the implementation
of health programs. the cost side, the personnel side, the. impact upon
inflation. the lack of resources and facilities and so on, it is important
for us to take what I call an incremental point of view in the develop-
ment of national health policy. Therefore. I believe that perhaps one
of the best ways to make a step in this whole national health insuranco
is not to think of the whole ball of wax at one time for 220 million peo-
ple covering all medical care in 50 States and 3.000 counties with all the
administrative. problem& but. to take a step toward a counterpart. to
medicare by a program for children under the age of 6 to begin with,
and put our incremental or marginal economic resources into this new
program at the present time.

Therefore, I might say that the Rime recommendation I made in
my recent testimony to the Committee on Ways and Means is that if
you are thinking of a national health insurance program, why not
start with children first.?

We have had a lot of experience now in the screening and diagnosis
and treatment program. We have identified a lot of problems. We need
to train more personnel. But it is within our administrative ability
over a period of, I think, 4 to 6 years to implement this proposal. That
is the basic tenor of my recommendation.

I also in my testimony feel that this program has indicated the im-
portance of our continuing on a vigorous:. dramatic and comprehen-
sive research program.

I am also very proud of the fact I had a good deal to do as Chair-
man of President Kennedy's Task Force on Health and Social Security
in MO with what became eventually the National Institute of Child
Health and Human Development.

However, that institute, after about 10 or 12 years. still only gets
about. $126 million in the existing budget. I think there has been a sig-
nal failure on the part of the Federal Government to undertake the
kind of fundamental basic. research in the problems of child health
that would save millions. I would say potentially, billions of dor!-: 3,

in preventing the kinds of problems that. you heard about today.
I have, in my testimony identified a number of them, taken primarily

from the Department of Health. FAlucation. and Welfare's report, the
Forward Plan for Health. -which was just issued. I have included in
my statement about 5 to 6 pages from that report on the research areas
of child health which if I were still Secretary of HEW. I would plow a
great deal more money into the National Institute of Child Health and
Human Development, for that fundamental research coupled simul-
taneously then with a health and medical care program for children
on the preventive, diagnosis, curative, treatment. side, which I think
then would make a real step forward.

I believe your subcommittee hopefully ought to look at the inter-
relationship of the screening program and the medicaid portion thereof
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in relation to proposals for national health insurance and in relation
to the program of the National Institute of Child ITealth and Human
Development. That is the basic thrust.of my testimony.

I present. the figures there which you know very well, that there are
some 10 million children in the United States in poverty: that our in-
fant mortality rates are still high: that they vary by States. and that,
if we are going to have an effective comprehensive program for deal-
ing with the health of children. we imist not, merely correct thedefects
that. we. found in the screening program, and I might, say I whole-
heartedly concur in the recommendation of the General Accounting
Office with regard to this program, and I would hope that Secretary
Mathews would eliminate the disadvantagesthat is the best. word I
can think ofthat have infiltrated into the failure to implement this
program. And I feel that they are largely administrative.

Now, you asked some questions about that and I only want to finish
with one suggestion. The key reason why this program failed in my
opinion was the failure to take the States into a cooperative relation-
ship in the implementation of the program.

This program is a Federal-State partnership. There might be other
ways and better ways to do it. throupth national health insurance in my
opinion, but the fact. of the matter is that Congress, in 1965, and in
1967. determined that this aspect was going to be a Federal-State
pa rt nership.

But under the leadership of the Department. prior to Dr. Mathews'
coining on as Secretary, there was not. only an unwillingness to work
with the States to accomplish the objectives in the law, but a failure
to communicate with the States, to cooperate with the States in an
effective cooperative program.

In my opinion, that was the central reason why the program did0.
make as much headway as I originally thought. it. would whelk I han-
dled the legislative implementation of this program in Congress in
1967.

fTestimony resumes on p. 61.1
[Mr. Cohen's prepared statement and attachment follows:1

STATEMENT OF WILBUR J. CO II EN. DEAN. SC HOOL OF EDUCATION. AND PROFESSOR
OF PUBLIC WELFARE A.D SI IN !STRATTON. SCHOOL. OF SOCIAL WORK. T /I E rN MRS! TY
OF MICHIGAN. ANN ARBOR. 11 ICIL IG A N

TILE FIVE GIAN TS IN OCR LAND

In his famous report issued in 1942. Sir (later Lord) William Beveridge sum-
marized many years of research and study on the probleins of poverty and family
disintegration by mying:

"... Want is one only of five giants on the road of reconstruction and in mane
ways the easiest to attack. The others are Disease. Ignorance. Squalor and
Idleness."

Despite the tremendous economic and social progress made in the United
States in reeent decades. these five giants still stalk in far too many American
homes. And it is particularly unfortnnate that at the present time we seem to be
quite willing to accept a 'Policy of atente with these giants which are bent on
the objective of family disorganization mid dependency.

If we were to adept and implement a national policy whieh had as a national
goal the banning of these giants from our land. destroying th weapons they use,

I Social Insurance and Allied Services, The MacMillan Co.. New York. 1942. page 6.
paragraph 8.
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and placing control of them under national surveillance with impartial inspection
teams, we could substantially improve family life within the next deende.

That is the goal I suggest we work toward : The eradication of want. Ignorance,
squalor, and idleness, and the prevention of disease among every eldid and youth
in the nation.

POVERTY Ampsu clittnitEX

The most recent estimates of poverty in the United States by the Census
Bureau show that for 1974 of the 24.3 million persons with incomes below the
poverty line, smile 10.2 million were children under age 18. (For poverty thresh-
holds see Table 1. )

In 1973. there were 9.5 million children in families with ineomes below the
poverty level. Between 1973 and 1974 this figure increased by 8 percent to 10.2
million, even though the number of children in the total population decreased.
The pOverty rate for children. therefore, increased from 14.2 percent in 1973 to
15.5 pfleent in 1974.

Most distressing is the fact that there has been no continuous decrease in the
number or proportion of children in poverty In the past tive years (1970-74) as
there was in the previow: ten years (1959-09). There were 17.2 million children
in poverty in 1959. or 20.9 percent of all children. These figures declined to 9.5
million children in 1909 (and also in 1973) and to 13.8 percent.

In addition, there is a ver7 high incidence of poverty among children in fam-
ilies when the lwad of a f is a woman (51.5 percent) and an even higher
percent when the head of the family is a black woman (65.7 pereent ).

The poverty rates for black children were about 4 times those of white children.
See Table 2. )

PoVERTY A MoNC. CHILDREN BY STATES

Poverty among children varies widely by states and by counties within states.
Table 3 displays the data from the 1970 Census for children age 5 through 17
which shows the lowest poverty rates ranging from 7.2 percent to 7.7 percent
in C ecticut an(1 New Hampshire to a high of 41.5 percent in Mississippi.

There were seven states in which there were counties with a poverty rate
above 70 percent. These were Alabama (71.4 percent). Alaska 193.1 percent).
Georgia (74.6 percent 1. Kentucky (71 percent), Mississippi (75.9 percent),
Tennessee (70.7 percent ). and Texas ( 70.4 percent).

INFANT MORTALITY RATES BY STATES

The infant mortality rate under one year has been declining for a number of
years. In 1974 there were approxhnately 52.400 infant deaths resulting in an
infant mortality rate of 10.5 per 1.000 live births. This was the lowest annual rate
ever recorded in the United States and represented a 7 percent decrease from the
17.7 rate for 1973.

The variation by states in 1973 was from 13.7 in Hawaii to 25.2 in Mississilmi.
There were seven states with rates below 15 and 8 jurisdictions with rates above
20 as follows :
Rates below 15 : Rates above 20:

Hawaii 13. 7 Mississippi 05.0
New Hampshire 14. District of Columbia 23,1
Wisconsin 14.4 South Carolina
California 14. 6 Alabama "" 2
Connecticut 14. 7 Tennessee 21.
Kansas 14. 8 North Carolina 21. 5
Oregon 14. 9 New Mexico 20. 5

Louisiana "0. 2

MD To FAMILIES wITI I DEpENDEST CHILDREN

About eight million children currently are receiving welfare payments under
the Aid to Families with Dependent ('hildren (AFDC) program. as compared
with the ten million children whose families have incomes below the poverty
line. The AFDC program does not generally provide aid to families with children
where there are two parents except in cases of disability or unemployment of
one of the parents.

2 Monthly Vital Stallatien Report. "Annual Summary far the United States. 1974.-
Vol. 23, No. 13. May 30, 1979. iwpartment of National renter for Health
Statistics. p. 15.
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AFDC payments vary widely. The average per child intyment was $60.08 for
the nation in March 1075 varying from $109.07 in Massachusetts to $14.35 in

Standards of assistance vary widely. In May 1971. the standard for basic needs
for a family of four without any income varied from $4,356 in Indiana to
$2,400 in North Carolina.'

IMPLICATIONS OF STATE VARIATIONs

There are other significant variations among the states such as in educational
expenditures per child and physicians in relation to population. These varia-
tions when considered in relation to the wide variations in per capita incomes
among the states indicate that an effective program to improve the health.
education and welfare of the children of our nation cannot he achieved in the
near future without the substantial financial assistance and leadership of the
federal government and the cooperation of the states.

Ultimately we must have a welfare reform plan which will provide some
simplified and equitable minimum payment to all families with children whose
income is below a minimum level. In the interim it would be a step in the.dlrec-
tion of broadening AFDC protection to children by amending section 406(a
of the Social Security Act by striking out the existing language which restricts
the program to a needy child -who has been deprived of lairental support or
care by reason of the death, continued absence from the home, or physical or
mental incapacity of a parent." and coupling this with a mininnim standard
which would be federally financed.

SCREENING, DIAGNOSIS AND TREATMENT OF CHILDREN FOR HEALTH NEEDS (EPSDT)

In 1966-6T, I recommended to President .Tohnson the proposal eventually in-
corporated in the Social Security Amendments of 1967 as EPSDTthe Early
Periodic Screening. Diagnosis and Treatment Program. This program is in the
Medicaid provisions of the lawtitle XIX, section 1905(a ) (4) (B) of the Social
Security Act as follows:
"effective July 1, 1969. such early and periodic screening and diagnosis of in-
dividuals who are eligible under the plan and are under the age of 21 to ascertain
their physical or mental defects, and such health care. treatinent, and other
measures to correct or ameliorate defects and chronic conditions liiscovered
thereby, as may be provided in regulations of the Secretary

With the experience gained in implementing this program in the past six
years. we should now take steps to strengthen, improve, and expand it.

One way to do this would be to amend the existing provisions so that effective
July 1. 1977 it would he made to apply to all families throughout the nation
whose Incomes are below the poverty threshhold and provide that the federal
government pay 100 percent of the cost of the program above whatever anwunts
the states were contributing to this program in the fiscal year 1975.

A NATIONAL HEALTH INSURANCE PROGRAM FOR MOTIIERS AND CHILDREN

I do not believe, however, that it is desirable for the long run to have an in-
come conditioned program for health care. I. therefore, view any such programas a transitional step toward a universal eligibility program based solely onresidence. I. therefore, favor enactment of a natbmal plan covering initially all
children under the age of six and prenatal, postnatal and all other medical serv-
ices associated with childbirth. I would extend this program to children up toage 12 about two years later. and to children up to age 1S or 21, two yearsthereafter.

In this way, there would be time to make the necessary plans with all partiesconcerned. As this plan expanded. the EPSDT program would contract andeventually be terminated.
I would not have any co-insurance or deductibles under the national healthinsurance program for mothers and children. This would greatly simplify thebookkeeping under the plan. Payments to prinuary care physicians could he ana per capita basis thus encouraging preventive care and discouraging unnec-essary services.

2 Social Security Bulletin. Sept. 1975. p. 54.Welfare Program* for Families. Senate Committee on Finance, July 21. 1971. rp.44-45.
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HEALTH CARE EXPENDITURES FOR CHILDREN

Children under the age of 19 represented :34.1 of the population in 1974 but
accounted for only 14.9 percent of all personal health expenditures. As might

expeeted. persons age 65 and over were only 10.2 percent of the population
but accmmted for 29.5 pement of all health expenditures."

Per capita expenditures for all itersonal health expenditures varied widely with
age. For children under age 19. per capita expenditures in 1974 were $1K3. emu-
pared to $420 for itersons 19-44 and $1.218 for person age 65 and over."

From these figures we can draw a preliminary observation that we could de-
velop a comprehensive health care program for an childrma in the immediate
years ahead at probably arinand $300 a year Iler eland 4ar aboUt $1.8 billion for
all children up to the age of six plus the mst of prenatal and postnatal care for
approximately :4.2 million births tabr year. probably at a cost of around $2 billion
a year.

To the extent we maid take some or all of the financial burden for health eare
costs (if children off Id the young and lower-inconle families in the nation. we
wimld be making an important contribution to family life in an inflationary

CURRENT HEALTH AND WELFARE COSTS

Total personal health expenditures in 1974 for children and youth up to age
19 were $13.4 billion of which $9.8 billion MIN from private and $3.6 billion from
public sources. Federal sources accounted for $2.2 billion atml state and local
governments the other $1.4 billion.

In the same year. illiont $8 billion was expended under the AFDC program
for children on welfare and their Intrents. of which inure than half came from
federal funds.

RESEARCII ON PREVENTIVE.HEAETH CARE FOR CHILDREN

There is an imperative need to continue and extend the research program of
health care for ehildren being conducted by the Sational Institute of Child Health
and Human Developtuent (NICHD). This Institute created as a result. of the
reeommendations of the task force of which I was chairman in 1960 is responsible
for developing new kmawledge that will improve the quality of life for the
nation's citildren and encourage the quantity Id children appropriate to thenation's resources.

The misshan of the SICIID is to eontribute to the good health of all citizens
through efforts to understand the many faetors related to the adaptation of
populations to available resources and the expansion of knowledge on family
planning. maternal mad child health. and human development. The primary
emphasis of Institute efforts is preventhan of discase and disability.

f have ;minded as a supplement tal my statement the pertinent portions relat-ing to Child Health which apepar in the Forward Plan for Mmith. FY 1977-81
published in June 1975 by the Delta rtment tof Health. Edncatitm. ilnd Welfare(pp. 85-SO and 227-231).

I would like to draw attention to several eritieal pending areas of research
in Hind health whkh I ladieve merit your strong suptiort.

I. Low-birth-weight infonl.q.About 240.000 low-birth weight infants are horn
every year in the United States. A fifth of these children will not sarvive the firstfive months of life. and those that do often sustain permanent development
impairments. In :uldition to immeasurable personal suffering. the cost to society
for Medienh care in the first year of life alone will total about one billion dollars.
Research has resulted in the development of early prenatal intervention pro-
grams, improved diagnostic techniques. methods to delay the onset of labor and
special attention to groups such as teenage mothers at high risk for having a low-bi rtleweight infant.

2. SMR.Among the chief priorities of the NICHD is the eradication nfthetragedy of sudden infant death syndrome (SIDS). It is the leading cause of(1, -dint among infants between the ages of one month and one year. Between
and 10 thousand healthy infants die each year and no apparent clause of death

can be discovered by the attending physician. Silice 1971. the NICHT/ has spon-
sored research-planning workshops to identify specitie :areas or the SIDS prob-

Itiriorie Smith Itgeller and Robert M. Gth.on. "Aga. Differenees In ilealldi CareSpending:. Flseal Yon r 191'4." Sarin! Serurity di:m.1975. p. a." Previous :olgree.
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lem requiring indepth studies. These workshops have .suggested special emphasis
on abnornutl breathing imtterns during sleep. and anatomical abnormalities
among other suggestive leads for research. In addition to research connected
with the cause of SIMS, considerable activity has been devoted to research
involved in counseling and support of families of SIDS victims.

3. Antecedents of developmental impuirinent.There are currently 15 million
Americans who hnve a birth defect serious enough to drastically affect theirlives. Genetic defects account for developmental disabilities in up to five lasreent
of all live births. Investigation spmisored by the NICIID has made significant
progress in the diagnosis of phenylketonuria. and other diseases. Recent workin hearing, speeeh, and language disorders using andigmletry has lillproved the
assessment of very young children who !nay have an organic basis for future
learning problems. The Institute intends. in the near futtzre. to initiate new re-
search efforts in dyslexia to assist the 15 percent of children who experiencedifficulty in learning to read.

4. Teenage pregnancy.While unplanned and unwanted pregnancies have
declined in the population above 20, they have increased in the teenage group.During the period from 1965-70, over two and one-half million "unwanted"
babies were born, a signitkant proportion of which were to teenage mothers:-The proportion of all births that are illegitimate doulded between 1963 and 1973rising frmn 6.3 to 13.0 percent. Among teenage girls, the proportion of illegitimatebirths rose from IS to 35 percent in the same period. Births among adolescentscontribute heavily to infant mortality and morbidity and to the welfare rolls. Onein four low-birth-weight infants has a teenage mother. The NI('ID) supportsstudies to examine the sexual and eontraceptive patterns of young people andwill continue to increase knowledge in this area. During the coming year theInstitute will hold a conferenee to assess current knowledge and to identifythe gaps in understanding of the behavioral and biomedical aspects of teenagepregnancy.

In order for the NICHD to mount new etTorts to solve these important problems
whieh bear so heavily on the prevention of :ulna disease. sufficient fuzz& mustbe provided. The 1976 President's Budget for the N1CHD, far from providing anincrease to start new programs. Iroposes a $20 million decrease. In the light ofthe research I pportunities that abound in the area of responsibility of theNICHD. the proposed reduction is unwise and unsound.I ant an enthusiastic and Vigorous supporter of the research program of theNICHD. I strongly recommend that the Institute budget be restored to the 1975level and that ail additional $6 million lie provided to begin the "Major ResearehPrograms for Mothers, and Infants" which the Institute has developed. Froma cost-benefit standpoint, this is a sound proposal. We stand to save millions inhealth care costs for children by the investment of $6 minim.

A COMPREHENSIVE PROGRA M FOR CHILDREN. YOUTH AND THE FAMILY
As Secretary of Health, Education. and Welfare. I developed a comprehensiveprogram for children, youth and the family. While several of the recommenda-tions are beyond the jurisdiction of this Committee, the total progranz may beof interest to the members of this Subcommittee and I attach my current revisionfor your review.

A COMPREHENSIVE PROGRAM FOR CHILDREN. Yount Axn THE FANtrz,v
By Wilbur J. Cohen, Formerly Secretary of Health. Education, tzul Welfare
1. Extend comprehensive prenatal and postnatal care for all women as partof a national health insurance program so that insofar as possible every childwill he born well.
2. Extend comprehensive medical care to all children with correction of anydisabilities as part of a national health insurance program so that insofar aspossible every child will have had the opportunity to have any ii,sabilities cor-

rected or alleviated before the child goes to school.
3. Extend family planning services to all persons who want then: so everychild is horn a wanted child and so that children are spaced to enable parentsto give them the affection. understanding and support they need.4. Provide for a 'ealth education program which brings niedieal, nutritional

and scientific knowledge to every person so that disabilities will be miniznizedand the health and nutrition of individuals will he improved.
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5. Provide for the establishment of special pediatric high-risk birth mobile
units to assist in handling births of children with high risks.

6. Develop and extend specal maternal and child health demonstration units
to assist in reduction in infant and maternal mortality.

I. Provide for maternity leave for women with full pay for three weeks prior
to childbirth and seven weeks after childbirth. Provide for one week paternity
leave for men during period of birth of the child.

S. Extend preschool programs through the Head Start program, day care of
children of welfare families. and Title I of ESEA so that by 1930 every parent
who wishes his or her child to have preschool experience will be able to do so.

9. Revitalize and strengthen the work of the President's Commission on Mental
Retardation so as to extend preventive, rehabilitation and employment services
for the mentally retarded.

10. Increase the number of Neighborhood Health Centers so that families may
have prompt and convenient access to primary health care of high quality.

11. Extend and expand the Child Welfare Services provisions in Title V of
the Social Security Act so that states can improve. strengthen. and extend serv-
ices to protect neglected and abused children, license and inspect child care insti-
tutions. provide adoption and foster care services, etc.. so that every child will
have available the services needed.

12. Provide additional funds for research. information, and disseminfmtion of
Information on Sudden infant Death Syndrome.

13. Expand the research program of the National Institute of Child Health
and Human Development with a view to preventing disabilities. and assuring
constructive child and parental development.

14. Increase a child's benefit under the social security system from T5% of
the parent's benefit to S05. Omit from etmsideration of the provision limiting
a child's social security benefit up to age 22. if prior period spent in the Teacher
Corps, Peace Corps, military serviee. or any other approved connmmity service
program. Tlms. a person who had spent two years in the Peace Corps could have
the period of benefits extended to age 24. Increase the minimum payment
to a child to wio a month.

15. Provide l» the federal law-making g.rants to state:: for dependent children
that the minimum standard of need for each child with no other income shall
be $100 a month.

10. Extend and improve the voeational education program so that every boy
and girl who wishes to learn a relevant skill and develop a career can do so.

1T. Develop adequate and diversified summer programa:: for employment. train-
ing. recreation. and useful peri en yes for children and youth.

IR. Provide appropriate nwans to assist young persma: age 14-18 to obtain
paid employment which will assist in developing skills, responsibility and inde-
pendence and under circumstances which will not discourage their contimwd
education.19 Provide additional federal aid for ahle students to become physicians.
nurses. dentists and other professional members of the health and medical care
system.

20. Encourage bilingual education and the preservation of cultural traditions
among children and families from non-American Imekgrounds.

21. Encourage all children to learn a atm-English language so that they may
be aide to work with twople of other natimis. in the furthermnwe of world peam
prosperity and cultural inter-change.

22. Intensify efforts to eihninate and reduce the availability of hard drugs:
expand educational programs to disconrage the use of drugs, tobacco. alcohol
among children and youth.

23. Provide for a method of expunging federal and state arrest and conviction
records of individuals for acts performed before age 21 which were not felonies.

24. Increase and diversify federal and state financial aid for students to
enter community colleges and univer.sities so that fwery youth with ability will
have an equal chance to enter and continue in post-secondary education.

25. Strengthen the research and services of the National Institute of Mental
Health so as to iNsist parents. children and youth achieve a state of construc-
tive mental health and well-being.

26. Encourage government agencies to work with non-governmental agencies
to play an important role in research. demonstration projects. services. and
leadership in working with children. youth, and families.
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27, Establish by federal and state laws a Child, Youth and Family Policy
Act which sets out the Importance and priority of strengthening, defending,
and preserving family life with rights and responsibilities for children, parent:4,
and the fatally.

TABLE 1.-SELECTED POVERTY LEVEL THRESHOLDS IN 1974 BY SIZE OF FAMILY AND SEX OF HEAD, BY FARM -
NONFARM RESIDENCE

Nonfarm, Farm, fem aleFamily unit Total male head head

Aged person $2, 352 $2, 387 $2, 002
Aged couple 2, 958 2, 984 2, 533
4 persons 5, 008 5, 040 4. 262

persons 6, 651 6, 706 5, 702

Source: "money Income and Poverty Status of Families and Persons in the United States:" 1974 (advance report);
current population reports, consumer income, series P-60, No. 99, July 1975, table 14, P. 16.

TABLE 2.-POVERTY RATES FOR CHILDREN, 1974

Total White Black

Total, all ages 11. 6 8. 9 31. 5

Under 3 yr 17. 4 13. 4 39. 93tosyr 16. 5 12. 4 39. 46to 13 yr 16. 1 11. 6 42. 814 and 15 yr 14. 1 9. 9 39. 6
16 to 21 yr 12. 3 8. 9 34. 7
5 to 17 yr 15. 3 10. 9 41. 7

Source:See Table 1-Table 19 P. 20.

TABLE 3.-CHILDREN AGED 5 THROUGH 17 IN POVERTY FAMILIES BY STATE, 1970 CENSUS

State
average

Low and high
county percents State

average

Low and high
county percents

Low High Low HiighState (percent) State (percent)

50 States and District Missouri 14.8 4. 5 52. 2
of Columbia 14. 8 1. 6 93.1 Montana 12. 9 5.6 35. 6

Nebraska 12.0 2. 2 44. 6
29.5 15. 7 71.4Alabama Nevada 8. 8 5. 8 17.9

Alaska 14. 6 1. 8 93.1 New Hampshire 7.7 6. 3 11.4
Arizona -. 17.5 10. 7 57. 2 New Jersey 8. 7 3.1 16. 7
Arkansas 31. 6 12. 6 59. 2 New Mexico 26. 3 1. 6 65. 0
California 12. 1 5. 7 26. 0 New York 12. 2 3. 9 27. 9
Colorado 12. 3 3. 8 44. 0 North Carclina 24.0 9. 0 57.1
Connecticut 7. 2 4.9 10. 5 North Dakota 15. 7 9.4 45. 8
Delaware 12.0 9.7 17. 9 Ohio 9.8 4.1 33.0
Florida 18. 9 10. 4 48. 3 Oklahoma 19. 5 8.9 53.1
Georgia 24.4 6. 7 74: 6 Oregon 10. 3 4. 8 21. 7
Hawaii 9. 7 8. 8 12. 2 Pennsylvania 10. 6 3. 8 22.3Idaho 12.0 4. 0 27. 2 Rhode Island 11. 0 6.1 14. 8
Illinois 10.7 2. 3 53. 6 South Carolina 29. 1 39. 1 59. 9
Indiana 9. 0 4. 0 19. 5 South Dakota 18. 3 7.4 50. 5
Iowa 9. 8 5. 4 24. 6 Tennessee 24.8 14. 3 70.7
Kansas. 11. 5 2. 2 26. 2 Texas 21.5 3. 0 70.4
Kentucky 25. 1 9. 2 71. 0 Utah 10.0 2. 6 43.4
Louisiana 30. 1 10. 7 68. 2 Vermont 11.4 7. 5 21. 0
Maine 14. 2 9. 3 23. 7 Virginia 18. 2 3. 3 51. 4
Maryland 11. 5 3.9 29.4 Washington 9. 3 6. 4 24. 6
Massachusetts 8.4 4.0 18. 5 West Virginia 24. 3 6.7 48.4
Michigan 9. 1 4.2 31. 1 Wisconsin 8. 7 3. 2 43. 6
Minnesota 9.5 3. 8 30. 9 Wyoming 11. 2 4.5 18. 4
Mississippi 41. 5 14.9 75. 9 District of Columbia 23. 2

Source: U.S. Department of Commerce, Bureau of the Census, "1970 Census of Population" (from a special
tabulation). Counts of children in poverty families were divided by the WM number of children 5 through 17
by county and by State.
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Cxxxr.ti HEALTH EXCERPTS P01IWAIID PLAN F1511 HEALTH

CII ILL) IlEA LT II INITIATIVE

In the urea of child health, the knowledge development. requirements go beyond
the purview of any one Institute or any one Health Agency. Thus, efforts to co-
ordilmte researeh activities which pertnin to the health of nafthers and children
have been intiated that involve several of the I»stitutes of Hen lth. ADAMHA,
HD, SRS and SSA. Several intradepartmental, intra-Pubith Health Service, and

committees serve ns mechnnisms for infirmation exelmnge and polley
reconnnendation in the area of maternal and child health. Efforts to improve
the effectiveness of coordination and collaboration mechanisms will continue. If we
trace ehild health research needs from the inception of the fetus through the
development of the child, the following efforts require special attmtion :

(a) Fertility Regulation : New and improved methods of fertility reguth Hon
will be explored. This exploration will involve assessment of existing contrncep-
five approaches with respect to undesirable side effects and acceptability. and
will look into possible means of overcoming infertility. Continued support of basic
reseftreh in reproductive biology is essential in order to provide the knowledge
base for development of safer, more effecthe, and universally acceptable family
jfianning techniques.

( Pregnancy, Labor and Delivery : Research in this area should focus on high
risk obstetrical conditions that contribute to infant morbidity and mortality, such

an dthbetes, hypertension and toxemia. It is also essential to determine the mater-
nal and intra-uterine conditions that are optimal for fetal growth and ma turn-
tion. To prevent the premature onset of labor, research is necessary to determine
why labor begins. Further exploration is needed of the contribution of various
analgesic and anesthetic agents administered during labor to the development
of depression of the fetal nervous system, and which can result in central nervous
system damage.

(e) Surveillance of Fetal Well-Being: Improved methods are needed to detect
fetid pathophyslology. including increasing the number of diseases which can be
diagnosed prenatally with special attention to sickle cell disease. Cystic. fibrosis

and thalassemin. Emphasis should be placed on ensuring that the latest develop-

ments in prenatal diagnoses are disseminated and made available to practitionem
(d) Infants at Risk : Since low birthweight infants (5% pounds or less) account

for 60 percent of all infnnt deaths. It is imperative that research fols on the

causes of infants being horn too soon or too small. Particular emphasis needs to
be given to preventing illnesses in infants weighing less than 2% pounds, such as
hyaline membrane disease and neonatal jaundice, which contribute to infant
mortality and morbidity. The sudden infant death syndrome, which is the major
canse of death after the first month of life, continues to require research emphasis.

(c) Nutritional Assessment : Attention needs to be given to the development of

more aecurate clinical tehniques to assess the nutritional status of the pregnant
woman, her fetus and of children from one month of age through adolescence.

Researeh is also needed to determine the relationship of the nutritional status
of children to obesity, hormonnl and metabolic disorders, dental caries, musenlo-

skeletal defects and susceptibility to infectious disease. Survey instruments need
to be hnproved which can be incorporated into ongoing nutrition assessments.

(f) Accident Prevention: Additional research is needed in the areas of toy
safety. safe packaging of drugs. and home and automobile accident prevention,
since accidents are the leading cause of death in children after the first year of

li(e.
(y) Mental Health : The complex questions of the me»tal health of children

need to be addressed by researeh which looks at the 1) biological, behavioral and
soeio-cultural aspects of mental illness and behavior and learning (lisorders,

2) biologienl. psychological and social correlates of development. and 3) psycho-

logical and emotional preparation for assuming adult roles. ADAMHA has identi-

fied child mental health as one of its major cross-cutting research priorities.

B. Child Health
Attitudes toward persmml health (ore are developed at very young nges and

tend to reflect the attitudes of parents and guardians. Early preventive health
enre can play an important part in formulating a consumer's life-long attitudes
toward health and in improving later henith status. A preve»tive health care
strategy for children NIIMIld include the following areas: genetic factors, infant
mortality and low birth weight. immunization. nutrition. dental health. and

mental health.
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I. Genetic Diseases
Genetic conditions are individually rare and even in the aggregate occur in

only 3 to 4% of live births. but they account for approximately one fourth of all
hospital adillissbnis. a major portion of infant and childhood mortality, and anenormous financial burden in terms of medical mre, provision of special socialservices. and institutionalization.

Recent medical advances have begun to make inroads on this array of diseases.
Amniocentesis and genetic counseling permit families to engage in informed
decisions about genetic factors. Screening at birth for PKU and galactosemia,and appropriate diet therapy for those afflicted. has virtually eliminated theseconditions As causes of mental retardation. Further research to identify causes,methods of treatment, and prevention of genetic factors should be undertaken.Efforts should also be made to extend to the general imblic currently available
diagnostic. preventive. and therapeutic measures.

2. Infant Mortality and Low Birth Weight Infants
Although the infant mortality has been reduced considerably to a 1974 rateof 17.3 per 1.000 live births. 10% of the more than 3,000 U.S. counties reported

infant mortality rates above 33.4. The non-white population had almost doublethe rate (28.8) of the white (1ri.2). The prematurity rate, like the infant mor-tality rate, varies among different population groups. In 1973, for example, 20%of all low birth weight infants were born to teenage mothers.
There is strong evidence of ml positive correlation between the receipt of ma-ternal health care services and the reduction of infant mortality. There is furtherindication that health services play a particularly important role in infant mor-tality reduction in the neonatal period (0-2S days) when % of all infant deaths

occur. The non-medical factors appear to have au effect more on post-neonatalperiod (29 days to one year).
A proposed project would target resources for the prevention of infant mor-tality to those areas of greatest need. Areas would be selected based on a numberof indices including rates of infant mortality and low birth weight infants. Seedmoney would be awarded to sites to facilitate the process of targeting resourceson the problem of infant mortality.
The contribution of family planning to improving the health of children isimportant. particularly as it relates to reducing the incidence of genetic disease,infant mortality, and mental illness.
PHS will continue its family planning services with emphasis on: optimalfamily size based on health. econotnie resources, and family considerations:birth intervals which promote maternal and child health: and child bearing dur-ing those years which pose the least risk for the mothers and the best chancesfor a healthy baby.

3. Immunization
In spite of the success in recent years in the control and prevention of measles.

poliomyelitis, and rubella, there is one area of concern which will require specialattention: the immunization of preschoolers from low income families. CDC
immunization programs will focus on Head Start, EPSDT, Day Care and Neigh-borhood Health Center populations.

4. N'utrifion
Nutritional care, including dietary counseling, should be integrated into thepreventive, diagnostic, and restorative .health services of all the PHS progran:sfor all family members. However, it is especially important that nutrition serv-ices for the subsets of the population with high vulnerability to malnutritionand with special nutritional requirements, i.e., pregnant and lactating women,

infants, young children, and adolescents, have priority in efforts to reduce mor-bidity and mortality rates. Nutrition plays a vital role in the treatment of condi-tions such as phenylketonuria, maple syrup urine disease, and cardiovascular
disease. Untreated, these conditions seriously endanger health and increase stressfor individuals and families as well as increase costs for long term care.

The health service programs and USDA's Supplemental Food Program (WIC)and other food assistance programs should coordinate efforts to insure thatwomen, infants, and children in needy families are authorized to receive supple-mental foods or other types of assistance.
$. Dental Health

Although a number of oral disease entities impact on children, the mostsignificant in terms of the number affected are dental caries and incipient
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periodontal disease. The caries process, once initiated, is irreversible and requires
therapeutic intervention to prevent further tiSsile destruction and ultimate tooth
loss, and to restore normal function and appearance. The course of periodontal
disease during ehildhood, while more subtle and less immediately visible, sets
the stage for even greater damage to the future oral health status of the adult
patient, i.e., potentially total edentulonsuess even in the absence of earles. More
importantly, however, the periodontal disense process is preventable and con be
reserved during its early stages in the childhood years. Therefore, a special focus
on preventing dental disease hi children is tippropriate. Options include:

Promoting the maintenance of optimal fluoride levels by supporting the instal-
lation and initial operating costs f fluoridation of community and school water
supplies; identifying those writer systems that ant either deficient or excessive
In fluoride content ; and by nommting a program of continual monitoring of
all public water systems so that problems can be quickly identified.

,Promoting public visi bit I ty for and I wren sod professional awn renesS of
recently developed health education and preventive care practiees by sponsoring
a National Conference on Dental Health Edneathm and Prevention.

Encouraging the expansion of the dental component under the 1.:I'SDT pro-
gram by sponsoring two-day workshops designed to bring together HEW regional
EPSDT coordinators and dental personnel.

6. Ifcatal Health
Eight. to twelve percent. of the US. population under IS years is believed in

need of mental health services fin. !h.:ye/lone disorders f ineluding schiztqdirenia),
behavioral disonlers. depression. organic disorders. neurotie and personality dis-
orders, ndjustinent reactions and mental deficiency.

In enlendar year 19M it is estimated that. 90 iwreent of these mental health
needs will be unmet. Thus there is a continuing need to focus on child mental
health.

The NIMH will ointlime to prtnnote public ednention. a primary prevention
device on the psychosocial dimensions of severe mental illness, chronic physical
illness, learning disorders. ehild abuse, attitodes about nutrition and food choice,
and infant development. Cooperative activities with OMCH and NICHD, di-
rected toward the mental health problems associated with Sudden Infant Death
Syndrome, will continue. NIMH will develop further the capabilities of the
CMHC in support of tlwse efforts. NIMH will focus on developmental assessment
in an effort to assist MSA in developing policy on this matter.

7. ffts'd Programs
Mothers and children are among the major beneficiaries of the Health Services

Administration's Bureau of Community Health Serviees programs designed to
provide high quality health services primarily to underserved areas. In addition
to specific activities described above. these programs may provide a range of
preventive, therapeutic, and rehaldlitative andailatory servicesas in Community
Health Centersor address health needs of special populationssuch as migrant
and seasonal farmworkers.

A special Rural Health Initiative to develop health care systems in selected
medically underserved areas with critical health manpower shortages Ims been
undertaken in 1975, utilizing resonrces of the Nntional Health Service Corps.
Community Health Centers, Appalfehian Regional Commission. and the Migrant
Health program. Proposed continuation and expansion to integrate additional
resources in 1976 will increase health services delivery capacity to these areas.

8. Exploration of School Rased Helirery of Health Care
Current changes in traditional school health programs offer a timely maw-

trinity for the Public Health Service to explore the possibilities of comidning
Primary care delivery with a focus on preventive medicine for sclmol age chikiren.
Potentially, school-based programs would incorporate preventive medicine as a
fundamental component of primary care early in the life cycle of the child. Such
services as preventive dentistry and accident prevention could lmve a major
impact. (Ultimately, many school-based programs may be more amenable to

cost controls and offer significant advantages in terms of the delivery of selected

forms of care.)
Alternatives open to the PHS include :
Encouraging communities to combine existing EPSDT programs with their own

school health efforts. utilizing the experiences of existing model school health
programs.

6 5



w.

Examining the relationship between National Health Insarance proposals and
a variety of school-based health care delivery systems.

Evaluating the possibility of creating a National School Health Service to be
operated by the PUS at school sites being Federally funded.

Developing a model Child Growth Center that combines medical care, social
services, and educational activities.

O. Early Periodic Sereening, Diagnosis and Treatment
To assure that poor, high-risk children receive important health services the

PHS will work closely with MSA on the condact of the EPSDT program.
Because the PHS can only provide direct health services to a very limited

portion of the EPSDT-eligible popalation, the major contributions of the PUS
are in other areas. For example, the PHS is undertaking evaluations of screening
procedures to determine their effectiveness, reliability, and overall usefulness ;
relevant research from the activities of the XIII are being culled and channeled
to the MSA; ADAMIIA, ander an agreement with MSA, is reviewing the best
current knowledge on developmental assessment, and acting as the principal
advisor to MSA in this area; inter-agency connuittees have been established with
PHS participation in each of the Regional Dikes to monitor the progress of
EPSDT implementation.

Where PHS-supporte(l health activities are performing the screening or pro-
viding treatment for children screened through other programs, efforts are under-
way to eliminate the barriers to more effective program utilization. PBS staff
members are developing management and policy tools for the resolution of finan-
cial problems (particularly Medicaid reimbursement questions) where these have
arisen.

Source: Forward Plan for Health. FY 1977-S1, U.S. Department of Health,
Education, and Welfare, Public Health Service, Jane 1975, pp. S5-36, and 277-231.

Mr. Orrrsonn. We have a lot of indications that the States and the
localities just. weren't able, or didn't assign sufficiently high priority
to allocate funds to this prograth, that the States in fact had been
cutting corners in the implementation of the program because of an
unwillingness or inability to come up with those funds.

That gets more and more severe as we have an economic downturn
in the country. The States are having a lot of problems in meeting
their budgets.

New York State, as you know, is in a desperate situation the city
even worse.

Is if your recommendation that you think this plays a. major factor
and that the Federal Government until such time as we have national
health insurance, should come up with 100 percent of the funding or a
larger percentage of the fundin,, than they do at the present. time?

Mr. Connx. I will say this you are going to have the Federal
Government, pay 100 percent of the cost, you will have to put more
kinds of controls in the program.

Let. me. first discuss the basic point you mentioned.
Yes; as long as this program is financed on a roughly 50 to SO percent

Federal matching with the large State only getting about 50 percent
of the total cost, under present circumstances with medical care costs
rising so rapidly, they have, been under a very, very difficult handicap
in improving or extending the medicaid program.

Now, let me tell you one thing, though, that. happened. In that
original medicaid law in 1965 Congress .adopted a provision that the
States had to show a continued increase in the program as part of the
condition of getting their Federal funds, a constant improvement.

The Ways and Means Committee and the Senate Finance Commit-
tee both accepted that amendment and it was in the law until about
either 1969 or 1970, after I left. It was then repealed on the recom-

60-800--75-5
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mendation of Governor Rockefeller on the grounds tlmt, New York
could not possibly continue to implement progressive implementation
of the medicaid program within its financial budget and Congress
repealed the reituirement.

Well, that gives you some indication of the financial problem. I
would therefore say either the 50 percent must be raised to i5 percent,
as it is in other programs or you would have to design the program in
such a way that the Federal Government would pay nmre of the cost.
That is the only way I can see within its orbit of improving the cover-
age along the lines of what Congressman Metcalfe would like to
achieve.

Mr. Orrt Nom Let me ask one other question, and then I will turn
to the rest of the subcommittee members.

Does it make any sense at all to penalize the state in either its
medicaid fund or its overall !Inman services fund for failure to ade-
quately implenwnt a shitute such as this which was suggested by
one of the witnesses, that perhaps we should penalize some other
kind of funds.

Somehow, or other, it is hurting the very children that your pro-
ng.= is intending to benefit. We we this in a number of pmgrams.

I know that you have been the anthor of nmny of these programs
where remedy for failure of the State to take proper action is to cut
programs for poor people.

The Federal Government is very reluctant to cut those, programs
because it is the poor people who are going to he hurt and it does
not seem to be very effective.

I should like to put in the record at this point, the record of that,
the actual assessments of penalties have been made but they have not
been enforced in many instances because of his reluctame.

I understand coimsel has two documents to show that without
obiectian I will put, those in the record at this point.

rThe documents referred to follow :1

EXHIBIT 4

STATEMENT BY CASPAR W. WEINBERGER. SECRETARY OF HEALTH', EDUCATION. AND
WELFARE. JUNE 19T5

As some of you are aware. the program of Early anfi Periodic Sereening. Diag-
nosis. and Treatment of Imv-income children is mw of the highest priorith of
this Department. The law preseribing the screening and treatnwnt was (quieted
in MT. When I' Joined the Department in early 197ft I found that few r.bildren
had been screened and treated any many States were moving slowly. if at all.
to implement the law. I qnickly made the program a top priority of the Drpart-
ment and undertook a personal commitment to get these disadvantagNI hildren
the medieal attention they need.

The Congress also mit some new teeth into the law. and prescribed that. be-
ginning this fiscal year. States whieh failed to implement the program ado.
onately for welfare ehildren Wffilld be asses,ed a penalty of one percent I if their
Federal share of eosts under the Aid to Familie4 with Dependent Children
program for each quarter of the year in whieh they failed. After careful roview.
T am InYv applying the first penalties nrder that kw against seven States that
have fared to carry mit one or more of three key a-tionsinformine. Nerponine,
and trontingnecessary to bring medical rare to eligible poor chihlren during
the July throngh September quarter of this fiseal year.

whih failed its obligation to inform AFDC nullifies. a penalty of

Indiolta. Which failed its obligations to inform AFDC families and to screen
children. a penalty of $143,516.
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Minnesota, whch failed its obligations to inform AFDC families and screenAFDC children, a penalty of $280,007.
Montana, which fulled Its obligation to inform AFDC fatuities, a penalty of$27,880.
Now Mexico, which failed Its obligation to screen AFDOchildren, a penalty of'$70,040.
North Dakota, which failed its obligation to Inform AFDC families, n pnialty:of $20,200.
Penneyivanta,, which failed its obligation to inform AFDC families, a penaltyof $1,048,441.

These States are not necessnrily the only ones thnt failed to conduct thethree baste steps of informing families, screening, and treating medical defects inAFDC eihldren during the first quarter. Some other State programs are stillunder review and penalties agninst them may be applied soon.I hope that the seven States cited today have or will act promptly to correcttheir deficiencies. Our purpose is not to penalize but to bring medical attention tothese children early so as to prevent hmg-term incapacity and dependency aswell as to avert suffering.
. Most States are now moving ahead on the EPSDT program. Altogether, theStates screened and treated fewer than two million children in the preeedingyears. Thi.s fiscal year our goal is to screen and treat three million but thereare a total of about 13 million eligible children in the coUntry, and we have aformidable task ahead of us. I'm confident it can be done, with incalculablelong-term benefits to the nation,

HEW Nsws
California has been assessed a penalty in the tentative amount of $1.920.439 forfailure to take action required by law under the Federal-State medical programfor low-inetnne children during .Tuly to Septembee 1974. 11EW Secretary CasparW. Weinberger unwanted today. California thus beconies the eighth State tobe penalized for not carrying out requirentents of the Early and Periodic. Screening, Diagnosis. and Treatment (EPSDT) program.John A. Svahn, Acting Administrator of Social and Rehabilitation Service.said that California did not fully Parry out activities with respect to theinforming, screening add treatment of its eligible imor childrenall of whichare necessary to the delivery of both preventive and remedial health care". services. That assessment was based on the State's EPSDT program compliancein the first quarter of FY 1975.

Under the law. States which fail to itnplement the EPSDT program ride-quately are penalized one percent (If their Federal share of costs under the Ald. to Families with Dependent Chihiren (AFDC) program for each quarter ofinadequate performance. California will have mi opportunity to apply ferreconsideration of the ruling.
Other EPSDT penalties were announced June 2 by Secretary Weinbergeragainst seven States: Hawaii ($72.904 1 Indiann ($143.51111 : :%linnesota; Montena (82709 ; New Mexico ($70.6.16) ; North Dakota ($26,2011)Pennsylvania ($1.048,411).
However. Secretary Weinberger stressed that the purpose of the prognna isnot to penalize States. hut to provide needy children with medical attention atan early stage to prevent long-term ill effects.Mr. Svahn emphasized that he considers the EPSDT program one of the highestpriorities of HEW.
California was cited in pnrt for the following reasons :raforming.The State failed to inform all eligible recipients of the availabilityof EPSDT services. Although it mailed ont a "Owl: staffer" notice at the closeof the first quarter which met at least minimal regnlatory requirements. it failedto inehulo in tleit notice those AFDC eligibles who were members of PrepaidHealth Plans (PIIPsl. Notification to his group of recipients (whieh eonstitutesabout 14 percent of the State's eligible AFD(' population ) did not °cent. untilNovember 13. 1974. The State admits that PHP members were not inelteled in.the first quarter mass mailing. but argues that notification was aceotaplislwd,nevertheless, through alternative means. With few exceptions, however, theState has failed to substantiate its rebuttal on this Issue.
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gcrecning.California generally failed to make screening services available
to eligible recipients and in many cases did not undertake even the most nuilmen-
tary steps to assure that where screening was provided that It wan done so on a
timely basis.

Tref:ling.California could not assure that treatment services wer. being
provided on a timely basis after screening results were complete, or that nave
were complete lists of treatment providers made available to thosc recipients in

need of treatment.
_gr. Orr-INGER. It does serm to me that. we have to have some better

method of enforcement.. I wonder if you have any him on that?
Mr. COHEN. First, I am not in sympathy with the idea of the penalty

provision in the form in which it is in present law.
can understand Secretary Mathews' point of view which I sup-

pose distresses other members of the committee about enforcing a
kind of penalty which may adversely affects the program and the
people it serves.

Now, if you were going to have it, I would apply. in my opinion
the penalty to Federal revenue sharing. That would be a much more
effective way to get state cooperation.

If you want. the Governor and the legislature to cooperate in doing
this, which is what you need, the budget director. the Governor, the
legislature, reduce Federal revenue sharing to the States abont 10
penpnt and yon will get. them to cooperate in this program. They
probably might not care if you reduce the aid to the families for
dependent children 1. 5. or 10 percent. They might be happy in
some States if you cut it 50 percent.

I think therefore the penalty that is in the law is the wrong ap-
proach. It has not produced the kind of result that the Congress
wants or any of us wants in connection with the program. It puts the
penalty in the wrong place at the wrong time under the wrong
eireilmstances.

I believe it goes back to the point I mentioned that if yon want
to .rret cooperation from the States to effectuate the program, then
you have to have a good rapport, between the people who are admin-
istering the program.

I just have to say this because I spent 25 years of my life trying to
make tbe Federal-State program work. During the last 5 years it
1ms collapsed in HEW. There has been a virtual disintegration of
the cooperative appror lm between the Federal Government and the
States under an administration which was committed to try to help

the States.
T don't understand it. I think it has been tragic. The best I Can

snr is that if Secretary Mathews can turn that. around in health and
in edueation. he will be making a tremendous contribution in his
tenure. That is where we ought to work on iton the administra-
tive side of the State people in charge. They want to do a good job.

The State people are not against the program. They have financial

prol dem:, ad min istrat ive problems. sta IT problems.
T f von work with them, the program would be a lot better than

it is today.
Mr. OTTINGER. Thank you very much. Mr. Secretary.
T have a conflicting obligation. I will turn over the Chair to my

colleague from New York, Mr. Scheuer.
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We appreciate your being with us.
Mr. COHEN. Thank Tou.
Mr. SCHEME [presiding]. I have a few questions for you, Mr. Sec-

retary, but before I ask them, I am going to recognize my colleagues
on the Democratic side.

As an old friend, let me say that it is a.great pleasure to see you
and to have the benefit of your counsel and wthdom.

Congressman Sharp.
Mr. S.HARP. Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman.
I am very much concerned with what you have said about the

distintegration of the Federal-State cooperation.
I recently Met with hospital administrators in my district, several

of whom said for years they have worked and actually looked rather
favorably on what the Federal Government was doing.

In fact, several of them said : Now they are the enemy of the Fed-
eral Government and that from here on out, they intend not to
cooperate; they intend to frustrate_, a couple of them indicate, the
efforts of the Federal Government because they said what they have
seen in recent years is on again, off amain regulation, increased paper
work with little apparent result fronitheir point of view of improve-
ment in basic health care delivery.

Essentially, all they have gotten is more penalties, more regulation.
-, I guess I am spealiino- of frustrations and asking you if you see a
way in which we can reSrore that cooperation.

I assume ow problem is in personalties involved. Obviously, you
have to have that commitme»t. and that spirit. but perhaps we hare
seen too much Federal arrogance in process of defending these pro-

_grams and not enongh understanding that somebody on the local
scene ligh have some ideas and might be trying to do a good job.

Mr. Ct3r..s. I have lots of suggestions; some of which I have already
passed on to Secretary Mathews at his request.

Let me say. your point is absolutely well taken. It i:; not only the
hospital program. tIm Hill-Burton program: it is not only the medi-
caid program. It is the AFDC program ; the whole social service im-
plementation of title XX that is now going on.

There is a kind of attitude of confrontation with the States and
the kind of advensary relationship that has permeeed the situation
in the last 5 years, which I must say I never knew in the previous
9.0 vearr. that I was tlwre.

I think it is very unfortunate. I will just give you two illustrations:
Mr. Weinberger would issue regulations More any State person

ever was consulted in their formulation.
Now, there is no Federal law that says he has to do it but T think

any gelid administrator before he asks for more paper work and more
responsibility, will get a better response from people if he consnits
thew :.v.forehand and irons ont the bugs.

Th.! Inst. two regulations Mr. Weinberger issned on the day he left
the States had never been seen by State agencies before.

I might add that. this is zt very nonpartisan tiling because States
with Republican Governors feel exactly the same way about this
Democratic Governors. It is not a partisan thing that I am discussir;!
at all. It is a failure of participation.
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I think that overemphasis on paperwork, failure of consultation,
thinking of the States as if they were an adversary rather than a
partner, requires a tremendous change in the whole way in which
things are operating there.

Mr. SHARP. Thank you very much. Mr. Cohen.
will give my colleague a chance to ask some questions.

Mr. Sc.:ti:um. Congressman Santini, of Nevada.
Mr. SANTINI'. In summary, might we say, Dr. Cohen, that there has

bmi a deliberate sabotage on the part of at least some level ()tad-
minist naive direction within HEW in the past in terms of the health
services programs that we are examining to(li ?

Mr. Conrx. I don't want to nse the word "sabotage," because I
think it was a different conception of tlwir role. The major respon-
sibility. in my opinion for this failure is due to Mr. Dwight, who was
the SRS mlministrator during that period of time.

He had a completely di fterent conception of what the Federal Gov-
ernment's role and responsibility was. As for instance. take a specific
proNem. in the outreach. searching out these chihlren who are eligible.
He sahl. no. that is not the Federal Government's responsiltility to try
to 4r,n out and beat the bushes to see who is eligible. Allow the States to
410 what they want.

My best source for that. by the way, is a very excellent article by
John K. Iglehart,. National ournal Reports, back in 1974, which
quotes va rions People.

I am not makinr this np out Of my mind or exiwrienee. 'But in there
you will find that various thinps that wcre suggested by Mr. New-
man--

Mr. SANTINI-. Chairman. T ask unanhnons consent that- the doc-
ument be identified for the reeord itilt lolly and then admitted as part
of our evidence in this hea rin7.

Mr. Scrit:IR. Without object ion_ it is so orderN1 /*see p. 671.
Mr. C4 tilEv. I think son will find t his documnt more 1.evea1ing than

the GAO report beca !Ise it cites people and quotations.
Mr. SANINI-. WHnld you identify the document again?
Mr. Cot tr.N. Thk is an article by john K. 14rlehtirt from the National

Journal Mpnris ii ;rime 29. 1974. entitie1 "Ifeulth Repo.i.t/TIEW
St ntes Child Care Rceord May .1, ifet A trency's Insuratwe Ro/e."

If you will just :rive me a second to answer your quest ion. I will try
to gi ve yon a quot a: ion.

For instance. help is a quotation in here:
Dwight says. "SRS has a primary interv:4 and ohligalifm undr the law

to vssure the availability of Krsur servbe," but he maintained that the statute
doe.: not require the kind of aggressive eatreaell program that Newman and
Rosoff envisioned.

Parenthetically. Mr. Newman was at that time an administrator of
the nwd ien id protrram, Mr. nosotr was the Acting Director of the
Office of Child Development. He is the current Deputy Director.

The Federal Government will not direeHy engage in ontreneh and will not
require any State to engage in outreaeh to seeure additional fAigibility for the
title 20 mediertid program, Tfwight said in his memorandum dated February 14,
this b4 a prerogative and ehoiee wide!) should he strietly limited to the States.
Tlw States tire the operator of title 19 and their choiee determines the scope of
'44-vice and for title 19.
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Now, I think it was that difference in philosophy about how youwork with the States to effectuate a Federal Government responsibilitythat was largely the cause of a kind of laissez-faire doctrine here whichresulted in exactly what Mr. Metcalfe said was true and what the GAOreportedin its report.
Mr. SEGAL. Mr. Chairman, might I ask if the additional updatedarticle from the National Journal, the date I believe is January 11,1975 [see p. 74], also be put in the record at this time.Dr. COHEN. I think that would be good to put the both together.You would have a very good story.
Mr. Iglehart, I might say, was a very conscientious investigator ofthis. He did a very good job, I think.
Mr. &HEVER. Without objection, it is so ordered.I Testimony resumes on p. 78.1
[The National Journal Reports articles referred to follow :]

(From the National Journal Reports, June lft). 1974)
HEAurn REPoirr/IIEW, STATES' CHILD CASE RECO= MAY AFFECT AGENCY'SI ss tau set; 1WLE

(By John K. Iglehart)
Nearly seven years ago, Congress directed the Health, Education and WelfareDepartment to design a plan for finding poor children with medical problemsand providing treatment for them.
Two years ago, HEW still had not come up with a workable program andCongress imposed a July 1, 1974, deadline on the department, hoping to forcefaster action.
But despite the personal interest and involvement of HEW Secretary CasparW. Weinberger. the department has no hope of meeting the deadline.And its inability to cope with a relatively small sliee of the total nationalhealth problem Is raising doubts on Capitol Hill that it would deal effectivelywith a national health insnrance program.The program in question is Early and Periodic Screening, Diagnosis andTreatment (EPSDT), a small element In IIEIrs vast Array of health missions.It Is difficult to pinpoint any single reason for the departMent's failure to meetthe deadline.

Part of the delay has been caused by internal HEW bickering over the bestapproach. States partly are resonsible because of their concern that they cannotafford a fully implemented program, which eventually could cover as many as13 million children.
Either way, the delay has hurt HEW on Capitol Hill.The departmenrs unwillingness to persuade states to comply with the lawraises questions about the department's ability to launch a national health insur-ance plan, a medical task of far greater magnitude.The unwillingness of some states to implement EPSDT largely because ofpotential costs works against the Administration's argument that states shouldplay a major role In administering and monitoring national health insuranee."The performance of IIEW and the states on EPSDT doesn't leave mach toyour imagination on how they might perform under health insurance." said anable to Sen. Abraham Ribicoff, D-Conn., who was a leading sponsor of the childhealth plan in 1967.

"For all Intents and purposes, Congress has given up on HMV's implementationof EPSDT within the context of the present medicaid program," said a HouseWays and Means Committee official. "Congress now is prepared to federalizemed lea id."
In its health insurance legislation (liR 12954, S 2970), the Administration hascalled for establishing two financing programs, one for the working populationand another for nonworking and low-income groups,The states would play a key role In financing the second program, a task thatwould give them more incentive to control costs, according to the Admin 1st rationanalysis.
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Sen. Russell B. Long. D-La., chairman of the Senate Finance Committee, and

Rep. Wilbur D. Mills, D-Ark., chairman of the House Ways and Means Commit-

tee, are advocating health Insurance bills that call for federal administration of

the program. States would have only a secondary role.

Mills told Weinberger at a health insurance hearing April 24 :

"You are going to have a hard time convincing me that any state has adminis-

tered medicaid as well as the Social Security Administration has administered

medicare," Mills said. The EPSDT program is a part of medicaid.

Standing.On paper at least. the EPSDT program enjoys priority standing

with Weinberger. He has emphasized his i»terest in it at staff meetings and

voiced concern in private conversations with ranking department officials that

HEW's programs may be overemphasizing the older population at the expense

of the young.
Moreover, implementation of EPSDT is one of the Secretary's program objec-

tives for fiscal ".974.
..hough. the department never has committed the resources necessary

to aid or lred states to implement the program. A telli»g statistic is the ninnber

of staff members which HEW has assigned to the task..

Seven professional staffers work on EPDST in Washington. hut four have de-

cided to leave or have left HEW. In the department's 10 regional offices. o»e

staffer, on the average, is responsible for working with the states in each region.

HEW never has been able accurately to estimate how much states spend for

EPSDT because the funds flow from a general pot of medicaid money that will

total in excess of 810 billion in fiscal 1975. The department does estimate that

30 per cent of these monies are spent for children's health services of all kimls.

Under the program, which was first authorized by the Social Security Amend-

ments of 1967 (81 Stat. 821), states must inform all recipients of Aid to Families

With Dependent Children (AFDC) of "the availability of child health screening

services." The eligible child population is estimated to nmnber 13 million.

States also must "provide or arrange for the provision of such screening serv-

ices" and -arrange for . . . corrective treatment." The services are financed

under a medicaid formula which obligates the federal government to pay from

50 to 83 per cent of the cost ; the states pay the rest.
Pressures.Pressures are mounting on HEW to account for its efforts to im-

plement EPSDT six and a half years after Congress authorized creation of the

program.
Sen. Ribicoff asked Weinberger in a letter dated June 11 to describe in detail

what the department has dtate to implenwnt the program.

Further, court suits have been brought against 10 states, claiming they have

failed to implement the program fully. The states are California. Colorado, Con-

necticut, Illinois, Indiana, Michigan, New York. Ohio. Pennsylvania and Vermont.

Thus, with hope of meeting the statutory deadline of July 1 gone, with Ribl-

coif's expressed interest, and with the pending court suits, the department is

going to have to develop a strategy for enforcing the stiff penalty which Congress

mandated as a part of the Social Security Amendments of 1972 (86 Stat 1329).

Under the provision, HEW "shall" reduce by 1 per cent the federal payment

to the Aid to Families with Dependent Children (AFDC) program of any state

which fails to implement the EPSDT program.
With federal expenditures of 54.1 billion provided for the AFDC program in

the President's fiscal 1975 budget, the financial pain of a 1 per cent reduction in

a state's payment could be substantial.
Problems.Full implementation of EPSDT has been stymied by a number

of factors, the most Important being concern at HEW and in the states over

the potential cost of screening sonie 13 million eligible children for medical

ailments and then providing corrective services.

States.The federal-state medicaid program itself has been a significant im-

pediment to the full implementation of EPSDT. Although financed primarily

with federal dollars, medicaid really is a state program, or, more accurately, 50

state programs.
Within general federal guidelines, states select the kind and amount of serv-

ices they wish to provide, determine the groups eligible for assistance, dictate

the standards health-care providers must follows, set the levels of reimburse-

ment and administer the program.
The commitment that states have made to the medk:ald program varies

widely. California and New York offer a broad range of benefits to medicaid

recipients. In New York. the medicaid budget now exceeds that of the budget for

aid to needy children (AFDC).
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A number of states offer only the minimum range of benefits required bylaw:
inpatient and outpatient hospital care, skilled nursing home care, physician care,
home health services, laboratory and X-ray services, family planning services
and screening and treatment of individuals under the age of 21.

Although EPSDT is one of medicaid's mandatory services, states have imple-
mented it with the same varying degrees of enthusiasm that they have shown
for the total medicaid program.

SRS.The child health care prcgram is only one of several that has been
himbered b bureaeuratic warfare between the director of the Social and Reha-
bilitation Service (SRS) and Ids career staff.

SRS Administrator James S. Dwight Jr. has established priorities which fea-
ture efforts to improve management of the welfare system and to purge the
public assistance rolls of ineligible recipients of welfare funds. Dwight's pre-
scription includes relentless budget cutting, both within SRS and in the pro-
gram.s it administers.

The SRS career staff has a totally different set of priorities, which favor fiber-
alizing the agency's programs so that more, rather than fewer, low-income fami-
lies receive federal help.

The conflict between Dwight and the SRS lmreaueracy has generated turmoil
. within the agney. Staff morale is low and a number of recent resigriations have
resulted, including thosee of Howard N. Newumn, medicaid commissioner;
Karen F. Nelson, medicaid's chief of program, planning and evaluation ; Joseph
Manes. medicaid's long-term care specialist ; and Barney F. Sellers, head of
EPSDT.

Congressional discontent with Dwighrs stewardship of SRS also is mounting.
The best reflection of it was in the passage May 21 by the House of a bill (HR
14225) that would remove tlw Rehabilitation Services Administration, the most
popular SR8 program, from that agency and place it in Weinberger's office. The
vote was 400-1.

Earlier in the year, Congress removed the Administration on Aging from SRS
and placed it in the Secretary's office because, in the view of legislators, Dwight's
support of the program was weak.

EVOLUTION

The history of the EPSDT program is a textbook example of what happens to a
program %Odell Congress authorizesand thn rarely tends toand to which the
executive branch never fully tommits itself.

The problems of a lack of financial resoi 1rces. an absenee of available screening
services and the inability of states effeetively to link eligible children with serv-
ices which are available all have stood in the way of fulfilling a commitment
which President Johnson first articulated In a message to Congress on Feb. 8,
1007.

Mr. .Tohnson outlined a 12-poInt wlfare program whieh ineluded a commit-
ment to "expand our programs for early diagnosis and treatment of children with
handicaps.-

The President noted that nearly 5(10.000 (!hiblren were receiving treatment at
that time under TIEW's loalth program for crqqled children. bnt he sahl -more
than twice that number need help.-

-The problem is to discover. as early as possible. the ills that handicap our
elfildren. There must be a eontinuing follow-up and treatment so that handicaps
do not ;In neglected." Mr. .Tohnson said.

EPSDT was sold to the President IT former HEW Secretary (190S-09) Wilbur
.T. Cohen. when he was the department's untlersecretary.

Chairman Mills NV11C(1111Pd Ilimrimv. before th Ways and Means Committee a
week after the message. And IT Aug. 17. the House had passed the Social Security
Amendments of 19G7. which imluded a provision that required states to :.:ereen.
diagnose aml treat the medical aihnents of children of low income families start-
ing July 1. 1969.

The Senate }Inane', Committee approved similar legislation and the program
eleared Congress on Dec. 15 of that year. President Johnson signed the bill into
law Jan. 2.

HEW dragged its feet in developing regulations to implement the program. But
two and a half years later. the former SRS administrator. John D. Twiname,
proposed "tentative" regulations for EPSDT which interpreted the law quite
broadly.
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The regulations stipulated that states were to provide screening services for
all eligible children under 21. If ailments were found, the states were obligated to
correct them regardless of whether the necessary treatment was a service nor-
mally provided under the medicaid program.

States strongly objected to the proposed regulations, arguing that the compre-
hensiveness of the services required would have a dramatic impact on state
budgets.

As a result, HEW rewrote the regulations and watered them down. The new
regulations instructed states to provide services to children that normally were
a part of medicaid benefits which they offered.

HEW also said that states were obligated only to screen, diagnose and treat
children under age six at the start, eventually expanding the program to serve all
children under 21 years.

The Senate Finance Committee gave its blessing to the department's more
restrictive interpretation of the law by including a provision in the Social Secu-
rity Amendments of 1970 which conformed with the proposed regulations. These
amendments. however, never became law.

Finally, almost four years after President Johnson signed into law the Social
Security Amendments of 1967; former HEW Secretary (1971-1973) Elliot L.
Richardson approved EPSDT regulations on Nov. 4, 1971, to become effective 90
days later.

Congress showed its concern over the lack of movement on the part of HEW
and the states to implement EPSDT when it approved as part of the Social Secu-
rity Amendments of 1972 a provision imposing a tough penalty on jurisdictions
that did not meet the statutory requirements.

But, nn the whole, Congress has paid little attention to the program. Besides
Ribicofrs letter, the most recent expression of congressional interest in EPSDT
was voiced by Rep. David R. Obey. D-Wis., a member of the House Appropriations
Subcommittee on Labor-HEW.

At a hearing April 24. Obey pressed Dwight to explain why HEW's imple-
mentation of EPSDT never has gotten off the ground.

CONFLICT

HEW pnliey makers always have been at odds over the degree to wbieh the
department shouhl commit itself to hnplemenfing the EPSOT program. There are
essentially two schools of thought on the question.

One school advocates an aggressive approach to implementation. "beating the
hushes to link the children with the services," said one HEW otileial who supports
this approach.

The other school frowns on such tactics and maintains that HEW should adopt
a passive role, not going out of its way to advertise the program and not forcing
states to Implement it fully.

The two schools clashed last year through internal department memoranda and
the result has been a middling approach to the implementation of EPSDT.

Ncirman. mcmn.The seeds nf conflict were planted by a numtorandum dated
Dec% 12, 3973, from medicaid commissioner Newman and Saul R. Rnsoff. acting
director of the Office of Child Dvelopment, to tlwir program chiefs in IIEW's 10
regional ofilees.

Newman and RnPnff announced that they had agreed tn fund some 200 demon-
stration projects that would utilize private, nonprofit Head Start agencies "in
making EPSDT services available to medicaid cliiidrm) ngvs 0-6."

Newman and Rnsnff noted that the medienid and Head Start programs had
"common bases" which could facilitate implementation of the EPSDT program.
They contim7ed :

"Both agenH,:54 serve low income farnilim Both are coneernNi with continuity
of health ;Na arca have the similar objective of integrating services provided
through 8rvaVble state and lneal resources. These similarities .:et a common
frame of rethrt-:.we that can generate a wide range of !oral eollaborative activities.
Therefore, me.iicakl and Head Start are initiating a collaborative effort."

Although the language was bureaneratic, Newman and Rosoff were saying
that. HEW would institute an aggressive program that wonkl seek out low-hienme
youngsters to undergo .medical screening and receive corrective services, if
necessary.

"Head Start will refer potentially eligible Head Start children to medicaid
for enrollment and medieaid will pay for needed health services as required by
EPSDT regulations," the memorandum said.
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Dwight rebuff.SRS Commissioner Dwight learned of the Newman-Rosoff
memorandum some weeks after it had been sent to the department's regional
offices. Several states, au HEW staffer said, including Connecticut and Texas,

';.' had expressed concern to Dwight that the new EPSDT-Head Start project would
force these jurisdictions, against their will, to expand the screening program.

On 'Jan. 10, 1074, Dwight wired SRS9s regional commissioners: "Disregard.
the 12-12-73 memorandum from Howard Newmar.. and Saul Rosoff, 'collaboration

'between selected Head Start grantees and state local medicaid agencies for dc-
livery of EPSDT services.' That memorandnin has not received SRS clearance
and should be considered only as a recommendation to me."

Dwight also asked regional commissioners to comment on the Xewnum-Rosoff
proposal. One month later, lie issued another memorandum to SRS regional
commissioners which essentially outlined the passive apProach toward imple-
mentation of the EPSDT program.

Dwight said that "SRS has a primary interest and obligation under the law
to insure the availability of EPSDT services," but he maintained that the statute
does not require the kind of aggressive outreach program that Newman and
Rosoff envisioned.

"The federal government will not directly engage in outreach and will not
require any state to engage in outreach to secure additional eligibility for the
Title XIX (medicaid) program." Dwight said in his memorandum, dated Feb. 14.
"This is a prerogative and a choice which should be strictly limited to the states.
The states are the operator of Title XIX and their choice determines the scope
of service and eligibility for Title XIX."

Dwight directed that. the -primary emphasis" of the 200 Head Start demon-
stration projects be to make EPSDT services "available to medicaid eligible
children who are also enrolled in Head Start" rather than encouraging these
children to enlist in the program.

Bat recognizing. as Dwight put it. that "out reach is inevitable in such a
project." he directed that state medicaid directors aml Governors would have
to approve individual demonstration projects "before this activity is initiated
in any state."

Dwight oversees medieaid and SRS' other programs while adhering to a view
that for IIEW to prod states to take actions they essentially do not want to takeis an unproductive exercise.

"I have an affinity fnr how to get states to an somethingotherwise I have
wasted five years of my life." Dwight said in an interview. "If we start dictating
procedures to the states then we will get ourselves in trouble:*

Dwight came to Washington in 1972 to work as an associate director of theOffice of Management and Budget. Before that, he served in California as a--deputy finance direetor in the administration of Gov. Rmahl Reagan.DiaMoue.Divight's plan for limited implenwntation of the program, as out-lined in his Feb. 14 memo arid as evideneed in the number of people he basassigned to the task, is the subjea Of mounting debate within HEW.
The 14stie has been a topic of discussion at two of the Seeretary's recent man-

agement meetings. Weinberger regularly bolds small sessions to keep track ofobjeeti yes MI ich IIEW's ageneles est ahli lbrongh a ystem of ma nagementthat the Administration has ioloptNi in most executive departments.The system is known as management by objeetive (MBO). Under MBO. thedepartments each year must set objectives and. came they are approved by theOffice of Management nail Budget, mold their operatic:as to accomplish the statedgoals. ( For a report on HBO. ser Vol. 6, No. 17. p. 609.)WciaLerger weetinos.At the Secretary's management meeting Jan. 15,Stanley B. Thomas Jr.. assistant IIEW seeretary for !Hunan development. bronghtup the issue which had arisen over utilizing Head Start ;..rantees to implementEPSDT.
Dwight explained that he had rescinded the Newman-Rosoff memo beenuseof complaints from a number of states about the use of private Head Startgrantees as an outreach vehicle for state-run EPSDT programs.The ensuing discussion revealed that the lwy issue was the extent to which theavailability of EPSDT services should be advertised by NEW, and thus generateadditional demands on state medicaid programs without state consent.Weinherger concluded, the discussion by directing Newman. Rosoff and Dwightto reconcile their differences, or, failing that, submit a memo to the Secretaryon the issues involved.
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The concern expressed by Thomas about the implementation of the EPSDT
program was echoed two and a half months later by Bernice L. Bernstein,
director of HEW's New York regional office, at another management meeting

March 28.
Dwight led off the discussion on EPSDT by reporting that his agency had been

,overly optimistic in setting a goal of screening two million children in fiscal

.1974. A niore realistic estimate, Dwight said, would be the screening of front

1.2millinn to 1.4 million children.
At, that point. Mrs. Bernstein, who was speaking for all of regional

rectors, said that a lack of commitment on the part of SRS to provide adequate

field staff to implement EPSDT was a major problem. She also called for more
active involvement in the task by the office of Dr. Charles C. Edwards, assistant
'HEW secretary for health.

Dwight replied that SRS was not able. unfortunately, to provide additional
medicaid staff members to the regions because all employees were fully committed

to higher priorities until July 1075. He said the situation could worsen for

EPSDT implementation.
Weinberger concluded the meeting by emphasizing his strong commitment to

implement EPSDT. The official tn es of the meeting read :
"The Secretary stressed that t is an extremely important objective which

should not fall shert of achievement due to inaction or delay nn the part of
nEw. He expressed his strong desire that regional PHS (Public Health Service)
personnel take an active role in assisting states to implement this program... ."

Young memo.More recently. John D. Young. HMV's assistant secretary-comp-
troller. also has questioned whether the department's implementation of the
EPSDT program complies with the law.

Young. according to several SRS staffers. sent a memorandum to John R.

Ottina, assistant HEW secretary fnr administration aml management, suggest-
ing that, in light of the July 1 deadline. SRS's management objective for imple-

menting the EPSDT program be strengthened.
Young said in the June 5 memo :
"The SRS proposal tn make available EPSDT services to eligible children

and to screen three million children should he reconciled with the legal mandate
to provide screening for all children, in other words eight million plus.

"Now that push has come to shove, as far as the financial penalty is concerned.
we suggest that SRS invest much more than $10.000, which in budget terms rep-
resents two man years. in the effort.

"Also. the OPS (Operational Planning System) objectives should detail how
SitS will monitor EPSDT and apply financial sanctions where necessary. Time
plan should also incl»de development nf n tracking system to indicate whether
health screenings are actually followed up with by diagnosis and treatment."

Ynnng was making reference tn the MBO management system. Ottina and
Thomas S. McFee. his deputy fnr management Maiming and technology, are
responsible for administering the internal management system.

The implementation of the El'SDT program was a management objective
established by the SRS in fiscal 1:174. McFee said in an interview that because of

Weinberger's enmmitment to the goal it likely would be upgraded in fiscal 1075.

it was SRS' first crack at upgrading the objective which Yonng questioned.
Dwight bad suggested that the "resources required" to operate EPSDT in fiscal
1977, totaled $2.6 million. including 840.000 for the salaries and expenses of two

staff members.
STATES

HMV's grudging commitment tn the children's health program has been rein-

forced tn a large degree by the states. which have feared frnm the beginning that
EPSDT would only add tn what was already an onerous financial burden
medieaid.

States have recognized tbe problems which exist. according tn Howard New-

man. hut they have failed to correet mnst of them because of a concern over the

potential cost.
Tn a speech March 12 to the National Health Forum. Newman said :

-There was universal acknowledgement of the need for comprehensive health

services for poor children, and that such services were not readily available or
accessible to the needy.

"Today, many of those problems still exist. In certain areas. a child in a poor

family has nnly half the chance nf those with higher incomes to live to his or her

trst birthday. Half of all poor children are not immunized against polio. About
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two-thirds have never been to a dentist. And poor children have three times more
heart diseases, seven times more visual impairment, six times more hearing de-
fects. five times more mental illnesses than the inure affluent," Newman said.

He said that EPSDT got caught in the squeexe between rising welfare expendi-
tures and the states' concern over tbe potential cost of the screening program:

"States were reluctant to embark on this venture, and the federal governmentwas reluctant to insist. The number of welfare program recipients had been
Increasing steadily and the bulk of this increase was In the addition of children
whose families needed public assistance ... Despite its obvious long rnn, and
even short run. benefits. EPSDT posed a problem for public budgets," he said.

Link8.Beyond the problem of its potential costs, EPSDT posed a significant.
obstacle for medicaid programs that never had been called upon to develop sem--
ices. To make the vital link between providers of care and the intended recipients
was a new and foreign task for sta:e medicaid programs.

Medicaid was established in 19ff5, primarily as a federal-state inechanDmi to
finance the cost of the basic health needs of some 27 million poor Americans.
Many state programs are not equipped to manage the development of new service
programs within the context of medicaid, even if they had the money.

But pressed by court suits, a number of states now are committing new re-
sources to develop the EPSDT program. The states which have most impressed
HEW with their efforts to hnplement EPSDT are Alabama, Iowa, Michigan,
Missouri. Mississippi and Virginia.

In California. the EPSDT program helped influence the state legislature tei
enact a law which directed the state govermnent to make screening serviee'savailable to all children.

Texas has made a special effort to extend dental services to children eligible for
the EPSDT program. Dental services are generaly the most diffieult to attain of'those services provided n nder the program.

Yew York.New York has decided to step up its implementation of EPSDT. inthe Mee of a court suit which charges the state with not developing a programand, as the result of the recent appointment to a high state post of Beverlee A.
Myers. a former HEW official committed to EPSDT.

In a project that will sta rt in September. New York State's Department of
Social Services and Department of Health will strive to link children eligible for
EPSDT with a comprehensive range of health services.

"The program began in 3072 in New York. but to date it has not been effective
in reaching the target population." aecording to a state document which outlinedplans to upgrade EPSDT implementation.

Through a marriage of New York's medicaid program and the regional medieal
program (row). another HEW enterprise whieh seeks to improve the health
delivery system in a variety of ways, the state agency hope:.; to make the vital
1 ink between eligible children and screening services.

The agency plans to fortis its efforts initially on approximately 1:10.000 eIiribie
children in upstate New York. Medicaid funds would finance the screening. diag-
nosis and treatment serviees. not RMP monies would be used to identify the
children and educate their parents to the merits of EPSDT.

New York spends more than $2 billion a year to finance health services under
medicaid. It spends an average of MOO a year on individuals who participate in
medicaid.

Mrs. Myers. a deputy commissioner of the State's Department of Social Serv-
ices, rejects the notion that the EPSDT will be a costly endeavor for states.
"We may well he able to reduce that $300 figure, or at least control how it is spent
better. through EPSDT because it will encourage the delivery of more primary
earn and less hospital care."

-The program' shonld demonstrate that a relatively small amount of flexible
RMP funds can be used as leverage tel make the expenditure of relatively large
amounts of medicaid funds more effective." Mrs. Myers said in an interview.

In New York City, the state agency plans to follow two approaches to imPie-
mentation. One is to inform parents of preschool children through letters of the
a vailability of screening services, whieh are provided by New York City's Health
Denen rtment.

Seeond. New York plans to screen older children through a linkage with the
schools they attend, an approach which has not been aged widely in other juris-
dictions. before New 'York can move forward with till.. approach. thongh. HEW
mnst grant its approval because it will require the department to waive a pro-
gram regula tion.
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OUTLOOK

Come July 1, Dwight said, HEW would be prepared to assess the penalty pro-
vided by law on States that have failed to implement the EPSDT program. But
he said that "assessment of the penalty is an admission of failure" to put EPSDT
in place.

SRS's apparent strategy, as reflected in Dwight's comments and the ageney's
MBO statement, is to grant states the benefit of the doubt on the question of im-
plementation.

SRS's proposed MBO statement on implementing EPSDT indicates that the
agency does not plan to move precipitately to impose the penalty.

For one thing, a lot of money is involved and a quick cut-off would bring
screams of indignation from the states and their representatives on Capitol Hill.

Second, a reduction in the funds would only hurt those Individuals who can
least afford itthe welfare recipients. And third, Dwight is prepared to give
states every benefit in finding ways to comply with the law, such as phasing in
programs over time.

SRS's proposed MBO statement on implementing EPSDT shows that the ageney
plans to use the first three months of fiscal 1975 to assess which states have not
complied with the law.

On Capitol Hill, meanwhile, a spokesman for Sen. Ribicoff said that lie is pre-
pared to take HEW to task if it fails to require states to comply with the EPSDT
law.

[From the National Journal Reports, Jan. 11, 1975 l

HEALTH REPORT/HEW PLANS TO FINE STATES FOR NOT IMPLEMENTING PROGRAM

(By John K. Iglehart)

The Department of Health, Education and Welfare, though it has made only
a token commitment to implement a 1067 children's health program, is preparing
to penalize a number of states for failing to develop fully the same programa in
their OWL Jurisdictions.

HEW plains to impose the penalty, as required by the Social Security Act, on
about a dozen states which it believes have failed to implement the department's
beleaguered Early and Periodic Screening, Diagnosis and Treatment (EPSDT)
program.

In a separate development, the General Accounting Office (GAO) underscored
the problems of EPSDT implementation in a report released Jan. 8 which criti-
cized the eiTorts of HEW and some states in carrying out the program.

Rep. Ralph H. Metcalfe, D-III., who ordered the GAO examination, said in a
sta temen t :

"(HEW) Secretary (Caspar W.) Weinbermr owes the Congress an explanation
of why he did not see lit to provide for the physical well being of these ehil-
dren.... I intend to see to it that these children, their parents and the Congress
hear from the Secretary why this vitally important program was delayed for
so long."

PROGRAM

Under the program. authorized by the Social Security Amendments of 1067
(S1 Stat 821), states must inform all recipients of Aid to Families with Depend-
ent Children (AFDC) of "the availability of citild health screening services."
An estimated 13 million children are believed eligible for the program aimed at
detecting and correcting health problems.

The law says the states must "provide or arrange for the provision of such
screening services" and "arrange for . . . corrective treatnwnt," The servfres are
finaneed under .a medicaid fornmla that obligates the federal government to pay
from 50 to S3 per eent of the cost ; the states pay the rest.

Wcinbrrocr.HEIrs lack of progress in implementing EPSDT is contrary to
a eommitment Weinberger made five months ago when he promised to step up
the department's efforts to develop the program. Weinberger told state officials
at regional naptings on EPSDT implementation that HEW would assign addi-
tional munuower for the tusk.

Then HEW Undersecretary Frank C. Carlucci made similar promises Aug. 16
in a San Francisco speech to state health officials. "We have set aside 125 Job
slots specifically for the medicaid children's program (EPSDT)," Carlucci said

7 9



75

"We are making this commitment at a time when agency job ceilings are in effectand positions are scarce, so this should give you an idea of our determination tomove this program ahead."
Despite Weinberger's stated commitment, he declined on Dec. 24 to fulfill arequest to increase the EPSDT staff by 35 people, or a little more than half thenumber he agreed to allocate threemonths earlier.In early January, it looked as though the program would get 35 new positionsanyway through the intervention of James S. Dwight Jr., administrator of IIEW'sSocial and Rehabilitation Service (SRS).
Dwight allocated 00 new positions to medicaid, and its commissioner, M. KeithWeickel, said he would assign 35 of these slots to EPSDT. The positions wereauthorized under the fiscal 1975 Labor-HEW appropriations bill. Under the legis.lation, Weikel said, the positions must be assigned to HEW's Washiugton head-quarters.
Weinberger's failure to approve the new positions himself reflects HEW budgetconstraints and the Secretary's apparent unwillingness to bolster EPSDT byshifting manpower from other programs.
States.Whlle progress at HEW has been negligible, a number of states thatpreviously neglected EPSDT has committed new resources to the program, al-though HEW staff members who reported this could not immediately document it.One pressure pushing the states to act is concern over the statutory penaltyHEW plans to impose and court suits pending in 10 states which claim these juris-dictions have failed to implement the program fully.A potential fallout from the failure to implement the program is the effect ithas from the standpoint of influencing congressional attitudes on the role statesshould play in a national health insurance program. The Administration's pro-posal, which HEW developed, places states in a prominent role.But Members of Congress who favor a program dominated by the federal gov-ernment point to lack of EPSDT implementation to support their opposition tothe Administration's plans to vest states with majorpowers under national healthinsurance.

GAO REPORT

The program to detect and treat illnesses in poor children has been neglectedsince its birth in 1067 as part of amendments to the Social Security Act. (For de-tails on EPSDT's early history and more recent problems, see Vol. 6, No. 26,p. 969.)
The failure to implement EPSDT moved Metcalfe to ask tbe General Ac-counting Office, an investigative arm of Congress, to examine the program. Be-tween June and December 1973. GAO investigators checked the EPSDT programin Alabama, Idaho, Illinois, Massachusetts, Oregon, Rhode Island, Washingtonand Wisconsin. GAO investigators also reviewed the status of the program atHEW headquarters and at regional offices in Boston, Chicago and Seattle.In its report to Metcalfe, the agency said :
"States are required to provide EPSDT under their medicaid programs. Thisrequirement is to get states to get more actively involved in preventive healthcare by identifying and treating medical problems early. In the long run, theEPSDT approach has great potential for reducing the incidence of long-term,costly medical care.
"HEW has been slow in developing regulations. Also, HEW has not aggres-sively tried to make states comply with the law and federal regulations. BothHEW and the states have been concerned also with the potential cost of providingEPSDT. As a result, only a small percentage of the eligible children have beenscreened.
"As of June 30, 197:3, three of the eight states had not started EPSDT screen-ing, and EPSDT screenings had been provided to only 58.000 of the LS millioneligible children in the eight states. EPSDT screenings that have been performedappear to effectively identify health problems."
OntreackGuidelines issued by HEW recommended that each state activelyseek eligible children by :
informing parents that these services are available and when and. where theycan he obtained;
helping parents understand the nature and purpose of the screening program :enlisting community agencies to locate children eligible for EPSDT services ;providing the necessary transportation to the services.The GAO said it found "a wide variety of outreach methods" and reportedthat states with the most aggressive methods had higher screening rates.
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"For example," it said, "most of the areas in Idaho and Alabama were wing a

variety of outreach methods and, statewide. had higher screening rates than Illi-

nois and Washington which had done little more than mail EPSDT inserts to

families with eligible children."
Texas,The University of Texas Medical School's Regional Health Services

Research Institute conducted an EPSDT "impact and evaluation study" in com-

munities in eight states. other than those examined by the GAO.

"The (Texas) study showed that the average rate of children who appeared

for screening was highest in those localities where families were personally con-

tacted." the GAO report said.
'Allied hcalth.EPSDT program guidelines promulgated by HEW provide that

screening should be performed under the supervision of, or with consultation

from, physlcans, dentists, optometrists and other specialists. However, in some

states a lack of available personnel is said to have inhibited the development of

the program.
"Those shortage areas that extensively used allied health professionals to per-

form EPSDT screened more children than shortage areas that used only physi-

cians." the report said. "For example, in one area In Washington. few children

were being screened because only two doctors were providing EPSDT, and allied

health professionals were not being used.
"In contrast, in mans areas of Alabama, doctors were not available so public

health nurses were doing the screening. The percentages of children screened

in these areas were as high as 62 per cent."
"The number of children screened could be greatly increased nationwide if

HEW would encourage the states to use more allied health professionals in the

screening process." GAO concluded.
Trcatmcat.The Social Security Act requires states to arrange treatment of

medical problems discovered through the screening procedure. But lwanse most

states laek adequate tracking systems, most jurisdictions "generally did not

know whether these children were being treated." the GAO said.

"Several states had plans for computerized systems which could monitor the

health care received by children, but at the time of our field work only Alabama

had an automated follow-up system which could be used statewide," the re-

port said.
"We recommend that the Secretary of HEW direct the administrator, SRS

(Social and Rehabilitation Service), to require the states to establish procedures

to follow up on children with problems identified during the screening process

to insure that needed treatment is provided."
HEW performanec.The GAO criticized HEW fur its lack of commitment to

implementing EPSDT, the screening and treatment program. "As a result of

this and the states' concern about the cost of providing EPSDT. the states hare

been slowly implementing EPSDT and only a small percentage of tlw eligible

children have been screened," it said.
GAO also chided HEW for its slowness in promulgating EPSDT program guide-

lines. saying that only "growing congressional concern and a court suit against

the Secretary encouraged HEW to issue final implementing regulations."

"In those cases where the states are not complying with the law or SRS regu-

lations. we reconunend that the Secretary require . . more aggressive action,

including formal compliance hearings, to bring these states into compliance,"

he said.
Program impact.Tbe deficiencies in HMV's perfortunpee have been reeog-

nized within the department for some time. Weikel, conimissioner of IIEW's

medicaid program, said in an interview. -Most of,the things in the GAO report

we are trying to implement. Obviously the GAO made some valid points."

An HEW oflieial said privately. -The document will have some rent value

because it will attract congressional attention. That will be helpful at this point."

State rcaction.Before the GAO released its study, the eight states examined

by the agency were granted the opportunity to comment on the report. "Each

of the states responded and generally agret d that our report was accurate as

of the time nf our fieldwork. However, they said that much had been done since

t ha t time to implerneut EPSDT."
AlaImmoAlabama's medicaid director "agreed that the cost of the EPSDT

program concerns all the states but he said that the major problem in Alabama's

program implementation is the ineainwity of available providers to screen. diag-

nose and treat the large number of eligible persons on a timely basis...."

8 1



77

Idahothe Idaho administrator told GAO that the state's program "has been
expanded since the time of GAO's fieldwork and many of the problems cited in
the report have been solved."

IllinoisThe director of the Illinois Department of Public Aid told GAO that
many children there -were receiving adequate medical attention under the state's
medicaid program and that there was no need to screen these children."

OregonThe director of the Oregon Department of Ihunan Resources conceded
that the state had no program. -He pointed out that there was no statutory or
regulatory requirement for outreach or followup until July 1, 1974, the effective
date of the Social Security Amendments of 1972."

Rhode IslandThe director of the Rhode Island Department of Social and Re-
habilitation Service told GAO that many children there were exatnined by phy-
sicians working outside of EPSDT.

WashingtonSince the GAO's fieldwork, the director of the Washington De-
partment of Social and Health Services said llie state "has 149, providers of
EPSDT services and has achieved statewide coverage."

WiseonsinThe secretary of the Wisconsin Department of Health and Social
Services said that GAO's report generally reflected the situation then, -but a
great deal has been accomplished since then."

MANPOWER ISSUE

Within HEW, a battle has been underway for five months to bolster the
EPSDT implementation effort through increasing the staff, as Weinberger
pledged.

Since making his commitment, Weinberger held two management meetings to
discuss progress toward the goal. In the latest meeting Dec. 24, he declined to ap-
prove the allocation of new positions to EPSDT.

Though he did not shut the door completely to the request for new positions.
he apparently had found no way to squeeze additional manpower from other
HEW programs, and the Office of Management and Budget refused to allocate newpositions for the program.

But now EPSDT apparently will be upgraded as a the result of a new commit-
ment of manpower that Jim Dwight has made to implementing the program.

Mertin!p.IIEW's responsibility for implementing EPSDT has been debated
in a series of meetings Weinberger has held over the last year.

During early discnssions, program chiefs said the department has a legal oh-
liga ti(ot to fully implement the program. This position was presed by Howard N.
Newman. who headed medicaid for four years before leaving in July 1974. and,
to a lesser extent, by Stanley ii. Thomas Jr assistant HEW secretary for humandevelopment.

Dwight, administrator of the Social and Rehabilitation Service, the bureau-
eratie umbrella under which medkaid operates. was considered the major stum-
bling bloek to aggressive implemetation nf EPSDT. (For details on the early
meetings and Dwight's role. see Vol. 6, No. 26. p.959.)

When Weinberger lea-nen last June of the iinpediments to EPSDT imple-mentationa personal goal of the Secretary'she sought an explanation from
Dwight. In the venrse of these discussions. Wehtberger directed SRS to revise its
fiscal 11175 program objeetive for EPSDT so that more children could be screened.

The revision in the objective. if earried out, would mean a dramatic Shift hi
EPSDT implementation. The first EPSDT objective advanced by SRS simply
sa :

"By .Tune 30.1075 assist the states to make available EPSDT services to 13 mil-
lion eligible children. and to screen during Nutt fiscal year at least three millionof those eligible."

After Weinberger intervened. SIZS upgraded its EPSDT program objective toread :
"By Juni' 30. 1075 assist the states to make available EPSDT services to 13 mil-lion ehirihite ehildren. and to bring into the health care system for Sereening.

diagnosis and treatment (where indicated 1 during the first year for the first timeat least three million of those eligible. This will inerease the total number under
EPSDT or equivalent care from 10 percent of the eligible population (end of fiscal19711 to more (loin 33 percent,"

To flnanee the greater effort, SRS estimated that salaries and exAnses for thenecessary staff would cost $2 million. a sharp increase compared with the fundsneeded to undertake the initially stated program objective.
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In line with Weinberger's commitment to increase EPSDT manpower to 125
people, SRS ideutifed the need in September for 102.5 "man-years" to undertake
the task. But on Sept. 26, Undersecretury Carlucci told Dwight that "a total ceil-
ing of 65 positions for EPSDT could not be increased."

Dwight wrote an appeal to Weinberger. Responding, Weinberger asked SRS to
justify an increase in the EPSDT staff, even though two mouths earlier he pub-
licly had committed the department to enlarging the staff.

In a management meeting with SRS No. O. Weinberger expressed dissatis-
thetion with the explunation of Dwight and asked for more information, accord-
ing to HEW staffers who attended the session.

In au internal department menmrandum dated Dec. 20. 1974, John R. Ottina,
assistant HEW secretary for administration and mana^ement, backed the request
by SR8 for more personnel. The memo, prepared as ar'brieting paper for a meet-
ing Weinberger held Dec. 24 to discuss the BP:=DT staffing issue, said :

'Throughout the entire EPSDT effort. both at the central and regional office
level, inadecriate manpower has caused implementation dehlys and, in some cases,
certain functions have rceivd lss than adequate attention.

-Tlw present on board.stnff 15 central office, 20 regional offices) cannot per-
form adequaady all the tasks which were originally projected to require a staff-
ing level of 100 positions. Inadequate staffing at headquarters has muse(l proo-
lems in policy developmont, interagemy coordination and program planning but
inadequate regional staring ir,t especially critkal:

"no regional offiee has its full complement of EPSDT personnel;
all but two regime: have unfi lled vacancies

"three regions (Boston, Atlanta, Seattle) hare only one EPSDT person on
boa rd.

"In addition to the other tasks required of regional office personnel (techniml
assistanee, monitoring. penalty assessment. and reporting), the most immediate
need Is personnel to assist those states whkh are not in compliance with the
EPSDT penalty provision to develop a corrective action plan."

Pcmat y.--In the face of a statutory requirement that states which failed to
implement EPSDT fully be penalized. HEW is determining which jurisdictions
have failed to abide by the Social St.curity Act.

Under the Social Security Amendments of 1972 Stat 1329), HEW "shalr
reduce by 1 percent the federal payment to the AFDC program of any state which
fails m implement the EPSDT program by July 1. 1974.

With federal expenditures of $4.1 billion provbled for the AWDC program in
the fiseal 1975 budget, thefinancial penalty of a 1 percent reduction in a state's
payment would not be cheap.

In NPW York. for example. a 1 percPnt reduction would amount to $8.7 million.
In California it would amount to $8.3 million. in Illinois $1.3 million. Michigan
$3.S nifilion. Indiana $S00.000 and Wyoming '32.000.

Weikel said that "using the Nnalty is a double edg.M sword. The people who
g. hurt under it are most times the program recipients. We would rather en-
courag th states throngh a positive ineent ive."

But meanwhile. staff nwmbers of the EPSDT program are tktermining which
states KIS ::honld recommend for penalties.

Mr. SANTTXT. Prior witnesses indieatel that ns a onsequenee of at
least m part the failure of HEW to !rive anv sub:4-antire reenforce-
merit of prognun and direction of the program that Conserress instituted
with your guidanee in 1965 that there would not now he 21.000, whieh
is 10 percent of the 210.000. in State faeilities for eitlwr the physieally
or mentally handicapped. who would not be there had there been
adequate screeni no. at the time ?

Mr. CorrEN. I don't know what the exact figure is. T think it is much
larger than 10 percent. myself,

can't prove that by any immediate statistics T have.
think, tomorrow, when the HEW people and partieularly Dr.

Kretehmer who. I think. will accompany them from the National
Institue of Child TTealth and Human Development will be here, you
will get a better estimate.
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I have always assumed in my previous studies on this that there issoniething in the neighborhood of 5 to 7 percent of the children bornwith some kind of physical, mental, or learning handicap, which couldbe prevented or cause less trauma or difficulty for parents of thechildren if there were early screening and diagnosis and treatmentbefore the age of 6.
I think there is a whole host of areas. Let me give you one which istouched on in my paper which I have received from studies of theNational Institute of Child Health and Human Development. Justtake low birth weight alone. If we could overcome by further researchhow to raise the birth weight of children, it is possible, according tothe estimates, that we could save about $1 billion a year in cost toparents and society, from just that one problem alone.
I think the whole problem of further research on improving thatone aspect in early births, the problem of teenage mothers in associa-tion with that whole problem is well worth a good deal of furtherresearch on prevention.
I think all the way along, that problem, the mental retardation

problem, dyslexia, you know, on the question of being able to read,and learning disabilities, if you encompassed all of those in the totality
of physical, mental, educational and learning disabilities, in my opin-ion the prospect of savings to the Nation runs into the billions ofdollars, Mr. Santini.

Mr. SANTINI. Dr. Coher, I would like to ask you if to your knowl-edgeand you have already referred to the (2omptroller General's
report to Ccligress dated January 9, 1975, and I am informed that
HEW has coneurred in maw: of the recommendations contained inthis reportto your knowledge has HEW done anything lo date toimplement any of the recommendations contained in that report ?

Mr. ConEx. I do not know of my own direct knowledge whieh they
have and which they haven't. But I have not seen in the end product
any larye scale result from that.

think one of the problems involves the ineivase in the weber of_
personnel at the central and re(!ional offices to malw that work.

I have a quesion in my mind whether that has been doni,. in any
case. I would wholeheartedly sunport all of these recommendationsfor as prompt implementation as possible.

IN1r. SAx.rist. TO your knoededge. Dr. Cohen. lias Edueft-tion, and Wel Nre done anything to ,mplement widespread te.e of the
screening procedures that wee cmitemplated by both you iit yourinspiration and Congress in its enactment 10 ycars ago ?

Mr. Comm I think that I would have to say that my originalenthusiasm and optimism when I first recommended this to PresidentJohnson, in 1960, was that this would be a starting program for justwhat you talked about today, about eliminatinir all the preventable
diseases and disabilities that occur TO these 10 to 15 million low-income.
chihlren. That has just not happened to the extent that T thought it
would be fcasible 10 years later.

I reerignize the difficulties but I must say that we are very sub-
stantially far behind where I thought we would be by now.

Mr. S.ANTIN1. Would it be fair to say in summary, Dr. Cohen, that
virtually nothing of substance has been done to imPlement the screen-ing procedures that were contemplated ?
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Mr. ConEN. I wouldn't want to go that fal, I think what liag been

done so far on the screeningafter all, 11 tiliiiie,n chihlren,

0111, . H. Ita health

.c;:lvthis

la4

year, received some kind of medical benefit ltadQr

kind of medical benefit paid for under the Protyram
i thAt

Dll,dicalo----
NI sometin) e . i
I. don't

want to diminish thatout of 26 million p,

Recognizing the financial difficulties of 04' taies and t4,e other
problems. I think that is appreciable step foNord, but not sil,nificant

treatment.

daoses and snt
enough in my opinion for the earliest di.4 t'. 1stan la

Mr. SANTINI. Dr. Cohen. I particularlY A-41u tq expre:iS tu.N. admira-

tion and appreciation for the quality ana snLttiRee of .-onr t :

Mr. Counx. Thank you. sir.

-v%totionv

testify before us.

pful as a foundqtiak for inrthet .
to this committee. It is hel

1 apiirv

representatives from tl . Tsnev N
b VI 1'

with other ie ap- vb.o nia3 c . )aring to

Mr. SMIEU'En. Dr. Nhen, I would like to taw you np to 1t.ie /noun-

taintop for a moment and ask of von a sort. of bililosophical ei:phn-

ation for one of the anomalies we face in de-. ty q qtioi

program today.
In America we have something over10 p f r p

that is poorthat is 20 million Ainericans.
i..cetit 0 ou epnlat ion

Looking at the children of the poor. we find that 50 Percent, mire

kids in poor families than in other popuhati3O krollps are "Int inii".._

nized against poi h.). Nine retarded bY ihre 11. 4-0

defeets, six times more hearine- defects antifice time .e II. Iheart attacks among the kids of the poor,percent have never seen a dentist by age 17- There are thr" tii'-e-; more
percent are meanly

,
co-NA t imes

s moz.t menta.
inr1:1 .,i, .11

illness.
Now. my question to you is to what extellt dees the avail)] le thm

:-.
disease '.iii 1 1 -t 11. 1 1 -. :

indicate that the hielier incidence of
preventable. is due te the lack of ayailabitit'l. -ailliit1.117thaea,,, to the

of t Ais is

hneer socioeconomic classes? To what eNtent i., this dne -io tit' moi... ,,f

effective use of the existing health care sYsttoi anti to o-lw ``.1,-,ai. is,

this due to the personal behavior and life tyle, or let is SlY. tr. d i O'er-

ewes in personal behavior and life style of ihe parents of llitIser .kids 4

I will remark parenthetiralle that there k,erD to be enOl'ii-;;(1)sti(gliiif(:

feren yes in health and in font niortality ill 1.741gland and R1 i -I

among various soeioeconomie groups, even tivoili pablic betlli s;try-

ices air ava ilable to all.
In our own omitry. for example. there \,-; eine Ftiolv (4(11 e on the

[LW of dental services b!' the poor as romnired to the Midtlii income

groups. and the only dental service tltIt wa- used mon' hv edit. Door

than by middle-income people was tooth ext4ell'ons. which i",,.'Dleace

of the failure of the system.
All other sevies involving preventive llelifli were liell far more by

the middle-income members. -of this 40(.4 licaltli servi(" delivery

system.
In designing-a national health proo, Tam 1,anw I hat we h. n lim-

itation on our resomres. "We are already sh, iiiiug s Deire4

on health. and there must be some upper ICtlia,' 11-)

or 1.2 percent, or it may be the S percent ire pending \\.. hut

certainly finite.
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Ice can't 1,. no anything. Do we spend oar %lite reso.urces NsarilY
111 proviumg more sophlsti

v the
eated health servies? Or (I.° " ill,3",,,,, to

use more effectirel
e co:a:1111)1e,

1Q11) peoi,,ile

ii.vnilahle Or do we try to
health .ez,vices that are ,ii,::,ds;

ife styles, on diet, on ex
tobacco, drligs

Mc

t ry

inip-lct on ft:clix'.(!criticaloit
use of I

and, of course, diet of woinon jiving Pregm;nev i
1:Ital)triosettiliteeesmix, in other

ri 0 r 1 t If s. .,11 brovit...be i 'llea1t!-1-words, in the end broatict:panteiv - lo

1 t histieated health ',erviccs. in
good health? What should 014,

e have More effectively,
nore so.)

in trying to liavk, da hop. De.oplciet on
ior and liie strle?

ittg. to utdize t4 _too

13(1)srlis1 ibtehrlittle of everything?
b -fr. Cout.. I think 1 woilld
eeause I.zaess I am the kind of person wh° Itl.ieves I' loil Qiversil)

have to saY it i,, a littlel of ftre)).thinfir:

lly portfolio if 1 Wahl pnt it in those terths
Aye needf tr Int more hea i et ilea lOn. hietlt1 1 t' PA '-'. ilarlY

C,m, from, bilt:ti, by
le.

for tk.c, 0,ers,

1)t.oblems that
°I. instance. -I-9iiiere is no ilueStion in Ply iili1,4 that a great ( .,11 4 th

we are lumsehlted in the ehilu field
t:t.., 33,16-)'ear-olds and the low' birth weight gad the Inent_i 1

lack of parental responsibilItY'llaicid:0-

1 I think there is a great deal for parent equeation in that f.

%tad dn a lot about that.
same time, as I poi would pi It FOlUe 111,0rk InerieYnted ont T

1,4o more bzisie research certainly to find 014, how quite 3'
4Iniber of the problems.

ie At the
to resolve

Put a lot more money into family planning Servies. IfI would
-i Q are tallii,b_ 1

tilink the
z aoont what we were tolking ilhoat few nulPtes ago,

0. --2...: to put Wore in011ev andfailure f ITT AI 1 i tra°
'bn to put

the aaavn..,
'Hort! money into IA . if 1 lenielitat. 1 of the fa mill. 'ivy

tin . ,-, , 1 ' 1 p 'It 'Of )1%- ire' I) ' -nr p.to,.,1.1111 witere tae cost-is 1-et low"11benefit resit -8 are snoi . 1

;iaportant,
%re are not talki no. there about billions. I 41.0 talking thele

!i+50 $73 million a year -which. Would be ignillenitt:-$1.0
i:-, minim, .1, rear more fol. Nicirp. These . not the big-sne '-iipg

1.)Pc) 1,-.,. T1 ' -

otzl,"t her Sin,
qre

1 the healt, nc , -.,aoney into tile rtsearca. 11, eau.atgl'n" ney are putting i
(o1 too. and the family planninn. areas which 1 oink ate \ et y
iioieuti:d. Bi1 . that is not to
sot' of Poor People who are oot

stiv in Inv opiniN that there are a
getfing the folle Colunle CI healtil

;viees that peo,-le with higher ;utcolnes tret."
15:11e9 :'.°1 study that situation, annuaraoetot i.,its Peri PeNon in

were,.3.8 for poor people and 4.3 for lit)npoor pe°P e.
vi,.'1r people were obviously retting about II jolf of

Per
one

It'

Physician
yenc less for all children ander the wfe, of ii,7.

1 I- tl .Lit that is relateq ill part to dijack 0- f nnjerstan and
the health s

th.'llit it ,is also related to .the lack of facilitie,S
sibility tone thin ,..

--vqent. where mothet,,, and
4 Ilflren hve- Here is my i
L. vet.). strong.

Pn-nt on that. The reqsoa I have alwaqheen

who are Pon l' .th4%4, .' 1 suPPortet ...or nein.hborhood li ,.,Jth centers.
ar been is becu t q IVO0 . . Ise Ca in. Il 4-lens-rvc Attu a

tb,'Ini-2. ennui en, taking t he child to get hea/t!! service"; L'' 4 I's IqtziStiC
'411,:i, esPeCian'y if you have two or three do iqreo and you nowt,
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an aaltornobile,
lOng

and you have to go to some place where you wait a

I think for child health services you must do even more than yondo for adults to bring the health services physically in proximity to
the family. You can't ask the mother or child to go 10 miles. Yon have
to have those services in the community and they should be invested
with itigh degree of health education, family planniv, screening,
ditigoosis, and preventive work.

So 1 cluess rny answer to vanr question is that I think we could do
scane.wbrat better on an the aspects you mentioned, particularly where
the 13,ederal Government's role is in stimulating the access to thoseserrkes.

pla

.

AL% scirtrna- I ain particularly sensitive to what you say about the

r
Poet. nerformance of the administration in supporting the family

noinr.r. prostram.
T.31I \Vas the Itouse author of the 1970 Population Ileearch and Family
',L.,,ialltling, -Act whieli had the support of George Bush, who was chair-
.ssaa of r De Republican House Task Force on Population and Family
PlatIllioa. and? of colnsse, Joe TydiRos in the Senate.

the onlyliNffr survivor of that trio in the Congress. it has fallento ei io Push Federal appropriations for family planninsr and. par-ttealiirly. to generate enthusiasm for it in t1.,s administr:Kion.
I ton' ,ns pt.rplox,,I as you are as to why the r...ministration hasbeen so inslifforwo ts. it clnd why it has imposed its policy of honign

-.1anning. program.
1. /),. 1:4 lth ,T, .ogram today whieh ivill so enormonly imle,ct

on the i

phi, t- in ot:i. eonntry 1 5 years from now as family
nwanted birtits.

'1"; co!q-benefit fAetcr of a dollar of Government invest-
ts7ent .i,i Innzily Planning is :',1;.,littely spectacular when you eon,,iderthe,iil,.t expenditures.

\.1.4.1 this eos.t-livnetit faetor bc.,..ome:: overwhelmina when :vat eon-
51:i""1' the in'iir'-'t ''(,t of the imwanted child to the Govermu,nr. and

se7ouof.
rhk. ',ovum:v.:ion.

le, Probability tt,nt of mental re#ardation, physical I lisahn:ty.
"14 01notimlat 111,4abirit-,. will be conce:itrpted in the low ineome

'lien yo;: e.,:tr.1001,.,t,, tho cot to society of taking care of those
1'418 awl their -"-'14 :01 (Ai/cation. health, and housing needs. and .the
cost thir! wiarued kids in broken families who lnimp their heads.
rathel.,,,..oc;tetahly. il,rainst the criminal justice system. it seems nlmost
a Inill(ilos abbe...:ztion not to help women who don't want to ha ve

0..31;111g to achieve that goal o: to space eh .clren ag-!cord-fil.nY ftirtlici' a

1.--erc ..:fi t,t;lYwriets.; from :.', to 4 tr,..o:i 17:oinsui in our
country
4' ti(, th'' drr-reilshec r". the women.

svi'o F.tid z_elr:not get t'rilily plann

20pula,:ioi: rC'sPar.:

inr.--....,..r tbe information
ot' the frolutioues a the,,r neighborhoo(6. evf.,r, I. $,1.."li the go..,. .,f t he

w.t-aiti 5 year. the :!stimated
.11 and Family Plain.ting Ail. was to rear:h

5 million women CI- eliihnering years
wilt) Nre felt then ..I.S .n formation. We ha. e pow :.oin-'1:(1 not bay.. ti i i I

riCfg4.1 ft.e ,.-year Period and tbore are still at leaFt :21.., minis:a. to
,'. million Women in nis conntrf who despei ately nees1 family 1)1;1;11:lug
aria aon't bate it.
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I did not mean to make a long soeech, but I :pnt to indicate my'sensitivity.
Mr. Lemov, do you have anything to ask?
Mr. LE3tov:-No, Mr. Chairman.
Mr. ScuEunit. Mr. Segal ?
Mr. SEGAL. I would like to ask two questi .1r. Secretary : Youmentioned cost containment as one of the iss at you felt, should berequired as the Federal share increased.
As you are well aware, this subcommittee looked extensively intoareas of unnecessary surgery and the need for good utilization reviewcriteria.
Would you think that that is an example of the kind of cost con-tainment. possibility you were referring to in a very general sense ?Mr. COFIEn Yes; of course, I favor an effective program of utiliza-tion review and professional standards review orgamaztion.I recognize the difficulty one has in persuading many physiciansto undertake that responsibility, but I believe the two provisions inthe existing law ought to be implemented more cooperatively with thephysici ans.

I would hope now that the AMA case against HEW on the utiliza-tion review has been withdrawn. HEW and the physicians can gettogether and discuss what is an effective utilization review standardand make that work. That, I think, is one of the big responsibilitiesfor this nextyear or two.
Mr. SEGAL. Would you think HEW and Congress ought to developstronger incentive programs than currently exist, particularly inline with your point about this program which is not an incentiveprogram but a penalty program, that States ought to be given incen-tives to do things rather than penalties.
Mr. Conr.x. ne of the things I would do is to rive an incentive forthe program, talking about children, for payin! :wimary physiciansand pediatricians on a per capita basis rather 6;411 on a fee for servicesbasis.
I think one ought to be able to work out with the American Acad-emy of Pediatricians and Pediatrics in this country a kind of continu-ous care program for children which is what Dr. Green was reallytalking about a couple of hours ago, and pay the physicians not on afee for services basis. Let ine give you an illustration.

The average cost now would be' about $250 per year per child to thophysician : For every 12-month period, let us sav $240 that is $20 amonth per child, for each month that you agree io be responsible forthe total basic primary care of a child, we will pay you $20 a month,$240 or $250 a year, whatever is mutually agreed upon.Mr. &HEUER. What would his kid load be?
Mr. Conr.x. I don't know. Every time I say that, I get complaintsfrom doctors who tell me it is too high.
I think on that professional question you ought to ask a pediatrician.Mr. SCREUER. This question is too important to be left to doctors.Mr. CoREN. I understand.
I would say that if you include, of course, well baby care as well ,assickness and soon
Mr. ScHnuEu. Also preventive.
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-III:. Coins [continuing]. I3oth for the kid and the parentsit is

'entirely possible that 1 physician could care in the course of a year

for 750 persons.
:NEr. Scururn. wonld do well financially.

'Arr. Con Ex. That means not. everybody is in. I am using a different

kind of concept over the years, dependin!* on how frequently he calls

in a mother andchild.
Mr. Scururn. At $240 a month for 750 kids, he would do consider-

ably better than aMenther of Congress.
Mr. Comx. I produce in my paper the. relevant. figures from tbe

Social Security report. which Show that. the health expetulitures for

children nnder age 19 in 1974 was t1.S3 for the United States, for

everybody tinder the age of 19.
Mr. ScurrEn. Would von repeat that ?

Mr. Cour.x. Per capita expenditures for all personal health expen-

ditures varied widely with age.
For children under al.re 19. per capita expenditures in 1974 were

S1S3 compared to $420 for persons aged 19 to 64, and $1.21S for per-

sons aged 65 and over.
That is in my testimony, produced front time study, the. Social Secu-

rity study on age differences 'n health care spending whiNt yon might

like to look at.
Mr. Scot:cm:. Eli Cohen. dean of the Columbia School of Business,

told me a few weeks back. in New York City. that we are spending

$2.500 year per family on welfare for their heaIth services.

Yov. h a t wouhl incinde many sick and elderly people, as well as

',rail good sized families.
Bot. I le, mix produces a cost of $2,500 year for the health care

of people on welfare in New York.

Mr. CoriEN. Could I make. this observation. too. considering the

three fainil-ie's that you had testifyin!, this morninp:. My general

thought is i f everybody were to pay into sotu :,. kind of fund over a

long period of thne. ou average out the bigitest (73 *zs and the

low' cost risks. No parent knows. aryl here is 1 .1,
signir-4.,; point, no

parent knows. not a sinctle one of th-nse mot h h , fr Morc you

today nor the father, knows wheth.or-ther
have. a men-

tally retarded child or not when their e7. a with

a disability.
Mr. Sclirl"'a.

u4-11 of that be ?d by tesf;: 3rtt in

pregnan,y-.- ;: atonlot fluid ?

Mr. Coztry. Thcc- lot -c thincrs that could be done, but basi-

cally. what I an) t: , '4. sa- is i-o rsk of this tremendous economic

and social !, ihat r o: of us who a tv parents really ran

say. lieenn..., we ,tic r:eh or bccanse we have enongh income orbecause

we are health=:. w«imi't know the impact of the genetic, environ-

mental. and other factors.
Mr. SeurrEn. We must. socialize that cost.

Mr. Cmtrx. If 'son redistribute the cost over the sick and the well,

the poor and the rich, the middle income and so on, Ive:;; all be better

off in the long tam than the s7.-4em we have now. which says. finance

part of the cost for the poor ail41L: the lines yon have, let somebody

else take care of their own. a rld if it is a really Iti!di cost we will

institutionalize the child.
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That is not a very sensible approach in dealing with this problem.
Mr. SEGAL. Could .1 just conclude from the point you made about

the capitation for a fixed annual amount for pediatricians, the next
evolutionary step you would purpose would be to cover a population
suth as zero to age 6. This would provide for the Federal Government
to pick up the cost, at the same time iilleviate the State budgets and in
the process provide the total comprehensive package of care necessary
for children?

Mr. COHEN. Absolutely, Mr. Segal.
I think it would have these ad-vantages: it would take part of this

burden of financial cost of the States Off the medicaid program.
Second, it would put a preventive, as well as a curative, approach

into the total package, comprehensive range of medichl services.
Third, it would enable you to approach it on a per capita cost.

rather than on a fee for service cost which I think would bring the
whole concept of the. primary practice of medicine into focus, giving
an individual practitioner a comprehensive responsibility in giving
people a family physician ; the reason I imike this suggestion is
roughly, IS million children up to age 6. That is a problem for size
and dimension that is )ossible for use to handle.

When I can think of, which is a desirable objective of d
cr

g every-
thin fo.- 220 million people, very desirable objective, but when-I think
hoNj.I would get from where I am now to that point. I can see a lot
of obstacles.

But for IS million children, considering all the. factors we dis-
cussed, there is a reasonable chance tluit we could do a reasonable
job within certain cost limitations, certain alministrative
that are within the competence of the medical and health pro le,sion.

I think- it makes it a feasible incremental step in the objective that
everOody wants.

Mr. SEGAL. Do you feel the cost would be minimal or possibly
negligible because physkians would have incentive to cut down un-
necessary procedures and at the same time provide a comprehensive
package of care ?

Mr. Cont.:x. For the childrenlet me sav this: I can't quite agree
with this formulation for this reason : I don't tl, ink there are very
many unnecessary procedures for children und c ;IT age of 6 at the
present time.

There are, as I undersOnd, too many tonsils 1..4 adenoids taken out
but one of the reasons why I favor a no deduetible. no coinsurance
for medical care for children under 6 is that 1 on't think the over
use, over utilization issue which applies to termi.tal illness and (!ns-
metie surgery and all the other things, I don't think that applies to
parents and children under age 6.

I can't conceive of what you would normally call abuse in terms
of overutilization. What is an abuse? Gobc, to die doctor every
week or every month ?

Well. if the inotlwr is willing to cart tbe child to the doctor and v.-lit
in the waiting- room, there nmst be sometbinir in her in ind that sibe
would like to have satisfied, and, therefore. I think tlw overuse, o,.er-
abuse factor is not so present in the early childhood thing as it might
be elsewhere.
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My argument would be tlmt any such program would increase
utilization.

Mr. SCHEME. Would you also apply that to prenatal care? .

Mr. COHEN. Absolutely. I was going to say my whole conception of
the idea is prenatal, postnatal and delivery and to the extent that
our scientific knowledge could do the testing prior to birth as you
indicated, fine.

mr. SCHEVER. I think there is a doctor at the Rockefeller Institute
at New York. Rene du Bois, who has done experiments on rats and
mice indicating when you extrapolate it to human beings, that if a
mother has had an inadequate diet (hiring the prenatal period.. or if
the child has an inademmte diet during the first year of infancy,
liere. is considerable. identifiable damage done to the cortex of tho
brain.

When that child has an adequate diet, there is some recovery. But
ven when the child 7ets a fully adermate diet, after the age of 2 or
3. there is much damaep that is irremedial.

There is also some evidence that mothers who haVe had ehildren
born substantially under normal weielit, when their history is exam-
ined. the. only single identifiable. feattire that. joins all these women
IS that they were born in a year, perlmps IS or 20 or 92 years before,
when there was a depression in which these th bad hiadequate
diets.

Inadequate diet &rin e. infancy not only has some irremediable
lefects on the brain development, of that ehild. but, if it is a female
-NH. on her offspring as well. even thongh she has a normal diet. and
idequate health care from infancy on. I don't know of any more stark,
lialletie or dramatic iustification for the total kind of prenatal and
onstnatal care that yo.i are talking about.

Mr: OMEN% I might say. Mr. Schener, I read the same material
hat you me, be quoting from and I was impres.sed by it. I came to
-wo final conchisions which might be well within.the purview of your
mbcommittee.

T think the HEW propTam on nutrition
Mr. Sminter.n. Would von repeat that?
Mr. COTTEN. HEW's responsibility in the field of nutrition which
tried to s.,t up when I was there. and I wish I had done more
Mr. SCHEUER. We all wish we had done more.
Mr. Cour.N. Yes; but I think that the. nutrition program ought

o ho.cvamined to see where that can be strengthened because of the
in;nt you made.

See/m(1. I have suegested and recommended. since the Secretary
Agrieultnre has suggested it. that the food stamp plan be trans-

'erred to HEW, which he recommended. and that von take, the food
tamp proctrain. however Conctress ainends it. or (Ines not amend it
n the future, and the marition program that is in HEW and bring
Item together and really have an expanded and strenzt.hened marl-
ine progrnm that would try to rifle into dna] with the problem.

There is an area where incidentally, there is a great deal of agree-
nent on what you and I are talkin,- ohmt. but somehow nobody is
loing whet everody agrees ought to be done.
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I think ; 1 ; ifk;..f t.iat .s w-....n your committee's purview, you ought totake a POd look at that because I think a lot could be done to im-prove t hat.
-Ain ScutuEn. Dr. Cohen, we thank you for appearing before us.Your are always a Pleasure and a Privilege for us.apPearances here
We va.lue your counsel and wisdom as well as your inexhaustiblefrienclAup.
[Wheroipon, at 13:45 ia.m., the meeting was adjourned, to recon-vene at 10 a.m. on October 0, 1975.]
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Sciences in 1971. and 19%, assessing the quality of medical care for
children.

The. study. "Assessment of Medical Care for Children." was de-
signed as a field trial of a new methodology to measure medical care
quality. Quality assessment was at that timeand still is todaya very
printitive science. All efforts are beset by a number of problems: What
things to measure, how to measure them, and how far to extrapolate
the findings. Nevertheless, progress is being made. Even while meth-
odologies are being refined, we can gain an important understanding
of problems in heithli care delivery 'from studies such Os Ours so long
as we understand their limitations and are careful in the kinds of con-
clusions we draw.

Our study rests on the premise that one can get indications of par-
ticular shortcomings or deficiencies in medical care quality by looking
at what we call tracers. Tracers are medical problems and the specific
medical services perta Min!, to those problems selected in such a way
as to highlight common aspects of the care process that are critic:a
to its effectiveness. Our study used four tracersiron deficiency
anemia. middle car disease, hearing loss, and uncorrected vision defects.
Families with children between the ages of 6 months and 11 years were
selected from three areas of Washingtonthe Congress Heights neigh-
borhood in the southeast, the inner city neighborhood of Cardozo, and
the Shepherd Park and Takoma neighborhoods in the northwest. The
1,700 families included had a wide. range of incomes and a wide Variety
of sources of pediatric race : namely, solo practit ioners. small fee-for-
service groups, a prepaid group pntctice. a neighborhood health cen-
ter, hospital clinics and emergency rooms, and city-run public health
clinics.

The purposes of the study were to determine whether any significant
differences existed between t Ile quality of medical care and the, type of
organization providing t hat, care and whether such differences were
related to the ways in which the practices were managed. Our focus
was the general pediatric care given to children in the study popu-
hit ion.

Data were obtained from four sources : An interview witli the child's
mother, a clinical examination of the, child in facilities provided by
rhihlren's Hospital. a questionnaire sent to the physician named by
the mother NS her child's primary source of medical care. and, for three
of the organizational groups. an abstract of the child's medical record.

This research design limi+s the kinds of generalizations that can
be made about medical care for children :

Our subjects came from selected neighborlmods of one V,S; city.
Both affluent and poor families were included lint the populaticm

st udied was predominantly black :
Data for comparisons among the provider groups did not in-

clude all providers in Washington. Those included -
sented only by the portion of their patients \Nil& lived 7 .4 I
areas.

Because of logistical and cost considerations, medical c,ord
data on the adequacy of care was obtained from just three of the
six provider groups: and

Only four tracers were used in making health status and ade-
quacy of care determinations.
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I understand that a major interest of this subcommittee in schedul-ing these hearings is the early detection and screening program formedicaid patients.
Because screening techniques exist for three of our four tracers, Ithink some of our findings might be particularly relevant, to your con-siderations. Of special interest are the vision mul hearing problemswhich are so critical to the. educability of school-age children.One of the more striking findings was the high prevalence of allfour health probtems:

Middle ear disease in varying degrees of severity was found inone-fifth of the children examined :
Hearing losses were detected in 19 percent of the to 11-year-old children. Over one-third of these losses were in the soundfrequencies relevant to umlerstanding speech :Twenty-six percent of the school-a:re children failed a compre-hensive vision screeniv test; and
Among the preschool children, more than one-fourth wereremic.

Contrary to accepted viewes. disease prevalence was nct uniformlyrelated to social class. Except for hearing loss, we did not find lowerdisease rates in chihlren from higher income families. A more signifi-cant determinant than income was the educational attainment of thechild's mother. While the prevalence of both anemia and hearin-g lossdecreased regularly with increasing educational levels, middle eardisease or vision ddeet rates did not.An unexpected finding was that prevalences rates for each ,tracerwere the same regardless of the kind of organization providing thechild's routine pediatric care. Thus the prOportions of children withanemia, uncorrected problems of vision. ear disease and hearing lossdid not vary according to whet her their source of care was public orprivate, a single physician or a group of physicians, prepaid or paidby a fee for each service.
The adequacy of medical care for each of these comlitions wasjudged by comparing information from the medical record on thecare provided against a predetermined set of criteria of adequacy. Thecriteria were developed by panels of primary rare physicians andspecialists and specified what they considered to he standards forminimidly adequate care,
All three provider groups included in this phase of the studyaprepaid group practice. a neighborhood health center. and 12 hos-pitals---performcd poorly in t he areas of screenimr and detection ofdisease.
Although 72 percent nf Preschool patients had Leen screenedfnr anemia, only 14 percent of slinol-inre children hail I wen tested forvisual prohlems. The einnher of children found by our examination tohave evidence of ear disease was only sliirlitiv less than their medicalhistory documented over the whole period of their va re. Less thin 3pereent nf flue Aildren had received hearing testimr even though themedical records showy] one-third to have svmotoms of a dian.nosis ofear infection.z. and thin: fo have a risk of lienrincr loss.Componudin, the inadeouneies in sereeninc..,1-f, found frequent fail-ures to 'follow up ahnormal sereenimr test results with treatment. Of
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the children screened for anemia, 36 percent had laboratory test re-

sults below normal limits; yet 2 in 3 of them were neither diagnosed

as anemic nor given simple iron therapy. We did kind considerably

better followup ill referring vision and hearing test failures for

specialty care.
Among the children who actually did receive care for their problem,

cases of inappropriate treatment were also found. One-fourth of the

patients with diagnosed middle ear infections were not treated vitii.

appropriate antibiotics. Among eliddmit wlm wore glasses, 72 Nieciti

were not corrected appropriately or unlequately. We found cases where

glasses were worn which were not needed and some children even had

poorer visual acuity wit h their glasses t hen without t hem.

The major findings of this stinly, whieh I've brielly summarized,

ha ye. provoked considerable discussion and distress in the medical eon,-

iminnty, especially here in Washington. Some may not agree with

our criteria for determining disease-nondisease eases in the clinical

study and sonic may disagree with aspects of our standa rtIs for judg-

ing adequacy of medical care. However. many of the more striking

results are not dependent on lanentially debatable areas of inediral

judgment, but rest on an uncontroversial fonndation of what consti-

tutes good medical practice.
Without timer efforts of this kindwhich are expensive anti require

years to conipletewr have no real way of knowing how widespread

such high disease rates arc or how frequently such deficiencies in die

adeqtnicv of care occur. Despite sonic met hod ologica I limitations of

the study, which I have described. I am confident the findings are

valid. Since there is no reasom to assume there is anythin!, particularly

unique about the population studied. we tints( he concerned abont the

kinds of inadequacies in medical care for children that this research

docnments.
Mr. (liniment. this mupletes my prepared statement. I wouhl be

happy to answer any questions the rommit tee might want-to ask.

Mr. OrrisoKii. These are startling results. They have frightening

inqulirations.
Do pm have any suggestions as to what Congress might do to help

out in this kind of sitnat ion ?
Mat you are saying is, in effect, i f we go ahred end insist that HEW

implement the screening progrem to its fullest. i f it is done in the

manner it. is done here in Washtngton it will not make any difference

anyway. it nniy make things worse.
-Ars ti:,;()w. think we ha ye a problem with the treatment and fol-

lowup of children who ini!dit fail such a screening program. We must

mutrantee that adequate care will be provided for those children who

are referred.
Nfr. ( h-rr xomt. Does this indieate that a major effort ouglit to be

made on training people to do the screening process in conjunction with

aur ulpening. effort ?
Sxow. I think in conjunction with any screening effort we have

to insure that the system to which these children aro referred is going

to handle the prolilems uneovered in screening.

Mr. arrtNor.a. Was that where the failure wes? Tt was not the fail-

me of the screening to pick n p the probleins?
Ms. S xow. It. was bruth.
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There were findings that a number of children simply were not
screened at all, and of those who were screened, many with abnormali-
ties were not treated.

Our criteria perhaps are controversial but those children labeled as
anemic on the basis of hematocrit levels, often failed to receive appro-
priate attention. It appears that htboratory slips placed in the record
were neve utilized.

Mr. ()WINGER. Mr. Sharp ?
Mr. SHARP. Yes.
You indicated that the education level of the mother was of critical

importance.
One thing that keeps coming back to us is that at some point some-

body is not taking responsibility, whether it is the professiolud service
that is offered or the screening organization of the family parent.

I am wondering if you have some suggestions on how we can more
effectively reach these parents.

It obviously makes a difference, whatever socioeconomic level, as to
whether or not the parents are aggressive in their own health care or
for their children, it seems to me, and making sure they are getting the
best treatment.

Most of us in our own families have had experiences where we are
unwilling to accept an answer we are (riven and we press for another
answer or go somewhere else. Obviout.sly that may not be an option
open to someone of a lower economic starta.

It sounds to me like we can make organizational reforms. We can
require certain things to happen, and at some point we have to do a lot
of consumer education.

Ms. Sxow. I think we do ; yes.
I understand Children's Hospital plans a program here in Wash-

ington to do just that, to get the mothers involved in the system and to
educate them about the resources available and what to look for in
their child, what should prompt them to seek care.

Mr. SHARP. In your study, were you dealing with the parents, hem-
selves ?

Did the people in the study have direct experience with these people
or is this a paper work kina of thing where you actually don't com-
municate very closely?

Ms. SNOW. We had home interviews with the mothers of all the
children. Then we brought the children to a clinic at Children's Hos-
pital to be examined. Then we had followup contact with the mothers
to insure that all the children found to have screening abnormalities
got care.

We offered free medical care to children whose families could not
afford it if their child had some problem uncovered by us in our exami-
nation. Many times, even though the care was free and we offered to
provide transportation, people just simply didn't take advantage of it.

Mr. Slum.. Did you try to assess why that was the case, whether it
was negligence on their part, of whether they were intimidated?

Ms. Smow. Or perhaps they didn't understand that an untreated
ear infection could lead to serious consequences in terms of hearing loss.

Mr. SHARP. It is very clear that most of us have not been very aware
of how diet might affect our own health and I don't profess to know
much about it. We hear startling kinds of statements made wluch most

60-800-75-7
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of us have ignored. Even though we consider ourselves reasonably
well-educated. I am just wonderimx how we can r.et beyond this posi-
tion that ultimately even where people have information theydon't act.

What can you chi?
I feel some sense of responsibility toward the ehildren. To an adult

who refuses to act on information and opportunity, it is very difficult
to sense a great deal of responsibility toward that person.

I guess I am philosophizing.
"Mat was disturbing to the medical community? You said it created

quite a controversy? What did the controversy surround? Are they
concerned that some medical professionals don't believe that these
children are not getting service? What shook people up?

Ms. Sxow. I think ii. was a mixture of some defensive reaction and
some real concern. A common reaction was "It was not. me: it was not
the. children I took care of, but we have the problem in Washington."

I think the medical society i:- concerned. I don't think any action at
that. level has taken place.

Mr. Str Arte. Was there a resistance to the finding that in the prob-
lem of glasses, the problem of lack of treatment, lack of follownp
that, there was resistance to the truth. and they wanted to ignore that ?

Ms. SNOW. There was close inspection of the criteria and examina-
tion methods we used. I think they stood the test of that scrutiny: now
there is acceptance that. the findings are valid for the people included.

I am not sure. there is acceptance that the findings might be. valid for
a wider population.

Mr. SitArr. I wondered if you came across any organizational
reeommendation.

It seems to me once the child is in school it would he fairly easy,
assuming that there is a decent attend:tnee at school, to keep track of
a child's medical record to guarantee that they have certain kinds of
testing, certain kinds of followup if you have responsible school
officials.

Obviously the real problem we are trying to get at is before school.
I wonder if you are aware of any way in which this might happen

that would supplement parental responsibility.
Ms. Sxow. One. thing we suspect in the finding that the pediatricians

screen so few of their children for vision is that perhaps they assume
that, the. school is doing it and. therefore, it isn't their responsibility.

Mr. SnAup. You are suggesting that professional people. like, pedia-
tricians may not take seriously the question of vision ?

I mean. some of them. I assume it is not universal. In other words,
the standards within the profession, itself, as to what. they ought to
be concerned with vary and that one pediatrician may take very seri-
ously vision and another may not screen for that.

Ms. Sxow. Or perlitips the pediatrieian assumes that since the pa-
tient has glasses he niust-be receiving vision care somewhere: it would
never occur to him to think that maybe these glasses were passed on
from the. patient's older sister, or were several years old.

Mr. SHARP. So. nobody in the system outside of the parent
Ms. Ssow. We have such a mobile society that. we have to focus the

responsibility in the family. Perhaps there are ways that, we can help
them manage that responsibility. It seems to me that is where it ought
to be.
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Mr. SHARP. Thank you very much.
Mr. &MINIMS. Mr. Sa ;
Mr. SANTINI. No qut as.
Mr. OTTINGER. Counsel I
Mr. SEGAL. No questions, Mr. Chairman.Mr. Orrixor.R. Thank you very much, Ms. Snow, for being withUS.

You have given us a good deal to think about. We appreciate it.Ms. Sxow. Thankyou.
Mr. OTTINGER. Next we will have a panel of pediatricians: Dr.George Lamb, Boston, Mass.; Dr. Frederick North, Pittsburgh, Pa.;and Dr. Alfred Yankaner, Worcester, Mass.We are going to put the time clock to you very severely. We wouldlike each of you to make a short statement. We will have to do thiswithin an absolute maximum of 10 minutes each so that we will have"7-some opportunity for interchange.We certainly appreciate your taking the time and trouble to bewith us..I have seen your statements. I think that they definitelycontribute to our efforts.

Whichever of you would like to proceed first may do so. If youwant me to resolve it, I will resolve it.
STATEMENTS OF A. FREDERICK NORTH, M.D., PEDIATRICIAN,PITTSBURGH, PA. ; GEORGE A. LAMB, M.D., ASSOCIATE PROFESSOR.DEPARTMENT OF PREVENTIVE AND SOCIAL MEDICINE, HAR-VARD MEDICAL SCHOOL, AND PEDIATRICIAN AT CHILDREN'S-HOSPITAL MEDICAL CENTER, BOSTON, MASS. ; AND ALFREDYANKAUER, M.D., PROFESSOR OF COMMUNITY AND FAMILYNEDICIRE, u.DavERSITY OF MASSACHUSETTS MEDICAL SCHOOL,WORCESTER, MASS.

Dr. NoRTH. I am Frederick North. I am a pediatrician.I have been concerned with the early and periodic screening pro-...grarn in Pittsburgh, in Pennsylvania as a State. and been a consultantat the national level. Because I have written about scret,nin!-r, I havealso heard the stories of my colleagues all over the country.While I have no formal national role in ESPDT at. the presentI do tend to hear what is going on aromul the country.The committe has already heard from testimony yesterday thatand periodic screening when followed by d ia!rn ()Fes and treat-.tment is one very important component or the health care of children.You have also heard that when sereenin.r is not followed by ding-'.nosis and treatment, it. is costly and meaningless and sometimes dan-temus and demeaning.
The testimony also bronght ont that such screening. diarrnoses. andtreatment is most effective and economical when it is provided in thndirect, context of comnrehensive health snnervisionthe "medicalllome" which was mentioned yesterdaywhich also includes preven-tive services, including immunization. counseling. and g»idancener-jiaps getting at the point of patient education that was mentioned in'the immediately preceding testimonythe care of acute illness and
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injury which is the most pressing need that most parents find for

health care of chiklren ; the management of long-term illness and han-

dicapping illness wbich is the main thrust that the screening is really

desurned to get at.
Ariy separation of sereeninn. from this direct context of compre-

hensive care multiplies the costiRand difficulties of providing preventive
services and of insuring appropriate diagnoses and treatment.

Every time there has to be a referral there is another opportunity

for broken appointment, atuther demand for expensive supporting

services, another opportunity for missed communication between

screener, patient. and consultantphysician.
So that, any time that. screenmg is taken ont of the context where

direct medical care can be pnavided on the spot, the complexity is

increased immensely.
ESPDT. the Federal program, as currently defined and adminis-

tered, I believe, has been and will continue to be a costly anti ineffective

approach to getting these. needed health services to the Nation's

children.
In addition to the various difficulties of administration that you

have heard so »inch about, I think there are some more basic fatal

flaws in EPSDT.
First, it, is linked to the wel fare bureaucracy which is already over-

worked. undertrai»ed in health matters. and is constantly under polit-

ical pressure to reduce welfare rolls, not to serve all needy children.

Yon can't find every child who needs sereeninn. under EPSDT

without finding a lot of people who are eligible for welfare.

At best. 60 percent of those eligible. for direct welfare payments

receive them: 40 percent of those who are eligible, do not. receive wel-

fare payments.
definin n. an elinible child as one who is already receivi»g AFDC,

we have specifically included 40 percent of the neediest. A child receiv-

ing AFDC probably has a medicaid yard i» his hand and can receive

care. Others are untouched and remain untouched as long as screening

is linked to the welfare system.
EPSDT is also linked to the special problems of medicaid with its

complex eligibility requirements. on and off eligibility, its endless

forms, and its late and inequitable payments.
This is probably the main reason for time diffic»ity in getting physi-

cians to participate in EPSDT. We have had too much bad experience

with medicaid.
In those States in which medicaid has been administered smoothly

and in an acceptable way. ESPDT has had greater success.

The third difficulty with tlie present. EPSDT program is that it is

conceptualized and administered as a screening program, not as a

program of comprehensive healtlm care.
There are a few bows in the direction of comprehensive. health care

and prevention. but the statistics you have heard from GAO count

time number of children screened.
If you are evaluating a program on the basis of children screened,

what you will get is children screened and not children taken care oL

So. even though there are some philosophic gestures toward preven-

tion. actually what is being demanded and measured, what the States

are being assessed on, is how many children are screened.
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As I mentioned before, screening in itself is a worthless exercise.
The only purpose is treatment.

With all these difficulties, what might be an alternative?
The best estimates I have heard about the cost of ESPDT range'

from $1/2 billion to $1 billion a year. I understand nobod3r has been
able to put a closer hand on the number.

The money now spent on ESPDT could be reallocated to provide
a basic minimum program of comprehensive health supervision for
all children in the United States, all 75 million, 0 to 21. Such a pro-
gram might take the following form :

A set of vouchers would be issued to all parents for 14 health super-
vision visits in the first 21 years of life of each child, redeemable by
physicians or clinics who provide acceptable health supervision serv-
ices. Vouchers would eliminate complex and Costly billing and pay-
ment procedures. Universal eligibility would eliminate costly and
demeaning enrollment procedures and would insure that services were
monitored, not only by poor and uninformed parents but also by
well-informed, articulate, and 4emanding parents who imleN1 insist
that the children get the kind of services they need, who don't neces-
sarily accept what, is available without questioning.

Vouchers would establish full freedom of choice between the patient
and parent and providers.

The cost of the redeemed vouchers would approximate $750 million
a year, well within the order of magnitude of what is being spent now
in attempting ineffectively to get such services for only a small pro-
portion of only the poorest children in the country.

What about the problem of gettino' parents to seek out this care ?
We have heard that an army of ourryach workers, people providing

transportation and so forth might be necessary.
I would suggest. before we go into that we might attempt another

system. To otfset part of the cost of transportation babysitting and
so forth that is associated with getting children to regular liealth
supervision, a second set of vouchers redeemable by parents after each
completed visit, might be provided. pethaps in the form of a food
stamp that could be redeemed in any supermarket.

With such a positive incentive, a much larger proportion of parents
would seek and obtain health supervision for their children.

The cost of outreach workers, transportation. and other facilities
and services to be provided by the Welfare Department could be
greatly reduced.

The aimual cost for parent vom'hers worth approximately $10 for
-each visit would approximate $500 million, again within the range
of what is currently being spent.

The total administrative cost, which I think is at least 50 percent
of the total expenditures under the current ESPDT program, could
be reduced under such a program to something around 1 percent. the
basic cost of distributing vouchers which would be redeemable through
currently existing systems.

I am concerned that such programs for preventive health care should
be financed through Federal general tax revenues, not through insur-
ance and tax mechanisms which impose their greatest proportional
burden on those least able to pay. Even greater equity could be
achieved if vouchers were regarded as taxable income so that those who
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have no taxable income get the full value, those who are well able to,
pay tax on it. This might help avoid the criticism that has been so
discussed in the school lunch program, of providing free services for
people who can pay.

A. program such as I have described would not address payment for
maternity care, dental care acute episotic care of illness, nor man-
agement of chronic illness. int, neither, in reality, does EPSDT. These
important services could be covered by the various service and insur-
ance programs that exist.

I think the program would provide a base of preventive care of all
children and thus reduce the cost which insurance and serVice pro-
grams, must cover.

Thank you.
Mr. Orrisom. Thank you very 'much for a very thoughtful state-

ment. That is a very interesting idea.
Dr. Lamb, would you care to proceed.

STATEMENT OF GEORGE LAMB, M.D.

Dr. LAMB. Mr. Chairman, it is a great pleasure for me to be able to
be here to disouss such an important issue with all of you.

Mr. Orrin-mu. Will you identify yourself ?
Dr. LAMB. Yes.
I am Dr. George Lamb. My present position is in the department

of preventive and social medicine at the Harvard Medical School, and
pediatrician at Children's Hospital Medical Center in Boston.

My comments are as follows :
First, it seems appropriate that the intent of the legislation to be

discussed, at least one major intent, is to provide the same kind of
programs tor the poor children as are now being accomplished for the
more affluent children, an issue. of equity. This is indeed a very desir-
able fmal and one that should be vigorously pursued. The findings of
Project Head Start, particularly the medical component, and other
studies indicate that previously undetected health problems do exist
in the tamet population and tl tat at least many of these can be remedi-
ated. It is my belief, however, that the screening component has to
become an intepTal part of some oiroing health service system, a
comment that I have heard repeatedly here as well as in the testimony
from yesterday.

Thns. I feel that separate systems such as that pre.sently existing in
EPSDT is inefficient and costly in terms of reaching children and
incorporating them into comprehensive health care. The priority,
therefore, should be to provide an ormnizational framework for com-
prehensive health services to all children.

Second. a screening by itself, as Dr. North mentioned, is of no bene-
fit, to children and their families. In this context, we must recognize
that many of our suggestions for screening, diagnoses and treatment
are presently based on relatively poor pieces of information scien-
tifically. Rather, they are based on the state of the art and what, in
fact., occurs primarily in the private practice of pediatrics and the
general consensus of ;.rood medical practice.

Therefore, I would sup7rest that a high priority be given to evalua-
tion and/or research programs to accurately determine the payoffs
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of presently accepted and yet unproven and new screening and treat-ment approaches.
Third, a monitoring of the implementation of a comprehensivehealth care program for children should be accomplished in a man-ner that maintains confidentiality. It also must not impose undueamounts of paperwork or financial disincentives to the providers.Here I would comment parenthetically that it seems to mo that muchof what Dr. North suggested would accomplish this.At this point, the volume of paperwork and relatively low reim-bursement causes difficulty in follow-up, diagnosis and treatment inpeople who have consistently already experienced difficulty with ac-cess to the system. It also imposes considerable financial cost on theprovider and in many local instances I am aware of providers aro notgoing through the EPSDT repoitifig process, specifically to avoidthe cost of that kind of mechanism.

Fourth, it mnst be recognized that many health care providers arenot .presently able to deliver all the screening programs desirable and,hi fact, suggested under the regulations. Thus, there must be someallocation Of resources to the education of the health professionalsand some assistance in obtaining and using new screening proceduresand instruments. This will be an ongoing process and needs to becoordinated through other agencies such as American Medical So-cieties, American Academy of Pediatrics, and so forth.Fifth, in some instances, the prevalence of problems is so high thatscreening, itself. should be dispensed with completely and direct. thera-peutic services instituted. For example, in one group I was involvedin we found 69 or 65 children in need of dental services, 31 of thesechildren had urgent problems in regard to their teeth. Thus. anyfurther screening for teeth problems would be ineffective and inap-propriate.
Sixth, attention should be given to the &Mention of consumers re-ffarding the need for screening as part of ongoing medical care. Recentreports- by Holtzman suggest, for instance, that the screening forPKU can be most productive if the consumer is involved and informedin the screening process, obtains assistance in rnakWg a decision rela-tive to the screening and is actively involved as a participant in allphases of screening. diagnosis, and treatment.Similarly, a program involved with early education for parents in-vol vine. over 300 families in a local proe.ram starting at 9 weeks of ar.eindicares that. families are receptive to more information arouridhealth and education issues and can act on the information.This particular pFogram does involve low socioeconomic children,as well.

Seventh, each area, town, county or region, needs to provide forcoordination of services to children.
The Foltz report of the Connecticut experience indicates that in-consistencies of Federal regulations, lack or cooperation between Stateagencies and the delegation of responsibility for health supervisionto the Welfare Department was ineffective...11.nother example mightbe again in a local area I am involved with where EPSDT programsare being delivered by local practitioners and local community hospi-tal ambelatory facilities.

In addition, the towns are responsible for screening and interven-
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tion beginning nt age 3 under the new Massachusetts Law 700. They

tire responsible for screening, periodic screening, from age 3 to 21 or

graduation from high school.
It seems obvious that there is a lack of coordination between diese

programs, creating costly duplications, gaps, and inconsistencies be-

tween these progriuns.
It, is unclear in this instance. where the responsibility rests, the

Welfare Department, local practitioner, local hospital, local health

department, or local schools.
Thank you.
Mr. arrixont. Thank you very much, Dr. Lamb. We appreciate

your testimony.
By the process of elimination, I assume we have next Dr. Yankau0:.--

STATEMENT OF ALFRED YANKAITER, M.D.

Dr. Y'AxuArkut. Mr. Chairman, I am Alfred nuakauer. I am a

pediatrician, currently teaching community and family medicine at

the University of Massachusetts Medical School in Worcester, and

editor of the American Journalof Public Health.

I would like first to express not. only appreciation for this oppor-

tunity to appear before the committee but also satisfaction that the

committee is gathering infornmtion about .programs for children

that may have:bearing upon future health insurance. planning and

implement at ion. Children are not little adults. They have special needs

stemming from their growth and development and their future hu-

man resource potential-. In spite of these obvious points, the history of

health insurance both abroad and in this country displays an ap-

palling neglect of children, perhaps because they do not vote. I would

like to return to the special needs of children later.

There are many aspects of EPSDT which seem strange to me, but

the strangest of all is the fact that the legislation itself should have

been necessary in the first place. Medicaid was intended to meet the

health needs of the American poor. The American tradition of health

care calls for the delivery of preventive sand curative care from a

single source. thus distinp.uishing it from the delivery systems of

Western European countries and causing it to resemble those of East-

ern Europe. Yet medicaid had to be supplemented by special legislation

calling for a preventive program directed at children as if neither

prevention nor children were considered in the original medicaid leg-

islation. It will clearly be important to avoid this sort of paradox in

the future health insu innce
I would like to leave the technical aspects of screening programs to

others except for the following broad generalizations:

1. Well prepared nurse practitioners. working with physician col-

leagues, are probably superior to physicians alone in executing those

parts of child health supervision usually associated with physicians

the interview, history and routine physical examination. Future legis-

lation should take.ca re not to discriminate against nurses.

2. Studies are badly needed to improve the effectiVeness and effi-

ciency of child health supervision. EPSDT provided a nmgnilicent

but lost opportunity to plan and execute such studies. Research and

development in health services administration should he considered

part of program costs as they are in industry.
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3. In spite of our lack of specific knowledge, inductive reasoninn,
and consumer and provider consensus demand that preventive care IL
covered in future health insurance planning.

4. Standards for, the various components of a program like EPSDT
can be set by consensus. More than that, they can also be ranked by
priority order of importance by consensan. The order may be different
in different parts of the country and for different ethmc or cultural
subgroups. Given the individual costs of the various components, and
the level-of expenditure set ,by economic constraints, decisions on im-
plementing program standards can be made at a local level with more
sensitivity than they have in the past.

I would like to ilevote the rest of this time to exploring what I see
as the reasons for an almost universal dissatisfaction with the EPSDT
program. Many of the expressed dissatisfaction are. I believe, merely
symptoms of violations of fundamental and long-known principles,
violations that were built into the EPSDT program:

1. Detection, counseling, follow-up and treatment were not under
control of the same source. The successful model here is tuberculosis
screeninff by the health departments who provided follow-up and
trentmerit themselvesalthough other treatment sources were not
prohibited. The failing models, known for many years, are in the field
of school health.

2. The means test of medicaid acts as a barrier to care through its
stigmatization of consumers, and providers as well.

3. Administration by a welfare agency, focuses on financial controls
but even these have been poorly handled, turning off many potentially
interested providers.

4. Instead of building up a new program slowly on the basis of pilot
trialsresearch and deVelopmentas would be done with automobiles
or drugs or other products, we jump right into a major new effort
wa lkinff bravely but foolishly into the dark.

5. State and local government agencies were not strengthened to
help them face these new responsibilities yet in the end they must be
the responsible parties.

G. Grassroots, consumer feed-in, education and voicethat is, com-
munity involvementwere not built into the program.

7. Follow-up and outreach services, often more expensive than the
screenthg itself, were not provided for.

FinallY, I should like to point out that the special needs of children,
with which any health insurance plan must try to cope, are not only
the early widespread application of known preventive measures
immunizations are the best knownnot only the early detection of
handicaps such as a hearinff loss, but also their follow-up and care.
The major problems of children tend to be problems that are health
related but which do not yield readily.to the simplistic medical model
around which EPSDT is built. These are the chronic continuing con-
ditions, the physical and mental handicaps with which we are all
familiar. These handicaps cannot be curedcure is the hallmark of
the medical model.

In spite of the fact that these conditions cannot be cured, there is
now abundant evidence indicating that their early detection and the.
prompt application of rehabilitative educational, psychological and
social services together with medical services will result in very sig-
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nificant personal gains for the child and future cost savings for
society.

Such services applied as soon as they are neededthe earlier the
hettermum somehow be incorporated' into or integrated with any
health insurance plans that hope to meet the needs of children. Often
enough, as in the case of the child with a severe hearing loss the
non-medical services are more important, to the child and society than
the medical services.

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Mr. arrIxon. Thank you very much, Dr. Yankauer, and the rest

of the panel.
Mr. Sharp, do you have any questions?
Mr. SITARP. Yes. Thank von very nmch. Mr. Chairman.
Dr. North, I wanted to Tollow-up on your suggestion nf the voucher

system. Are you aware of anyplace where. this has been tried? Are
there .any demonstration models of this?

Dr. Nomr. I have never seen the model of vouchers. Both Finland
'and France, each of which has siiperb infanfmortality statistics, have
provided incentives for parents.

In France, you don't get your baby bonus until you present your
completed health certificate. Finland has the same kind of arrange-
ment. They instituted this shortly after the war. And it has resulted
in 95 to 9S percent immunization and child health supervision.

This incentive to the parentsthough I am not definitely com-
mitted to this particular formis similar to the coupon book that you
get for your ea r. that says this is for your COM. S.000-mile checkup. It is
a statement nf what von would exiwet to be included in the checkup.
I have not seen this particular model tried and perhaps, as Dr.
Yankauer suggested, it ought to be done "small" before it is done
"big."

Afr. StrAnr. I was thinking it might. be wise to try it nut somewhere
for a trial run. One of the. problems is that I still forget to take my
car in for a 4,009-mile checkup.

Obviously, it takes a bureaucracy to make sure that everybody gets
a coupon book and if you have a b'onus incentive plan where they can
get refunds, you can do that.

I am wondering if we are nnt still shirk with the problem that, in
order to make sure that people you really want, to help receive it,.
Wre need to have an outreach program in which somebody takes the
coupon book, gives instructions on how it works, and follows up to
see that it is used. So we have nnt escaped some of the bureaucracy.

It sounds like with the voucher system, ultimately, we will have to
, come back with a system of financial controls. In otber words, we. will
be faced with a charge or fee or service planit varies from place to
placesome tend to use it and others not.

Dr. Norm. I think the problem of reaching every person is simpli-
fied over time. First, you do have almost universal contact with the
health system at the time. of birth and a contact with a reasonable
health-r;lated system at the time of school entry. Using these two
entry points within a few years the. cost of distrilmting such vouchers
becomes a very trivial one on an annual recurrent basis.
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Mr. SIIMIP. Also, ono of the universal complaints we are hearing isthat of the lack of a connection between the screenhig and follow-uptreatment, the kind of thing which suggests the need tor clearly local-ized health care centers or something in which one step clearly followsthe other.

Dr. NORTH. I think the solution lies mostly in avoiding setting upany special screening. As Dr. Yankauer mentioned, our traditionalsystems, including the newer models such as MY projects and neigh-borhood health centers, are comprehensive programs. The need is toavoid settings such as unsuccessful school health or nontreatment pro-viding baby clinics which we know are so ineffective in getting treat-ment and which have been specifically encouraged the way EPSDThas evolved.
Federal regulations talk a little bit about comprehensive care andthen talk about using automatic equipment and briefly trained person-nel for large groups. So the States have been equivocal. It is mostlyavoiding allowing the setting up of special screening clinics frontwhich you have to go someplace else every time you want somethingdone.

Mr. SHARI% Do the other two gentlemen want to comment ?Thank you, Mr. Chairman.Mr. arrtNor.a. Mr. Santini.
Mr. SANTINI. Yes, Mr:Chairman.I am interested in your concept of redeemable vouchers despite myown neglect of maintenance on my automobile.

Recognizing your "fatalflaw" comments with regard to EPSDT and its linkage which youcharacterized with the welfare bureaucracy, do yon have any feelingas to who could best administer any new program including yourvoucher concept?
Dr. Norru. No; I don't. It may indeed be that the Social SecurityAdministration, accust omed to administering one large universal pop-ulation program, could do it effectively for another. I can't see thatHealth Departments have had experience in administering universalprograms. Maybe the schools are the best. They are 'another universalservice agency.

Health Departments have never attempted to serve everybody. Ihaven't seen good experiences in either health or welfare Inirenueraciesof servingeverybody. I snspect that any of them could do it a lot betterif the fatal flaw of specific eligibility were removed.Mr. OrrINGER. Would the gentleman yield ?Mr. SANTINI. Yes.
Mr. OrrIxoEn. Do yon have any ideaperhaps the staff has someideawhat percentage of childrenate born in hospitals in the UnitedStates today?
Dr. NORTH. I think 98 or 99 percent. All of them are legally identi-fied through vital statistics records. So birth is essentially a universaltabulating time for children.Mr. OrrrxoErt. Presumably if we were to go on this kind of program,which I find very interesting, the hospital could administer it sincethey have contact..
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Dr. Noirrit. Yes; on an ongoing basis. There twilit( be a first-thne

cost of reaching everybody who has already been born. After that, it

sl multi be extremely sluiple, as simple a mi noneont roversial as the mak-

ing ont of a birth certificate.
Dr. YANKAITIL Mr. Chairman, birth certificates are a lin iversa

funetion through the eountry and the linkage probably would be best

there.
MI% OTTINGEIL

We don't lutve tt lunge administrative
problem t here,

Yon have somebody already
having to deal wit It it.

Dr, Noun. That. is tut example in which health departments do I heir

job for every single person in t he population, so perhaps my previous

comment should be partially mtpacted.

Mr. Orrt NOM Than k you, gent lento!.

Mr. SANTINI. I am concerned in the test iniony so far that there does

not appear that there is any available data or st ntiv on the questiou

of follow-up which you suggest as one of the fataf flaws. I lave you

seen on the fiasis of 'your on indiv experienees the success or

failure of the followup activity in N.our own environment ?

Dr. Notrru, I In, ye seen successful follow-up, not in EPSDT hut in

a variety of others : Ilere again, the key feature seems to be a persomil

linkage between the nurse practitioner or plipieian who is providing

the care and the parents of children.

My colleague in Pittsburgh is running a study on tonsils and

adettokls. 'The patients refuse but fare "because yon are giving us good

service. We are canting back."
Whenever yon avoid the neeessity for referralwhenever the diag-

nosis and treatment can be done at the same site and same time as the

need for it is discovered, yon have elintinated immense costs.
.

Every time. yon make a referral. there is a 30-pereent loss. A»y time

another appointment is needed. TO percent keep it. 30 pereent Ore lost,

To my mind. this is one of the most important aspects. Whenever

screening is divorced from the follow-up and treatment. you are build-

ing in defeat.
Mr. SAxpist. Dr. Lamb. I am interested in yonr observation concern-

ing education of the consumer about the availability of t he screening

piocess.
We were advised yesterday bv a witness who appeared before this

committee, Dr. Cohen. who was 'formerly Secretary of Health, Educa-

tion, and Welfare, that it is Health. EdUcation. and Welfare's respon-

sibility to make the services
available, imt not to go out and entice

them.
In the face of that administrative

enlightenment, what direction or

course of action would you suggest ?

Dr. LAma. Where the. responsibility for this educational program

rests T. think would depend on how the program was set up. Tt seems

to me that many of the particularly lower socioeconomic group, being

lower educated, particularly related again to the matertml eduratiOnal

level, do not have the information or the resonrces to be able to reach

out and effectively get any of the sereenimr. diagnoses. and treatment

programs that we have talked about, and t Ii is would have to be a re-



105

sponsibility of some kind of program. Thus there needs to be a further
reaching out to these particular people, not just availability.

Again, perhaps, the incentive approach would be more effective.By doing this,-showing your coupon- that you. have gotten your carchecked and tires checked and fixed, that in fact you could get morefood stamps, which is the kind of approach that Dr. North was sug-
gesting, would make it more effective. To some extent, many of the
people who are unable to do this have more pret-sin7 problems such
as where is the supper for my child coming from, not ;-here am I ,troing
to go next week to get my eyes checked or my child's eyes checked.

If the two were incorporated into a meaningful incentive for the
particular kind of person we are discussing. then in fact the people
might be more apt to get the services.

I might comment on the other question. This might be the kind of
situation where 'multiple trials on a small basis would be very appro-
priate. to have the incentive system or this kind of systent tried in One
conummity or one area throng! the health department and another
area through tile school department. so that we mold get some experi-
ences in terms of what is effective in terms of the incentive and the
follownp that one could get.

Mr. SANTINI. One of the witmsses was eitcal of the attempted
screening and medical assistance that was offered at the school level
to date. Now that may be because of an infirmity within the adminis-
trative process of the school or within the exis.ting program offered
in the school. Which is it, Doctor ?

Dr. I'Axs..,turn. I think I made that critical statement. The major
issue here is the separation of prevent ive and screening services from
the treatment sources. School health services are the illastration ofthat problem.

Mr. SANTINt. So deficiency was not administrative in terms of the
school, it was inadequate in terms of service offered ?

Dr. YANKALTIL If the school were in a posit ion to provide hill com-
prehensive treatment services, which is a little questionable, then the
problem presumably would not arise. That is the supposition. It is ad-
ministrative because it is administratively not feasible.

Mr. Orrixotm. All of us would like to pursue this more because it
is very .interesting. I think it. is very important that. we get. an op-
portunity to hear from people who can do something about some of
these pr?,blems.

Therefore. I am going to have to mit this short. Thank you verymuch for taking the time and trouble to be with us and for your very
interesting ideas. We will try to pursue them.

We next have representatives front the Department. of Health. Ed-
ucation. and Welfare, Dr. James F. Dickson, Acting Deputy Assistant
Secretary for Health. Department of Health, Education, and Welfare,
and the colleagues that he has brought with him.

Because of what we are about to engage in is controversial as opposed
to the previous witnesses, I will revert to the original practice and
ask that you be sworn. If you will stand and raiseyour right hands.

(The panel of witnesses as set out below were sworn.]
Mr. OTTINGER. Dr. Dickson, will you first identify the panel.
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TESTIMONY OF TAXES F. DICKSON, M.D., ACTING DEPUTY ASSIST-
ANT SECRETARY FOR HEALTH, DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, EDU-
CATION, AND WELFARE, ACCOMPANIED BY ROBERT VAN HOEK,
M.D., ACTING ADMINISTRATOR, HEALTH SERVICES ADMINIS-
TRATION; N. KEITH WEIKEL, PH. D., COMMISSIONER, MEDICAL
SERVICES ADMINISTRATION; NORMAN KRETSCHMER, M.D.,
DIRECTOR, NATIONAL INSTITUTE OF CHILD HEALTH AND HU-.
MAN DEVELOPMENT, NATIONAL INSTITUTES OF HEALTH;
CHARLES U. LOWE, M.D., SPECIAL ASSISTANT FOR CHILD, HEALTH
AFFAIRS, OFFICE OF THE ASSISTANT SECRETARY FOR HEALTH;
DALE W. SOPPER, ACTING DEPUTY ASSISTANT SECRETARY FOR
LEGISLATION (HEALTH) : AND IRA LURIE, M.D., NATIONAL
INSTITUTE OF MENTAL HEALTH

Dr. Drcitsox'. Yes, Mr. Chairman.
The other members of the Department who accompany me are on

my far right. Dr. Norman Kretchmer, Director of the National In-
stitute nf Child Health and Human Development, National Institutes
of Health. On my immediate right, Dale Sopper, Acting Deputy As-
sistant Secretary for Health Leffislation. On my left, Dr. Robert Van
Hoek, Acting Administrator of the Health Services Administration.
To his left, Dr. Keith Weikel. Commissioner of the Medical Services
Administration. To his left. Dr. Charles Lowe, Special Assistant for
Child Health Affairs in the Office of the Assistant Secretary for
Health.

There are some other members of the Department behind us who
have, come today to be certain that any questions you and the other
members of the subeommittee may have are answered in detail.

Mr. Orrtxam. Dr. Dicksnn, we have heard over tho past few days
a litany of testimony that the screening program is inadequate, that
it dnes not. reach but a small percentage of the people for whom it is
intended, that. becanse it. is not followed up with care it is inadequate.
We have seen a number of examples of children who are mentally
retarded who are handicapped for the rest of their lives, who cannot
see adeqnately, who eannot hear adequately, with health problems that
could have been avoided if these defects were detected in an adequate
preventive medieal program.

I am very much concerned indeed that you have presented us with a
41-wre document here which I will put in the record if you insist
that it. be put in the record but, which I find totally inade.quate be-
cause it does not addrms itself to any of these problems. It looks to
me like it was produced by the Department. in order to describe in a
general way the programs which exist in the Department.

If I were in your position I wonkln't want. it in the record, but I
will he served by your preferences in that regard. We certainly do not
want. to hear it. We wnuld like you to address the problems flint have
been brnup.ht to the attention of the committee and with which the
committee is eoneerned.

Dr. Diotsnx'. Mr. Chairman, I would like to say that I feel at this
time personally that we do have in the Department a very positive pro-
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gram and a positive outlook with respect to it. I recognize it is alsoa complex and difficult situation. I feel that one of the reasons that itis complex is because it is a combination of initial legislative_problems
. _Iyith.respect to the program, problems of economics, availability of re-sources and I believe it is also administrative problems within theDeparement.

We am certainly not without fault. I don't mean to suggest thatwe are.
Mr. OTTINGF.R. Caspar Weinberger, the head of the Departmentimmediately previous to the current Secretary, described this effort atpreventive health for children as the top priority of the Department.Is that still the assessment of the Department ?Dr. Dicicsox. Mr. Chairman, before going to that question, if I may,I would like to ask whether you choose thaeI read an abbreviated ver-sion of our statement/
Mr. Orrixotm. I prefer not. I will put whatever you like in therecord, but I am very, vey much concerned to see to it that the prob-lems that we are very much concerned about do get addressed by thepanel.
Dr. DICKSON. Mr. Chairman, we will proceed as von direct. We feel,however, that this is a positive statement we would like all membersof the subcommittee to hear it.
Mr. Orrixont. I will be glad to insert it for the record at this point.You can distribute, it so that the memberscan read it.['Testimony resumes on p. 1171.
[Dr. Dickson s prepared statement follows:1

STATEMENT OF JAMES F. DICKSON III, M.D., ACTING DEPUTY* ASSISTANT SECRE-TARY FOR HF.ALTII, DEPARTMENT
OF HEALTH, EDISCLTION, AND WELFARE

Mr. Chairman and members of the stMcommittee, it. is a pleasure to havethis opportunity to appear before you today to discuss the Department's programsand accomplishments in the area of child health. It is particularly appropriatein view Of the President's proelamatiou which designated this past Monday,October 6, as Child Health Day, and the U.S. Center for Disease Control's desig-nation of October as Immunization Action Month.The Department has a commitment to nmintain and improve the health of allchildren in the country. In the areas of research, regulatory activities, qualityassurance and public education benefits are not limited to any one category ofchildren. In the health service delivery programs, however, benefits are madeavailable to groups of children who, for a variety of reasons, would otherwise notreceive much needed health services. The categorical nature of many of theprograms I am about to describe results in overlaps in some cases and gaps inothers, in addition to a distribution of ninny child health authorities in differentoffices throughout the Department. Recognizing that it is necessary to coordinatethese activities, the Department has recently established an Office of Child HealthAffairs within the Office of the Assistant Secretary for Health. This office will, asone of its functions, coordinate and maintain liaison with all child healthactivities within the Department.This morning I will briefly discuss the background of the programs, theiraccomplishments and their present activities. First, however, I would like totake a moment to indicate the present activities and project goals and directionthat the Department has selected for child health activities in the Forward Planfor Health, FY 197T-81.
The Department plans a coordinated health perspective on all agency activitiesthat are closely interrelated. One of the major priorities of this theme is pre-vention with a focus on children. Thus, _the agencies of the Public Health Serviceinvolved in such activities as child mental health, accident prevention, andnutrition will devote special attention to an ongoing interchange of ideas anddata.
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A number of important child health initiatives are being developed within
the Department which deserve special mention. They are Modified in the For-
ward Plan for Health. For example, the focus on reducing infant mortality
continues not only in the Maternal and Child Health Programs but is beginning
in other program areas. The availability shortly of up to date data pinpointing
high risk areas will mean more informed planning in such efforts as the Rural
Health Initiative. In addition, efforts to improve dental health will be inereased
with empimsis on preventing tooth decay through the promotion and maintenance__
of optimal fluoride levels of community and school water supplies.

In addition to the major coordinated activities and initiatives, the agencies
serving suitstant int populations of children will of eourse focus on their individual
efItirts in child health. In some t'aSes this will mean a strengthening of already
initiatol efforts. and in others it will menu undertaking new challenges or us-
ing new perspectives.

The Maternal and Child Health pmgrams, whielt ha'e been making sizeable
(4-mtributions over the years, Will continue a special emphasis on infant and
preschool h ith.

The Alcohol, Drug Abuse awl Mental Health Administration will emphasize
new activities related to alcohol use among adolescents; it will develop new ap-
proaches in prevention-related efforts within the mental health area, and as a
means of continuing the efforts to combat drug abuse, priority will be given to
projects that nurture healthy family life, such as family counseling and child
development.

The National Institute of Child Health and Human Development will em-
phasize activities in the reduction of infant mortality and of low birth-weights,
IIS well as understanding the causes of eongenital malformation.

The Center for Disease Control plans to assist in the effort to stimulate and
support water fluorhiation. In athlition, the (*enter along with tite other ageneies
involved in serving children will continue their combined efforts in immuniza-
tion programs including cooperative activitks with the Early and Perimile
Screening, Diagnosis and Treatment progra m.

Now turning to the programs themselves. I will indkate within the context of
this broad subjet area how the many and varied ehild health activities of the
Department have progressed and at the same time discuss the extent of our
current activities.

IIEALTIT SERVICES ADMINISTRATION

The Health Services Administration largely through the Bureau of Community
Ibmith Services condurts various programs which provide services to and which
impact on the health of children.
Maternal and rhild health and crippled children.q programs

The (Teation of the Chihiren's Bureau in 1912 marked the major beginning for
involvenwnt of the Federal government in the fleld of child health. That Bu-
reau's investigations into such problems as infant and maternal mortality was
largely responsible for the enactment on November 23, 1921. of the Maternity and
'Watley At (Sheppard-Towner At) providing grants-in-aid to States to demon-
strate the value of providing local health services to mothers and children. Al-
though the annual amount was small, $1,210,000, and the Act itself expirN1 in
1929. it paved the way for inclusion of maternal and child health and medical
care of crippled children in the Soeial Security Act of 1935. Since then. under the
authorities of Title V of the Social Security Act, Congress has appropriated funds
annually for the continuation and expansion of both programs and, from time to
time, has authorized the addition of special projeet grant eategorim

Title V of the Social Security Act authorizes =mai formula grants to the
State Maternal and Child Health and Crippled Children's agencies.

In order to receive Federal funds from an allotment for maternal anti thild
health and crippled children's services authorized under Title V of the Social
Seeurity Act, a State must prepare and have available for review a State plan
whkh contains information which meets the requirements specified in Title V
of the Act and the related regulations. Federal regulations also require assur-
anees of cooperation with the State agency which administers the medical as-
sktance program established under Title XIX of the Social Security Aet and
with the State agency which administers the State laws providing for vocational
rehabilitation of physically handicapped children. Additionally, there are statu-
tory requirements under Title XIX of the Social Security Act which mandate
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that the State Title XIX agency utilize and reimburse as may be appropriatethe State.Maternal and Child Health and Crippled Children's programs for thoseservices which are normally reimbursed by State Medicaid programs and which-are provided by Maternal and Children Health and Crippled Childrens Serviceprograms under their State plans.

Crippled Chihlren's programs and Children and Youth Projects provide, in sonicStates, both the clinic screening site and the source of referral for followup amidtreatment t)1' children found in need of care limier the Early and Periodic Screen-
ing, Diagnosis and Treatment (EPSDT) program.
Maternal and child health services

The Maternal and Child Health program Is responsible for extending and im-proving health services for mothers and children, especially in rural areas. Theseprograms are designed to reduce infant mortality and also to provide maternaland child health care, with an emphasis on preventive services in low incomeareas.
The provision of maternal and child health services begins prior :3 the birthof a child by providing a complete range of health care to women early in

pregnancy in order to prevent adverse outcomes in pregnancy for the mother andher infant; and after birth, by providing preventive health care and servicesfor women and children with the intent of early detection of disease a mi un-favorable health conditions and increasing their own capacity to maintain andimprove their health. The majority of fundiag to the 50 States. time District of
Columbia, and the Territories Is used to support State directed programs whichprovide a broad range of natternal and child health services including prenatalcare, postpartum care, maternity and infant care. Intensive infant care and well-child cure. The services offered Include health screening, preventive, diagnosticand treatment services incluldng general health, visual, dental, and hearing care,as well as immunization services.

Virtually all State maternal and child health agencies provide physician di-rected well-ebild conferences. These conferences are designed to conduct periodicassessments of the way children are developing. screen them for conditions thatmay require medical Intervention. and to maIntaia an approprkte level (ifinnnunization against infectious diseases. Additional serviees include pedlatrkclinics that provide consultation, diagnosis, treatment. and follow-up care forsick children and specialty clincis that provide similar types of services for such. conditions as rheumatic fever or hearing impairments.
As examples of the magnitude of care provided under these programs in fiscalyear 1975, there were 508,000 children registered for comprehensive services and$1.805,000 children attending well-child conferences.
The most commonly provided direct services for women are the maternitymedical clinic services, maternity nursing services, and family planning serv-ices. Nationwide. about 600.000 mothers receive prenatal and postpartum carein these maternity clinics. Maternity nursing services were provided to about2,000,000 new mothers in FY 1975. It Is estimated that over one million womenin 1075 received family planning services through the State maternal nnd childhealth services program.
The program activities of both maternal and child health and crippled chil-dren have evolved and expanded as national awareness of problems grew and

as the medical technologies developed to treat these problems. For example:in 1051 Regional Centers for the treatment of congenital heart disease wereestablished; in 1963, in an attempt to reduce infant and maternal mortality andthe incidence of mental retardation in high risk groups. maternity and infantcare projects were initiated ; In 1905 children and youth projects were begun:newborn intensive care projects were added in .1967; early detection. eipanded
"70titreneb, arid-dental care, were added to the authorities under Title V in 1907:and in the early 70's Family Planning programs were included in the aggregateOf service programs provided to mothers and children.

Congress, through Public Law 93-53, directed conversion of various specialproject grants tO a formula grant program by July 1, 1975. This included theproject grants for Maternity and Infant Care (MIC), Children and Youth(C and Y). Dental Care, Family Planning, and Intensive Infant Care.The Maternal and Child Health program has taken on an increased emphasisin recent years. Maternal and Child Health programs were originally involvedprimarily in providing preventive health services. Currently the programs arefocusing treatment services to assist States in the delivery of curative and
00-800-75-3
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clinical services and have exanded their provision of health care services for
high risk mothers and their children, much the same ns the Crippled Children's
program.

In addition, the Meternal and Child Health progrem is an active and crucial
participant in the Department of Agriculture's Special Supplemental Food
l'rogrnm for Women, Infants, and Children (WIC) which provides cash grants
to make food available to pregnant and lactating women and to infants and
children up to four years of age.
Crippled children's services

Formula grants are awarded to Stete crippled children agencies for locating
children who are crippled or who here conditions leading to crippling, and to
provide them with medical, surgical, corrective, and other care and services
that are necessary.

Every State hns a crippled children's services progrem. and State law either
defines the crippling conditions to be lueluded er directs the crippled children's
agency to define them. All States include children under 21 years of age who
have some kind of handicap that needs orthopedic or surgical treatment.

As is the case with the Stnte Maternal and Child Health Services progrem,
each Stete Crippled Children's Services program must be under the direction
of a physician and must comply with Federal regulations including several
designed esSentially to essure (1) a high standard of care, including high
stendards for those Personnel and facilities which nre to be used in the provi-
sion of services; (2) that health care services to be provided are compre-
hensive in nature nnd (3) that there will be development, strengthening and
improvement of standards, techniques, and services.

Since care of a handicepped child may be a financiel burden greater than the
perents can bear, the agency will help parents with financial pinnning and may
essnme part or all of the cost of care, depending on the child's condition, the
family's resources. end the funds available to the State agency.

Approximately 10 percent of the Maternal end Child Health budget is devoted
to resenrch and treining efforts to improve delivery of services to mothers end
children. Research grants are authorized under Section 512 of Title V end
ere made to Public or other nonprofit institutions of higher learning end public
or nonprofit private agenciei. The aim of the research program is to improve
the operetion, functioning, generalUsefulness end effectiveness of maternel
nnd child health end crippled children's services. The research program through
its projects is focusing on improving health end medical services to mothers
and children. For example, one ongoing project is in the area of the design
and development of new prosthetic devices for child amputees. The project
elso incorporates a study of the needs end prohlems of child amputees, end is
prepering a new manuscript for a textbook on the treatment of the limb-
deficient child.

Tntining programs, authorized under Section 11 of Title V. are designed to
improve health and medical services to mothers nnd children through training
of personnel involved In providing health eare and related services to mothers
end children, perticulerly mentelly reterded end multiple hendicepped children.
A 'Tudor proportion of the fnmls support nniversity-effilinted centers for the de-
velopmentally disabled and mentally retarded where primary effort has heen
given to interdisciplinary training of multidisciplinary service providers. Grnnts
to these institutions of higher leerning provide support for faculty. traineeships,
serviees, elinical fecilities end short-term institutes end workshops. These een-
ters provide specielized clinicel treining in a multidisciplinary setting for phy-
siciens and other meternel end child health personnel who focus their activity
on the multiple hendicepped ehild. Emphesis in the eenters is on the provision
of excellent quelity heelth cere eondueted in n training setting. Pediatric Pul-
monary Centers have been (hided to the treining in the past year.
Sudden infant death sytulrome

In coordination with the Nationel Institutes of Health research effort in Sudden
'Infant Denth. the Meternal end Child Heelth progrem, under Title XI of the
Public Heelth Service Act. carries out n program of counseling, information
dissemination. education, and statistical reporting relating to SIDS.
Community health centers program

In the Inte 1900s, under authority of the Public Health Service Art. the De-
pertMent began focusing support on embulatory comprehensive health care
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programs for medically underserved coMmunities. The subsequent developmentof community health centers has had a substantial impact on improving thehealth of children within the program's target population. In 1975, it was esti--mated that 488,400 children received services out of the 1.7 million children.estimated to reside in the 157 medically underserved areas where CommunityHealth Centers have been established. These children had access to a full range.of health services including medical, laboratory, mental health (including al-cohol and drug addiction programs), dental, physical or speech therapy, socialservices, and hospitalization. Under the new legislation authorizing expansion ofthe CHCs program, P.L. 94-63, primary health services which a center mastoffer must include preventive health services, including children's eye and earexaminations to determine the need for vision and hearing correction and well-child services. In addition, physician, preventive dental, diagnostic laboratoryand radiologic. emergency medical, and transportation services must be offered.Supplemental health services. which must be provided directly as necessary tosupport primary health services, or whiclk may be offered by referral includemental health, dental, hospital, vision, health education, pharmaceutical andrehabilitative services.
Migrant health cottons

In 1962, the Public Health Service Act (PHS) was amended to specificallyauthorize health services to domestic migrating farm workers and their families.'Today, Migrant Health projects provide a wide range of health services muchas those included in CHCs. Many of the projects are actively participating inthe Department of Agriculture's Special Supplemental Food Program for Women,Infants, and Children (WIC).
Indian health, service

The Indian Health Service provides direct health services to children of Indianand Alaska Natives through a network of 51 hospitals, 99 health centers, and300 health stations in 25 States.
Comprehensive health service formula grants

A portion of the formula grants to States for comprehensive health servicesunder section 314(0) of the PHS Act is used for the provision of maternal andchild health services and dental services to children.
National Health Service Corps program

Over 270 National Health Service Corps sites provide increased access tophysician services and other medical services for families who live in medicallyunderserved areas.
HealM, maintenance organization program,

Health Maintenance Organizations supported by the Department are requiredto offer as primary and supplemental services a wide range of screening, diagnosisand treatment services for children.
Family planning program

In fiscal year 1974 approximately 29% of the estimated 2.2 million served inall organized family planning programs were 19 years of age or under. Familyplanning services as provided through Title X of the Public Health ServicesAct and through Maternal and Child Health programs under Title V of theSocial Security Act include a variety of health services in addition to familyplanning literature, counseling and contraceptive devices. Most of the users offamily planning services receive complete medical examinations which includepap smear and other laboratory tests and pelvic and breast examinations. Allelernents of the family planning delivery system provide a high level of diagnostichealth care to patients. Reported data suggest that family planning programshave become a major source of preventive health care for young, low-income andlargely healthy women of childbearing age and represent a principal point of-access to the health care delivery system for many young people.
ALCOHOL, DRUG ABUSE AND MENTAL HEALTH ADMINISTRATION

Although the problems addressed by this Agency are generally found through-out the population, the lives of a significant number of children are touched,some tragically, by the contemporary pressures attendant to their daily survival.The three Institutes which comprise this Agency, the National Institute on
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Alcohol Abuse and Alcoholism (NIAAA), the Nathmal Institute on Drug Abuse
(NIDA). and the National Institute of Mental Health (NIMH). have made
firm and major commitments to the health of our children. Through a number
or creative means and viable mechanisms, the Alcohol, Drug Abuse and Mental
Health Administration (ADAMHA) has committed substantial Federal funds
for.myrlad juvenile piograms in connection with intranmral research, training
-grants. hospital Improvement grants. fellowships, consultation and education,
staffing grants to connnunity mental health centers. and intnnnerable other
activities. For example. in FY 1975 the budget level for ADAMHA programs
identified as including activities affecting hildren approximates $148.5

National Instil ute on Alcohol .4 base and Alcoholism,

The National Institute on Alcohol Al111Se and Aleoholism (NIAAA) is cur-
rently supporting, direetly 'or indirectly, nearly $4.5 million of activities and
programs which benefit children. These activities itwlude counseling and referral
services at 19 youth education pmrams, some of which vary in content and
approaeh. Certain projects seek to enhance the leadership potential of Introits.
children, and other community members, particifiarly regarding their decision-
ma king behavior in the use a nd nonuse of alcohol. Other programs provide pre-
ventive and supportive services for elementary 'school children of a Icolodie
parents.

The nse of alcohol by children and youth is recognized as a growing problem
Of nmjor proportions. The Forward Plan highlights this problem with greater
focus. NIAAA now identities and treats approximately 2,300 youth alcohol a Imsers
under seven grants approximating $1.7 million. These treatment projects are
located in several States.

Eight research grants have been awarded by NIAAA at a FY 1975 cost which
approximates $460,000. One of the most pertinent aleohol stu(lies seeks to identify
the effects on the fetus of pregnant women who drink.
Sal ional Institute on Drug Abuse

In FY 1975, the National Institute on Drng Abuse t N1DA) expended approxi-
mately $39 million on programs and activities supportive of youth. Nearly $21
million augmented progrants which provided services. and $11 million was
employed for public information activities and consumer mlucatimi.

Certain activities of NIDA supported the development of a profile of adolescent
mnitiple drug users, and listed the residential 1111(1 non sidential treatment
facilities and youth outreach facilities in the Nation. Iii ldition. this Institnte
has funded a number of innovative projects mncerning prevention. treatment.
and research. Sonie of these projects Piens on Pregnant addicts and addicted
mothers: others consist of studies which compare the ffspring of mothers re-
ceiving methadone treatment, with a nonaddict control group. NIDA also provides
prevention services for over 10,000 individuals ranging in age between 5 and 14
years.
National Institute of Mental Health

Dnring FY 1975, the total amonnt of money spent on child mental health
related activities approxinmted $105 million. Of this amount. $19.405010 was
spent on research grants and $*2.045,000 on intramural research. Training grants
and fellowships accounted for $20.285.000 (approximately $5 million of this for
the training of ehild psychiatrists).

The bulk of FY 1975 NIMH funds. $56 million ($28 million through Part F.
Community Mental Health Centers Act) went to fund Child and Youth Servkes
in....certain Community Mental Health Centers. These Centers provided basic
services to over 132.000 children last year under the age of 18. Sonic of these
activities are aimed at preventing institutionalization'and enhancing comnnmity
outreach programs.

NIMH has confirmed its support of program activitle.s in basic research of the
biological and genetic aspects of child mental illness, as well as the developmental
behavior of infants and young children. Further. this Institute also stmports tbe
training of specialists in mental health of children and youth, has focuses on
SIDS (Sudden Infant Death Syndrome), runaway youth, and has awarded four
contracts which focus on collecting incidence data on abused adolescents and
supporting a na tional conference on this relevant subject.
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NATIONAL INSTITUTES OF IIEALTU

National Institute of Child Health and Human Dere lopment
The National Institute of Child Health and Human Development (NICHD)

serves as the focal point for DHEW biomedical and behavioral research relating
tothe health of mothers; children, and families.

The mission of the NICHD is to contribute to the good health of all citizens
through research to expand the knowledge of family pla nn ing. child health,
maternal health, and him= development. The primary goal of Institute effortsis research in developmental processes so as to improve our ability to prevent
disease and disability. It is our feeling that the etiology of adult diseases, par-
ticularly degenerative diseases, begin in children. The underlying rationale is
that success achieved by the NICHD in assuring healthier children will result
in the long range benefit of a healthier adult population for this Nation.

Among the recent NICHD research advances which are likely to help meet thehealth needs of children are:
N1CHD scientists have developed a vaccine which has the potential to prevent

a type of meningitis which is the leading canse of acquired mental retardation.
Hemophilus in/hien-me meningitis may lie fully preventable if findings of theInstitnte's scientists are borne mit in a recently initiated clinical trial of this
vaccine nnder the Institnte'S auspices ;

In part through Institute research, a number of maternal diseases, complica-
tions and environmental faetorS that can increase infant morbidity and nun.-
tality have been identified. Infant morbidity and mortality can be increased by
maternal disease and complications of pregnancy such as poor nutritional status,
diabetes. high blood pressure, anemia. drng addiction. smoking. and the psychic
stress of pregnancy. Prenatal care practices have improved significantly in recentyears as a direct result of this research:

NICHD research has identified possible causes of the sudden infant death syn-
drome (SIDS). Until this deciule. SIDS. or crib death, was a complete mystery.
Recently, however, some of this obscurity has been eliminated as new leans
have evolved that indicate that SIDS might be related to: apnea, infection. DIM
heart rate changes; developmental maturational lag; oxygen deficiency : lack
of sleep: abnormality in the brain stem; immaturity of the nervous mechanism
controlling heart function ; and inadequate him, responses. Until 1974. it was
believed that SIDS victims had been basically healthy babies. From data ob-
tained and evaluated in 1974 and 1075. it. now appears Hutt SIDS victims had
not been completely healthy. All of these leads may eventnally provide clinical
opportnnities to save up to 10.000 infants per year : and

Identification has been made of relationships of nutrition to human develop-
ment. NICHD research has resulted in new knowledge regarding the adverse
impact of maInntrition in pregnancy in terms of the development of the progeny.
and data are now becoming available concerning the beneficial effects on child
development of nutritional supplementation during pregaancy.

CENTER FOR DISEASE CONTROL.

One of the most dramatic achievements in child health has been the reduction,
and in some cases the near elhnination of childhood 'diseases such as measles,rnbella. ñlio, whooping cough and diphtheria through vaccination programs.
Most af these diseases are at their lowest level ever, but they still occur. The
status of these diseases is as follows: 22.094 measle cases in 1974. down 70.7 per-
cent since 1971 ; 11,917 rnbella cases% down 73.6 percent since 1971 ; 7 polio eases.
down 66.7 percent. since 1971: 2.402 cases of whooping congh, down 20.9 percent
since 1971 ; and 272 cases of diphtheria, up 26.5 percent since 1971. with most
cases occurring among adults.

'Paradoxically, the success of these programs also poses a danger. With the
sharply reduced incidence of these diseases, the population has become apathetic
and high Immunization levels are difficult to maintain. This creates a potential
for the introdnction of disease and epidemics. Because of this, the Department
is continuing a strong campaign to reduce this threat.

The Department's campaign has three chief features: (1) the provision of com-
plete immunization protection to children receiving care in HEW snpported
child health programs; (2) the support of State and community imumnization
programs; and (3) a pnblic cdncation campaign which promoted October as
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Immunization Action Month. These efforts, as I have indicated, involve the co-
operation of several agencies.

The Center for Disease Control has also made substantial progress in the-
following areas:

Assisting communities in developing programs aimed at the prevention of
poisoning from ingesting lead based paint ;

Monitoring the incidence of birth defects aimed at preventing epidemics caused
by new environmental agents;

Analytical investigations seeking to discover the etiology of birth defects which
are not now epidemic;

A population-based study seeking to demonstrate that technical assistance to.
State and local health departments can greatly increase the number of women
who have laboratory testing to determine if a fetus has a chromosomal disorder
like Down's Syndrome (mongolism) ; and

Increased surveillance activities to monitor the effectiveness of RH hemolytic
disease prevention efforts.

CDC recently was given responsibility for the Public Health Service's applica-
tion programs dealing with prevention and control of dental diseases; A key
feature of this program is the revitalization and furtherance of the Department's
efforts to extend the benefits of fluoridation to all children on community water
supplies.

This is the most effective dental preventive measure yet developed, and it is
the easiest to implement and the cheapest to inaintliin. At the present time,
however, more than half of onr children who could be drinking fluoridated water
are not doing so. Thus, the Department views this endeavor as another of its
ongoing Priorities.

SOCIAL AND REIIADILITATION SERVICE-EMT

The Early Periodic Screening. Diagnosis and Treatment (EPSDT) program
represents a major effort to provide preventive and comprehensive quality health
care to disadvantaged children. The purpose of the program is to identify and
treat handicapping or potentially handicapping conditions early. hefore they
become severe or irreversible problems, endangering the child's future health
and well-beingand before they become more costly to treat.

The basic concept underlying the EPSDT program is one of preventive and
comprehensive health cam Children served by thc program have usually never
had contact with an ongoing health care system. Thus. EPSDT generally provides
their first Introduction to preventive medicine and often their first experience
with health care other than crisis care.

I would like to review briefly the background of the enactment of EPSDT
and the steps the Department is taking to see that the program is implemented.

The amendment was added to conform with changes made in the Title V
(Medicaid) of the Social Security Act.

The amendment was added to conform with changes made in the Title V
crippled children program Avhich required States to provide for early identifica-
tion and treatnwnt of children in need of health care and services. In discussing
these amendments, the Committee du Ways and Means stressed their intent
that States make more vigorous efforts to screen, diagnose, and treat children
with disabling conditions. and carry ont "organized and intensified casefinding
procedures," inchuling follow-up visits and related activities.

The law requires that States must make provision in their Medicaid plans
for providing or arranging periodic health screening fnr all eligible children
under 21 and for follow-up treatment of conditions discovered through screening.
The screening process must assess a child's physical health and his or her growth
and development. Treatment covered under the State plan for conditions found .
through screening is required by law, except that treatment for hearing. vision
and dental defects must he provided whether or not otherwise covered in the
State plan. States must also inform all families receiving payment under the
Aid to Families with Dependent Children program of the availability of EPSDT
services. tell them where and how these services can be obtained, and, upon
request, provide transportation services.

EPSDT is administered by the States, and in the early stages of implementation
there were few resources and little experience in the States to establish and'
administer a child health care program of the scale and scope contemplated by
the legislation. Each State developed its own administrative and policy solutions
to program implementation, resulting in a wide variety in the scope and emphasis
given to the EPSDT program.
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Further, there was no firm consensus among health care professionals regard-ing appropriate preventive services and techniques or the frequency with whichservices should be provided. Also, adjustments were necessary in the existinghealth care system to provide accessibility and availability to the programand avoid duplication of services while integrating EPSDT into ongoing systems.The. very scope and complexity of EPSDT and the issues raised by such aprogram in the areas of quality of care, organization of service delivery, and. appropriate utilization of services raise obstacles to easy or timely implementa-i. tion.
Final regulations, published in the Federal Register on November 0, 1071, andeffective February 7, 1972. required States to provide. iu addition to those servicesnormally provided under States' Medicaid plans. eyeglasses, hearing aids, othervisual and hearing treatment, and dental care. Final guidelines were publishedin June 1972.
Title II of the Social Security Amendments of 1972 required the Secretary ofHEW to redece Federal Aid to Families with Dependent Children (AFDC) by1 percent if a State fails to inform eligible families of the availability of screeu-ing services or to provide or arrange for screening and treatment services. Regu-lations to implement this provision were published on August 2. 1974.As you are aware, the Department has officially found eight States to be outof compliance with the ma nun tory penalty requireuients for the first quarterof FY 1975California. Hawaii. Indiana. Minnesota, Montana, New Mexico.North Dakota, and Pennsylvania. This was the first -penalty" assessment fornoncompliance with a Medicaid program provision.Significant new regulations were published in the Notice of Proposed Rule-Making on August 20. 1975 which would revise the current penalty regelations.Our intent is to clarify the Department's expectation with regard to State actionsto implement EPSDT and to improve the Department's ability to assess Statecompliance fairly and objectively. The revisions are designed to do this. Further.we believe the proposed changes will strengthen basic structural support foran effective program by adding minimal case management and follow-up require-ments. further specifying information disscminatiou requirements, and requiringa atinimunt screening package.

Other efforts whieh we-have initiated in the areas of program improvement anddevelopment iliclude: .the 'provision of 75 percent Federal matching funds as a financial incentivefor health-related support services:
working with States to develop specific program improvement goals ;providiag substantial technical assistance ;funding research anti demonstration prejects: andinereasing data acquisition required by inanagement information needs.In terdepa rtmental coordina tion ex ists between the Office of Education. theOffice of Human Development and the Pnblic Health Service in bringing togetherresources that will enable EPSDT programs to more adequately meet the needsof the eligible individuals.

As an indication of the potential size of the program. there are approximately13,000.00d children eligible for EPSDT. The Federal share of EPSDT is approxi-mately FAX) million per year. The Federal Medicare expenditures for those under21 in non-EPSDT programs requires approximately Si.5 billion. The combinedFederal and State Medicaid expenditures for those under 21 is approximately$31/2 billion.
We believe that the basic concept of EPSDTassnring early and preventivehealth care services, follow-up treatment and establishing patterns of continualperiodic contact with health care providersis the major strenuth of the pro-gram. Although this eoneept of health care is not new to the medical profession,is1nnovative as a part of a national program of financial assistance for thecosts of medical care.

. In a larger sense. we see EPSDT as an ongoing demonstration to determine howour governmental and health care system resources ma best accommodate thespecial health needs of children and youth, particularly those in low incomefamilies. Many States now have good operational EPSDT programs. Adminis-trative systems and provider resources are in place in many areas where previous-ly none existed. Low income children are being screened and Introduced into thehealth care system, Clearly, this luts not been an easy task and much remainsto be done. However. we knew that comprehensive child health cake programscan be established with continuing commitment on the part of Federal andState administrators and health care providers.
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OFFICE OF IIUMAN DEVELOPMENT
Head Start

Turning now to the health services component of the Head Start program I
shall begin by indicating the program's general objectives:

to. provide -a comprehensive health services program which includes-a
broad range of medical. dental. mental health-and. nutrition services to pre-
school children, including handicapped children. to assist the child's physical,
emotional. cognitive and social development toward the overall goal of so-
cial competence:

to promote preventive health services and early intervention ; and
to provide the child's family with the necessary skills and insight and

otherwise attempt to link the family to an ongoing health care system to
ensnre that the child continues to receive comprehensive health care even
after leaving the Head Start prligrani.

The health services component of Head Start (medical. dental. nutrition and
mental health) provides that for each child enrolled in the Head Start program.
a coimplete medical. dental. and developmental history will be obtained and
recorded. a thorough health sereening will be given. and medkal :tnd dental ex-
minat bms will be terfornied. These services were provided to approximately

350.000 preschool children in Head Start in 1974.

OFFICE OF EDUCATION

Several programs of the Federal government in the field of edueation assist
financially limited setting districts in pnividing health services. For example.
this year the Title I prligram of the Elementary and Secondary Edumtion Act
will provide $1.9 billion for servives to tlie educationally disadvantaged young-
sters avross the country. Health and related services are eligible for support under
this program. Because of dn. Title I formula. a major portion of the 9 s flow
into school districts where there is a large voneentra tion of economical is-
advantaged students. Thereftme. In general. the selviol districts which have le
maximum need for fhina vial assistance stand to benefit the most under the Ti le
I program, Other federally finided programs under which school health servi esI
are eligible for receiving financial support are: Title IH of the Elementary a id
Seeondary Educatiim Aet (Supplementary Educational Centers and Services).
Title VII ( Bili ngua I Education) : Title VIII of the same Act (Health and Nu-
trition. and Dropout Prevention Programs) : the Follow Through Program (a
program to continue the Head Start activities) : and Education of the Handi-
capped Act.

I am herewith submitting a table showing the estimated number of students
served and the federally appropriated dollars expended in the category of health
services for FY 1973 under the education programs enumerated.

PROGRAM

Educa-
tion Erna-

ot the gency
Low Title Title Title Follow handi- school

Total Migrant income III vli vIII Through capped aid

Federal expendi-
tures $27. 891. 000 $2, 189. 000 522, 764,000 $225.000 525. 000 5148, 000 $2. 400, 000 5110. 000 530.000

Students served 2. 064. 9 00 162. 000 1. 686, 000 16.000 1, 800 10. 900 178. GOO 8. 000 2.200

Conclusion
Mr. Chairman. we in the Department wlm are eoncerned with programs affect-

ing oar Notion's children are dedimited in a speeial waynot only to the Bdfill-
meat of our direct responsibilities but to the role we play in lielping them to
achieve opt i and' Well-being. I belive we have dennmstrated today
that we a mg using our resources to the best of our abilities. As we have shown
in our diseussion of the programs themselves, the nonvard Plan and our new
Office of Child Health Affairs. we are :striving to improve onr child health
research and service efforts in every way that we can.

Mr. Chairman, this eomindes my statement. My colleagues and I will be
pleased to try to answer any questions which you or other members of the
Subcommittee nmy have.
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Mr. Ormorst. Is this.matter of highest priority in the Department?Dr. DIcitsox. I would like to turn to Dr. Weikel, if I may.Mr. WraitEL. Yes, I think it clearly is one of the highest prioritieswithin the Department. I think the record over the _past vear clearlyindicates there has been significant progress in the imp'lementationOf this &rm.
Mr. KGER. If this is a matter of the highest priority, why isn't:.the Secretary here, or even the Assistant Secretary? It seems to me::.;.that this involves the health of the children of the country, involvesthe waste of billions of dollars in wasted treatment for diseases thatcould have been prevented. I personally, and I think the members ofthe committee, consider it the highest priority. It seems to me worthyof the Secretary's consideration.

Dr. Dicnsa.x. The Assistant Secretary, Dr..Cooper, is in St. Louis,Mr. Chairman.
The program does have the highest. priority. There are other prior-ities that the Secretary has' to attend to beyond health per se. lieadjusts his time according to the relative priorities across theDepartment.
Mr. Orrixorn. I consider it an indication of the priorities' to havethe Administrator of the programs before us. We are dealing withmajor policy questions here. If this is a high priority matter on behalfof the Secretary it would have been incumbent on the Secretary to behere. I hope -you will transmit to the Secretary that we on this com-mittee feel this is a matter of paramonnt importance.
A vast amount of Federal money is being wasted, and is not reach-inz the very important goals that it should be reaching. and we woiddlike to see this matter corrected, and would like to see the Departmentaddress itself in action, not just in words to make this a high prioriyof the Government.

;. Mr. WEIKEL. Mr. Chairman, I think whether this is a high priorityis illustrated in the actions. I think the actions that the Department
. has taken over the past year clearly illustrates it is a high priority.I think the actions that the Secretary is continuing to take to supportthe program indicate that it is a priority.

, There are clearly a lot of problems associated -with the implemen-'- tation of this program. I think there has been clear progress madeduring the past year by the Department in the, implementation of this:.: program.
Mr. OITINGER. Reaching only 15 percent of the, childrer . who are-eligible. That is a relatively small percent.

-:- Mr. WEIKEL. That iscorrect.
Mr. OTTINVER. With the screening. program. And then needingtreatment, less than half of those. It. does not seem to me. to spell out.71verv great suCcess.
Mr. WEIKEL. First of all I would hope that since the referral rate..only indicated a need to treat 50 percent we not waste. additionalmoney by treating people who don't need referral for diagnoses ortreatment.
Second. in terms of the record on screening. I want. to emphasizewe don't believe the. value of this program is in screening, the valueof this program is in seeing that children ultimately get treated for the-conditions-that are identified. I think if you will look at the record,
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the record indicates through July 1, 1974, we screened 1.5 million
children. I think all of us believe that record is inadequate. It is not
an acceptable level of performance.

.
On the other hand, during the past year in a single year we have

'screened 1.5 million children, and those are very hard numbers..We....4
have eliminated a lot of numbers that were reperted by States that
we didn't think were valid numbers. So we have screened last year
1.5 million children out of approximately 9 million children who
are eligible for the services.

In addition, that 1.5 million does not include any of the data for
the equivalence to screening. There are a lot of children under medicaid
who are receiving services under the procrram through private practi-
tioners. If they are bein7 seen by a pediarician on a regular basis we
believe that counts as tile equivalent of a screen, again emphasizing
that the issue is not screening it is whether the children are treated.
We think we have a major initiative that is needed in that area, and we
are undertaking a number of activities to make sure that the children
are followed up and treated.

Dr. DICKSON. Mr. Chairman
Mr. arrINGER. Is one of the important elements of preventing

handicaps and illnesses in children, nutrition ?
Mr. WEIKEL. Is it nutrition?
Mr. OTTINOER. Yes.
Arr. WEIKEL. Obviously I think it is nutrition. Housing, is also .

another element.
Dr. DICKSON. I think Dr. Lowe might comment on that.
Dr. LOWE. Mr. Chairman, I think it would be only fair to say that

there is evidence that there are. nutritional problems in the United
States. The Department, as you know, mounted a 10-State survey,
and this certainly confirms the suspicion that there was malnutrition.

These issues are being addressed, but only partially by the Depart-
ment. The Department of Agriculture, as you know, has a major role
in the alleviation of some of the malnutrition. The forward plan
of the Department addresses nutritional issues in what I believe to
be a constructive and forward looking fashion, and an attempt is
being made, to identify through more sophisticated methods than
presently available, malnutrition which is incipient.

There is no art in identifyincr broad malnutrition. The impor-
tance is to detect children who give evidence of incipient malnu-
trition and this we propose. doing.

Mr. Orrixor.n. It is very hard to conceive of an administration
which calls child health top priority in the health field, says this is
going to be the year of the child, and then vetoes a nutrition program.
I find in every respect that the,actions simply don't follow the words
with respect to giving what I consider a most important program the
kind of priority and attention it deserves.

I don't want to monopolize all the time. At this point let me recog-
nize my colleague, Mr. Sharp.

Mr. Stump.- Mr. Chairman, I wonder if it could be useful if they
could specify what actions have been taken? My concern is that the..
charge has been made in this hearina and articles in the National
Journal that there has been a gross libsence of commitment in pri-
marily the Nixon administration, and perhaps that iS carried over in
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-the Ford administration on this very program which has been on thebooks since 1967. Now that is a very serious kind of charge.The second is, you heard this morning, if you weren't already plain-ly aware of it, that there are many serious questions about whetherwe should implement this particular program, whether it really cando the job we need to do, and maybe what we ought to be doing isdrawing up a differentprogram.You have indicated there are specific actions being taken. I wouldlike to know what those are in terms of implementino. them and whatshould be changed. I don't sit on the authorizing sulcommittee, somay be ignorant of this. I would appreciate if you would clear itfor me.
Mr.. WmacEL. Yon referred to the National Journal articles whichwere written on the basis of the way the proFram was prior to 1974.I think a tremendous amount bas happened since that time.As of the end of last .Tnly there were approximately five peopleinvolved in the implementation of the EPSDT program. As of today

i
there are approximately a bundred people involved n the implementa-tion of that promram. I think that. clearly demonstrates some commit-ment on the parCof the Department.As of last July, there was very little in the way of technical assist-ance available. We are spending..$3.5 million with various contractors,many of them professionals. such as the Community Health Founda-tion, to provide technical assistance to States that have not developt,ian adequate program. We have a commitment to provide in depthtechnical assistance to nine States under that contract.We have contracts with the American Medical Association to deter-mine how we can get more cooperation on the part of the providers.I might indicate that over the past year there has been a tremendouscommitment on the part of the AMA and on the part of the Academyof Pediatrics.
We also have a contract with them trying to provide us with tech-nical assistance, working with our regional offices in each of the re-gional offices, working with the States to try to improve participationof providers in this program.
One illustration, the testimony earlier, was that we slmold not con-sider mass screening clinics. In term of implementing the programwe would like to have all these children treated in the private prac-tice if that is most cost effective and most beneficial in terms of theirhealth. But in our project that is being s

iponsored
by the AMA in Illi-nois where the county medical society s intimately involved. wheretheir commitment was to try to get pricate practitioners to take thechildren as part of their regular patient mix, they have had difficulty.getting physicians to take the patients.

It is not an all black or white situation. There is difficulty involvedin providing the proper providers. The reason in that case was not thatproviders did 'not want to take patients, they were overloaded withtheir, present population. They did not have capacity to absorb addi--tional children. That is just one example.
I could go on laying out other technical assistance contracts, dem-onstration contracts, that hare been initiated and implemented dur-ing the past year.
Mr. SHARP. Could you give us a couple more examples?
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Mr. 11Entr.t. We have a rural health project that we are involved

with in Cuba, N. Mex.. where the problem is how can we provide

EPSDT service to our rural population as well.

We have a project in San Antonio, Tex. barrio project. attempting

to provide health services, that is jointly funded by ourselves and the

Robert Johnson Foundation. The Lodge Foundation -is involved as

well. So we are involved in joint projects.
Mr. SHARP. These are experimental projects?
MI% WEIKEL. They are a series of research and demonstration proj-

ects. There is also a series of five or six specific contracts whieh have

been implemented during the past 6 months to provide technical as-

sistance to the States to improve their prOgram.
Dr. Dn-Ksox. In respect to this question the activities in the past

yem- in the health services administration are pertinent. I would ask

DI-. Van Hoek to comment with respect to those.
Dr. VAx nom:. I would like to address the second question that you

raised. whirli is with respert to how we can improve the delivery of

health care services to children. One more program that we zulminster

is title 5 of the Social Security Act, the maternal and child health and

c,rippled children program. This program over the years has directed

itself to doing exactly what you heard the pediatricians on the panel

prior to us describe as to what the nature of screenincr, referral, com-

prehensive care, for ehihlren shonhl be. and the fact that yon have to

link the screening program with the delivery system in settings. This

is exactly the approach that the maternal and child health and crippled

children program has taken in the States.
It is a. program formidas grant to the States. em-wntly ramming at

approximately WO million per year in total, inchulin!, some research

and training funds. and providing sem-vices to approximately S million

mothers and children at the present time. targeted largely to the low-

income. families.
Mr. Sir Anp. Can you tell me how that would work from a mother's

point of view? What would be her experience on the receivinn- end?

Dr. VAx Ifor.n. If eligible as a low-income mother from a low-in-

come family. yon can conic to one of these projects or programs. It may

be operated by the State or local health department. It mav be op-

erated under agreement or contract by medical schools. hospitals.

group practice programs. or clinic programs. The mother and ehild

receive prenatal care, care through maternity. post-natal care. well

child conferences. immunization, subsequent screening as the child

grows and complete assessment. not just of vision screening and hea r-

ing but complete assessment of the growth and development of the

child. Not only that. it either directly or through other arranIrements

sees that any nutritional problems are met.
There is a significant follow-up 'component of the programs which

is education of the mother and family to maintain adequate nutrition

and assistance in carrying ont these activities.
Mr. SHARP. Is there a great deal of flexibility as to how the mittern

of administration works? In most of these programs it is my impres-

sion that is left for local decision. What you people do is scrutinize

just to see that thev meet general guidelines.
Dr. VAx Honc..We set minimum standards as to t he types of serviees

that are to be provided, how they are organized and carried ont is at
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the discretion of the program. I would also point out that this pro-
gram has significantly focused on the training and improvement of
nonphysician personnel to carry oat ninny of the programs functions.
We are. attempting, to solve the problems of shortage of physicians or
maldistribution of physicians hy. using other personnel adequately
trained to carry out these functions, uwluding nurse practitioners
mentioned by an earlier testimony.

Mr. Str Atm Thank you.
Mr. OTTINGER. Mr.*Santini.
Mr. SANTIxI. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
I will address my questions to whichever member of the panel wishes

to respond.
First of all, I am concerned by the fact that we are looking at what

the chairman and Mr. Weinberger and you have acknowledged is a
top priority program. As Dr. Weikel appropriately observed, a high
priority is indicated by the actions.

Now. in the law enacted in 1967, July 1, 1969. was the effective date.
By February 1971 almost 3 years later, for this top priority program,
we have implementing regulations. In view of the fact that this is a
top priority program 'that took almost 3 years to get regulations, what
was the reason for the dehly?

Mr. WEilaf.. T think first of all it was not prolmbly established as a
top prlorl',. I think Secretary Weinberger clearly did later
establi top priority. Former Secretary Weinberger has indi-
cated there is enough blame in terms of the slow implementation to go
around to all of us, the Department. the States. and anyone. else who
was involved. I do not think it benefits us to say who was at fault for
the slow implemenation.

Clearly, I think during the past year there has been rapid hnple-
mentation and we have begun to address some of the real problems that
we are confronted with in the implementation of this program.

Mr. SAYTIN-I. Should not the Department be the one to bear the
primary blame or responsibility or credit for the sin:-ess or failure
of this particular problem in view of the fact that HEW is the imple-
menting agency ?

Mr. WEIKEL. I think that is correct. Also it obviously involves par-
ticipation with the States. The State governments have the principal
responsibility for implementing the medicaid procrram in EPSDT.

Mr. SANTINI. On that point, Dr. Weikel. Dr. Corien, former Secre-
tary of HEW. testified yesterday that one of the principal failures
of *this particular program, and I am sure you have had a report on
his testhnony, was the fact that HEW has established an adversary
confrontation relationship with the States, and that even to the last
week of Secretary Weinberger's service he issued two regulations
without any constiltation with the States. The States are rebelling in
response to this program because they feel it is being crammed down
their throats as opposNl to being implemented as a joint effort be-
tween Health, Education, and Welfare and the States concerned

Mr. WEIKEL. I could recite here a litany of our efforts today along
with the States. First of all, last August we had a conference where we.
invited the Governors, representatives of his office, the Director of
Social Services of the State agencies, Director of Medicaid, to tell them
.about the commitment of this Department to implement this program.
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We followed that up with a whole series of correspondence to the
States. I have personally been involved in numerous conferences with
the Health Subcommittee of the American Public Welfare Association
that has responsibility within that organization for representing the
States in Washington and meeting 'with them on issues. I have met
with them just recently on the new regulations that were proposed to
implement the penalty.

I think the record indicates we have worked with the States. We
have cooperate&kvith them. Within the Medical Services Administra-
tion we are not publishing regulations unless we have previously con-
sulted States about those regulations.

Mr. SANTINI. Your testimony at this point is that every regulation
that is implemented concerning

Mr. 1VEt1m. I did not finish.
Mr. SANTINr. It is not every regulation then?
Mr. WEIKEL. In the case of the regulation on the penalty that you

were referring to that was published, the revised penalty regultaion
for EPSDT. that regulation was not discussed in any amount of detail.
Small parts of it were discussed with individual people and States,
butt the regulation itself was not discussed because we felt there was
a real need to make some clarification, to clear up some of the confusion
that existed with the first penalty reTulation that we discovered as a
result of trying to implement. We have tried to correct it through thaz
new regulation. Because Secretary Weinberger wanted to correct that
before he left, he did publish those withont our consulting with the
States.

Mr. SANTINI. May I nail down one thing before we go much further?
It is your sworn test inmny as to all implementing regulations, I appre-
ciate your being as precise as you can on this pointthat you confer
with the States or consult with the States prior to the implementation
of those repadations.

Mr. WEIKEL. Absolutely. So there can be no confusion. I cannot
testify as to what happened in terms of the original implementing
regulations since I was not involved in the program in any way at
that point.

I am saying in recent history there clearly has been a record of
consulta tion.

Mr. SANTINI. What is recent history ?
Mr. WEIKEL, Within the last year.
Mr. SAx.rtsr. That is 6 years after the so-called effective. date,

July 1. 1969.
Mr. TVEncs.L. If we are truly interested in whether this program

has a potential we can recite past history over the last 5 or 6 years,
or we ran look at what has been done by the Department to move out
aggressively to implement this program.

I also want to make clear that the reonlations you are talking about
being published in August were clearly not regulations that were just
laid on States. That was a notice of proposed rulemaking that tlm
States and every other interested party has 30 days to comment on,
after which we will consider their comments. In that interim period
have already discussed those regulations with State officials_ with the
American Public Welfare Association., and their representatives.
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Mr. SANTINI. You feel that the record of Health, Education, andWelfare has been a conunendable one in terms of its relationship withthe States ?
Mr. %trim,. In terms of the EPSDT program, I think that is.7elearly true. I think that we feel the need within medicaid within_.SRS, and within the Department to have more dialog with the Statesrather than less.

We clearly can't solve these problems from Washington. We believethey can only be solved by working cooperatively wth the States.I think I can give you a specific list of regulatioLs that have beenpublished within the medicaid program, within SRS and the Depart-ment in the past 6 months where the States have been consulted evenbefore the notice of proposed rulemaking.
Mr. SArrrnea. Dr. Weikel, I would appreciate your comment, too--as you observe the value of the program is not in screening, it is inchildren treatedcan you advise this committee, in view of the factthat this is the value of the program, how many children were treatedMr. WEIKEL. That is clearly one of the problem areas in administer-ing the program. When the program was originally implemented therewas too much emphasis, I believe, speaking as a professional, on thescreening component. The only data required from the States wasoriented around the number screened and the number that are referred.We recognize this problem, and we have begun to do something aboutit.

We have changed our reporting requirement. We are in the processof getting that. cleared through the Office of Management and Budget,and we are requiring them not only to report screening data but todevelop some mechanism for following up to make sh,-e that thechildren are treated.
One of the major provisions of the revised penalty regulation isrequire documentation on the part of the States to determine whetheror not the. children were treated.
Mr. SANTINI. Your answer is that we cannot assess the value of theprogram because we don't know how many children have been treated6 years after the program was to be implemented ?
Mr. WETKEL. That is correct. I think the mechanisms are in placeclearly to correct that.
Mr. SANTINI. Congressman Metcalfe testified, with regard to theactions on this top priority program :
In 1972 I requested the TY.S. General Accounting Offlee to investigate theEPSDT programs to determine the extent of its implemPnta t ion in my home Stateof Illinois and throughout the Nation. In Jammry of 1975 the GAO issued areport. Their findings and conclusions made it clear that despite the law. anddespite the obvious human need that program can serve. HEW has all but ignored_.the existence of ESPDT for more than five years.
Ts that an accurate conclusion ?
Mr. WEIKEL. I think in our comment, on that the Department imli-cated we did not have any real problem with that conclusion.
Mr. SA NI-mt. You agree with that conclusion ?
Mr. WEIKEL. Yes, sir. The Department officially responded to thateffect.
Mr. °WINGER. I am .rr o i n .0. to have to cut the gentleman off, but we*ill get back to you. I think you are doing a good job.
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The administration has vetoed a health bill that would provide for
the training assistance to medical schools, additional assistance tO
medical schools, to provide the doctors that are needed. Then it vetoes
the Child Nutrition program. They have announced that we should
not bother to pass a national health insurance program, all that costs
too much money.

We had strong evidence in these hearings that the States were not
responding enthusiastically at least in part because they are suffering
severe financial stringency, and they are not anxious to put up a very
substantial share of the funding that is required. How would the
Department look upon our increasing the Federal share 100 percent,
or perhaps DO percent, mid could we anticipate a veto if we went ahead
and did that ?

I think the Secretary probably ought to answer that as it is a question
of departmental policy.

Mr. Sorev.a. Mr. Chairman, obviously you are making a proposal
which the Department would have to consider mid discuss in the
context of its place in the. executive branch. We cannot tell you now
what the President would do if the Congress _were to send him
legislation which would clia nge the EPSDT program.

Mr. OrrixnEn. Is it. your opinion that the inability of the States to
ffnance the program is a problem?

:Nfr. WEtKEL. I would like to conunent on the different types of
implementation of this program. If you look at the medicaid program
historically, that. has, been a program that has had principally one
objective, providing payment or phying bills for low income indi-
viduals who mire eligible to providers from whom they receive services..
The EPSDT program gave the States an entire different. set of re-
sponsibilities that they never had before. they could look at a single
bill in isolation and say that is a valid bill, and pay it.

With the, implementation of the EPSDT program it put on a
different set of responsibilities, responsibility for outreach, and fol-
lownp, a responsibility to make sure that children get, in to be treated,
-flint was not, the responsibility that the traditional medicaid agency
had prior to the enactment of the EPSDT. That is quite different.

The reason I mention that is that funding is only one of the prob-
lee,s T think that the States have.

We mire addressing the need for outreach. The need for followup,
find tracking throngh some of onr technical assistance, some of our
changes in reporting, and some of our other contracts to develop track-
ing systems for the States. So, money is only one problem.

am sure if you asked the States if they wanted more money the
answer would be yes.

r.nMr. OTTlxn. What is needed here is a comprehensive health pro-
gram for children as I see it here. Perhaps if the administration was
not prepared yet to go for a national health insurance program that
covers everybody it might at least, as has been suggested in testimony
here, go for a national health insurance program that covered children
in their early childhood years. The testimony I think was that it would
be very desirable to have this from birth to 6 years old.

Can you give ns any indication of how the Department would view
this?

Dr. DrcirsoN. No, sir. I have no comment to make on that. I heard
the proposal.
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OTTINGER. Can we get some comment from the Department onthose twO questions in writing ?
Dr. DicitsoN. Yes, sir.
[The information requested was not available to the subcommitteeat the time of printingNovember 18, 1975.)
Mr. Orrin:1m counsel, I will give you an opportunity for somequestions.
Mr. SEGAL. Last year there was an indication that there were 13million EPSDT eligible children. Is that correct ?Mr. WrrZ. Yes.
Mr. SEGAL. AEproximately 1.5 million were screened ?
Mr. WEncrir. That is correct.
Mr. SEGAL. Therefore, that would leave approximately 11 millionor 11.5 million not screened?
Mr. Wyricvi., Who were not screened that year ; that is correct. Thereis a total of 3 million children screened to date.
Mr. &um. Could I ask, Mr. Chairman, that we insert in the record'at this point a preliminary report that was done by the staff by re-questing States for information on EPSDT.
Mr. OTTINGER. Without objection, that will be so ordered. I think ifyou are goinff to question the witness about it, you had better makeit available tobthe witness.
[The document referred to follows :]
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PRELIMINARY REPORT OF THE RESULTS OF A QUESTIONNAIRE SENT TO STATE MEDICAID
AGENCIES CONCERNING EARLY AND PERIODIC SCREENING, DLAGNOSIb, AND TREAT-
MENT (EPSDT)

(Prepared by the Staff of Oversight and Investigations Subcommittee, Com-
mittee on Interstate and Foreign Commerce)

EPSDT - FY 1975

PROGRAM
ACCOMPLISHMENTS

PROGRAM
FAILURES

Total Eligibles
(12.8 million)

1

Screened Not Scrcened
(1.9 million (10.9 million
14.8%) 85.21)

Need Treatment
\ Total

N (45.11) (850,000)*
\ \\ \

Lt
1 s , f

Treated \ Not Treated
(60.4%) % \. \ (39.61)

(510,000)* % \ \ (340,000)*

Treated
(67.6t)
(150,000)*

Treated
(28.5%)
(29,000)*

Trea&d
(98.51)
(75,000)*

*Staff estimates

\ Need Treatment
Vision
(12.0%) (230,000)1

1 1
Not Treated

(32.4t)
(78,000)*

..Need Treatment
Hearing
(5.11) (100,000)*

Need Treatment
Iron-deficiency Anemia

(4.0) (76.000)*

o

Not Treated
(71.5%)
(71,000)*

Not Treated
(1.51)
(1,000)*
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EARLY AND PERIODIC SCREENING,
DIAGNOSIS, AND TREATMENT

On September 10, 1975, the Subcommittee on Oversight and Investigations ofthe House Committee on Interstate and Foreign Commerce surveyed the Statesfor certain basic statistical information on the Early and Periodic Screening,Diagnosis, and Treatment program (EPSDT) required under Title 19 [Medi-caid] of the Social Security Act. A total of 35 States responded. The results ofthat survey form the basis for this preliminary report on EPSDT.The following sections examine the number of children eligible for screen-ing, and the number screened, needing treatment, and treated for general condi-tions and for specified visual, hearing, and anemia problems. The report focuseson children receiving such services, and more importantly, on children who arenot receiving such services when they should be.
Eligible population

Based on the responses of 31 States providing information on the eligiblepopulation, an estimated 12.8 million children were eligible for EPSDT at sometime during fiscal year 1975. The methodology used in arriving at this estimateis as follows:
Data on quarterly eligibles was provided by 30 States, indicating a quarterlyaverage of 4,084,545 eligibles during FY 1975. These States included approx-imately 45% of Medicaid recipients under 21 years of age during May, 1975(excluding New York for the reasons noted below). Assuming that the sameratio holds true, 4,084,545 would be 45% of eligibles in FY 1975, yielding anaverage quarterly estimate of 9.1 million eligible children;Eight States provided information on both the quarterly eligibles and thetotal yearly number of eligibles. In these States, the yearly total was 1.28 timeshigher than the quarterly average. Multiplying this 1.28 yearly turnover factortimes the 9.1 million average quarterly number of eligibles yields an estimated11.6 million eligibles at some time during FY 1975; andNew York reported 1.2 million eligibles during the year, and no quarterlynumber, and thus has been excluded from the above computations. Adding the1.2 million New York eligibles to the 11.6 million yields a nationwide estimateof 12.8 million children eligible at some time during FY 1975.

General screening package
Data on the general screening package was reported by 34 States, with atotal of 1,162,589 screenings reported in those States. These 34 States includedapproximately 61% of Medicaid recipients under 21 in May of 1975. Assumingthat the same ratio holds true for the entire fiscal year, an estimated total of1.9 million children were screened during FY 1975.States were also requested to provide information on the number screenedspecifically for visual, bearing, and Iron-deficiency anemia problems. In general,for most States, vision and hearing screens reported were the same as totalgeneral screening. Fewer States reported screening for iron-deficiency anemia.The results of screening for these specific problems are as follows:33 States reported 1,115,223 screenings for vision ;31 States reported 1,111,060 screenings for hearing; and20 States reported 886,971 screenings for iron-deliciency anemia.

Public accountability questions
Since the total eligible population was estimated to be 12.8 million, approx-imately 10.9 million children were eligible for screening services but were notscreened during FY 1975.
What are the consequences of 10.9 million children not receiving this basicpreventive health care?
How many of these children were screened in previous years? For example,if 3 million children were screened in all previous years, does than meanalmost 8 million eligible children have never been screened under this program?Can one expect a greater Proportion of eligibles to be screened in the futureyears? How many?
What is the Department of Health, Education, and Welfare doing to increase*the pace of screening?

Number needing treatment
States were asked to provide the number screened who were identified asneeding treatment.
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32 States reported the total number needing some form of treatment as
a result of tbe general screening package. Of the 1,098,400 screened in those

States, 495,471, or 45.1% needed treatment.
32 States reported the number needing treatment for vision problems, with

12.0% (133,589 of 1,113,261 screened) needing such treatment.
32 States also *reported those needing treatment for hearing problems, with

5.1% (56,747 of 1,110,778 screened) needing such treatment.
13 States reported those needing treatment for iron-deficieney anemia, with

4.0% (24,417 of 608,821 screened) needing such treatment.
Assuming that the percentages of those needing treatment would apply to

the entire eligible population of 12.8 million, the following can be derived:

45.1%, or 5.8 million children, need some form of Medical treatment ;

12.0%, or 1,5 million children, need treatment for vision problems:

5.1%, or 050,000 children, need treatment for hearing Problems; and
. 4.0%, or 510.000 children, need treatment for iron-deficiency anemia.

'Public accountability questions
What are the consequences of as many as 5.8 million children actually need-

ing some form of medical treatment when only 1.9 million are being screened

each year?
How can time Departme»t otHealth, Education, and Welfare justify its ae-

tiquaju.implementing EPSDT when the program falls so far short of the need?

Number treated'
A small .number .of States were able to report the number of those needing

'treatment who we're actually treated.
9 States reported all treatments as a result of the general screening package,

;with 00.4 percent (8(054 of 133,117 needi»g treatment) actually receiving treat-

uf en t.
5 States reported the number receiving treatment for vision problems, with

67.6% (8,357 of 12,308 needing treatment) actually receiving treatment.
5 States reported the number receiving treatment for hearing problems, with

28.5% (622 or 2,186 needing treatment) actually. receiving 'treatment.
3 States reported the number receiving treatment for iron-deliciency anemia,

with 98.5% (8,401 of 8.527 needing treatment) actually receiving treatment.
Applying these percentages to the total number of children reported as need-

ing treatment in tbis survey yields the following:
60.4% of the 495,471 children reported as needing treatment, or approximately

299,000 children, actually received such treatment. Approximately 196,000 were

identified as needing medical treatment but were not treated:
67.6% of the 133,589 children reported as needing treatufm: for vision prob-

lems, .or approximately 90,000 children, actually received such treatment. Ap-
proximately 43,000 children were identified as needing treatment for vision prob-

lems but were not treated;
28.5% of the 56,747 children needing treatment for hearing problems, or ap-

proximately 10,000 children, actually received such treatment. Approximately
;moo were identified as needing treatment for hearing problems but were not

treated: and
98.5% of the 24.417 children needing treatment for iron-defieieney anemia, or

about 24,000 ehildren, actually received such treatment, while approximately

400 did not.
Public acrountabilit y questions

IMw can one justify identifying medical problems and then not treating

them?
Why are so few States able to report important link between screening and

treatment? Do the other States not know how many were treated?
How eau the Department of Health, Education, and Welfare assure that the

treatment component of EPSDT is being carried out, when most States cannot
even provide information on treatment, and those that do provide such infor-
mation indicate that only 130.4% of the total problems identified are actually

being treated?

I Because or time limited number of States responding these figures must be used with
caution in considering national extrapolation.
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kiwi:Joh 31. dala needed
Data:nu .the tttuniters sereened, and mutthers tuling treatment. for specified

conditions nPpear to he adequate at the present time. However, tile remainder
of the (Mtn on EPSDT needs marked improvement.

Informotion on the eligible 1$0Pnloliou elan only be described as grossly in-
adequate. The Subcommittee star encountered similar problems on-the eligilde
Pettit )010min:the survey .of surgery under Medicaid, 1r Is imperative tlmt: the
Depart Meta of Ilenith, Education, and Welfare develop accurate Information
on the nuMber of geoletild eligibles.

The survey requeitted information on the nuniber of thosie informed of the
the availobillty of Hereening stervices. -and the number reonesting atul declining
such services. A number of States were tumble to identify thoseInformed, and
most Stotes were unable to identify those requestIng,aud.declinIng such servkes.
Sue It Information .should be kept up to date at the Eci lerpl level, And must be
kept at the -State level since Snites are required fo Inform eligibles, and must
be utile to Identify requests for screening in order to provide service.

occountabilIty requires that a data colle&lon system be available that
will Iluk treatment to screening.

Mr. SEGAL. I have a couple of thhlitional questions. Let us focus on
those who were not screened, the 11 million approximately.

We have heard testimony over tlie.paSt.couple of days that a nitmher
Of disorders such as vision disorders and hearing disorders and nnemia
are prevalent among the population. Would you say that an estimate
of 10 percent of those children screened would be likely to have a vision
disorder? I think it might he appropriate to hear from our pediatri-
chins who are here.

Arr. WmIcsn... I will tell you what we have discovered in the 3 million
children we have screened: That is somewhere in the neighborhood

MI% Orrisumu. Excuse me. I heard yon say before that you screened
about]. million children.

Mr. WEIICEL I think I said previously we screened through uly 1
of 19T4. 1.5 million. We screened during the past year, in fiscal 1975;
1.5 million. fOr a total of 3 million children screened.

SanAL. Since 1960 there have been 3 million screened?
Mr. WEIKEL. There have been 1.5 million children screened during

the last fiscal year.
Mr. OrnsoEn. 1.5 million during the past fiscal year.
Mr...WF.ixEL. That is correct. I think that clearly demonstrates some

increased growth in file implementation of this program.
SteLtr ITsipg the figure that yon indicated that there were S per-

cent of those who had been screened had visual problems. would yon
think then it would he a fair extrapolation to look at the. 11 million
who had not been screened and assume that 500.000 of them would have
visual disorders?

MI% Wr.umr.. No. si. First of all. we at this point unfOrtunately do
not know how many of the remaining 11 million children have received
services that are equivalent to screening through being treated by a
nei!rliborhood health center.

Mr. SEOAL. Could we have Dr. Lowe answer that question on his pro-
fessional judgment ?

Dr. LowE. I would have to defer to Dr. Weikel. There are good fig-
fires on tlle prevalence of a large cariatv of important. defects in chil-
dren: This would he one of them. I think it is an opportunity to gain
hard numbers on the prevalence of visual defects. T am afraid T can't
assist. you.
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Mr. SEGAL. Have you seen any studies on visual disorders and the
percentage of children that have been determined to be having defects
or disorder problems?

Dr. LOWE. Yes sir; there are studies and the National Center of
Hea1th statistics lias prepared some. The problem is that these figures
tend to be distorted because children with very obvious defects show
up before children with more subtle defects. The caveat I think that
Dr. Weikel inserted is one that should be kept in mind.

Mr. SEGAL. What about the National Academy of Science study?
Would that be a study that you would consider appropriate in any
way ? What of the epidemiology of the study's results?

Dr. LOWE. I am not sufficiently familiar with the study to comment.
Mr. WEIKEL. I am familiar with the study.
Dr. KRETCHMER. The answer is yes.
Mr. SEGAL. 11 million individuals who are not screened, if they were

screened what percentage might you expect would have visual dis-
orders?

Dr. KRETCHMER. I have no idea really. I think what Dr. Lowe said is
quite true. As you screen you are going to get a minimum figure which
is comprised of those children who have outstanding disorders. That
is a minimum figure.. Then a maximuin figure builds up as you begin
to count minimal or mild disorders. I don't think there are sufficient
data now available that would give an accurate percentage figure of
visual disorders which one could expect.

There are data, for example, on mental retardation.
Mr. SEGAL. Could you cite those, please ?
Dr. KRETCHMER. Yes. The data on mental retardation, which have

been gathered primarily by the National Foundation as well as other
foundations, would indicate that about 7 percent. of the children
would fall into an area from mildly to severely retarded. This is a fig-
ure. by the way, that was given to you yesterday also.

Mr. SEGAL. That is right. So, you would expect out of that popula-
tion of unscreened; namely. 11 million, that 770,000 of them might very
well be mildly to severely retarded?

Dr. KRETCHMER. Yes; or with some kind of learning disability ; that
is right.

Mr. SEGAL. CMIld I ask one more question along that line? Aspart
of the methodology for the study that we did of the State agencies it
was determined out of 1.9 million screened there were 12 percent that
had visual disorders. Is there someone here who feels that is an inap-
propriate figure to have be determined by the States ?

Dr. LOWE. With your permission I would like to go back to the
question on mental retardation because I think it would be helpful to
clarify one point. The prevalence of mental retardation is a function
of the age at which you make the assessment. The best single study,
for example, done in Maryland shows that if you detect mental
retardation at birth you start with about 1.5 to 2 percent. If you move
up through various ages you can reach 7 to 10 percent. But it is not
valid to extrapolate that figure to a population age under 5.

Mr. arrisom In the National Academy of Sciences study I take it
the conclusion was that the screening process simply was not valid,
the screening that is being done is inadequate, and the followtip that
is being done on that is even more inadequate. That seems to be con-

134



131

firmed by the GAO study as well. Is this piecemeal approach to theproblem worth it? Is it worth our putting more efforts in a simplescreening program?
Mr, WEIKEL. I would like to comment on that. I think I am awareof the National Academy of Sciences study you are talking about.That was predominantly funded by the Department. I was one of theofficers to that particular contract. As I recall that contract, it did notpertain to the effectiveness of screening under the early and periodicscreening, diagnostic and treatment program but screening per se,whether done in the school program, neighborhood health clinic, orin a private physician's office. It is not an indictment of the EPSDTprogram. It says something on a broader basis about our ability toscreen and pick up some of these conditions.To answer your question in terms of tracking, yes, there have beenproblems in terms of tracking and following up to make sure thechildren are actually treated. Again I think the States over the lastyear have made significant progress in putting into place systemsthat will begin to track.

There are two particular approaches that can be used. I can dis-cuss those in detail if you would like to follow up and track children.Mr. OrrINGEn. Why lion't you discuss them briefly and perhaps com-ment as well on Dr. North's suagestion on supplying vouchers?Mr. WEIKEL. I have not thoUght about that approach at all, and Irefer not to comment at this time.
In terms of followup treatment there are two approaches. One in-volves a. case management of an individual, to have responsibility onthe part of the Government or administering agency to make sure thechild goes into screening or goes to a physician that provides screen-ing and treatment. This program does not mandate and does not en-courage separate screening clinics despite what some of your previouswitnesses have testified to.

Then after the individual is screened, whether it is by a privatephysician who will follow up on the diagnosis and treatment, that caseworker would need some verification that the treatment is provided.Some States are presently implementing that system.The second system of tracking and followup comes about as a resultof a claims process, a process for paying medicaid claims. In thatprocess the physician reports a procedural code. If the State runs apatient profile, they obtain the patient's name, the names of the pro-viders that are servicingthat patient, and the names of every serviceprovided, ever37 diagnosis. every treatment that is provided, everyservice provided for that individual patient. Through that mechanismwe can check back to see whether a condition was identified duringscreening and whether he is receiving subsequent treatment.Mr. OITINGER. Are,any of these things being done now ?Mr. WEIBEL. Yes, sir.
Mr. OrrixoEn. On a universal scale ?
Mr. WEIKEL. On a universal scale the answer is no because we have53 States and jurisdictions operating this program and they have theirown methods. Some of the methods are nonexistent. I don't want toimply there are 53 States and jurisdictions that have a tracking systemand followup. Texas has put in a patient profiling system. They havebad that in recent years. but now they have a means of identifying
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whethert he child received treatment as .a result of Screening. 1 ne
State of Michigan has put it system in place involving more of a
ease management systeawhich involves the public health department,

-Mr. Orrixotn. I recognize Mr. Wunder, the Minority counsel.
. Mr. Wrrxtnia. Thank yon, Mr. Chairman.
Dr. Weikel.. would it, be fair to say abOut the Department's position

in regard. to this program that, yes,.yon acknowledge there have been
problems 'antli yes, yon acknowledge there have been delays but you
tire now taking affirmative action to alleviate the problems and delays
that existed in tlm past?.

Mr: WEIItEr.i T. think that is clear.
Mr. WUNDER. Would it also be. fair to say that. the sereenhig of

3 million eliihlren in the last 2 years evidences the Department's posi-

tion to take a more affirmative action ?.
Mr. WEIKEL. The screening of a million and a half children during

the past year indicates the affirmative action. The 3 millio» screened

was from the beginning of the program in 1969. So that we have
screened 3 million thronghont the entire program; one and a half
million since last uly indicates affirmative action.

Clearly those of us who are involved in administering the program
are not. satisfied with the one and a half million. We believe we have to

get. up to a maximum implementation of the program which is some-

where in the magnitude of screening on an annual basis of 8 to 4 mil-

lion children, but never more than that. It must be remembered in this

program we are not screening every child very year. That is not a re-
quirement of the. program. It wonld be a waste of the taxpayer's
money. We are moving up to get the prorrrams implemented so that

we will get the maxinunn screened and treared.
There is another caveat, this program cannot be one of coercing the

recipients to bring their children in. It has to he a voluntary program
on the part. of the recipient coming in for the service. 'We are aware
that, we are screening the recipients right now. We are getting the
easiest. recipients, those who happen to be most health conscious, into

the program.
, As we ro down the road it. will be much more diflienit. require much

more outreach service, which is very costly to the. Federal Govern-
ment and the State. to get a larger number screened. Congress should

be aware of that potential difficulty. We don't. expect these figures to

jnmp up inagieally because we must still depend on the cooperation of

the parent or 7nardian to get. the children in despite the caseworkers
going out 'and Public ITealth nurses trying to tell about the inipor-
tance. of preventive health and getting screened.

Mr. 0-mxoEn. If I may intrude here, on cost. effectiveness there. is

no dispute on your part nt all, is there, that the cost of providing the..

tests or diagnoses of diseases that children may have, insipient diseases

that they may have. is just a fraction of the cost of treating those
problems when they beeame acute if they are not diagnosed?

Mr. Wnncr.L. We believe. I think, that this program is cost effective.

Early interventio» in some of the types of diseases we are talking abour

has implications not only for future health costs but also for cost of

education. through special education classes, for example.
'We think it. is cost effective. We. would not conclude, by that that

every' possible clinical test. or evaluation that wonld be included in the
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.sereening package is in itself cost effective. We think the total program
.can be cost effective.

Mr. °WINGER. Have you done any actual computations projecting
. what the costs of a complete program that would cover every child
would amonnt to, versus the present cost of treatment?

Mr. WEIKEL. First of all, I would start. with this caveat. Our cost
data in terms of data that has been reported specifically.. from the
States is very .poor. We have not previously asked for the States to
report the cost of doing a screen or the coat cif treatment because of the
conditions identified during screening. That has to do with our re-
porting system.

We have, corrected that now. In the reporting, as soon as we get the
form cleared, we are requiring them to report to us the cost of screen-
ing and the cost of treatment for conditions identified.

111r. (Yrruxotat. Are yon getting also the cost of institutionalizaticn
of chihlren who are retarded, and particularly being able to catego-
rize those who might not have had a retardation problem had they
been properly identified?

Mr. WEIKEL. I don't really know methodologically bow I would
get that. We can tell von how much we are spending in time i ntermediate
care facilities for the mentally retarded. I low much of that could
have been prevented would require a massive clinical evaluation which
I don't think we are prepared to do, nor are the States.

Mr. Orrixonn. Do yon have the figure for how much is prei,ently
being spent under medicaid for the mentally retarded ?

Mr. WEIKEL. For the ICFMR I don't have it at my fingertips. As I
recall, the total budget for the intermediate. rare facilities is approxi-
mately $12 billion. I think it would be roughly a quarter of that. let's
say in that neighbohood. But we can supply that to you.

(The information requested was not. available to the subcommittee
at the time of printingNovember 18, 19751

Mr. Orr! SG En. Tliank you, Mr. Weikel.
Mr. Wnnder.

Mr. Wrxnett. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
The point I was trying to make is that in the last year you have

screened as many people in that program as you have screened in all
the previous years combined.

Mr. Wen:r.r.. That is correct. Not only that. lea time screening data
includes none of the equivalents to screening. It says nothing about
all those medicaid reeipients who are getting services from the private
pediatrician, praetitioners, from the neighborhood health clinic. et
cetera.

Mr. Wrxor.n. Are there any statistics or data that would indicate
whether or not. o what percentage of the remaining 11.5 million who
have not been screened have received comparable treatment ?

NIr. WEIKEL. We do not have good tlata on that. We are at the pres-
ent time. again working with the States to try to imn wove that. We
have developed a number of papers on the subject of the equivalence
to screening. That has been reviewed with the States. Every State has
received copies of that document and asked whether they have addi-
tional thoughts on how we can measure equivalence, what areas have
not heen included for those who have criticized us for not involving
the private practitioner. which we want to include in this program.
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We are telling the States if they can document to us that a certain
number of individuals are being treated in the neighborhood health
center or receiving screening services in their school system then this
is equivalent to EPSDT screening. Someone mentioned earlier the
State of Massachusetts where they mandate a requirement that their
children be screened prior to admission to school.

I think every year some of the States have that requirement for
up to age 12, some of them tilrough high school. But we are telling
the States that if the requirements, if the school health program in
that case meets the reqmrements of the EPSDT screening criteria,
and the element of the various tests laid out in their screening pack-
age and State plan meet our criteria, then that is acceptable. They can
count those as an equivalent of having been screened, but they =1st
have mechanisms available to follow up the children.

We are not ,o.oing to count screening if they only demonstrate screen-
ing has been done with no ability to follow up.

Mr. ()WINGER. Mr. Sharp.
Mr. SuARP. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
I would like to ask if, under present authority, that you have could

you let contracts to try the voucher system, to demonstrate it?
Mr. WEIKEL. I don't honestly know.
Mr. Slum.. Can 3.ou find out and let us know if You have the legal

authority under which you might experiment with this program'?
Mr. WEIKEL. Yes.
{The information requested was not available to the subcommittee

at the tinie of printingNovember 18, 1975.]
Mr. SEGAL. What about section 222 and section 402?
Mr. Wzrxr.t. Section 222, as I understand it, I do not believe would

cover it. Section 402 I frankly don't know what it is.
Mr. SHARP. Dr. Weikel, my concern is this: It seems to ine apparent

from the testimony we get that one of the essential problenis we have
throughout so mnch of the Federal Government. this particular pro-
gram as well as the problem of our bureaucratization, everyone agrees
with that. that in itself has to be one of the essential concerns of those
of us with any responsibility in the Federal Government. Yet it wor-
ries me that maybe we are not being experimental enough. that we
are not tryin g. to find better waysperhaps you people are and I am
not aware of itin which to simplify, not complicate but shnplify
the ways in which we urge people to take a service. the ways in which
you provide it.

I guess I want to tell you that I think one of the chief responsibili-
ties we have is to do some of these experimentations in order to find
in the next few years the best. simplest method. I am worried about
all the nuegions about data. that we will end np with body counts
as we did in Vietnam, and we will miss the forest for the trees.

Mr. WEINKL. T am a fraid there is no best. simple method. The best,
simple method is to get them treated by a private practitioner or
pediatrician and seen on a regular basis. If we don't lmve an ade-
quate number of pediatricians in a geographic area it is impossible.

To answer your question. I think we have a number of demonstra-
tion projects looking at various components. Whether it is the screen-
ing. whether we can do that in private practice versus a clinic, the
tracking system. we are experimenting with that. We are experiment-
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ing with Outreach. We have one project in Portsmouth Va., wherewe have involved Public Health nurses going out and- talking to therecipient's family, talking about health e-ducation, the importance ofpreventive medicine. That hasbeen effective. It is also very costly.Mr. SHARP. Do you know of any instance in which a project has notbeen entered into of this sort that someone in the Department has rec-ommended because of fear that it might develop into a full-fledgedprogram?
What I am indicating here is an ideological opposition to experi-menting with some organizational procedure because whatever youdon't want it to work.
Do you know of any discussions within the Department where thepolicy decision was that ?
Mr. WEIKEL. What is the question ?
Mr. SuArin Any time a policy was made. in which an element ofconsideration was that we should not. try that because the AMA isnot going to like it or because some philosophy about distribution isviola-ted.
Mr. WEIKEL. Clearly I can say without fear of contradiction duringthe past year when I have been associated with this program that Iknow of no discussion of that consideration within the Department.There have been discussions about the cost of the program and some ofthe States' concerns about the cost of implementing this programwithin that. It is not that it does not agree with somebody's philosophy,et cetera. I lmow of no demonstration projects that have been turneddown even on a cost basis. We have one demonstration project herein Washington that we have implemented that I personally feel isvery costlybecause it is putting into place all of what we think shouldbe the ideal system in EPSDT if you are going to deliver it througha clinic, not through private practitioners. But that is one experiment.That is costing three-quarters of a million dollars.

Dr. VAN Ii6AK. I believe we have a nunther of programs already inexistence which are not intentionally designed as research. but canprovide us with information. What we need to do is more effectiveevaluation studies of impact. We can make comparisons between theESPDT program and some maternal and child health programswhere the mechanism of financing is different in otne case, one in es-sence providing an insurance program and in another you are giving .a formula grant to the State and allowing it to organize services.There are other different approaches to organizing health care suchas the health maintenance organization program which we need toevaluate in terms of its effectiveness. There are a number of programsunder way which should give us answers to lead to some decisions onyour part.
Mr. SHARP. Generally my philosophy is that we are better off tryinga variety of things and we will probably always have a variety. I amnot advocating a system.
Second, the question of HEW enforcement of these kinds of things.My State is one of those that may take penalties on this and if theyare guilty, they should pay. the penalty. My only concern is that thepenalty tends to play in the hands of those who don't like the pro-gram anyway. It simply says we are going to cut you back on funds.Very -frankly, we suspect that some people in our State Department
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of Welfare in Indiana are delighted. They are opposed to providing

-:services. So.the penalty system Works against the program instead of

for it.
There has been some stiggestion in hospital utilization review anti

this program that you May have some effective people in Tegional of-

.fiees and yonmay.have some who aren't doing a darn thing about the

prooTam.
Ole area of the country may not be getting the benefit of the pro-

gram and discipline; another area may he getting more discipline than

it deserves, and action is taken by HEW in order to see that uniform

en foreement is carried out in this country.
Mr. Wenw.. I think those Of us who are administering the, program

are very concerned about the implementation of the penalty for the

reason you mention. It is a double-edge sword. It does have the poten-

tial of unpactino. negatively on recipients. It is because of that that I

think the preserit Secretary. Secretary
Mathews, has ordered a study

examining- the whole question of penalties. Those of us Who are. in-

volved in administering the progTain are concerned with trying to de-

velop positive incentives for the States. and providers anif recipients

for that matter, but in this ease specifically, the. States, to implement

the program aggressively.
Mr. SHARP. When do yon expect to have a proliosal on penalties ?

Mr. WEIKEL. The study on penalties I think is seheduled to be

completed somewbere in the beginning of January. That is just an

est imate.
Mr. Sir.tne. It will probably take a legislative proposal to change it.

Mr. WEIKEL it. (leanly would take a legislative proposal if there

is to be a change in the penalty situation. On the other hand. you

know sometimes we need sonic incentive to get the programs imple-

mented. Whether that shonld be a positive incentive, providing addi-

tional funds or a negative penalty, I think we. mild clearly discuss.

Mr. SiLtne. What do they do to see to it that various regional offices

are doi IVY rough1 v the seine kind of en foreement ?

Mr. WEIKEL. Whenever you have more than one in(fividnal involved

in anythimr, it is diffienit to get nni formity. We do take, certain steps

but we are concerned as well. and I think the Secretary is concerned,

at these charges of lark of uniformity from one region to another in

the imolementation of the penalty. We basically take steps to lay ont

what they are supposed to look foe.
For example, we have laid out in great detail what our regional of-

fice lieople should look at in making the penalty survey. WP have, had

trainino. sessions, bringing together all the regional people involved

in the EPSDT program to tell them what we are looking for. I think

there is a reeord there of having made some attennas to bring about

uni form ity.
Mr. SIMI'. I think that is fine bin I seriously believe that touolter

management has to be exercised in almost all of these agencies. I

shore yonr frustrations with tryin o. to do some of that.

WI% Orrixern. Thegentleman's time has expired.

Mr. Santini was just getting warmed rip. so we will let him warm

up again.
Mr. SANTINI. The able questioning of ofter members of the com-

mittee has taken Sonic frel oet of Inv fire, Mr. Chairman.
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I will follow up with some of the questions and concerns I did have.
I would like to ask you, Mr. Dickson, in my questioning yesterday

directed to Dr. Cohen he responded in part to a question that I posed
with regard to attitudes within the Delman-lent of Health, Education,
and Welfare, about the program we are examining today. He com-
mented on an attitude that existed there. He said, and I quote now
from page 76 of the transcript of our committee hearings of yesterday :

Dr. COHEN. The major responsibility in my opinion to Mr. Dwight-
Is there a Air. Dwight on the scene at the present time ?
Mr. WEIKEL. There is not.
Mr. SANTINI (continuing).
Who was the SRS Administrator during the period of time who came from

California, previous experience, came from the Budget Bureau and was madethe Administrator of this program.
He had a completely different conception of what the Federal Government'srole and responsibility was. As, for instance, take a specific problem in the Out-reach ; searching out these children who are eligible. He said no, that is not

the Federal Government's responsibility to try to go out and beat the bushes
to see who is eligible. Allow the States to do what they want.

I would ask you in view of the fact Mr. Dwight is no longer there,is there any residue of that profound administrative judgment re-maining in Health, Education, and Welfare ?
I would ask you, Dr. Dickson, to answer that question.
Dr. DICKSoN. I don't believe so.
Mr. SANTINI. That the Health, Education, and Welfare now viewsits role as at least in part to comnnmicate the availability of the serv-

ices that they are statutorily directed to implement. Is tlmt true, Dr.Dickson?
Dr. DicKsoN. Yes.
Mr. WEIKEL. I would like to comment on that further.
Mr. SANTr.m. I was afraid of that.
Dr. DICKSON. Only if you would like to get the answer.
Mr. WEIKEL. I think it is important that flue record is clear.
Mr. Orrricorn. Let's have Dr. Dickson reply first, if he can.
Mr. DICKSoN. I could not hear you, sir. Excuse me.
Mr. Orrricolat. I just said to avoid conflict among the panel that

you should reply first and then Dr. Weikel.
Dr. DICKSON. Yes. What was the question ?
Mr. SANTINI. Health, Education, and Welfare then views as oneof its primary responsibilities the communication to those whom the

services are intended to reach the information that is necessary for
them to obtain them.

Dr. Dicitsox. That is my understanding.
Mr. SANTINI. IS that the policy of the Department ?
Dr. Dicilsol.r. Yes, it is.
Mr. WEIKEL. Yes, it is clearly the policy of the Department. I have

some video tapes here, if you would like to see them, and some radio
spot announcements that we have distributed throughout the Nation
asking television stations and radio stations to play them. These spot
announcements tell recipients where they shoulcl go for service or to
ask about receiving service.

These are being played around the country. They have been devel-
oped by the administration. We have numerous manuals that we have
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provided to the medical societies who are involved in participating
in the prooTam from whom we are trying.to

l5rret

to greater participa-
tion. We rave various brochures announcingthe program.

Mr. SANTINI. The record is clear, you are right, Dr. Weikel.
Mr. WEIKEL. I think it is a good record.
Mr. SANTINI. You have the tapes ?
MT. WEIKEL. YCS.
Mr. SANTINI. To play on radio. You have the brochures that are

given to doctors?
Mr. WEIKEL. Yes, sir.
Mr. SANTINI. And you do have regular public service television

announcements ?
Mr. WEIKEL. That is correct.
Mr. SANTINI. When was this information program put into effect ?

Mr. WEIKEL. This information program has been operating over the
last year. The video tapes were available prior to the past year. I
can's tell you when the first one was available but they have been
sent out several times during the past year to all television stations
around the Nation.

Mr. SANTixr. Do you contemplate any further efforts?
Mr. WEIKEL. Yes, sir. We have an active program in the public

information field trying to make recipients aware of this. Also within
the Medical Services Administration we have appointed someone to be
head of consunier affairs to be more of an advocate for recipients, in-
cluding this program.

Mr. SANTINI. Dr. Dickson, the point of inquiry that I was develop-
ing before was, as Dr. Weikel charaeterized:it, the value of this pro-
(Tram was in the number of children treated.

We don't have any information on the number of children treated,
so we don't have any basis for judging the value of the- program at
this point. Why not include a question in the multitude of forms
that asks the question, "Was there any treatment ?", which is the basis
on which we value the program. Why not include a question which
says something to this effect. That is not really expert bureaucratese
but was there any treatment in the forms the States receive and doc-
tors receive ?

Dr. Drcnsox. I don't know the answer to that.
Mr. SA xTrxr. Dr. Weikel, do you have an answer ?
Mr. WErKEL. I should. I am in charge of the program.
Clearly the new reporting requirements do require that.
Mr. SANTrxr. When are the new reporting requirements in effect?
Mr. WEIKEL. As soon as they are officially cleared through the Of-

fice of Management and Budget.
Mr. SANTINI. They are not in effect now.
Mr. WEIREL. They are not. I did not imply they were in effect. They

have been developed by the Department awl they are in the clearance
process. We must get clearance before we can use any reporting
form.

Mr. SANTINI. Can we get any rough idea when we might expect
this question to be in the field?

Mr. WEIREL. We would expect it within the next month or so.
Mr. SANTINI. Finally, Dr. Dickson, what concerned me particularly
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yesterday was testimony by Dr. Cohen that we have approximately210,000 children in our State mental or comparable facilities in thiscountry, and he concluded that 10 percent of those children that arein those mental facilities today, or 21,000 children, need not havebeen there if they had had proper screening diagnoses and treatmentafter the effective date of this particular program.Would you care to comment on the accuracy or validity of thatconclusion?
Dr. DICKSON. Yes. I would like to have Dr. Lurie answer that state-ment, if I may.
Mr. SANTINI. You do not have any individual response to it?Dr. DICKSON. I don't know the answer to it, no.Mr. &STINGER. Would you identify yourself.Dr. Lulus. Yes. Ira Lurie, from the National Institute of MentalHealth.

Mr. &WINGER. Would you stand to be sworn.Do you solemnly swear that the testimony you are about to give isthe truth, the whole truth, and nothing but the truth, so help you God ?Dr. Lulus. Yes : I do.
Mr. OTTINona. Please proceed.
Dr. Lunn. Would you repeat the question, please.Mr. SANTINI. Yesterday in his testimony before this committee Dr.Cohen testified that in our country today it was his estimate that therewere 210,000 children presently housed in State facilities for the men-tally retarded, or comparable facilities; that it was his estimate thathad the proper screening, diagnoses and treatment been implementedat the time that was intended by Congress to be implemented; that 10percent of that 210,000, or 21.000 children, would not be in those facil-ities if this program had been implemented at the time designated byCongress.

Dr. LURIE. I am not sure I can respond directly to the numbers. Iwould assumethat given proper screening in the area of mental healthand behavioral disorders that a certain percentage of those youngsterswould not be in institutions.In many ways we don't have facilities bevond institutions. That isa very difficult kind of question. We have esiimates which are kind ofsoft in terms of their data.
Mr. SANTINI. We are trying to measure the impact of the derelictionhere in the hopes that we can avert it in the future with some construc-tive action.
Dr. LURIE. One of the major programs in HEW is the Ce-ImunityHealth Centers Act in which a large number of children have beendiverted from such institutions over the last 10 or 12 years. Under thenew legislation each one of these 'centers across the country, in orderto fulfill requirements. was to have children's services which,would beable to move more and more of these children into proper kinds ofservices. It is not a matter of screening that children with emotionalproblems end up in institutions. They have already been screened bysome force. What puts them in institutions is lack of services whichHEW through NIMH has been working on actively.Mr. &WINGER. Am I correct in my recollection that the adminis-tration proposed that the Community Health Centers be closed out?
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Dr. Ltrat. That waS the last administration. I am not sure what

the administration is doing on that.
Mr. SOPPER. Mr. Chairman, the administration's position is not that

they should be closed out but that the 500 or so comMunity mental

health centers that have received Federal assistance should continue to

receiveFederal assistance through the entire grant cycle, which the

statute stipulates, but that the Federal Government should not begin

to support any new community mental health centers, that is, the

consent had been demonstrated to be successful and that States and

local facilities ought to decide on their own whether or not they want

to continue the priority and set up community mental health centers

in the model that the Federal Government has supported, not that the

550 should be closed.
Mr. OTTINGER. The Federal funding for them should be ended, is

that correct?
Dr. LURIE. That there should be no new Federal funds for new com-

munity mental health centers but that those who have been getting

assistance should get assistance throughout the period of their grant

cycle.
No center, for example, that was in the third year should be termi-

nated. It should receive the full 8-year funding tli'at the statute entitles

it to.
Mr. OrrixoEa. What was the percentage cutback recommended by

Om administration for neighborhood health centers and comumnity

health centers this year as opposed to last year?
Dr. LURIE. I think Dr. Van Hoek can answer that.

Dr. VAN HOEK. Ximately 20-percent reduction based on the

premise that State I resources and third party payment would

pick up the differen, Lim total cost of operating the centers.

Mr..arrixomi. Anybody in the. administration. I suppose they don't

really .care, but certainly. speaking for the citY of New 'York with

9 million people, the State of New York with better than 18 million

people, the chances that they are going to be able to conic up with

additional resources to pick up this kind of cost are rather slim.

I think that is being seen througho»t the country with the economic

ieN,ssion. So the effect of what the administrat ion is doing is to say

that we are going to cut back our priority in this area. Isn't that. so?

Mr. Santini, do you have, another question ?

Mr. SANTINI. The Maguires testified yesterday about their children

suffering from that particular ailment, that with proper screening

and diagnoses and treatment they would not be in that facilityit
was sbnply a transfer of bodiesif that had been detected.

Apparently it is a subject of a sizable law suit now. That. is the kind

of human problems we want to reaCh out and try to resolve.

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Mr. arrixoEn. Mr. Segal.
Mr. SEGAL. I would like to ask a couple of legal questions relating

to the imposition of the penalty.
On Jane 2 of this year the'Secretary announced seven States were

out of compliance, and in July an eighth State was added. Were all

of -these for the first quarter of fiscal year 1975, namely, July through

September of 1974?
144
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Mr. DICKSON. Yes they were.
Mr. SEGAL. Have all other States been ruled in conipliance for that

time period ?
Dr. DICKSON. Please repeat that.
Mr. SEGAL. Were all other States ruled in compliance ? In other

words, mere the eight the universe of those who were penalized for
that one quarter?

Dr. DIcKsoN. I don't believe so.
mr..SEGAL. There may be additional States penalized ?
Dr. DICKSON. There may be, is that what you said, for the first

. quarter ?
Mr. SEGAL. Yes.
Dr. DICKSON. The answer to that is yes.
Mr. SEGAL. Were these penalties imposed on the States where the

press announcement said that penalties would be assessed ?
Mr. WEIKEL. The penalty announcement
Mr. SEGAL." think a yes or no answer
Mr. WEIKEL. I don't think a yes or no is clearly indicated because

there is a precedence. There is such a thing as due process to the States.
We announced to the States that we were assessino. the penalties
against them, but the States have 30 days in which'to ask for an
appeal. If they ask for an appeal, you have to go through the appeals
process prior to the time that the actual reduction is made.

Mr. SEGAL. Could you cite the regulations that say that that must
be the case?

Mr. WErKEL. That has been the practice of the agency.
Mr. SEGAL. For audit exceptions?
Mr. WEIKEL. For any audit exception.
Mr. SEGAL. Is this an audit exception or a mandatory statute calling

for a penalty?
Mr. 'WEIKEL. This is a mandatory statute calling for a penalty.
Mr. SEGAL. Do you treat it the same way as an audit exception ?
Mr. WEIKEL. We believe the State should have an opportunity to

appeal in case there has been some error made.
Mr. SEGAL. How can they appeal a penalty that has not been im-

posed?
Mr. WEIKEL. They have been notified that unless there is an appeal

request made officially of the Department within 30 days the penalty
will be taken and there will be a.reduction in their Federal grant the
next quarter, and they have all been notified of that by letter.

Mr. SEGAL. Again you have no regulation that cites that such a
penalty will be held in abey..ance while there is an appeal process for
something that has not been imposed ?

Mr. WEIKEL. As of August 18, 1975, there is in the Federal Register
a notice of proposed rulemaking.

Mr. SEGAL. So you have nothing in effect ?
Mr. WEIKEL. There is nothing in effect in terms of the whole recon-

sideration process other than the traditional practice of the Depart-
ment and agency in ternas of disallowances or audit exceptions. That
is correct.

Mr. SEGAL. With respect to the question on staffing you indicated
before that there were 100 positions that. were made available. Was
that in the regional and central offices for EPSDT?

130-86(1--75--10
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Mr. WEIKEL. That is a combination of regional office, central office
within the Medical Services Administration, plus any of the personnel
within the Social and Rehabilitative Services offices.

Mr. SEGAL. I think you might want to amend your previous state-
ment because that was in relation to the prooTam of EPSDT and not
in relation to the Social and RehabilitativeService.

Mr. WEIKEL. Social and Rehabilitation Service does have responsi-.
bility for the EPSDT program. The Medical Services Administra-
tion Is one of the programs within the Social and Rehabilitative
Services.

Mr. SEGAL. That is right. But that was not the question posed to
vou. The resional offices were listed in a letter from Secretary Wein-
berger to GAO in response to a letter ottheirs indicating that 56
positions in the region had been assigned tO work on EPSDT. Is that
a fact that it is still in effect ?

Mr. WEIKEL. That is correct..
Mr. SEGAL. Is that 56 full-time equivalents?
Mr. WEIKEL.,NO, the individuals assigned there were on a full-time

basis, the 56 people in the regional offices. The replonal offices in addi-
tion to that had been reporting 10 people prior ti) being given the 56,
that were working on a part-time basis.

Mr. SEGAL. You mean full-time equivalents among the 56?
Mr. WEIKEL. Fifty-six.
Mr. SEGAL. Working full-time on EPSDT programs?
Mr. WEIKEL. That is correct..
I know what you are leading tothe 9.0-percent figure that was

reported in the work plans of the regional offices. I want to make very
clear that those work plans have not been accepted on the part of the
central office as they were reported from the regional office.

Mr. SEGAL. I would like to ask specifically about a couple of States.
The State of Indianaone of those listed to be penalizedtheir

director of the program, Wayne Stanton, indicated that HEW has
now completely approved their program. He also indicated that In-
diana has the most comprehensive medicaid program in the Nation.

Has Indiana been cleared?
Mr. WEIKEL. Indiana has beeriassessed the penalty.
Mr. SEGAL. You have proposed to assess the penalty ?
Mr. WEIKF.L. We are m the due process of application of that

penalty. They have appealed that, and that appeal is being considered.
After that appeal is completed, the penalty will be assessed. It is dur-
ing that reconsideration process that tlw determination will be made
whether or not their program was in complhince not. at the present
time, but during the first quarter for the year when the penalty was
assessed.

Mr. Sr.GAL. Why should they be able to put in a press statement,
"At Indiana's request, including Governor Bowen's personal interven-
tion, the threatened fiscal penalty was later subject to mconsideration,"
and then further on a statement.' that I quoted to you before, that they
were absolved of this?

Mr. WEIKEL. I can't speak for the State in this case. I can tell you
they are referring to a study that was done, an evaluation of their
third and fourth quarter compliance. That report was submitted to._
our office.
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I have informed the regional office in Chicago that that report is,madequate based on our standards, and, therefore, additional workneeds to be done in the State of Indiana. I think Indiana, as we dowith every State, had an opportunity to review the results of theregional office evaluation. They obviously took that and decided onthat basis that they should make a press release. I think that is In-:, diana's choice. We are still considering the situation.Mr. OrrixonR. We have been joined now by my esteemed colleaguefrom New York who is a member of the subcommittee that deals withthis situation, as well as this subcommittee.
I recognize the ffentleman from New York, Mr. Scheuer.Mr. ScuroEn. Mi.. Chairman, I have a few questions. I suppose thatwe will be brealdng in 6 or 8 minutes. I will ask unanimous consent. to submit the questions to these gentlemen.
Mr. OTTINGER. Without objection, it is so ordered.Mr. ScimuEn. And I hope they will be included in the permanentrecord.
[Testimony resnmps on p..153.]
[Tile folloiving letter and enclosure Was subsequently received forthe record:I

DEPARTMENT or HEALTH, EDUCATION, AND WELFARE,
OFFICE or TIM SECRETARY,

Washington, D.C., November 5, 1975.lion. JoIIN E. Moss,
Chairman, Oversight and Investigation Subcommittee, Committee on Interstateand Foreign Commerce, U.S. House of Representatives, Washington, D.C.DEAR COAIRMAN Moss : Thank you for your letter of October 21, 1975. I amPleased to Provide you with the information requested by Representative JamesH. Scheuer for the record of the October 8 bearing on child health.Please let Me know If you need additional information.Sincerely,

Enclosure.
STEFUEN EURZSIAN,

4s8istant Secretary for Legislation.

Question 1. How can the Department of Health, Education, and Welfare(DHEW) penalize states retroactively to July 1, 1974 when the regulations werenot issued until August. and the states were allowed no lead-time to meet theregulation requirements?
Answer. The penalty provision wds enacted In October 1072, giving states 20months lead-time until the effective date, July 1, 1074. Further, the nine statesthat have been determined out of compliance with the penalty provision for thefirst quarter of FY 1975 failed to meet very basic and minimal criteria under thepenalty statute. The final regulations contained no new or unusual requirementsabout which the states had not otherwise been informed, through the legislation,proposed rules, and regional office correspondence.Question 2. Is It appropriate for DHEW to penalize States for failing to in-form families in writing by September 30, 1974, when Federal regulations indi-cate that this must be done within a year from July I, 1974, the time the regula-tions became effective?
Answer. This interpretation of the regulation conflicts with section 403(g) (1)of the Social Security Act. This section clearly contemplates that the penalty betaken for the first quarter of FY 1975 if a State fails to undertake its basic re-sponsibility to inform all AFDC families of the availability of EPSDT servicesduring that quarter. Indeed, the statute could be read to require States to repeatthis function with regard to all AFDC families in every succeeding quarter. Shortof this stringent standard, however, a reasonable reading of the statute requiresat least that each AFDC family be properly informed by no later than the end ofthe quarter in which It becomes part of the caseload. The regulation which mustbe read consistently with tbe statute, speaks to a State's responsibility to renotifyeach AFDC family no less than annually after the initial notification. It can-not be read to excuse a State from complying with the underlying statutoryrequirement,
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To argue that the regulation authorized a State to wait until June 30. 1975. to

accomplish its initial notification would be to ignore the existence of section

403(g) (1) of the Act through the first three quarters of FY 1975, and would

legitimize a State's practice of keeping its AFDC caseload uninformed: of the

EPSDT program for a 'full year after a Congressional dictate that States have

their programs fully operative or be penalty liable.

.Question 3. In applying these penalties to the states, what evidence is there

that DEIEW has applied a standard methodology so that all states irrespective

of DIIEW region or political party of the Governor of the state, are treated

equitably?
Answer. A penalty reporting form with instructions for its completion was

issued to all HEW regional offices in August 1974 in order to assure that gather-

ing of information related to making determinations regarding penalty states

would be uniform in all states. (See Attached Form.)

In addition, based on our initial experience with the penalty determinations,

we are in the process of issuing a more detailed revised reporting format to the

regional offices. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH',
EDUCATION. AND WELFARE,

SOCIAL Axn REHABILITATION SERVICES.
Washington. D.C., August 8,1974.

To : All SRS Regional Commissioners.
Subject : Field Staff Information and Instruction Series FY 75-4 EPSDT Penalty

Reporting Form.
Cleared by : OFO.

The directives of the guidelines for imposition of the penalty (MSAPRG-32)

(45 CFR 205.146(c) ), call for the Regional Offices to collect information for a

narrative report to be used to determine whether the penalty should be applied

to a particular State.
The first quarterly report for FY 1975 (July 1September 30, 1974) is to be a

one-time report requiring detailed information on existing State EPSDT pro-

grams, should be completed during September and October. and must he based

on actual State practice during the first quarter of FY 1975. Subsequent quar-

terly reports will be updates and modifications to the program described in this

first report.Attached is the penalty reporting form with a covering explanation of the

contents of the reporting form, giving instructions for its completion and an

outline of questions to be answered in the narrative. All of the questions for the

narrative must be addressed in the report submitted by the Regional Offices.

Please submit the first report bv November 15 to Division of Program Moni-

toring MSA, Room 4628, SwiN(--
Subsequent reports should (-=.!..,-,e,1 within 30 (lays of the end of the

quarter. ALBERT J. RICHTER.
Associate Commissioner.

Attaelnnent. EPSDT NARRATIVE REPORT

Explanation of report fornt
The guidelines for the penalty provision (45 CFR 205.146(c) ) call for a narra-

tive report to be submitted by the Regional Offices describing actual methods of

implementation in the States during the first quarter of FY 1975, which will be

used for initial determinations on application of the one percent reduction in

AFDC funds. This first report should describe fully the State's method of achiev-

ing fall compliance. Subsequent quarters' reports will describe only program

modifications and corrections.
This report form was developed to facilitate the preparation of the narrative

report requested in the guidelines. It is divided into four sections :

Section. IStatistical Data.
Section HInstructions for Narrative.
Section IIIValidation Visits.
Section IVRO Assessment.

Section I.Statistical Data
This section requests information on the number of individuals eligible and

the number receiving
EPSDT services in the program. We have asked for a break-
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_down.hy. AFDC and others of the total number of eligibles and number of eligiblesinfOrmed. (The only informing requirement for the penalty is the AFDC). For theother data .requested (screened, referred, and diagnosed/treated), we did notrequest a breakdown because of the limitations of State reporting systems.
Section 17.Instructions for Narrative

This section provides instructions for a narrative report on State activities tobe completed through interviews with staff of the title XIX and other responsible_tigencies TM Section is further divided into three subsections:A. informing Procedures.
B. Screening Arrangements.
C. Diagnosis and Treatment Arrangements

Each subsection includes:
1. Statement of requirements to avoid imposition of pena102. Instructions for information to be included in the narrative3. Instructions for documentation to be submitted with the narrativereport

Because of the diversity of methods the States are using to implement theEPSDT regulations, the report form nmst, of necessity. be general to allow forthe differences. We have tried to give as explicit instructions as possible withinthat limitation. Except where otherwise Indicated. each question must be an-swered. The inability to do so may be cousklered indicative of a problem in aState.
Section 11 AInforming Procedures

In light of individual State differences, questirms 8 through 11 may not beappropriate for an State reports. If the State is using written materials that givespecific information on where screening services are available, then the narrativeshould address questions 1 through 7. If the written materials give general In-formation, indicating where specific infornmtion is available (e.g., contaet your
caseworker or welfare office. etc.. for details on EPSDT services available in yourcommunity), the narrative should address questions 1 through 11.
Section 11 BScreening Arrangements

.

The questions request information on the kinds of arrangements the Slatehas made with screening providers so that families requesting screening eanreceive these services within a reasonable period of time.
Section 17 CDiagnosis and Treatment Arrangements

. The questions request information on the State's arrangements for referral todiagnosis and treatment providers, provision of those services, and follow-up.
Section, 771Validation

In order to assure that services are provided as the narrative describes, visitsneed to be made by IW reviewer to selected local sites. These visits should bemade to county/local welfare offices and local screening or EPSDT providersin at least six counties selected randomly by RO reviewer throughout the State..During these visits, RO staff should determine whether or not the local sites areinforming, screening, and following up as outlined in narrative report.
Section 1VRegional Office Assessment

If the State has met the requirements of the penalty regulation, then the RO'should check Section IV A of the report form to indicate that the State is incompliance with Federal regulations.
If the RO assessment is that the State has not met the requirements andtherefore the penalty should be imposed. Section IV B should be completed infull and the findings reviewed with the State. A recommendation for the penaltyshoold be submitted to the Administrator. SRS. as per instructions in FSIIS-75(to lw issued). Regional Office staff should also complete Section IV C orIV D as appropriate.

Signature
The report is to be signed by the reviewer. the Associate Regional Commis-sioner for Medical Services (if appropriate) and the Regional Commissioner.
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State

'EARLY AND PERIODIC SCREENINC,DIAGNOSIS AND TILTAMZNT

PENALTY REPORT/NG FOZA

Data

Individual cot:plating report

SECTION I - Statistical Data

C. Scree

D, Refer

E. Dia

A. El

B. ,In

As of 9/30 74

Region

4ible

Total

A.P.DC Others Total

0-5
6-20

'ormea*

Total
0-5
6-20

:ed

Total

Jul7 '73-June '74 .7uly '74-September '74

0-5
6-20

red

Totai
0-5 .

6-20

sed/Treated*
Total
0-5
6-20

P. Are the figures for nu=her of chlAdren screened ,:ne. rcferred based on

NCSS 116/120 reports? Yes No

G. Does the number of children screened, referred, and diagnosed/treated
include others in addition to AFDC (e.g., individuals under 21)? /f.so,

*Where dataare available.

SECTION IINARRATIVE REPORT INSTRUCTIONS

SECTION U AINFORMING PROCEDURES

Requ(rements
State must be able to document that all AFDC families have been informed:
1. At least once annually or during the period of eligibility if shorter.
2. In writing (pamphlets, brochures, other written materials, in English and

in foreign languages where required).
3. By other methods where written materials are inappropriate.
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4. Of what services are available (screening examinations and diagnosis andtreatment services).
5. Of where and how services can be obtained.

Description
The report must describe the following :
1. How present recipients and newly eligible recipients are informed of servicesavailable and names and locations of screening providers.2. How the written materials are distributed.3. How often they are distributed.
4. Who is responsible for distribution (e.g., State XIX agency, State welfare,county welfare, health departments, etc.)-
5. Concise summary of information Included in brochure.
6. How individuals for whom printed material is inappropriate are informed.7. Whether foreign language materials are provided and in what localities.If written materials give general information and refer recipients elsewherefor specific information, then the narrative report must also include thefollowing:
8. Who is designated to povide specific information.9. How those persons have been prepared to carry out this function (writteninstructions in administrative handbook, organized training, etc.).10. How these persons communicate specific information to recipients.11. Whether these persons or offices have a list of participating providers avail-able upon request.

Supportive Documentation
This must include :
I. Examples of written materials.
2. Instructions or training materials for items 3, 6, 9, and 11 under "Descrip-tion" above.

SECTION II B-SCREENING ARRANGE3frNTSRequirements
State must be able to document that for all families with eligible childrenrequesting screening services the State has :
1. Informed these families of names and location of screening providers.2. Informed these families of transportation available.3. Made agreements with providers to make screening services available toeligible children throughout the State, normally within 60 days of request.4. Defined screening package and informed screening providers about itscontents.
5. Taken steps to assist recipients requesting services to be able to receivethem (e.g., transportation, health education, child care, provider availability ).De8cription
The report must describe the following :1. What State has included in its screening package (procedures and periodictyschedule for rescreening).
2. Who provides screening services (number and types of providers) andwhether these services are available to all recipients throughout the State.3. What arrangements and/or agreements State has made with theseproviders.
4. How State informs participating providers of its program requirements forscreening (e.g., mandated and optional screening procedures, referral procedures,fee schedule established for screening services, and other case managementrequirements).
5. How State monitors providers to assure that services are delivered as out-lined by State.
6. How State informs recipients of availability of transportation services andassures that transportation is in fact available and provided as needed.'T. How State follows up on individuals requesting screening services to assurethat they have had access to these services and to assist those who have notreceived services to do so.

Supportive Documentation
This must substantiate items 1 through 6 above and include (but is not limitedto) :
1. State regulations, program standard manuals, staff instructions.2. Sample provider list.
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3. Billing and reporting forms..
4. Other appropriate materials.

SECTION II C---DIAGNOSIS AND TREATMENT ARRANGEMENTS

Requirements
State must be able to document that for children needing diagnosis or cor-

rective treatment for conditions found-during screening; the State has: - '

I. Informed these families of names and locations of providers.

2. Informed these families of transportation available.
3. Made arrangements with diagnosis and treatment providers so That- services

are available normally within 60 days of a screen. This Includes:
Establishment of referral procedures.
Provision of diagnosis for all conditions.
Provision for treatment within limits of State plan except eyes, hearing,

and dental; which are mandatory.
Establishment of agreements with providers so that services are available

to eligibles throughout the State.
4, Taken steps to assist recipients requesting diagnostic and treatment services

to be able to receive theta (e.g., transportation, child care, provider availability).

Description.
The report must describe the following:
I. Who provides the diagnostic and treatment services.
2. Whether sufficient providers are available to all recipients throughout the

State so that initiation of treatment can ben within 60 days.

3. How families are informed of names and location of these providers.

4. How State informs recipients of the availability of transportation and
assures that such transportation is in fact available and provided as needed.

5. How State follows up on children found in need of treatment after screen-

ing to assure that they have had access to those services and to assist those who

have not received services to do so. (Description of process for notifying the

State that treatment has been providedbills, receipts, follow-up procedures).

0. How vision, hearing, and dental treatment is provided.
7. What limitations to treatment exist, (indicate limits in plan and utilization

controls).
Supportive Documentation

This should include:
I. State regulations, staff instructions, provider manuals.
2. Sample provider list.
3. Billing and reporting forms (including case management forms).

4. Other appropriate materials.
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Seeti.on

Co'nnty t:elfare Office (identify)
Screening or (idr!ntif-.-)

Ccmmentt ineluding problems encou=erad during...iisqts

County Welfare Office (identify)
Screening or E7.= ;s: (identiM
Comments inclviing prchlems encountered during isits

County Welfare Office (identify)
.7areening or :LF$1.-Z ::.rcvider:' (identify)

C=nears including prol.'larA enraunrerel during :isits

County Welfare Office (identify)
Screening or SPsOT proyader(s) (identify)
Conments including problems encountered during visits

County 1%,Lfare rffice (;.lenLif
Screening or EPSDL pyLdet(3) (id.zra-ifv)

C=ments including.pro,:ms encountzred during visits

Count,: Welfare Office (identify)
:creeniag or LE:=
:omments including problem.: a.4ceuntered during visits
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Section IV - Regional Office Assessment

A. State's EPSZT "program has met the requirements of
-

B. State o 'failed to meet the requirements of 45 CFR
203.146(s) in the area of:

Informing Procedures
Soreening Arrang:ments
Treatment Arrangements

.-Desoriptix: of problems and majorobstacles to full compliance:

Concise account of RC efforts to bring State into comsliance:

C. State has met recuirements of 43 CFR 249.10(a)(3)

D. State has failed to meet requirements of 45 CFR 249.10
(a)(3)

Desorintinn or proble= and major obstacles to full comnliance:

71%te

Date

Reviewer

Associate Regional Commissioner
:for Medical Services

Regional Commissioner

IWTE: Recommendations for apTlication of the penalty should follow
procednres c4.t11 nse. in FSIIS FY-75- (to be issued)

Question 4. Do you feel the current and proposed regulations provide for the
most effective methods of informing.eligible clients of availability of EPSDT
services, i.e., written notification?

Answer. A good deal of evidence exists from EPSDT demonstration projects
that written materials informing families of the availability and nature of
EPSDT services are less effective than personal contact and home visits. How-
ever, In developing both the current penalty regulation and the proposed
revision, the Department has required and proposed only written notification in
recognition of the significant increases In staff and administrative resources that
many states would have to make to carry out the more effective outreach activi-
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ties and to document reliably that all AFDC families had been informed by such
methods. Further, it must be recognized that the penalty provision represents
only the m(nimuni requirements of the program and the Department has not
thought it appropriate to consider all methods that would contribute to an
optimally effective EPSDT program as penalty issues. However, in the SRS
Program Regulation Guide tMSA-PRG-21, June 28, 1972) for EPSDT, the
importance of a variety of casefinding and outreach methods is discussed and

_ peronal contact Ls emphasized. Even though not required by the penalty pro-
vision, many states do currently use methods of personal contact for explaining
EPSDT in addition to written informing materials. Further, a recent policy
clarification makes 75 percent federal matching available, rather than the usual
50 percent for administrative costs, for health related support services, Including
notification through' personal contact and other forms of outreach, for EPSDT.

Question 6. How many childen who were eligible for EPSDT died from com-
plications of communicable diseases that simple immunizations could have pre-
vented for each of the last five years?

Answer. It is not possible to determine the number of EPSDTeligible children
dying from complications of communicable disease. For comparison, the total
number of individuals ander 20 years of age dying as a result of childhood,
vaccine-preventable diseaases in the United States was 132 in 1969, 175 in 1970,
145 in 1971, 68 in 1972, and 45 in 1973.

Question 7. The Forward Plan for Health indicates that you will emphasize
Infant mortality, particularly in the 3,000 counties that have a mortality rate of
33.4 while the rest of the country has a mortality rate of 17.3. Do these 3,000
counties have a disproportionately high percentage of EPSDT eligibles?

Answer. Actually, as the Forward Plan indicates, ten percent of the total 3,000
counties in the country have the higher mortality rate you mentioned. Although
we do not have data on the number of EPSDT eligibles in the counties.with high
infant mortality rates, we would assume that such counties do have a relatively
high percentage of EPSDT eligibles since infant mortality tends to be higher for
low-income populations and in poor rural areas.

Question 8. How many of . the approximately 180,000 children who suffer
annually from diseases that simple immunization can prevent are EPSDT
eligibles?

Answer. During 1914, approximately 96,000 cases of common childhood
diseases were reported for which preventive immunizations are available. Al-
though disease occurs across all socioeconomic boundaries, immunity levels are
lower in the poverty areas throughout the nation, compared with non-poverty
areas, suggesting that disease incidence rates would be greater in these areas.
While the disease reporting system does not identify eases according to EPSDT
eligibility, a study of selected EPSDT sites indicated that 25 to 81 percent of
children receiving screening under EPSDT needed immunization services:

Questien 9. On page 35 of the Dr. Dickson prepared statement, dated October
8, 1975, it whs indicated that $3.5 billion VMS spent for those under age 21. Could
you please provide a breakdown of these dollars, including:

(a) How much was spent for afflictions such as polio, vision, and hearing
disorders?

(b) How much was spent for institutionalization for mental retardation?
(c) How much was spent for hospitalization?

Answer. The National Center for Social Statistics reporting system does not
include disease specific -information. However, in FY 1973, the latest year for
which Medicaid expenditure information for children under 21 is available, the
total Federal and State Medicaid expenditures for this population was $3,431,030
for inpatient services in mental hospitals, and $10,456,049 for institutional inter-
mediate care services for mentally retarded people under 21. Total FY 1973 ex-
penditures under Medicaid for inpatient hospital services in general hospitals for
people under 21 were $404,797.517.

Question 10. A memorandum of understanding, dated August 28, 1975, between
DHEW and the State of California indicates that, regarding AFDC penalties
and sanctions, the Secretary will consider a major revision in the penalty struc-
ture. Could yon please indicate what is meant by this?

Answer. The Department has in progress an in-depth examination of its sanc-
tion, enforcement and incentive activities. From this examination, we are con-
sidering proposed changes in legislation, regulations and administrative pro-
cedures to make sanctions more effective, more rational, more equitable, and less
complicated.
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Thefirst 'phase of this study, to be completed early January, 1976, will focus
on State-related enforcement mechanisms, with emphasis on formula grant pro-
gram pregrams, e.g., Medicaid. Aid .to Families with Dependent Children, Socha
Services (Title-XX), and Education for the Disadvantaged (Title I. Elementary
and Secondary Education Act).

Ill pur examination, we are attempting to secure relatively wide participa-
tionincluding State staff. public interest groups. Congressional staff, etc. We .
intend to,rellect in the study a broad spectrum of opinion.

Question IL Have similar memoranda Id' uuderstamling. as with California,
been established with other States? Would you please forward all memoranda
of understanding,in existence.

Answer. There have been no similar memoranda of understanding. although
We lmve advised a number of States, interest groups. awl private individuals
that we are:undertaking the study outlined in thv resist:Ise to question 10.

Questiou.12.. ltou 9 Of the memorandum of-understanding, dated. A ugust 2S,
for its noncompliance regarding the early childhotid screening program." Could,
1975. indicates that-I/HEW will "sympathetically consider (lalifornia's appeal
you please. indicate what "teehnical noncompliance" nwans in that statement?

Answer. The Department understands "technical non-eompliance" to mean.
simply, non-compliance. California officials felt the qualifier "technieal" hotter
expressea their position on the complianee.questions tinder discussitm. and so
that language was included.

Question Lt. The audit report of EPDST for Alabama, for the period (Huber
1. 1971 through March 31. 1975. dated August 11. 1975. signed by Emil A. Trefzer,
.1r.. indicates tlmt S1 pereent of all treatment based on a simple analysis was
provided after 60 days between the date Id sereening and the date of diagnosis
and treatntent Is this a vhdation of the regulations regarding the time frame in
Mach treatment must be provided after suclt treatment is found necessary hy
sereening (45 CFR 205.146 (e) (Hi) ) ?

Answer. Cutler the law, complianCe with the EPSDT penalty provision must
be determined for Pach quarter after Jaly 1. 1974. The audit report giving aggre-
gate data for the period if ()endier 1971 through March 1975 would thus nta be
applicable. Further, even if the S1 percent were true fi n. any given quarter sincc
the effective date 4if the inomity. the regulations provhle that initial diagnosis
and treatment must be a vailalde normally within 60 days of the. sereening. In
determining compliance with this provision such considerations as the ayail-
ability of specialists or the lime within whieh the necessary treatment. service is
generally available to the population at large In the area are taken into neeount.
Thus we would look beyond a general percentage such es She one sited in the
audit report in assessing compliance with this provision.

Question Pp How can you ensure, under the August 20. 1975 Notice of Pro-
posed Rulemaking, that treatment will be given in timely fan:libel? Seetion
205.146 (c).. (3) seems to allow states to absolve themselves of possible penalty
liability. while recipients risk not being provided their required. treatment.
Should mit the states assume a larger burden to insure that treatment be pro-
vhled within a reasonable tinw.

Answer. The proposed revisium to the penalty regulation Iumvidvs that Stal-es
must assure that treatment services are provided or initiated within 60 days of
a screening finding that indieates a need for such services exmit iii ..ases
the State can sluov that failure to do so is not the result mi State inaction_ Rather
than allowing States to abmilvo themsel yes Of possibilb I wi1:01-y liability this
provision would make States liable for inaetion in assuring timely delivery of
treatment. The excepthal is provided in order Wit to I Itqua I i.c Sta tOs 1.01* rir-
eunistances beyond their comtrol in meeting the Ii0 day requirement. SUOI as
severe scarcity of dentists. specialists or Other providers or a recipient missing
the appointment despite State assistanee in seheduling and transportation.

Question 15. Is the Maternal and Child Health program under Title V
considered a Departinental priority?

Answer. Nes. The Department's Forward Phut for Health. published in .Tune
of this yenr, states that vhild health is a -major priority" or HEW. The Itepart-
inent's child health strategy will be focusing on reaming infant mortality and
low birth weight and on maternal health services. The MCI! programa will con-
tinuo its special support of basic and preventive servkes of prenatal anal post-
natal care. ill to t and Preschool health si u pervision, school health services. and
eontracelition, with emphasis nn health assessment. sereening, teaching. and
en re.
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Que#tion. 16. Why did the President propose to cut the Maternal and Child
-Health program by $80 million, a 55 percent cut?

Answer. The proposed reduction of $83 million from $295 million in FY 1975
to .$212 million in FY 1976 represents a 28 percent reduction for Maternal and
Child Health.

The Maternal and Child Health program is not singled out among Federal
programs for budget reductions. Such reductions are part of the overall objective

.
of the Administration to limit Federal deficits in an overall attempt to control
inflation.

The Maternal and Child Health budget reflects the decision by tile Department
to require local governments, private institutIons, and third-party payors to
contribute a greater share of the cost of the health care programs. The effective-
ness of special projects over the past two decades has demoustrattx1 to local
communities how to reduce the incidence of disorders and handicapping con-
ditions in children. Tim Department has chosen to advance progressively forward
from a focus on demonstration under Title N' to promoting and providing needed
maternal and child health services through Federal and private sector payment
programs.

Mr. SCHWEIZ. First. D. Kretehmer, in connection with our keen
interest in: doing more in terms of maternal and child health, as I
understand it, there is almost nothing that is more important to infant
and maternal health than the ability of a mother to space her children.
Wouldthat be correct ?

Dr. KRETCHMER. Certainly that is one of tlfe most important aspects.
.Mr. SCHEUEn. I was the author of the 1970 Population fleseurch and

Family Planning Act. To put it at its most charitable. Federal support
'for family planning services and for funding family planning services
has been faint-hearted and reluctant.

I feel the Federal Government, instead of looking at the. family
planning program as perhaps the most cost-effective single program
in achieving maternal and child health, had had to be dragged kicking
and screammg into the 20th century.

Do you have any explanation as to why the Federal Government
is failing to support. this most. cost-effective of all health programs, and
whether there :Et any intention to do better in the future ?

Dr. VAN HoEn. Mr. Schener, I am Acting Administrator of the
Health &rvices Administration which administers the family plan-
ninir programs tinder title V and title X.
'Al's you know, in the appropriations processes the President. in fiscal

.1976 recommended 20 percent less for family planning. That was not
to indicate that the Department or the administration felt, that family
planning was not an important service and that we should not. con-
tinue to support the program but rather within the total Federal
expenditures that perhaps the State and local agencies could make up
some.of that. difference in funding to maintain the level of operation.

Mr. Scrwura. It. would take a Martian to believe that New York
City and State. as well as other cities and States similarly situated.
are capable of filling in the funding gap by substituting their fluids
for Federal funds. Iro you really think such a pla» is feasible ?

Dr. Kurrcipm. It has to be taken in light of one other factor, and
that is that there are other Federal funds available for family plan-
ning through title XIX and title XX is which there is preferential
Matching to the States for the support of those services.

Mr. Sommu. All the evidence indicates that there are perhaps 3 to
4 million women of child-bearing years in this country who do not
have available to them family planning services. If we are talking
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about infant and maternal health there is absolutely nothing, includingEPSDT, that will do as much, for as little expenditure of funds, asmaking family planning information available to mothers.Now the 1970 act established a 5-year program for bringing familyplanning services to every single woman of child-bearing years in thiscountry.
Do ciu feel that we have accomplished this ?
Dr. KRETCHMER. No, sii.
Mr, SCHEUER. What plans do you have to accomplish this congres-sional goal?
Dr. VAN HOEK. It seems to me we have to look at the program fromseveral perspectives. It is not just Federal family planning programlegislation and appropriations which can meet the needs of familyplanning services. In addition to the family planning legislation, wehave authority under almost all our other health service programs toprovide family planning service.
Our neighborhood health centers, our maternal and childhealth pro-(*rams and our direct service programs all provide family planningservices to individuals. If there is a gap it may not just be a lack oflegislation or appropriation but the way services are organized in thelocal communities.
Mr. SOMME. Mr. Chairman, I ask unanimous consent that thewitness may be permitted to complete his answer to my question andalso that he be given some additional questions on the penalty of .some $21/2 million which has been assessed against New York State.If you would answer these questions for the record I would appreciateit very much.

Mr. OrrixoF.a. Without objection we will ask the Department toanswer those questions for the record.
ISee letter dated Nov. 5, 1975. p. 143, this hearing.]
Unfortunately there is a recorded vote.
Mr. Orrison. We would like to express our real concern on thiscommittee that the program for child health be carried out. That thishas been given the kind of priority which is said to be given by theadministration certainly is not reflected by what I understand is a 35-percent cut in the funds for the whole series of maternal and child careprograms within the budget.
I hope you will carry that message back as well as our dissatisfac-tion. The lack of priority for this program is reflected in the top peopleof the Department not being represented at this hearing.This concludes days of hearings on "Shortchanging Children."This is the. second series of hearings held as part of an overall study ofthe Subcommittee on "Getting Ready for National Health Insurance."We have heard distressing testimony of public witnesses who couldhave and should have been screened and treated in prop-rams mandatedby the Social Security Act and funded under medicaid, but who werenot. Their loss of good health can never be recovered. Instead of beingable to lead normal, groductive lives and be future taxpayers to ourgovernment, they instead have been mistreated and maltreated andwill need to be supported by society. The tragedy is that their ailmentscould have been avoided if they had received the early diagnosis thatis provided for in existing child health legislation.
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We have heard from pediatricians and researchers who examinedthe
aspects of the problem and indicated the benefits of early screening
and preventive medicine and the Inige costs of the absence of such
screening treatment. For example. a simple PKU test that costs 30 or
50 cents may save $20.000 a year for an institutionalized mentally re-
tarded victim. Their testimony was convincing both in dollar costs and
in human costs. They indicated that tire substantial benefits to be
gained by such programs as early and periodic screening diagnosis and
treatment (EPSDT). There appear to be much better ways to man-
a or such a program than what is currently being done by HEW.

It is clear that. wide gaps exist in the execution of this program as
intended by the Congress. This is another example of the. lack of
proper administration of the medicaid program by the Department
of Health, Education, and Welfare.

The House of Representatives through rules X and XI has em-
powered this committee with oversight responsibilities over health
programs not supported by payroll taxes.

In order to execute this responsibility in the manner intended. I will
transniit to the President of the United States details of the deficiencies
and costs found in the implementation or rather lack of implementa-
tion of these child health programs. Further the committee will re-
quest from the Secretary of HEW a report indicating the steps they
intend to take to bring the program into conformity with the statutes
of the United States.

In order to protect the consumers of health care in this country we
need to close the gaps of the health care delivery system. We must be
able to provide quality medical care to all Americans at a reasonable
ost. The evidence -of why this should be done in the area of child
health is overwhelming. The evidence of the gaps in this program are
also overwhelming. We have a responsibility to close these gaps. We
intend to see that this is done.

The hearing are concluded.
[Whereupon, at 12 :45 p.m. the committee was adjourned.]
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